
  
 
 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

 
Board of Trustees 
Joyce Dalessandro 

Barbara Groth 
Beth Hergesheimer 

Amy Herman  
John Salazar 

 
Superintendent 

Rick Schmitt 
 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, disability-related modifications, or accommodations, 

including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meetings of the District’s Governing Board, please contact the Office of 

the Superintendent. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 

accommodation and accessibility to this meeting. Upon request, the District shall also make available this agenda and all other public records 

associated with the meeting in appropriate alternative formats for persons with a disability. 

Canyon Crest Academy • Carmel Valley MS • Diegueño MS • Earl Warren MS • La Costa Canyon HS • North Coast Alternative HS  
Oak Crest MS • San Dieguito Adult Education • San Dieguito High School Academy • Sunset HS • Torrey Pines HS 

 Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 1 of 10 

 

THURSDAY, JULY 17, 2014  DISTRICT OFFICE BOARD ROOM 101 
6:30 PM   710 ENCINITAS BLVD., ENCINITAS, CA  92024 
 

Welcome to the meeting of the San Dieguito Union High School District Board of Trustees.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, please complete a speaker slip located at the sign-in desk 
and present it to the Secretary to the Board prior to the start of the meeting.  When the Board President invites you 
to the podium, please state your name, address, and organization before making your presentation.   

Persons wishing to address the Board on any school-related issue not elsewhere on the agenda are invited to do 
so under the "Public Comments" item. If you wish to speak under Public Comments, please follow the same 
directions (above) for speaking to agenda items.  Complaints or charges against an employee are not permitted in 
an open meeting of the Board of Trustees.  

In the interest of time and order, presentations from the public are limited to three (3) minutes per person, per topic.  
The total time for agenda and non-agenda items shall not exceed twenty (20) minutes. An individual speaker's 
allotted time may not be increased by a donation of time from others in attendance.  

In accordance with the Brown Act, unless an item has been placed on the published agenda, there shall be no 
action taken.  The Board may 1) acknowledge receipt of the information, 2) refer to staff for further study, or 3) refer 
the matter to the next agenda. 
 
PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS 

In compliance with Government Code 54957.5, agenda-related documents that have been distributed to the Board 
less than 72 hours prior to the Board Meeting will be available for review on the district website, www.sduhsd.net 
and/or at the district office.  Please contact the Office of the Superintendent for more information. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under Consent are those on which the Board has previously deliberated or which can be classified 
as routine items of business.  An administrative recommendation on each item is contained in the agenda 
supplements.  There will be no separate discussion of these items prior to the time the Board of Trustees votes on 
the motion unless members of the Board, staff, or public request specific items to be discussed or pulled from the 
Consent items. To address an item on the consent calendar, please follow the procedure described under 
Comments on Agenda Items. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
The Board will meet in Closed Session to consider qualified matters of litigation, employee negotiations, student 
discipline, employee grievances, personnel qualifications, or real estate negotiations which are timely.  
 

CELL PHONES / ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones and electronic devices to silent mode and 
engage in conversations outside the meeting room. 
 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
1 of 543

http://www.sduhsd.net/
http://www.sduhsd.net/about/dept-superintendent.htm


        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 2 of 10 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 

THURSDAY, JULY 17, 2014 DISTRICT OFFICE BOARD ROOM 101 
6:30 PM 710 ENCINITAS BLVD., ENCINITAS, CA. 92024 

 

PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS ............................................................................................... (ITEMS 1 – 6) 

 1. CALL TO ORDER; PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING CLOSED SESSION ITEMS ................................ 5:30 PM 

2. CLOSED SESSION ................................................................................................................................... 5:31 PM 

A. To consider personnel issues, pursuant to Government Code Sections 11126 and 54957; 
limited to consideration of the appointment, employment, evaluation of performance, discipline/ 
release, dismissal of a public employee or to hear complaints or charges brought against such 
employee by another person or employee unless the employee requests a public session.  

 Superintendent Evaluation 

 (2 Issues) 

REGULAR MEETING / OPEN SESSION ................................................................................................... 6:30 PM 

 3. RECONVENE REGULAR BOARD MEETING / CALL TO ORDER ....................................... BOARD PRESIDENT 
  * WELCOME / MEETING PROTOCOL REMARKS 

 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 5. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (2) / HIGH SCHOOL SELECTION COMMUNITY INFORMATION MEETING OF JUNE 
16, 2014 & REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2014 

  Motion by _______, second by _______, to approve the Minutes (2) of the High School Selection 
Community Information Meeting of June 16, 2014 and the June 19, 2014 Regular Board Meeting, 
as shown in the attached supplements.  

NON-ACTION ITEMS .......................................................................................................... (ITEMS 7 - 10) 

 7. STUDENT UPDATES ...................................................... NO STUDENT UPDATES DURING SUMMER BREAK 

 8. BOARD REPORTS AND UPDATES ........................................................................... BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 9. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORTS, BRIEFINGS, & LEGISLATIVE UPDATES ... RICK SCHMITT, SUPERINTENDENT 

 10. DEPARTMENT / SITE UPDATES ................................................................................ (NONE SCHEDULED)  

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS ............................................................................................. (ITEMS 11 - 15) 

Upon invitation by the President, anyone who wishes to discuss a Consent Item should come forward to 
the lectern, state his/her name and address, and the Consent Item number. 

 11. SUPERINTENDENT  

A. GIFTS AND DONATIONS 
 Accept the gifts and donations, as shown in the attached supplement. 
 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
2 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 3 of 10 

B. FIELD TRIP REQUESTS 
Accept the field trip requests, as shown in the attached supplement. 

 12. HUMAN RESOURCES 

A. PERSONNEL REPORTS  
Approve matters pertaining to employment of personnel, salaries, leaves of absence, 
resignations, changes in assignments, extra duty assignments, and consultant services: 
1. Certificated and/or Classified Personnel Reports, as shown in the attached supplements.  

 
B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 
 (None Submitted)  

13. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 

A. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 
 Approve/ratify entering into the following agreement and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric 

R. Dill to execute the agreement: 
1. Phyllis Quan dba Quan Consulting, to provide advice and counsel in fundraising for high 

school sports and other academic and extracurricular activities, during the period July 1, 
2014 through June 30, 2015, at the hourly rate of $130.00 for an estimated amount not to 
exceed $5,400.00, to be expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

2. San Diego County Superintendent of Schools/County Office of Education, to provide 
credential services for Adult Education teachers, during the period July 1, 2013 through 
June 30, 2014, for an amount not to exceed $286.00, to be expended from the Adult 
Education Fund 11-00. 

3. San Diego County Superintendent of Schools/County Office of Education to provide 
credential services for Adult Education teachers, during the period July 1, 2014 through 
June 30, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $286.00, to be expended from the Adult 
Education Fund 11-00. 

4. San Diego County Superintendent of Schools/County Office of Education, to provide 
advanced Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English (SDAIE) professional 
development for San Dieguito Union High School District teachers, during the period 
October 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, for an amount not to exceed $2,575.00, to be 
expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS 
Approve/ratify amending the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric 
R. Dill to execute the agreements: 
1. Rosetta Stone, Ltd., amending the agreement to include 20 additional licenses, during the 

period June 20, 2014 through June 30, 2015 and then continuing with annual renewals 
unless terminated with 30 day advance written notice, in the amount of $2,180.00, to be 
expended from Title 1 General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

 14. PUPIL SERVICES / SPECIAL EDUCATION 

  SPECIAL EDUCATION 

A. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF NON-PUBLIC SCHOOL / NON-PUBLIC AGENCY CONTRACTS, 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENTS, AND/OR MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING  
Approve/ratify entering into the following non-public school / non-public agency master 
contracts (NPS/NPAs), independent contractor agreements (ICAs), and or memorandums of 
understanding (MOUs), and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric R. Dill to execute all 
pertinent documents.   

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
3 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 4 of 10 

1. Sharon A. Criger, PT, DPT (ICA), to provide physical therapy, assessments, and IEP 
support in an educational setting, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at 
the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

2. Daniel & Davis Optometry, Inc. (ICA), to provide vision therapy, assessments, and IEP 
support in an educational setting, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at 
the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

3. Amanda J. Gretsch, Inc. (ICA), to provide occupational therapy, assessments, and IEP 
support in an educational setting, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at 
the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

4. Yellowstone Boys & Girls Ranch (NPS), to provide twenty-four hour residential treatment 
for diploma bound students with severe social, emotional, and mental health issues, during 
the period June 12, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to 
be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

5. Banyan Tree Learning Center (NPA), to provide an alternative education model for both 
diploma bound and non-diploma bound students, during the period July 1, 2014 through 
June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from the General 
Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

6. Lindamood Bell Learning Processes (NPA), to provide intensive reading instruction and 
intervention, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on 
the attachment, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

7. Dependable Nursing, LLC (NPA), to provide nursing services for medically fragile students, 
during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the 
attachment, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

8. Maxim Healthcare Services (NPA), to provide nursing services for medically fragile 
students, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the 
attachment, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

9. ACES (NPA), to provide one to one educationally and behavior related services and 
consultation for students with autism, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, 
at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 
06-00. 

10. Autism Spectrum Consultants, Inc. (NPA), to provide one to one educationally and 
behavior related services and consultation for students with autism, during the period July 
1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from 
the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

11. Comprehensive Autism Services & Education (NPA), to provide one to one educationally 
and behavior related services and consultation for students with autism, during the period 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended 
from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

12. San Diego Center for Vision Care (NPA), to provide services as an independent 
educational evaluator for vision therapy and assessments, during the period July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from the 
General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

13. Arch Academy (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for diploma bound 
students with high functioning autism and/or social, emotional, mental health issues, during 
the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be 
expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

14. Excelsior Academy (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for diploma bound 
students with social, emotional, mental health issues, during the period July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from the 
General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

15. Winston School (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for diploma bound 
students with high functioning autism and/or moderate to severe learning disabilities, during 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
4 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 5 of 10 

the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be 
expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

16. Banyan Tree Foundations Academy (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for 
non-diploma bound students with moderate to severe autism and/or intellectual disabilities, 
during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the 
attachment, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

17. Community School of San Diego (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for non-
diploma bound students with moderate to severe autism and/or intellectual disabilities, 
during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the 
attachment, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

18. New Bridge School (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for diploma bound 
students with high functioning autism and/or moderate to severe learning disabilities up to 
Grade 8, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the 
attachment, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

19. Sierra Academy (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for non-diploma bound 
students with moderate to severe autism and/or intellectual disabilities, during the period 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended 
from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

20. TERI, Inc. (NPS), to provide an alternative education model for non-diploma bound 
students with moderate to severe autism and/or intellectual disabilities, during the period 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended 
from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

21. San Diego Center for Children Academy (NPS), to provide twenty-four hour residential 
treatment and an alternative education model for diploma bound students with high 
functioning autism and/or social, emotional, mental health issues, during the period July 1, 
2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended from 
the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

22. Family Life Center (NPS), to provide twenty-four hour residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, emotional, and mental health issues, during the period 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended 
from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

23. Heritage Schools, Inc. (NPS), to provide twenty-four hour residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, emotional, and mental health issues, during the period 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended 
from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

24. Provo Canyon School (NPS, NPA), to provide twenty-four hour residential treatment for 
diploma bound students with severe social, emotional, and mental health issues, during the 
period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be 
expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

25. Oak Grove Institute (NPS), to provide twenty-four hour residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, emotional, and mental health issues, during the period 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rates shown on the attachment, to be expended 
from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS 
(None Submitted) 

C. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF PARENT SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE AGREEMENTS 
Approve/ratify the following Parent Settlement and Release Agreements, to be funded by the 
General Fund 06-00/Special Education, and authorize the Director of Special Education to 
execute the agreements: 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
5 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 6 of 10 

1. Student ID #3168824837, for reimbursement of neuro-psychological evaluation and related 
educational attorney’s fees, for the period up to June 11, 2014, in an amount not to exceed 
$10,150.00. 

2. Student ID #9076847231, for reimbursement of a Parentally Placed Private School Student 
(PPPSS) at High Bluff Academy for 30 semester course credits, during the period June 9, 
2014 through approximately June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $6,600.00. 

3. Student ID #8097144658, for reimbursement of a Non-Public School (NPS), Alternative 
Teaching Strategy Center, for related educational expenses, during the period July 1, 2014 
through July 30, 2015, in the approximate amount of $92,940.00. 

PUPIL SERVICES  

D. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 
 Approve/ratify entering into the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett, Eric 

R. Dill, or Rick Schmitt to execute the agreements: 
1. Vincent Fall and Associates, to provide residency check services and support to the 

Director of Pupil Services and Alternative Programs by participating in School Attendance 
Review Board (SARB) and administrative hearing panels on an as needed basis, during 
the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rate of $200.00 per hour, to be 
expended from the General Fund 03-00 

 15.  BUSINESS / PROPOSITION AA 

   BUSINESS 

A. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS  
Approve/ratify entering into the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett, Eric 
R. Dill, or Rick Schmitt to execute the agreements: 
1. Axiom Advisors & Consultants, Inc., to provide non-block grant mandate reimbursement 

services at the costs of $225.00 per school site for mandate compliance check and outside 
audit preparation, and a 10% filing fee not to exceed $1,000.00 per claim for all new and 
on-going mandate filing services, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, to 
be expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

2. City of San Diego Parks & Recreation Department, Carmel Valley Recreation Center, for 
lease of facilities for Carmel Valley Middle School off-campus PE classes, during the period 
September 9, 2014 through December 18, 2014, for an amount not to exceed $1,066.00, to 
be expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

3. Western Flooring, Inc., to scrub, screen, and apply finish to gym and dance floors district 
wide, during the period July 18, 2014 through August 22, 2014, for an amount not to 
exceed $27,404.00, to be expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

4. NvLS Professional Services, LLC to provide E-rate consultation services, during the period 
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $12,200.00, to be 
expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

5. Tomark Sports, to provide preventative maintenance and inspection services to motorized 
bleachers and ten point basketball backboard service at Canyon Crest Academy, Carmel 
Valley Middle School, La Costa Canyon High School, San Dieguito High School Academy, 
Diegueño Middle School, and Torrey Pines High School, during the period of July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $9,830.00, to be expended from the 
General Fund 03-00. 

6. Atlas Pumping Service, to perform grease trap, septic tank, portable toilet, Storm Water 
Interceptors/Clarifier, and other pumping services as needed district wide, during the period 
July 18, 2014 and continuing until terminated by thirty day written notice from either party, 
for an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 per year, to be expended from the General Fund 
03-00. 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
6 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 7 of 10 

7. Door Service & Repair, Inc. (DSR), to provide preventative maintenance and repairs on 
111 various types and sizes of rolling steel doors at 9 different school sites, during the 
period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $4,500.00, to be 
expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

8. Simplex Grinnell, LLP, to provide fire extinguisher test, inspection, and repair services for 
143 extinguishers used by the Transportation Department utilizing the National Joint 
Powers Alliance (NJPA) cooperative purchasing bid 031913-SGL, during the period July 1, 
2014 through June 30, 2019, for an amount not to exceed $587.00 annually for the test & 
inspection services with cost of repairs to be quoted separately based on time and 
materials, to be expended from the General Fund/Restricted 06-00. 

9. Magdalena Ecke YMCA, for the lease of facilities for the La Costa Canyon High School 
Boys & Girls Water Polo and Boys & Girls Swim Team programs, during the period August 
11, 2014 through June 30, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $24,255.00, to be paid for by 
the La Costa Canyon High School Foundation. 

10. Consulting & Inspection Services LLC, to provide small project miscellaneous DSA 
inspection services, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, with a not to 
exceed written estimate of hours per project, at the rate of $89.00 per hour, to be expended 
from the fund to which the project is charged. 

11. Myriam Lucas, to conduct dance workshops and create choreography for the La Costa 
Canyon High School Dance Club, during the period June 30, 2014 through September 1, 
2014, for an amount not to exceed $1,200.00, to be expended from the La Costa Canyon 
High School Associated Student Body (ASB).  

12. Mobil Construction Sweeping, to provide mobile sweeping services to all district parking 
lots, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, at the rate of $287.50 per two 
and one half hours of sweeping and $57.50 per each additional half hour thereafter, to be 
expended from the General Fund 03-00. 

B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS 
Approve/ratify amending the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric 
R. Dill to execute the agreements: 
1. A&R Wholesale Distributors, Inc., for Grocery & Snack Supplies B2014-03, extending the 

contract period from July 19, 2014 through July 18, 2015, with increases in the unit pricing, 
as allowed in the contract, to be expended from the Cafeteria Fund 13-00. 

2. San Diego Scenic Tours, Inc., NCST, Inc., McClintock Hartley Enterprises, Inc. dba: 
Goldfield Stage & Co., Sundance Stage Lines, Inc., Certified Transportation Services, Inc., 
WESS Transportation Services, Inc., Sun Diego Charter Co., and Grand Pacific Charter 
extending the Extra Curricular Transportation services contract B2014-01 for trips to be 
scheduled during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, with a 1.31% increase in 
rates as stipulated in the contract, to be expended from the program fund requesting the 
transportation. 

C. AWARD/RATIFICATION OF CONTRACTS 
(None Submitted) 

D. APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDERS 
 (None Submitted) 

E. ACCEPTANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
(None Submitted) 

F. APPROVAL OF BUSINESS REPORTS 
 Approve the following business reports: 

 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
7 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 8 of 10 

1. Purchase Orders 
2. Membership Listing (None Submitted) 

PROPOSITION AA 

G. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS  
 Approve/ratify entering into the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett, Eric 

R. Dill, or Rick Schmitt to execute the agreements and all related pertinent documents: 
1. Lionakis, to provide architectural and engineering services for interim housing at Earl 

Warren Middle School, during the period July 18, 2014 through completion, in an amount 
not to exceed $146,300.00, to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

2. Trace3, to provide Cisco phones with Smartnet (VOIP) at San Dieguito High School 
Academy, during the period July 18, 2014 through completion, in an amount not to exceed 
$8,097.73, to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

3. Trace3, to provide network equipment for wireless LAN upgrade at San Dieguito High 
School Academy, during the period July 18, 2014 through completion, in an amount not to 
exceed $49,849.56, to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

4. Rancho Santa Fe Security, Inc., to replace DMP network panels with 4G cellular back-up at 
Diegueno Middle School, during the period July 18, 2014 through completion, in an amount 
not to exceed $2,990.00, to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

5. Rancho Santa Fe Security, Inc., to replace DMP network panels with 4G cellular back-up at 
Sunset High School, during the period July 18, 2014 through completion, in an amount not 
to exceed $1,750.00, to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

H. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS  
Approve/ratify amending the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric 
R. Dill to execute the agreements: 
1. McCarthy Building Companies, Inc., Preliminary Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) to 

Lease Lease/Back Agreement at Earl Warren Middle School for the Data Center, during 
the period July 18, 2014 through completion, increasing the amount by $11,923.00 for a 
Final GMP in the amount of $2,401,873.00 to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 
Fund 21-39. 

 
I. AWARD/RATIFICATION OF CONTRACTS 

(None Submitted) 
 

J. APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDERS 
 (None Submitted) 

K. ACCEPTANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
 (None Submitted) 

ROLL CALL VOTE FOR CONSENT AGENDA ................................................................. (ITEMS 11 - 15) 

 Motion by_________, second by__________, to approve Consent Agenda Items 11-15, as 
shown in the attached supplements. 

 Roll Call:  
Joyce Dalessandro     
Barbara Groth     
Beth Hergesheimer    
Amy Herman    
John Salazar    

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
8 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 9 of 10 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS ........................................................................................ (ITEMS 16 - 19) 

16. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION / BOARD MEMBER ABSENCE 
 Adopt the resolution determining that Barbara Groth shall be compensated for the Board 

meeting of June 19, 2014, from which she was absent due to illness, as shown in the attached 
supplement. 

 Roll Call 
17. ADOPTION OF MATH INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 Motion by _____, second by _____, to adopt the Mathematics Vision Project (MVP) curriculum for 

high school courses and the Utah Middle School Math Project curriculum for middle school 
courses. 

18. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES FOR 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 Motion by _____, second by_____, to adopt the attached resolutions establishing Special 

Taxes within Community Facilities District No.’s 94-2, 94-3, 95-2, 99-1, 99-2, 99-3, and 03-1, 
which increases the Alternate Prepayment Tax for single family, multi-family units, and 
commercial buildings per Lee Saylor Cost of Construction Index or Engineering News-Record 
Building Cost Index. 

 Roll Call 
19. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES FOR 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 

 Motion by _____, second by_____, to adopt the attached resolutions levying Special Taxes 
within Community Facilities District No.’s 94-1, 94-2, 94-3, 95-1, 95-2, 99-1, 99-2, 99-3, and 
03-1, and authorize the Auditor of San Diego County to levy taxes on all non-exempt property 
within each Community Facilities District. 

 Roll Call 

INFORMATION ITEMS ...................................................................................................... (ITEMS 20 - 31) 

 20. HIGH SCHOOL SELECTION UPDATE .................................................................................. RICK SCHMITT 
   This item is being provided as information only. 

 21. DRAFT EDUCATION PLAN: STRATEGIC THEMES, 2014-15 .................................................. RICK SCHMITT 
   This item is being submitted as first read and will be resubmitted for action at the August 21, 2014 

board meeting. 

 22. UNIFORM COMPLAINT QUARTERLY REPORT, 4TH QUARTER, APRIL – JUNE 2014 
   This item is being provided as information only, for the fourth quarter, April through June, 2014, as 

shown in the attached supplement.  

 23. PROPOSED REVISED BOARD POLICIES (2): #9270, “CONFLICT OF INTEREST” and #2420.1/4320.1, 
“DESIGNATION OF MANAGEMENT POSITIONS” 

   This item is being submitted as first read and will be resubmitted for action at the August 21, 2014 
board meeting. 

 24. BUSINESS SERVICES UPDATE .................................................. ERIC DILL, ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT  

 25. HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE ........................................ TORRIE NORTON, ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT  

 26. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES UPDATE ............................. MIKE GROVE, ED.D., ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT  

 27. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
In accordance with the Brown Act, unless an item has been placed on the published agenda, there 
shall be no action taken. The Board may 1) acknowledge receipt of the information, 2) refer to staff 
for further study, or 3) refer the matter to the next agenda.  (See Board Agenda Cover Sheet) 

28. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

29. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION .............................................................................. (AS REQUIRED) 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
9 of 543



        

Board Agenda, 07/17/14 
Page 10 of 10 

A. To consider personnel issues, pursuant to Government Code Sections 11126 and 54957; 
limited to consideration of the appointment, employment, evaluation of performance, discipline/ 
release, dismissal of a public employee or to hear complaints or charges brought against such 
employee by another person or employee unless the employee requests a public session. 

 Superintendent Evaluation 

 (2 Issues) 

30. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (AS NECESSARY) 

31. MEETING ADJOURNED 

 

The next regularly scheduled Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, August 21, 2014, at 6:30 PM in 
the SDUHSD District Office Board Room 101. The District Office is located at 710 Encinitas Blvd., 
Encinitas, CA, 92024. 

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
10 of 543

http://www.sduhsd.net/about/board-meeting-dates.htm


  
 
 

 

MINUTES 
 

 
Board of Trustees 
Joyce Dalessandro 

Barbara Groth 
Beth Hergesheimer 

Amy Herman 
John Salazar 

 
Superintendent 

Rick Schmitt 
 

Canyon Crest Academy • Carmel Valley MS • Diegueño MS • Earl Warren MS • La Costa Canyon HS • North Coast Alternative HS  
Oak Crest MS • San Dieguito Adult Education • San Dieguito High School Academy • Sunset HS • Torrey Pines HS 

 
Minutes, HS Selection Community Info Mtg, 06-16-14 

Page 1 of 2 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HIGH SCHOOL SELECTION 
COMMUNITY INFORMATION MEETING 

 
MONDAY, JUNE 16, 2014 CARDIFF ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, AUDITORIUM 
6:00 PM 1888 MONTGOMERY AVE, CARDIFF, CA  92007 

 

The Governing Board of the San Dieguito Union High School District held a High School 
Selection Community Information Meeting on Monday, June 16, 2014, at the above location. 
 
Attendance / Board: 
Joyce Dalessandro  
Barbara Groth  
Beth Hergesheimer  
Amy Herman  
John Salazar 
 
Attendance / District Management: 
Rick Schmitt, Superintendent  
Eric Dill, Associate Superintendent, Business Services  
Michael Grove, Ed.D., Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 
Joann Schultz, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent / Recording Secretary 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
Superintendent Schmitt called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

 

INFORMATION  ITEMS 

 
2. HIGH SCHOOL SELECTION COMMUNITY INFORMATION 

A. STAFF PRESENTATION 
 Mr. Schmitt introduced staff and gave a brief history of the high school selection 

process. 
 Dr. Grove gave an update on the high school selection process including why we have 

district-wide schools of choice, SDUHSD’s current policies on high school enrollment, 
San Dieguito HS Academy (SDHSA) enrollment history, SDHSA/La Costa Canyon HS 

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

11 of 543



       
                                                                                                                
 

Minutes, HS Selection Community Info Mtg, 06-16-14 
Page 2 of 2 

(LCC) 2013-14 enrollment by zip code, California laws & school enrollment, enrollment 
options for SDUHSD, things to consider re: boundary schools, two key decisions to 
face, and how we proceed after tonight, as shown in the attached presentation. 

 A question and answer session followed the presentation. 
B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  Mr. Schmitt opened the floor to public comments.  Comments were made by Danica 
Edelbrock, Nancy Fraser, Joel Rump, Traci Rico, Mary Roche, Britta Brewer, Paul Abel, 
Marty Foltyn, Robyn Sirota, Carrie Elwin, Jennifer Lessley, Ken Farinsky, and Amy 
Caterina.  

   
 3. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM. 
 
 
 
 

               
Beth Hergesheimer, Board Clerk   Date 
 
 
               
Rick Schmitt, Superintendent    Date 

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

12 of 543



SDUHSD High School Selection 
Community Information Meeting 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

13 of 543



SDUHSD High School Selection 
Community Information Meeting 
June 16, 2014, 6:00 - 7:30 pm 

Cardiff Elementary School Auditorium 

• Introduction & Background……………………….…..Superintendent Rick Schmitt 
 
• High School Selection Presentation….Dr. Michael Grove, Assoc. Superintendent 

 
• Public Questions & Staff Responses 

 
• Public Comments (speaker slips) 

 
• Brief Summary & Wrap Up 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

14 of 543



Introduction & Background 
• Thanks for advocating for your children! 
• SDUHSD Board of Trustees, district & site administration has a 

long history of listening to & working with our community 
• 20+ community meetings in 2013-14 with nearly 2,000 parents 

attending 
• Your community & schools, proud parents 
• Detailed planning for our children balanced with helping them  

navigate independently 
• SDUHSD’s many neighborhoods 
• Access & equity 
• HS Selection vision:  balance interest & demand with enrollment 

possibilities 
– 2008-13 Grade 9 SDHSA: 2,100 / 32 

• Tonight:  facts, history, Q&A 
• 6/19 Board mtg:  facts, history & board discussion 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

15 of 543



Key Questions 
• Why do we have district-wide “schools of choice”? 
• What are SDUHSD’s current HS enrollment policies? 
• What is California law related to school enrollment? 
• What enrollment options do we have? 
• What are the implications of moving to “boundary 

schools”? 
• How do we proceed after tonight’s meeting? 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

16 of 543



Why do we have district-wide 
“schools of choice”? 

• Two “boundary schools” (LCCHS & TPHS) & 
two “schools of choice” (SDHSA & CCA) 

• History of SDHSA 
• Addition of CCA 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

17 of 543



What are SDUHSD’s current policies on 
high school enrollment? 

• Each incoming 9th grade student declares for 
one of our four high schools 

• 10th-12th grade students declare only if they 
want to change schools 

• Lottery conducted if number of students 
declaring for SDHSA/CCA exceeds capacity of 
the school 

• Lottery is completely random selection – only 
priority is for siblings of continuing students 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

18 of 543



SDHSA Enrollment History 
School Year % of 9th Graders Attending SDHSA as 1st Choice School 

2014-15 91% 

2013-14 100% 

2012-13 100% 

2011-12 94% 

2010-11 100% 

2009-10 100% 

2008-09 100% 

Average 98% 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

19 of 543



SDHSA/LCC 2013-14 
Enrollment by Zip Code 

Zip Code SDHSA LCC 

92024 (Encinitas) 60.0% 42.7% 

92009 (La Costa) 23.2% 49.8% 

92007 (Cardiff) 12.7% 4.0% 

92075 (Solana Beach) 2.3% 0.40% 

92067 (Rancho Santa Fe) 0.81% 0.60% 

92014 (Del Mar) 0.42% 0.10% 

Others 0.53% 2.4% 

Total 100% 100% 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

20 of 543



California Law & School Enrollment 
• Ed Code 35160.5 is the relevant code 
• Districts must allow transfers among schools 
• If demand exceeds capacity, must employ a 

random, unbiased process in which all applicants 
have an equal chance (lottery) 

• Legally allowable exceptions to random lottery: 
– Special circumstance involving threat of bodily harm 
– Siblings of current students 
– Sons/Daughters of employees of the school 

• Law doesn’t allow geographic proximity as a priority 
 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

21 of 543



Enrollment Options for SDUHSD 

• Have a mix of “schools of choice” and 
“boundary schools” (status quo) 

• Make all high schools “boundary schools” 
• Make all high schools “schools of choice” 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

22 of 543



Things to Consider re: Boundary Schools 
• Long-term demographics & school capacity 
• Ethnic/Racial/Socio-Econ diversity and balance 
• Community Facility Districts (CFD’s/Mello Roos) 
• Middle School boundaries 
• Program Implications – schedules, duplication 

of programs & associated costs, etc. 
• Free market competition among schools 
• Cultural implications for schools 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

23 of 543



We Face Two Keys Decisions 

1. Do we want to have district-wide “schools of 
choice” in our district or do we want to have all 
of our schools be “boundary schools”? 

2. If we want all of our schools to be “boundary 
schools,” what are those boundaries? 

 
These questions need to be answered 
sequentially & with our entire district community. 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

24 of 543



How Do We Proceed After 
Tonight? 

• Work collaboratively to engage in an informed 
discussion of all of the issues by all who will be 
impacted by the decisions – all 12,300 families 

• Task force of representative parents/staff plan 
& facilitate community dialogue & input 

• In the mean time, we continue to find ways to 
ensure that as many students as possible can 
attend 1st choice school 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

25 of 543



Questions 
followed by Public Comment 

 

Attachment to 
06-16-14 Minutes 
Item 2

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

26 of 543



       
 

Minutes, Regular Board Meeting, 06-19-14 
Page 1 of 7 

   
MINUTES 

OF THE 
SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Board of Trustees 

Joyce Dalessandro 
Barbara Groth 

Beth Hergesheimer 
Amy Herman  
John Salazar  

 
Superintendent 

Rick Schmitt 

  
               JUNE 19, 2014 

 

THURSDAY, JUNE 19, 2014 DISTRICT OFFICE BOARD ROOM 10120 
6:30 PM 710 ENCINITAS BLVD., ENCINITAS, CA. 92024 

 

PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS................................................................................................ (ITEMS 1 – 6) 

 1. CALL TO ORDER; PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING CLOSED SESSION ITEMS ................................ 6:00 PM 

  President Dalessandro called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM to receive public comments on 
Closed Session agenda items.  No public comments were presented. 

 2. CLOSED SESSION ................................................................................................................................... 6:01 PM 

The Board convened to Closed Session at 6:01 PM to discuss the following: 

A. Consideration and/or deliberation of student discipline (1 Issue). 

B. To consider personnel issues, pursuant to Government Code Sections 11126 and 54957; 
limited to consideration of the appointment, employment, evaluation of performance, 
discipline /release, dismissal of a public employee or to hear complaints or charges brought 
against such employee by another person or employee unless the employee requests a 
public session.  (2 Issues) 

C. To conference with legal counsel to discuss current and/or potential litigation, pursuant to 
Government Codes sections 54956.9(b)(3)(A), (D), and (E), (1 potential case). 

REGULAR MEETING / OPEN SESSION .................................................................................................... 6:30 PM 

 
ATTENDANCE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND STUDENT BOARD REPRESENTATIVES    

Joyce Dalessandro     
Barbara Groth - Absent     
Beth Hergesheimer    
 Amy Herman    
 John Salazar    

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATORS / STAFF  

Rick Schmitt, Superintendent  
Eric Dill, Associate Superintendent, Business 
Mike Grove, Ed.D., Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 
Torrie Norton, Associate Superintendent, Human Resources 
Delores Perley, Chief Financial Officer 
Joann Schultz, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent / Recording Secretary 

 3. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING / CALL TO ORDER ................................................................... (ITEM 3) 
The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees was called to order at 6:31 PM by President Joyce 
Dalessandro. 

 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE .......................................................................................................... (ITEM 4) 
  President Dalessandro led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

27 of 543



       
 

Minutes, Regular Board Meeting, 06-19-14 
Page 2 of 7 

 5. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION .......................................................................................... (ITEM 5) 
  The Board met in closed session; there was no reportable action taken. 

 6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (2) OF THE BOARD WORKSHOP & REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 5, 2014 
  It was moved by Ms. Herman, seconded by Ms. Hergesheimer, to approve the minutes (2) of the 

June 5, 2014 Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting, as presented.  Ayes: Dalessandro, 
Hergesheimer, Herman, Salazar; Noes:  None.  Motion unanimously carried. 

 

NON-ACTION ITEMS .............................................................................................................................. (ITEMS 7 - 10) 

 7. STUDENT UPDATES ..................................................................... NO REPORTS DURING SUMMER BREAK 

 8. BOARD REPORTS AND UPDATES ........................................................................... BOARD OF TRUSTEES     

Ms. Herman attended the Middle School #5 Groundbreaking Ceremony, the Math Instructional 
Materials Information Night, the Oak Crest Middle School promotion ceremony, the Canyon Crest 
Academy graduation ceremony, and the High School Selection Community Information Meeting. 
Mr. Salazar attended the Diegueno Middle School promotion ceremony, the San Dieguito High 
School Academy graduation ceremony, and the High School Selection Community Information 
Meeting. 
Ms. Hergesheimer attended the Middle School #5 Groundbreaking Ceremony, the Math Instructional 
Materials Information Night, Sunset Continuation High School and the Torrey Pines High School 
graduation ceremonies. 

  Ms. Dalessandro attended the Middle School #5 Groundbreaking Ceremony, the Math Instructional 
Materials Information Night, the Sunset Continuation High School awards ceremony, the Carmel 
Valley Middle School promotion ceremony, the Torrey Pines High School graduation ceremony, and 
the High School Selection Community Information Meeting. 

 9. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORTS, BRIEFINGS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATES .........RICK SCHMITT, SUPERINTENDENT 
Superintendent Schmitt attended promotion & graduation ceremonies last Friday, and will be 
interviewing candidates for principal of Earl Warren Middle and for several assistant principal 
positions in the district. 

 10. ENGLISH LEARNERS/CAREER TECH ED/ADULT ED UPDATE ........................... MANUEL ZAPATA, DIRECTOR 

  Mr. Zapata gave an update on the English Learner program, CTE and the Adult Education programs 
as follows. 

  Mr. Zapata introduced members of the San Dieguito DELAC, Dora Garcia, President, Martin Espejo, 
Vice-president, SRA Marina Serfas, Secretary, presented them with plaques and Superintendent 
Schmitt thanked them for their participation.  Ms. Laura, DELAC President, thanked the board for 
providing the parent trainings and requested that more trainings be provided as well as the trainings 
in collaboration with the feeder elementary school districts.  

  Mr. Zapata updated on the administration of the 2013-14 CELDT indicating that English Learners in 
the district continue to perform well in all four areas tested.  He also gave an update on the 
professional development provided by Teacher on Special Assignment (ToSA) Staci Ortiz, to support 
teachers that work directly with English Learners including SDAIE training and workshops, coaching 
and classroom support at Title 1 schools (Oak Crest and Diegueno Middle Schools), and the online 
assessment for English Language Learners called LAS Links.  

  Mr. Zapata reported on the English Learners Parent Trainings offered in the areas of Healthy Family 
Values, Effective Discipline and Positive Community between parents and students.  Mr. Zapata 
shared highlights of the Adult Education program including reducing the encroachment to the general 
fund by 25%, professional development days about the new CTE standards and ROP courses 
offered at the high schools.  

  Mr. Zapata also recognized and thanked his staff for the outstanding work they have done this year 
and thanked the leadership team and board for their continued support. 

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

28 of 543



       
 

Minutes, Regular Board Meeting, 06-19-14 
Page 3 of 7 

CONSENT ITEMS ................................................................................................................ (ITEMS 11 - 15) 

It was moved by Ms. Hergesheimer, seconded by Ms. Herman, that Consent Agenda Items 11-15, be 
approved, as presented.  Ayes:  Dalessandro, Hergesheimer, Herman, Salazar; Noes:  None.  Motion 
unanimously carried. 

  11. SUPERINTENDENT  

  A. GIFTS AND DONATIONS  
 Accept the Gifts and Donations, as presented. 

B. FIELD TRIP REQUESTS  
Approve the Field Trip Requests, as presented. 

 12. HUMAN RESOURCES 

A. PERSONNEL REPORTS  
Approve matters pertaining to employment of personnel, salaries, leaves of absence, 
resignations, changes in assignments, extra duty assignments, and consultant services: 
1. Certificated and/or Classified Personnel Reports.  

 
B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 
 (None Submitted)  

13. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 

A. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 
 Approve/ratify entering into the following agreement and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric 

R. Dill to execute the agreement: 
1. Illuminate Education, Inc., to provide a web-based student data and assessment 

management software system known as the Illuminate Data and Assessment Management 
System (DnA) and a database of test questions, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 
30, 2017, in the amount of $5.50 per student ($68,271.50 for fiscal 2014-15) based on the 
district wide enrollment numbers determined annually, to be expended from the General 
Fund 03-00. 

2. Edgenuity, Inc. to provide a software platform (licenses) to deliver online instruction in a wide 
variety of District programs including Independent Study Online, Summer School, and Home 
Hospital Instruction, and supplemental instruction in general education and special education 
classrooms, during the period July 1, 2014 through July 31, 2015, for an amount not to 
exceed $120,000.00 plus applicable tax and shipping, to be expended from the General 
Fund 03-00. 

  
B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS 
 Approve/ratify amending the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric R. 

Dill to execute the agreements: 
1. Augusoft, Inc., increasing the annual subscription fee for providing on-line student 

registration services for Adult Education classes from $7,000.00 per year to $8,000.00 per 
year, starting July 1, 2014 and continuing annually until terminated by either party in writing, 
with no other changes to the contract, to be expended from the Adult Education Fund 11-00. 

 14. PUPIL SERVICES / SPECIAL EDUCATION 

  SPECIAL EDUCATION 

A. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF NON-PUBLIC SCHOOL / NON-PUBLIC AGENCY CONTRACTS, 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENTS, AND/OR MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING  
(None Submitted)  

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

29 of 543



       
 

Minutes, Regular Board Meeting, 06-19-14 
Page 4 of 7 

  
B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS 

(None Submitted)  
  

C. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF PARENT SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE AGREEMENTS 
Approve/ratify the following Parent Settlement and Release Agreements, to be funded by the 
General Fund 06-00/Special Education, and authorize the Director of Special Education to 
execute the agreements: 
1. Student ID #8025566128, for reimbursement of Parentally Placed Private School Student 

(PPPSS) at Devereux Glenholme School and  related  educational expenses, during the 
period July 15, 2014 through July 15, 2015, in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00. 

  
PUPIL SERVICES  

D. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 
 (None Submitted) 

 15.  BUSINESS / PROPOSITION AA 

  BUSINESS  

A. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS  
Approve/ratify entering into the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett, Eric R. 
Dill, or Rick Schmitt to execute the agreements: 
1. Murdoch, Walrath & Holmes to provide advocacy and consulting services, during the period 

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $25,800.00, to be 
expended from General Fund 03-00. 

2. Simplex Grinnell, LLP, to provide fire alarm, fire suppression, and life safety monitoring and 
inspection services District wide utilizing the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) 
cooperative purchasing bid 031913-SGL, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 
2019, for an amount not to exceed $79,137.00 annually, to be expended from the General 
Fund 03-00. 

B. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS 
Approve/ratify amending the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric R. 
Dill to execute the agreements: 
1. D.A.D. Asphalt, Inc., extending the Asphalt/Paving Services – District Wide contract B2013-

12 from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, with no other changes, to be expended from the 
fund, including Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39, to which the project is charged. 

2. Fredricks Electric, Inc., extending the Electric Services – District Wide contract B2013-10 
from May 3, 2014 through May 2, 2015, with no other changes to be expended from the fund, 
including Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39, to which the project is charged. 

C. AWARD/RATIFICATION OF CONTRACTS 
(None Submitted) 
 

D. APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDERS 
 (None Submitted) 

E. ACCEPTANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
(None Submitted) 
 
 

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

30 of 543



       
 

Minutes, Regular Board Meeting, 06-19-14 
Page 5 of 7 

F. AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS / APPROVE CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 
Authorize and/or approve the following: 
1. Authorize the Superintendent of Schools to direct the administration to advertise for any 

necessary bids, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 
2. Authorize the Superintendent of Schools or designee to approve entering into all 

contracts/agreements, during the period June 20, 2014 through September 3, 2014, and that 
the contracts/agreements be presented to the Board of Trustees for ratification at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting. 

G. APPROVAL OF BUSINESS REPORTS 
 Approve the following business reports: 

1. Purchase Orders 
2. Membership Listing (None Submitted) 

PROPOSITION AA 

H. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS  
 Approve/ratify entering into the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett, Eric R. 

Dill, or Rick Schmitt to execute the agreements: 
1. School Facility Consultants, District wide assistance with State funding of new school 

construction, during the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, in an amount not to 
exceed $30,000.00, to be expended from Capital Facilities Fund 25-19.   

2. Class Leasing, LLC, lease of 12 X 40 Classroom at San Dieguito High School Academy, 
during the period July 1, 2014 through July 1, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $18,890.00, 
to be expended from Building Fund-Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

3. Nova Services, for Material Testing & Special Inspection Services, during the period May 17, 
2014 through June 30, 2015, in a cumulative amount not to exceed $200,000.00, to be 
expended from Building Fund-Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

4. American Fence Company, Inc., temporary fence installation around weight room at Torrey 
Pines High School, during the period May 30, 2014 through November 30, 2014, in an 
amount not to exceed $1,062.64, to be expended from Building Fund-Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

5. The California Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Toxic Substances Control, 
for oversight of the Preliminary Endangerment Assessment at the La Costa Valley site, 
during the period June 20, 2014 through completion, in an amount not to exceed $20,401.00, 
to be expended from Building Fund-Prop 39 Fund 21-39 or Mello Roos Funds. 

I. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS  
 Approve/ratify amending the following agreements and authorize Christina M. Bennett or Eric R. 

Dill to execute the agreements: 
1. Fuscoe Engineering, Inc., to vacate easements at the La Costa Valley site amending contract 

CA2014-01, during the period June 20, 2014 through December 20, 2014, increasing the 
amount by $10,500.00 for a new total of $44,047.00, to be expended from Building Fund–
Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

2. Latitude 33 Planning & Engineering, additional services relating to parcel map topography 
and mapping services at Canyon Crest Academy amending contract A2013-106, during the 
period June 20, 2014 through December 20, 2014, increasing the amount by $8,500.00 for a 
new total of $38,000.00, to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39 or Mello 
Roos Funds. 

3. Williams Scotsman, Inc., for additional components to the 40 X 48 Classroom for 24 months 
at Earl Warren Middle School to temporarily house Warren Hall, during the period May 2, 
2014 through June 30, 2016, increasing the amount by $2,190.71 for a new total of 
$55,488.71, to be expended from Building Fund–Prop 39 Fund 21-39. 

 

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

31 of 543



       
 

Minutes, Regular Board Meeting, 06-19-14 
Page 6 of 7 

J. AWARD/RATIFICATION OF CONTRACTS   
(None Submitted) 

K. APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDERS 
 (None Submitted)  

L.  ACCEPTANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
 (None Submitted)  

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS ......................................................................................... (ITEMS 16 - 21) 

16. ADOPTION OF 2014-2017 DISTRICT LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (LCAP) 
Motion by Ms. Herman, seconded by Ms. Hergesheimer, to adopt the 2014-2017 District Local 
Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), as presented.  Ayes: Dalessandro, Hergesheimer, Herman, 
Salazar; Noes: None. Motion unanimously carried. 

17. ADOPTION OF PROPOSED 2014-15 ANNUAL BUDGET / GENERAL FUND & SPECIAL FUNDS 
Motion by Mr. Salazar, seconded by Ms. Hergesheimer, to adopt the proposed 2014-15 Annual 
Budget / General Fund & Special Funds, as presented.  Ayes: Dalessandro, Hergesheimer, Herman, 
Salazar; Noes: None. Motion unanimously carried. 

 18. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION / ADDENDUM TO MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE SAN DIEGUITO 
HIGH SCHOOL ACADEMY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – MASTER PLAN FOR MODERNIZATION AND    
CONSTRUCTION 
Motion by Ms. Hergesheimer, seconded Ms. Herman, to adopt the attached Resolution of the Board 
of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School District, San Diego County, California, Adopting 
an Addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the San Dieguito High School Academy 
Improvement Project – Master Plan for Modernization and New Construction and findings and 
certifications thereto, as presented.  Ayes: Dalessandro, Hergesheimer, Herman, Salazar; Noes: 
None. Motion unanimously carried. 

 19. APPROVAL OF 2014-15 CONSOLIDATED APPLICATION, PART 1  
Motion by Ms. Herman, second by Mr. Salazar, to approve the 2014-15 Consolidated Application, 
Part 1, as presented.  Ayes: Dalessandro, Hergesheimer, Herman, Salazar; Noes: None. Motion 
unanimously carried. 

20. APPROVAL & ADOPTION OF REVISED JOB DESCRIPTIONS (2): BP #4160.20, “DIRECTOR OF SPECIAL 

EDUCATION”, BP #4160.36, “COORDINATOR OF SPECIAL EDUCATION”; RE-ESTABLISHMENT & REVISION 
OF JOB DESCRIPTION (1): BP #4160.18, “COORDINATOR OF STUDENT SERVICES”; AND BP #4231.1 
ATTACHMENT A, “MANAGEMENT SALARY SCHEDULE” 
Motion by Ms. Hergesheimer, second by Ms. Herman, to approve and adopt the revised job 
descriptions (2): BP #4160.20, “Director of Special Education” and BP #4160.36, “Coordinator of 
Special Education”; and re-establishment and revision of job description (1): BP #4160.18, 
“Coordinator of Student Services”; and BP #4231.1 Attachment A, “Management Salary Schedule”, 
as presented.  Ayes: Dalessandro, Hergesheimer, Herman, Salazar; Noes: None.  Motion 
unanimously carried.  

 21. ADOPTION OF DECLARATION OF NEED FOR FULLY QUALIFIED EDUCATORS 
Motion by Ms. Herman, second by Ms. Hergesheimer, to adopt the declaration of need for fully 
qualified educators, as presented.  Ayes: Dalessandro, Hergesheimer, Herman, Salazar; Noes: 
None. Motion unanimously carried. 

INFORMATION ITEMS ...................................................................................................... (ITEMS 22 - 30) 

 22   HIGH SCHOOL SELECTION UPDATE 
   Superintendent Schmitt gave a brief introduction regarding high school selection. 
   Dr. Grove gave an update on high school selection including California law and school enrollment, 

enrollment options, attendance area maps, things to consider regarding boundary schools, key 

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

32 of 543



       
 

Minutes, Regular Board Meeting, 06-19-14 
Page 7 of 7 

questions to ask, how we proceed and six recommendations for the Board to consider (as shown in 
the attached presentation distributed at the meeting).  

   PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

   Public comments were made by James Bush, Jennifer Lessley, Taylor Lessley, Heidi Welsh, Doug 
Thralls, Chris Schwartz, Steven McDowell, Annie Rump, Julie Union, and Jodie Dinsmore. 

   The Board discussed the options for high school enrollment, boundary vs. non-boundary schools and 
recommended that a task force be formed to first answer the questions on whether we have all 
district-wide non-boundary high schools, all of our high schools be boundary schools, or status quo 
where we have two of each.  The Board asked staff to form an ad hoc task force that would make a 
recommendation to the Board. 

   Mr. Schmitt summarized that the district will: 1) re-examine 2014-15 capacity and look at possible 
2015-16 capacity, bell schedule and program adjustments, 2) form a task force which should kick off 
in the fall and begin communicating immediately with the whole community, and 3) that all points 
made by the public were received and understood.  Mr. Schmitt also said he would send an all 
community letter to elementary, middle, and high school parents in order to update the greater 
community on high school enrollment.  He hoped to get that sent in July. 

 23. BUSINESS SERVICES UPDATE  ................................................. ERIC DILL, ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT   
Mr. Dill had nothing further to report. 

 24. HUMAN RESOURCES UPDATE ........................................ TORRIE NORTON, ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT 
    Ms. Norton had nothing further to report. 

 25. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES UPDATE ....................................... MIKE GROVE, ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT  
 Dr. Grove had nothing further to report. 

 26. PUBLIC COMMENTS – 

   Steven McDowell requested that public comments be moved up to the beginning of the agenda to 
accommodate speakers at the beginning of the meeting, and commented on enrollment projections 
provided by Davis Demographics & Planning. 

 27. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – None presented. 

28. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION – No closed session was necessary.  

 29. CLOSED SESSION – Nothing to further to report. 

30. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING - Meeting adjourned at 8:32 PM.   

 

 

 

 

                 
Beth Hergesheimer, Board Clerk      Date 

 

                 
Rick Schmitt, Superintendent       Date 

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

33 of 543



 

A D D E N D U M  

SAN DIEGUITO HIGH SCHOOL ACADEMY IMPROVEMENTS 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ENCINITAS,  CALIFORNIA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2014 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

34 of 543



This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

35 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE .......................................................................................................... 1 

1.1.1 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts .......................................................................... 2 

1.2 FINDINGS OF THIS ADDENDUM ........................................................................................ 3 

1.3 FORMAT OF ADDENDUM .................................................................................................... 4 

1.3.1 Chapter 1.0: Introduction ............................................................................................. 4 

1.3.2 Chapter 2.0: Project Description .................................................................................. 4 

1.3.3 Chapter 3.0: Comparative Evaluation of Environmental Impacts ................................ 4 

1.3.4 Appendix A: Environmental Analysis Checklist ......................................................... 4 

1.4 EXISTING DOCUMENTS TO BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE ............................ 5 

1.5 CONTACT PERSONS .............................................................................................................. 5 

2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION .............................................................................................................. 7 

2.1 PROJECT HISTORY ................................................................................................................ 7 

2.2 PROJECT SITE LOCATION AND SETTING ........................................................................ 7 

2.3 PREVIOUS AND PROPOSED DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS BY SDUHSD...................... 7 

2.4 PROJECT OVERVIEW .......................................................................................................... 13 

2.4.1 Project Objectives ...................................................................................................... 13 

2.4.2 2002 CMP Project Description ................................................................................... 13 

2.4.3 Facilities ..................................................................................................................... 17 

2.5 CAMPUS MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION ............................................................... 17 

2.6 SUMMARY OF PROJECT CHANGES................................................................................. 18 

2.6.1 Revisions to the Project Description .......................................................................... 23 

3.0 COMPARATIVE EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS .................................... 25 

3.1 AESTHETICS ......................................................................................................................... 25 

3.1.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 25 

3.1.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 25 

3.1.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 26 

3.1.4 Findings Related to Aesthetics ................................................................................... 29 

3.1.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 29 

3.2 AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTRY RESOURCES ........................................................... 29 

3.2.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 29 

3.2.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 32 

3.2.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 32 

3.2.4 Findings Related to Agricultural Resources ............................................................... 32 

3.2.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 33 

3.3 AIR QUALITY ....................................................................................................................... 33 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

36 of 543



    
    
A D DA D DA D DA D D E N D U M  E N D U M  E N D U M  E N D U M      L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

ii E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.3.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 33 

3.3.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 34 

3.3.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 35 

3.3.4 Findings Related to Air Quality ................................................................................. 39 

3.3.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 40 

3.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ................................................................................................ 40 

3.4.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 40 

3.4.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 40 

3.4.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 41 

3.4.4 Findings Related to Biological Resources .................................................................. 43 

3.4.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 43 

3.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES .................................................................................................... 44 

3.5.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 44 

3.5.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 44 

3.5.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 45 

3.5.4 Findings Related to Cultural Resources ..................................................................... 46 

3.5.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 46 

3.6 GEOLOGY AND SOILS ........................................................................................................ 46 

3.6.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 46 

3.6.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 47 

3.6.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 48 

3.6.4 Findings Related to Geology and Soils ...................................................................... 49 

3.6.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 50 

3.7 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ................................................................... 50 

3.7.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 50 

3.7.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 51 

3.7.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 52 

3.7.4 Findings Related to Hazards and Hazardous Materials .............................................. 54 

3.7.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 54 

3.8 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY ............................................................................ 55 

3.8.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 55 

3.8.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 56 

3.8.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 56 

3.8.4 Findings Related to Hydrology and Water Quality .................................................... 58 

3.8.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 59 

3.9 LAND USE ............................................................................................................................. 59 

3.9.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 59 

3.9.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 59 

3.9.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 60 

3.9.4 Findings Related to Land Use .................................................................................... 61 

3.9.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 62 

3.10 MINERAL RESOURCES ................................................................................................ 62 

3.10.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 62 

3.10.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 62 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

37 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» iii 

3.10.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 62 

3.10.4 Findings Related to Mineral Resources ...................................................................... 63 

3.10.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 63 

3.11 NOISE ............................................................................................................................... 64 

3.11.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 64 

3.11.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 64 

3.11.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 66 

3.11.4 Findings Related to Noise .......................................................................................... 68 

3.11.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 68 

3.12 POPULATION AND HOUSING ..................................................................................... 69 

3.12.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 69 

3.12.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 69 

3.12.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 69 

3.12.4 Findings Related to Population and Housing ............................................................. 70 

3.12.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 70 

3.13 PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES ........................................................................ 71 

3.13.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 71 

3.13.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 71 

3.13.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 72 

3.13.4 Findings Related to Public Services and Facilities ..................................................... 73 

3.13.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 73 

3.14 RECREATION ................................................................................................................. 73 

3.14.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 73 

3.14.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 74 

3.14.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 74 

3.14.4 Findings Related to Recreation .................................................................................. 75 

3.14.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 76 

3.15 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION ................................................................. 76 

3.15.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 76 

3.15.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 76 

3.15.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 78 

3.15.4 Findings Related to Traffic and Circulation ............................................................... 80 

3.15.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 80 

3.16 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS ......................................................................... 80 

3.16.1 Existing Environmental Setting .................................................................................. 80 

3.16.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND .............................................................................................. 80 

3.16.3 Analysis of Project Changes....................................................................................... 81 

3.16.4 Findings Related to Utilities and Service Systems ..................................................... 82 

3.16.5 Mitigation Measures ................................................................................................... 82 

3.17 Greenhouse gases .............................................................................................................. 83 

3.17.1 Findings Related to Greenhouse Gases ...................................................................... 96 

3.18 DETERMINATION ......................................................................................................... 97 

 

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

38 of 543



    
    
A D DA D DA D DA D D E N D U M  E N D U M  E N D U M  E N D U M      L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

iv E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A: ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS CHECKLIST 

APPENDIX B: CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CALCULATIONS  

APPENDIX C: CALEEMOD CALCULATIONS FOR GHG EMISSIONS 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

39 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» v 

FIGURES AND TABLES 

FIGURES 

Figure 1: Project Vicinity ....................................................................................................................... 9 

Figure 2: Project Location .................................................................................................................... 11 

Figure 3: Illustration of 2002 Campus Master Plan ............................................................................. 15 

Figure 4: Illustration of Revised Campus Master Plan ......................................................................... 19 

Figure 5: Site Sections .......................................................................................................................... 28 

 

 

TABLES 

Table 2.A: Comparison of Campus Master Plan Project Components ................................................ 21 

Table 3.3.A: Attainment Status of Criteria Pollutants in the San Diego Air Basin .............................. 33 

Table 3.3.B: Proposed Construction Schedule ..................................................................................... 36 

Table 3.3.C: Peak Daily Regional Construction Emissions ................................................................. 37 

Table 3.12.A: Revised CMP Annual Regional Construction Emissions .............................................. 91 

Table 3.12.B: Revised CMP Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions ................................................ 92 

Table 3.12.C: Revised CMP Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions ................................................ 92 

Table 3.12.D: Project Consistency with Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies .................. 94 

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

40 of 543



    
    
A D DA D DA D DA D D E N D U M  E N D U M  E N D U M  E N D U M      L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

vi E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

41 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 1 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The San Dieguito Union High School District’s (SDUHSD) San Dieguito High School Academy 

(SDA) campus is located in the City of Encinitas (City) and is bounded by Nardo Road on the west, 

Santa Fe Drive on the south, Bonita Drive on the east, and Melba Road on the north. With a land area 

of approximately 32 acres, the campus is surrounded on all sides by a mix of residential and 

commercial uses. 

The SDA Campus Master Plan (CMP) is intended to guide long-term development of the campus. 

SDUHSD, as Lead Agency, prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for 

the 2002 CMP in 2003. The SDUHSD Board of Trustees approved and adopted the IS/MND and the 

2002 CMP on November 30, 2003. 

Following adoption of the IS/MND, several changes to the CMP were proposed and ultimately 

incorporated into the revised CMP. While there have been no significant changes to the areas adjacent 

to the SDA since SDUHSD adoption of the IS/MND in 2003, portions of the 2002 CMP have been 

implemented on the SDA campus. Changes to the SDA campus that have occurred since approval of 

the 2003 IS/MND are described in Sections 2.5 and 2.6 of this Addendum. Although the revised CMP 

remains substantially the same as the SDUHSD approved project from 2003, additional 

environmental analysis in the form of an Addendum is required under CEQA. The project being 

analyzed in this Addendum consists of the changes or differences between the 2002 CMP and the 

revised CMP. 

This Addendum reviews changes to the project and to existing conditions that have occurred since the 

2003 IS/MND was adopted and compares environmental effects of development of the revised project 

with those of the original project previously disclosed. It also reviews new information of substantial 

importance that was not known and could not have been known with exercise of reasonable diligence 

at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted and evaluates whether there are new or more severe 

significant environmental effects associated with changes in circumstances under which project 

development is being undertaken. It further examines whether, as a result of any changes or any new 

information, a subsequent IS/MND or subsequent or supplemental EIR may be required. This 

examination includes an analysis of provisions of Section 21166 of CEQA and Section 15162 of the 

State CEQA Guidelines and their applicability to the project. 

Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines states that an Addendum to an IS/MND may be 

prepared “if only minor technical changes or additions are necessary or none of the conditions 

described in Section 15162 calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration 

have occurred.” Thus, if none of the above conditions are met, SDHUSD may not require preparation 

of a subsequent IS/MND. Rather, SDUHSD can decide that no further environmental documentation 

is necessary or can require that an Addendum be prepared. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

42 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T O     H I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO L     A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T         

2 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Based upon review of the facts as presented in the analysis contained in this document, SDUHSD 

finds that an Addendum to the previously adopted 2003 IS/MND is appropriate. The rationale and the 

facts for this finding are provided in the body of this Addendum. 

1.1.1 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts 

This Addendum compares anticipated environmental effects of the project as revised with those 

disclosed in the adopted 2003 IS/MND to review whether any conditions set forth in Section 15162 of 

the State CEQA Guidelines requiring preparation of a subsequent negative declaration are met. 

Potential environmental effects of the project are addressed for each of the following areas: 

• Aesthetics; 

• Agricultural Resources; 

• Air Quality; 

• Biological Resources; 

• Cultural Resources; 

• Geology and Soils; 

• Greenhouse Gas Emissions; 

• Hazards and Hazardous Materials; 

• Hydrology and Water Quality; 

• Land Use and Planning; 

• Mineral Resources; 

• Noise; 

• Population and Housing; 

• Public Services and Facilities; 

• Recreation; 

• Transportation/Traffic; 

• Utilities and Service Systems; and 

• Mandatory Finding of Significance. 

Chapter 2.0 of this document discusses changes to the project description for the CMP. Chapter 3.0 

contains analyses and explanations of potential environmental impacts of the revisions to the CMP. 

The analyses provide the SDUHSD Board of Trustees with a basis for determining whether any 

subsequent IS/MND will be required for the project. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

43 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 3 

1.2 FINDINGS OF THIS ADDENDUM 

Pursuant to the provisions of CEQA and State CEQA Guidelines, SDUHSD is the Lead Agency 

charged with the responsibility of deciding whether to adopt the proposed changes to the CMP. As 

part of its decision-making process, SDUHSD is required to review and consider potential 

environmental effects that could result from construction and operation of the CMP, as revised. The 

IS/MND, adopted in November 2003, found that no significant and unavoidable environmental 

effects would result from implementation of the 2002 CMP. 

SDUHSD review of the changes to the 2002 CMP and other related project components is limited to 

examining environmental effects associated with changes between the project as currently revised and 

the project reviewed in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. Pursuant to CEQA and State CEQA Guidelines, 

SDUHSD has prepared this Addendum to provide decision-makers with a factual basis for evaluating 

the specific environmental impacts associated with the proposed revision of the 2002 CMP and to 

determine whether there are changes in circumstances or new information of substantial importance 

that would require preparation of a subsequent IS/MND or a subsequent or supplemental EIR. 

According to Section 21166 of CEQA and Section 15162 of State CEQA Guidelines, a subsequent 

IS/MND or subsequent or supplemental EIR is not required for the proposed changes unless 

SDUHSD determines on the basis of substantial evidence that one or more of the following 

conditions are met: 

1. Substantial changes are proposed in the project that require major revisions of the previous EIR 

or IS/MND due to involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 

in severity of previously identified significant effects; 

2. Substantial changes have occurred with respect to the circumstances under which the project is 

undertaken that will require major revisions of the previous EIR or IS/MND due to involvement 

of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 

identified significant effects; and/or 

3. New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been 

known with exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as 

complete or the IS/MND was adopted, shows any of the following: 

• The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or 

IS/MND; 

• Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than identified in 

the previous EIR; 

• Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be 

feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the 

project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measures or alternative; or  

• Mitigation measures or alternatives that are considerably different from those analyzed in the 

previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, 

but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

If changes to a project or its circumstances occur or new information becomes available after the 

adoption of a negative declaration, the lead agency shall prepare a subsequent EIR, if required under 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

44 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T O     H I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO L     A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T         

4 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

the criteria listed above. Otherwise, the lead agency shall determine whether to prepare a subsequent 

negative declaration, an addendum, or no further documentation. 

SDUHSD is the Lead Agency for the proposed revisions to the 2002 CMP. SDUHSD has 

determined that analyses of project environmental effects are best provided through use of an 

Addendum and that none of the conditions set forth in Public Resource Code Section 21166 or 

Section 15162 of the State CEQA Guidelines requiring preparation of a subsequent IS/MND or a 

subsequent or supplemental EIR have been met. The complete evaluation of potential environmental 

effects of the project, including rationale and facts supporting SDUHSD findings, is contained in 

Chapter 3.0 of this Addendum. 

1.3 FORMAT OF ADDENDUM 

This Addendum has been organized into three chapters, as described below: 

1.3.1 Chapter 1.0: Introduction 

Chapter 1.0 includes a description of the purpose and scope of the Addendum, previous 

environmental documentation, project approvals, findings of the Addendum, and existing documents 

to be incorporated by reference. 

1.3.2 Chapter 2.0: Project Description 

Chapter 2.0 describes the location and setting of the site, the necessary SDUHSD discretionary 

actions to implement project modifications, and an overview of the proposed CMP revisions. Those 

proposed CMP revisions that have the potential to have a physical effect on the environment are 

addressed in Chapter 3.0 of this Addendum. 

1.3.3 Chapter 3.0: Comparative Evaluation of Environmental Impacts 

Chapter 3.0 addresses project changes with the potential to have a physical effect on the environment 

and includes analyses of impacts of the revised project compared with impacts analyzed in the 2003 

IS/MND. This comparative analysis has been undertaken pursuant to provisions of CEQA to provide 

SDUHSD decision-makers with a factual basis for determining whether proposed project revisions, 

changes in circumstances, or new information since the 2003 IS/MND was adopted require additional 

environmental review or preparation of a subsequent IS/MND or subsequent or supplemental EIR. 

1.3.4 Appendix A: Environmental Analysis Checklist 

Appendix A contains an Environmental Analysis Checklist. The form has been completed based on 

the analysis in this Addendum. The proposed modifications to the 2002 CMP do not result in 

substantial changes to the findings of the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

45 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 5 

1.4 EXISTING DOCUMENTS TO BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

As permitted in Section 15150 of the State CEQA Guidelines, this Addendum has referenced several 

technical studies, analyses, and reports. Information from the documents, which have been 

incorporated by reference, has been briefly summarized in the appropriate section(s) of this 

Addendum. Documents incorporated by reference are available for review at the San Dieguito Union 

High School District office, located at 864 Requeza Street, Encinitas, California 92024. Contact John 

Addleman, Director of Planning Services, at (760) 753-6491 for additional information. 

Documents incorporated by reference include, but are not limited to: 

• 2002 Campus Master Plan – San Dieguito High School Academy, San Diego Union High School 

District, NTD, November 2002. 

• San Dieguito High School Academy Improvement Project MND, Dudek & Associates, Inc., 

September 2003. 

1.5 CONTACT PERSONS 

The Lead Agency for the Addendum for the proposed revisions to the San Dieguito High School 

Academy Campus Master Plan is the SDUHSD. Questions about preparation of this Addendum, its 

assumptions, or its conclusions should be referred to: 

John Addleman, Director of Planning Services 

San Dieguito Union High School District 

864 Requeza Street 

Encinitas, California 92024 

(760) 753-6491 

john.addleman@sduhsd.net 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

46 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T OS A N  D I E G U I T O     H I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO LH I G H  S C H OO L     A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T         

6 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

47 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 7 

2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2.1 PROJECT HISTORY 

To help guide long-term planning for the future development of the campus, SDUHSD prepared a 

Campus Master Plan (CMP) in 2002. The CMP is intended to document the current understanding 

and expectations for the expenditure of the bond revenues and other funding sources, as well as the 

physical improvements necessary to meet long-term campus needs. 

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) of 1970, as amended (Public 

Resources Code Sections 2100 et. seq.) and the State Guidelines for Implementation of CEQA (Title 

14, California Code of Regulations Sections 15000 et. seq.), SDUHSD, as Lead Agency, prepared an 

Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the 2002 CMP in 2003. The SDUHSD 

Board of Trustees approved the IS/MND and the CMP in November 2003. 

Following approval of the IS/MND, several changes to the 2002 CMP were proposed and ultimately 

incorporated into the revised CMP. Although the revised CMP remains substantially the same as the 

SDUHSD approved project from 2003, additional environmental analysis in the form of an 

Addendum is required pursuant to Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines. The revised CMP is 

the subject of the analysis in this Addendum. 

2.2 PROJECT SITE LOCATION AND SETTING 

Founded in 1937, the SDA campus is located in the City of Encinitas and is bounded by Nardo Road 

on the west, Santa Fe Drive on the south, Bonita Drive on the east, and Melba Road on the north. 

With a land area of approximately 32 acres, the campus is surrounded on all sides by a mix of 

residential and commercial uses. Throughout this Addendum, the terms “site,” “proposed project site” 

and “proposed project” are used interchangeably to indicate the area that is the subject of this 

Addendum. Figure 1 (Project Vicinity) and Figure 2 (Project Location) are regional and local maps 

depicting the project location. 

While there have been no significant changes to the areas adjacent to SDA since SDUHSD approval 

of the IS/MND in 2003, portions of the 2002 CMP have been implemented on the SDA campus. 

Changes to the SDA campus that have occurred since approval of the 2003 IS/MND are described in 

Sections 2.5 and 2.6 of this Addendum. 

2.3 PREVIOUS AND PROPOSED DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS BY SDUHSD 

The CMP will implement a series of facilities improvements and programs on the SDA campus. In 

November 2003, SDUHSD approved the 2002 CMP, including the following discretionary actions: 

1. Adoption of the IS/MND; and 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

48 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

8 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

49 of 543



5

Project Location

SOURCE: USGS 7.5' Quad Encinitas, CA (1975)
I:\SDU1301A\GIS\ProjectVicinity.mxd (2/27/2014)

FIGURE 1

San Dieguito Academy Improvements
Project Vicinity

0 1000 2000
FEET

LEGEND
Project Boundary

San Diego
County

56

76

163

78

52

805

15

5
Project

Location

Project Vicinity

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

50 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

10 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

51 of 543



SOURCE: Bing Maps (2013)
I:\SDU1301A\GIS\ProjectLocation.mxd (2/27/2014)

FIGURE 2

San Dieguito Academy Improvements
Project Location

0 100 200
FEET

LEGEND
Project Boundary

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

52 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

12 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

53 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 13 

2. Approval of the CMP. 

SDUHSD also obtained a Coastal Development Permit from the City for certain portions of the 2002 

CMP on May 20, 2004. Additional approvals from SDUHSD required for approval of the proposed 

revised CMP are as follows: 

1. Approval of this Addendum to the adopted 2003 IS/MND to address potential environmental 

effects of the changes made to project; and 

2. Adoption of the proposed revised CMP. 

In addition, SDUHSD would also be required to obtain approval of a Coastal Development Permit 

from the City for changes to the proposed revised CMP. 

2.4 PROJECT OVERVIEW 

2.4.1 Project Objectives 

The specific objectives of the 2002 CMP were as follows: 

1. The SDA campus will provide new and renovated indoor and outdoor facilities to meet 

community needs for academic instruction, life skills training, and physical education at the high 

school level. 

2. The SDA campus will accommodate long-term growth in student enrollment by providing 

facilities that maximize land use and address infrastructure needs. 

3. The SDA campus will be designed to maximize convenience and accessibility for pedestrians and 

vehicles and to provide adequate parking and drop-off areas. 

4. Outdoor learning spaces and facilities will be planned for safety (including adequate lighting) and 

flexibility. 

5. The SDA campus will include facilities that fully integrate current technology while allowing for 

future technological changes and updates. 

6. The SDA campus will provide for indoor and outdoor physical education needs through the 

provision of appropriately sized sports facilities. 

7. The SDA campus will provide facilities that accommodate student and administrative services. 

2.4.2 2002 CMP Project Description 

Implementation of the 2002 CMP, as analyzed in the adopted IS/MND, provided for the renovation/

modernization of several structures, construction of new structures, demolition of older structures, 

and additional pedestrian and circulation improvements. Overall, the plan focused on facilities that 

support campus activities and proposed the demolition, reconstruction, and renovation of a number of 

aging classroom buildings and facilities. Figure 3 provides an illustration of the 2002 CMP evaluated 

in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. The following discussion provides a more detailed description of each 

of the project components of that CMP. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

54 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

14 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

55 of 543



FIGURE 3

I:\SDU1301A\G\Master Plan_CSP.cdr (2/27/14)

2002 Master Plan Conceptual Site Plan

San Dieguito Academy Improvements

SOURCE: NTD Architects

NO SCALE

N

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

56 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

16 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

57 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 17 

2.4.3 Facilities 

Campus Facilities. The 2002 CMP, as analyzed in the adopted IS/MND, proposed the demolition/

removal of 10 buildings (Buildings 62, 63, 64, 80, 90, 100, 120, 130, 140, and 150) and construction 

of 6 new buildings (Buildings 35, 85, 95, 105, 115, and 125). Four of the new buildings were to be 

located around the main courtyard and one building was to be reconstructed west of the proposed 

Purchasing and Receiving Department building. In addition, the 2002 CMP included the 

modernization of all remaining existing structures on the campus which included Buildings 10, 20, 

40, 50, 60, 70, E, and L as well as the administrative building, locker/shower building, gymnasium, 

student services building, media center, shop building, and the Mustang Center. Modernization work 

would generally consist of installation of new electrical and plumbing fixtures; replacement of 

windows, flooring and ceiling tile; upgrading security and fire alarm systems; and the painting of 

interior and exterior spaces. 

In total, implementation of the 2002 CMP would result in the demolition/removal of approximately 

43,375 square feet of building space and construction/reconstruction of approximately 71,356 square 

feet of building space on the campus. The implementation of the 2002 CMP also provided for the 

renovation/modernization of several structures (totaling approximately 109,672 square feet) and 

improvements to parking areas as well as outdoor areas and facilities. 

 

Parking and Circulation. As analyzed in the 2003 adopted IS/MND, improvements to pedestrian and 

traffic circulation would be achieved by construction of new walkways and ramp improvements, as well 

as new courtyard areas, including a new main courtyard entry. A number of other courtyards were 

proposed to be reconfigured and several fire lanes expanded. Additional parking was proposed to be 

located in two areas on the campus. These include the expansion on an existing staff/visitor parking lot 

north of Santa Fe Drive and an expansion of the existing student parking lot immediately east of Nardo 

Road, adjacent to the tennis courts and track and field area. The expansion of the existing student 

parking lot would add an additional 147 parking spaces to the existing 157 parking spaces. The visitor 

and staff parking lot would be expanded from 93 spaces to a total of 189 parking spaces. 

 

Outdoor Areas and Facilities. The 2002 CMP identified improvements to outdoor areas and 

facilities, which included new courtyards, amphitheater, and new track and field areas (including high 

jump and shot put), and the installation of new site signage. New landscaping throughout the campus 

was also proposed. The new courtyards were to be constructed west of Building 35, east of Building 

125, north of Building 10, east of Building 105, and north of Building 70. The amphitheater was 

proposed east of the existing gymnasium and Mustang Center. The new high jump and shot put areas 

would be placed near the existing track and field facilities. 

2.5 CAMPUS MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 

In total, the following aspects of the 2002 CMP have been implemented: 

• Construction of Building 125 – Performing Arts Center; 

• Expansion of the existing staff/visitor parking lot north of Santa Fe Drive; and 

• Expansion of the existing student parking lot immediately east of Nardo Road. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

58 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

18 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

2.6 SUMMARY OF PROJECT CHANGES 

Proposed changes to the CMP are illustrated in Figure 4. Revisions to the project that have the 

potential to affect the physical environment include the following: 

• Demolition of Existing Buildings (59,476 square feet): Building 120 (proposed for removal 

under the 2002 CMP) is proposed to stay under the revised CMP. Building 120 is a portable 

building and is approximately 6,179 square feet. The remaining buildings identified under the 

2002 CMP for demolition/removal are also proposed for demolition/removal under the revised 

CMP. Additionally, the following buildings have been added as new project components under 

the revised CMP: 

o Demolition of Building 20 (6,580 square feet); 

o Demolition of Building 60 (6,720 square feet); 

o Demolition of Building E (4,238 square feet); and 

o Demolition of Building L (4,742 square feet). 

• Construction of the New Buildings (118,153 square feet): The resulting proposed changes are 

modifications to the proposed buildings and would also replace existing buildings that have aged 

beyond their useful lives (listed above). These buildings that would be replaced are not only 

energy inefficient, but they also often have inadequate facilities to meet campus instructional 

needs. Buildings 95 and 125 (proposed for construction under the 2002 CMP) are now removed 

under the revised CMP and are not proposed for construction. Building 125 (proposed for 

construction under the 2002 CMP) has since been constructed. The remaining buildings identified 

under the 2002 CMP for construction are also proposed for construction under the revised CMP. 

Additionally, the following buildings have been added as part of the revised CMP: 

o Construction of new Math and Science Building (47,800 square feet); 

o Construction of new Art, English, and Social Science Building/Adult Education Center 

(49,000 square feet); and 

o Construction of new Gymnasium and Locker Room Complex Addition (46,700 square feet). 

• Modernization of Existing Facilities: As previously identified, modernization work would 

generally consist of installation of new electrical and plumbing fixtures; replacement of windows, 

flooring, and ceiling tile; upgrading security and fire alarm systems; and the painting of interior 

and exterior spaces. Under the revised CMP, buildings 20, 60, E, and L are now proposed for 

demolition as identified above. Modernization of the Media Center has since been completed. 

The remaining buildings identified under the 2002 CMP for modernization are also proposed for 

modernization under the revised CMP. 

• Parking and Circulation: The 2002 CMP proposed to increase on-site parking by approximately 

240 parking spaces for a total of 493 parking spaces in two existing lots. These parking 

expansions have already been implemented. The revised CMP proposed to increase on-site 

parking from 493 spaces to approximately 558 spaces through the addition of a new parking 

adjacent to the new Art, English, and Social Science Building/Adult Education Center. Additional 

components include improvements to existing walkways and ramps. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

59 of 543



FIGURE 4

I:\SDU1301A\G\Master Proposed_CSP.cdr (6/10/14)

Proposed Campus Master Plan

San Dieguito Academy Improvements

SOURCE: MVE Institutional

FEET

120600

N

REMODELED/MODERNIZED IMPROVEMENTS

NEW/REPLACED FACILITIES

NO CHANGE/IMPROVEMENTS PROPOSED

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

60 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

20 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

61 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 21 

• Outdoor Areas and Facilities: The 2002 CMP proposed to construct a new amphitheater; since 

approval of the 2003 IS/MND, the amphitheater has been constructed as part of the Performing 

Arts Center. Other components identified in the 2002 CMP, including reconfiguration of various 

courtyards and plazas, new track and field areas, installation of new site signage, and landscaping, 

remain as project components in the revised CMP. 

Table 2.A summarizes the changes between the 2002 CMP and the revised CMP. 

Table 2.A: Comparison of Campus Master Plan Project Components 

Project Component 

2002 Campus Master Plan Analyzed in 

Adopted 2003 IS/MND Revised Campus Master Plan 

Demolition/Removal/

Relocation of existing 

facilities 

• Demolition of Building 80 

• Demolition of Building 90 

• Demolition of Building 100 

• Demolition of Interim Housing 62, 63, and 

64 

• Removal of Portable Building 120 

• Removal of Portable Building 130 

• Removal of Portable Building 140 

• Removal of Portable Building 150 

• Demolition of Building 80 

• Demolition of Building 90 

• Demolition of Building 100 

• Demolition of Interim Housing 62, 63, and 

64 

• Removal of Portable Building 120 

(building to stay)  

• Removal of Portable Building 130 

(completed) 

• Removal of Portable Building 140 

• Removal of Portable Building 150 

• Demolition of Building 20 (building to be 

demolished under revised CMP) 

• Demolition of Building 50 (building to be 

demolished under revised CMP) 

• Demolition of Building 60 (building to be 

demolished under revised CMP) 

• Demolition of Building E (building to be 

demolished under revised CMP) 

• Demolition of Building L (building to be 

demolished under revised CMP) 

Construction of new 

facilities 
• Construction of New Academic Classroom 

Building 35 

• Construction of Building 85 

• Construction of Classroom Building 95 

• Construction of Building 105 

• Construction of Classroom Building 115 

• Construction of Building 125 (Performing 

Arts) 

• Construction of Purchasing and Receiving 

Department 

• Construction of Building 35 (now part of 

new Art, English and Social Science 

Building/Adult Education Center) 

• Construction of Building 85 (removed 

from revised CMP) 

• Construction of Classroom Building 95 

(removed from revised CMP) 

• Construction of Building 105 (now part of 

new Math and Science Building) 

• Construction of Classroom Building 115 

(removed from revised CMP) 

• Construction of Building 125 - Performing 

Arts (Constructed in 2010/2011) 

• New Gymnasium & Locker Complex 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

62 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

22 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Table 2.A: Comparison of Campus Master Plan Project Components 

Project Component 

2002 Campus Master Plan Analyzed in 

Adopted 2003 IS/MND Revised Campus Master Plan 

Modernization of 

existing facilities 
• Modernization of Media Center  

• Modernization of Administration Building 

• Modernization of Building 10 

• Modernization of Building 20 

• Modernization of Building 40 

• Modernization of Building 50 

• Modernization of Building 60 

• Modernization of Building 70 

• Modernization of Building E 

• Modernization of Building L 

• Modernization of Mustang Center 

• Modernization of Shop Building 

• Modernization of Gymnasium 

• Modernization of Locker/Shower Building 

• Modernization of Student Services Building 

• Modernization of Media Center 

(completed 2004/2005) 

• Modernization of Administration Building 

• Modernization of Building 10 

• Modernization of Building 20 (building to 

be demolished under revised CMP) 

• Modernization of Building 40 

• Modernization of Building 50 (building to 

be demolished under revised CMP) 

• Modernization of Building 60 (building to 

be demolished under revised CMP) 

• Modernization of Building 70 

• Modernization of Building E (building to 

be demolished under revised CMP) 

• Modernization of Building L (building to 

be demolished under revised CMP) 

• Modernization of Mustang Center 

• Modernization of Shop Building (now 

Industrial Arts Building) 

• Modernization of Gymnasium (now part of 

new Gymnasium & Locker Complex) 

• Modernization of Locker/Shower Building 

(now part of new Gymnasium & Locker 

Complex) 

• Modernization of Student Services 

Building (part of Administration 

Buildings) 

Parking and 

Circulation 
• Walkway and ramp improvements 

• Expansion of existing staff/visitor parking lot 

• Expansion of existing student parking lot 

• Walkway and ramp improvements 

• Expansion of existing staff/visitor parking 

lot (completed 2004/2005) 

• Expansion of existing student parking lot 

(completed 2004/2005) 

• New parking lot adjacent to existing 

Industrial Arts Building and proposed Art, 

English, Social Science Building/Adult 

Education Center 

Outdoor Areas and 

Facilities 
• Reconfiguration of various courtyards and 

plazas 

• New amphitheater 

• New track and field areas 

• Installation of New Site Signage 

• Project Landscaping 

• Reconfiguration of various courtyards and 

plazas 

• New amphitheater (completed and 

incorporated as part of Performing Arts 

Center) 

• New track and field areas 

• Installation of New Site Signage 

• Project Landscaping 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

63 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 23 

Table 2.A: Comparison of Campus Master Plan Project Components 

Project Component 

2002 Campus Master Plan Analyzed in 

Adopted 2003 IS/MND Revised Campus Master Plan 

Infrastructure 

Improvements 
• Improvements to on-site connections to off-

site water, electricity, natural gas, telephone, 

and telecommunication lines, and storm 

water drain systems 

Same 

IS/MND = Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

CMP = Campus Master Plan 

2.6.1 Revisions to the Project Description 

The proposed revised CMP is substantially similar to the 2002 CMP approved by the SDUHSD 

Board of Trustees in November 2003. The plan continues to provide for the renovation/modernization 

of several structures, the construction of new structures, and site, landscaping, infrastructure, and 

access and circulation improvements. The revised CMP proposes demolition of multiple structures 

and the construction of additional facilities on campus, similar to that identified in the 2002 CMP. 

Similar to the 2002 CMP, implementation of the revised CMP would not result in an increase in 

student capacity and all improvements would be conducted within the existing development footprint 

of the campus. Both the CMP evaluated in the adopted IS/MND and the revised CMP respond to and 

accommodate long-term growth by providing facilities that maximize land use and address 

infrastructure needs. The revised CMP proposed a slightly different implementation plan than that 

outlined in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. However, as with the original CMP, the final order and timing 

of construction would be determined by funding opportunities and sequencing logistics. The adopted 

2003 IS/MND contains mitigation measures that reduced project impacts. The mitigation measures, 

as revised, remain applicable to the project. 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

64 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

24 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

65 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 25 

3.0 COMPARATIVE EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

IMPACTS 

The following pages contain analyses of potential impacts of the proposed revised Campus Master 

Plan (CMP) for the San Dieguito High School Academy (SDA). The potential impacts of the revised 

CMP (collectively referred to as the proposed revised CMP) are compared to potential impacts for the 

plan analyzed in the adopted 2003 Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND). As 

explained in Chapter 1.0, this comparative analysis has been undertaken pursuant to the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and to provide the San Dieguito Union High School District 

(SDUHSD or District) Board of Trustees with a factual basis for determining whether changes in the 

project, changes in circumstances, or new information since the 2003 IS/MND was adopted require 

additional environmental review or preparation of a subsequent IS/MND or subsequent or 

supplemental EIR. The basis for each finding is explained in the analysis that follows. 

3.1 AESTHETICS 

3.1.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

The SDA campus is located in an urbanized area in the central portion of the City of Encinitas. The 

SDA campus encompasses approximately 32 acres and is located approximately 1.5 miles east of the 

Pacific Ocean and 3.0 miles north of San Elijo Lagoon. Interstate 5 (I-5) is located approximately 

one-half mile west of the SDA campus. The existing campus is bordered by Nardo Road on the west, 

Santa Fe Drive on the south, Bonita Drive on the east, and Melba Road on the north. 

The existing SDA campus is characterized as developed with ornamental landscaping and consists of 

various indoor classroom and administration facilities, outdoor physical education facilities, and 

parking facilities. The campus is landscaped primarily with eucalyptus trees, turf grass, and pine 

trees. Views to the east, north, and south include single-family homes and associated landscaping. 

There are views of commercial uses to the south of the SDA campus. 

3.1.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

The adopted IS/MND found that the 2002 CMP would not result in a significant impact on a scenic 

vista. While the SDA is located on Santa Fe Drive (a City-designated scenic roadway), construction 

activities occurring within the interior of the campus and in the northern portion of the campus are not 

likely to be visible from Santa Fe Drive due to intervening buildings and landscaping. Construction 

activities proposed for the southern portion of the SDA campus would be visible to motorists 

traveling along Santa Fe Drive. While views of the project site would show the presence of 

construction trucks and equipment, the construction activity is temporary and visual impacts are 

considered to be less than significant. Upon project completion, the aesthetics of the campus would be 

improved as a result of the proposed improvements and new landscaping. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

66 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

26 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Scenic resources visible from Santa Fe Drive (a City-designated scenic roadway) include pine trees 

planted as part of the campus landscaping. Improvements to the SDA campus would involve clearing 

and grading of some of the pine trees. While views of the mature pine trees from Santa Fe Drive 

would be lost, new landscaping would be installed throughout the campus and many of the existing 

pine trees on the campus along Santa Fe Drive would remain and be preserved. Because of the loss of 

the pine trees occurring south of the existing student parking lot is not considered substantial and 

improvements to the SDA include new landscaping as well as preservation of many existing trees, 

impacts to scenic resources visible from a scenic roadway are less than significant in the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. 

The change in visual character associated with implementation of the 2002 CMP would be from a 

campus with aging buildings to a campus with improved landscaping and several new buildings. 

During construction, views of the campus would consist of grading and cleared areas, and building at 

various stages of improvement. Upon completion of the project, the appearance of the campus 

structures and associated landscaping would be improved. Therefore, the proposed project would 

have a less than significant impact with respect to the existing visual character or quality of the site 

and surroundings. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND found that the 2002 CMP would not result in a new source of light or 

glare affecting day or nighttime views because the site is located in a built-up urban environment that 

contains existing street and residential/commercial lighting. New exterior lighting will be provided 

with implementation of the proposed project; however, impacts are less than significant. 

3.1.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The proposed revised CMP includes demolition of existing buildings, removal of existing portable 

buildings, construction of new buildings, and improvements to existing facilities approved as part of 

the 2002 CMP. Some of the proposed improvements would alter the existing visual character of the 

project site. The proposed revised CMP also includes a new parking lot adjacent to the existing 

Industrial Arts Building as well as a new Math and Sciences Building, an Art, English, Social Science 

Building/Adult Education Center, additional landscaping along the site perimeter, and additional 

plazas, and courtyards.  

The project site and vicinity are not designated as a scenic view or vista in the City of Encinitas 

General Plan or any other applicable planning documents. As described above, scenic resources 

visible from Santa Fe Drive (a City-designated scenic roadway) include pine trees planted as part of 

the campus’ landscaping. As detailed above, the existing pine trees located south of the existing 

student parking lot were identified as an area that would require the removal of the trees to 

accommodate the proposed parking lot expansion as described in the 2002 CMP. These 

improvements have been implemented; therefore, these impacts, as described in the 2003 IS/MND, 

would not occur with implementation of the revised CMP. Improvements to the SDA campus 

proposed under the revised CMP would not involve clearing of the remaining pine trees. New 

landscaping would be installed throughout the campus and many of the existing pine trees on the 

campus along Santa Fe Drive would remain and be preserved. Because of the loss of the pine trees 

occurring south of the existing student parking lot has already occurred, no impacts to scenic 

resources visible from a scenic roadway would occur. Therefore, implementation of the revised CMP 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

67 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 27 

would not result in an impact to scenic vistas or scenic resources, and mitigation measures are not 

necessary. 

Although implementation of the revised CMP would change the existing visual character of the site, it 

would not significantly degrade the visual character or quality of the existing campus or the 

surrounding area. In addition, the changes that are proposed as part of the revised CMP are similar in 

scale, size, and character to the changes proposed as part of the 2002 CMP. Therefore, the proposed 

revised CMP would not result in any new or more significant visual impacts associated with the 

changes identified in the 2003 IS/MND. 

The visual design and character of the improvements proposed as part of the 2002 CMP and the 

revised CMP, including the new buildings, are intended to reflect the visual character of the existing 

campus structures. The design of proposed buildings would complement the design of existing 

buildings on the campus and neither CMP would substantially alter the visual design or character of 

the campus. Through implementation of the proposed revised CMP, the buildings would be located 

and constructed in a manner that reinforces and creates student spaces for studying and gathering 

while emphasizing access points to the existing campus quad without blocking adjacent property 

views (as illustrated in Figure 5). 

The campus is currently illuminated with lighting along existing buildings and facilities, in parking 

areas, and street lighting along adjacent roadways. The 2002 CMP included additional lighting for 

new buildings, facilities, and parking areas. The proposed revised CMP includes lighting for the same 

uses. As analyzed in the adopted IS/MND, the site is located in a built-up urban environment that 

contains existing street and residential/commercial lighting. New exterior lighting will be provided 

with implementation of the proposed project; however, impacts are less than significant. Therefore, 

the proposed changes to the CMP would not result in a new significant impact or more severe impacts 

related to light and glare. 

In consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental impacts. 

Cumulative Impacts. The cumulative study area for aesthetic impacts is limited to the adjacent area 

within view of the project site. The proposed project would not have a significant cumulative impact 

on the visual environment, as the project site and vicinity have long been occupied by urban uses. The 

proposed project would not generate significant adverse effects on adjacent land uses with respect to 

aesthetics. The proposed improvements are compatible in character with the surrounding area, which 

is an established urban area. There are no known visual incompatibilities between the proposed 

project and planned future projects located in the surrounding area, and the contribution of the 

proposed project to potential cumulative visual/aesthetic impacts in the study area is considered less 

than significant. Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not 

require any major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant 

cumulative environmental impacts. 

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

68 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

28 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

 

 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

69 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 29 

3.1.4 Findings Related to Aesthetics 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to 

aesthetics, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to aesthetics that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to aesthetics requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to aesthetics identified in and considered by the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. 

3.1.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with aesthetics. 

3.2 AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTRY RESOURCES 

3.2.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

The SDA campus is located in an urbanized area in the central portion of the City of Encinitas. The 

existing SDA campus is characterized as developed with ornamental landscaping and consists of 

various indoor classroom and administration facilities, outdoor physical education facilities, and 

parking facilities. The campus is landscaped primarily with eucalyptus trees, turf grass, and pine 

trees. There are no current agricultural lands or uses within the SDA campus 

As identified in the previously adopted IS/MND, implementation of the proposed project would not 

result in the conversion of any designated Farmland to a non-agricultural use as no Farmland or 

agricultural use currently exists on the project site. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

70 of 543



FIGURE 5

Site Sections

San Dieguito Academy Improvements

I:\SDU1301A\G\Site Sections_11x17.cdr (6/9/14)

SOURCE: MVE Institutional

NO SCALE

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

71 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 31 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

72 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

32 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.2.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Implementation of the proposed revised CMP would not result in the conversion of agricultural lands 

since the SDA campus is designated as Urban and Built-Up Land. The existing campus does not 

contain agricultural land or agricultural uses and no State-designated Farmland is located within the 

project limits. No Williamson Act Contract is in place on the project site. In consideration of the 

previous analysis, the CMP modifications do not require any major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/

MND and would not result in any new significant environmental impacts related to agricultural 

resources and no mitigation is required. 

3.2.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

There are no modifications to the CMP evaluated in the adopted 2003 IS/MND that may affect 

agricultural or forestry resources. The proposed revised CMP would not affect any existing 

agricultural or forestry resources. Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the 

CMP do not require any major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new 

significant environmental impacts related to agricultural resources. 

Cumulative Impacts. Implementation of the proposed project will not have a measurable impact on 

the availability of agricultural resources or agricultural production on a Statewide or regional basis as 

no agricultural land exists within the project limits. Modifications to the CMP evaluated in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND would not result in new or greater cumulative impacts to agricultural 

resources as the project site is built out and contains no agricultural designations. As previously 

stated, the proposed revised CMP will not affect any additional agricultural lands within the project 

site. Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant cumulative 

environmental impacts related to agricultural resources. 

3.2.4 Findings Related to Agricultural Resources 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to 

agricultural resources, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to agricultural resources that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

73 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 33 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to agricultural resources requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to agricultural resources identified in and considered by 

the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

3.2.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified 

for agricultural resources. Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was 

reviewed to determine whether or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures 

contained therein. Given the analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis 

found in the 2003 IS/MND are required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts 

associated with agricultural and forestry resources. 

3.3 AIR QUALITY 

3.3.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

The project site is located within the City of Encinitas, which is part of the San Diego Air Basin 

(Basin) and is under the jurisdiction of the San Diego Air Pollution Control District (SDAPCD). Both 

the State of California and the federal government have established health-based Ambient Air Quality 

Standards (AAQS) for specific criteria air pollutants. Areas that meet AAQSs are classified as 

attainment areas, while areas that do not meet these standards are classified as nonattainment areas. 

Table 3.3.A summarizes the current attainment status in the Basin for the major criteria pollutants. 

Table 3.3.A: Attainment Status of Criteria Pollutants in the San Diego Air Basin 

Pollutant State Federal 

O3 1-hour Nonattainment N/A 

O3 8-hour Nonattainment Nonattainment 

PM10 Nonattainment Unclassifiable
1
 

PM2.5 Nonattainment Attainment 

CO Attainment  Attainment 

NO2 Attainment Attainment 

Lead
1
 Attainment Attainment 

All others Attainment/Unclassified Attainment/Unclassified 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

74 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

34 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Table 3.3.A: Attainment Status of Criteria Pollutants in the San Diego Air Basin 

Pollutant State Federal 

Source: San Diego Air Pollution Control District, Attainment Status, http://www.sdapcd.org/info/facts/attain.pdf, website accessed June 5, 

2014. 
1 At the time of designation, if the available data does not support a designation of attainment or nonattainment, the area is designated as 

unclassifiable.  

CO = carbon monoxide N/A = not applicable 

NO2 = nitrogen dioxide O3 = ozone 

PM10 = particulate matter less than 10 microns in diameter 

PM2.5 = particulate matter less than 2.5 microns in diameter 

3.3.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

As identified above and in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, the Basin in a federal and state non-attainment 

area for ozone, and within a stat non-attainment area for particulate matter less than or equal to 10 

microns in diameter (PM10) and particulate matter less than or equal to 2.5 microns in diameter 

(PM2.5).  

Air quality impacts would occur during construction of the 2002 CMP from soil disturbance and 

equipment exhaust. Major sources of emissions during demolition, grading, and site preparation 

include: (1) exhaust emissions from construction vehicles, (2) equipment and fugitive dust generated 

by construction vehicles and equipment traveling over exposed surfaces, (3) demolition activities, and 

(4) soil disturbances from grading and backfilling. 

Implementation of the 2002 CMP was found to contribute less than significant level of air pollutants 

from short-term construction activities. During construction, the SDUHSD would comply with 

California Vehicle Code Section 23114, which requires that vehicles transporting loads of aggregate 

materials to cover/tarp the material, or if not covered, requires the material to remain six inches from 

the upper edge of the container area where the material is stored. Additionally, the project would 

incorporate the following Project Design Features to further reduce emissions: 

• Using adequate water and/or other dust palliatives on all disturbed areas. 

• Washing down or sweeping streets from which construction access is taken to remove dirt carried 

from the new alignment to the existing roadway to keep vehicles from pulverizing the dirt into 

fine particles. 

• Terminating soil excavation, clearing or grading when wind speeds exceed 25 miles per hour for 

an hourly average. 

• Requiring low/NOX-emission tune-ups for all on-site  construction equipment at a minimum of 

every ninety (90) days. 

• Prohibiting engine idling while waiting to load or unload if the expected wait exceeds ten (10) 

minutes. 

With adherence to existing regulations and with incorporation of the Project Design Features 

identified above, emissions resulting from construction of the proposed project would be less than 

significant and no mitigation is required.  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

75 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 35 

The 2002 CMP was found to have no significant long-term operational emissions in exceedance of 

daily thresholds established by the SDAPCD. Upon project completion, cars, buses, and delivery 

trucks traveling to and from the site would emit pollutants into the Basin; however, the amount of 

traffic-related air pollutants would not exceed what is currently being emitted as school capacity 

would remain the same. The addition of delivery trucks traveling to the relocated Purchasing and 

Receiving Department would not represent a substantial increase in traffic-related air pollutants in the 

area since the current site of the warehouse is located approximately one-half mile north. In other 

words, the same level of activity that is currently ongoing at the existing warehouse facility would 

only be relocated to the campus site, and the same level of delivery truck emissions would still be 

emitted into the Basin. Therefore, it was determined that the operation of the proposed project would 

not contribute to long-term cumulative impacts to ambient air quality. Impacts are less than 

significant and no mitigation is required. 

Because short-term construction and long-term operational emissions associated with the proposed 

project were below the established thresholds, a less than significant impact related to conformity 

with the Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) would occur. No mitigation is required.  

Sensitive receptors in the project vicinity include residential development to the west, north and east 

and the students and staff on-site. Short-term air quality impacts are temporary and nature and would 

cease to occur upon completion of construction. Long-term emissions associated with the project 

would not be substantially greater than that already occurring in the project vicinity. Because short-

term construction and long-term operational emissions associated with the proposed project were 

below the established thresholds, a less than significant impact related to impact to sensitive receptors 

would occur. No mitigation is required.  

The 2002 CMP determined that odor impacts at the project site would be less than significant. The 

primary source of odors at the project site would come from the use of construction equipment and 

construction exhaust. These odors would only be present temporarily during construction and would 

no longer occur upon completion of construction. No mitigation is required.  

3.3.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The proposed revised CMP focuses on facilities that support campus activities and proposes the 

demolition of 59,476 square feet of existing facilities and the construction of 118,153 square feet of 

new facilities. The proposed modifications to the CMP would not change proposed land uses as all 

the buildings on campus are and would continue to be educational and educational support facilities.  

Construction Emissions. The proposed revised CMP is proposed as a phased project. 

Implementation of the revised CMP is expected to occur over the course of 5 phases for a duration of 

5 years and 5 months which is summarized below: 

• Phase 1A: Interim Housing Phase; duration of 11 weeks; 

• Phase 1B: Math and Science Building Phase; duration of 58 weeks; 

• Phase 2: English and Art Building Phase; duration of 80 weeks; 

• Phase 3A: Gym and Field A Phase; duration of 77 weeks; and,  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

76 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

36 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

• Phase 3B: Field B Phase; duration of 21 weeks. 

Table 3.3.B summarizes the proposed construction schedule. Construction emissions were calculated 

by using the California Emissions Estimate Model (CalEEMod). CalEEMod is an air quality 

modeling program that estimates air pollution emissions in pounds per day or tons per year for 

various land uses, area sources, construction projects, and project operations. The CalEEMod model 

uses the ARB EMFAC2007 model for on-road vehicle emissions and the OFFROAD2007 model for 

off-road vehicle emissions. CalEEMod has separate databases for specific counties and air districts. 

The San Diego County database was used for the proposed project. The model calculates emissions of 

reactive organic compounds (ROC) and nitrogen oxides (NOX) (ozone precursors), CO, PM10, and 

PM2.5. The results are expressed in pounds per day and are compared with the mass daily thresholds 

listed in Table 3.3.C to determine impact significance.  

Table 3.3.B: Proposed Construction Schedule 

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date 

Number 

of Days 

Week 

Number 

of Days 

Phase 1A1: Interim Housing Site 

Prep 
Site Preparation 7/1/2014 7/16/2014 5 12 

Phase 1A2: Interim Housing 

Construction 

Building 

Construction 
7/17/2014 10/29/2014 5 75 

Phase 1A3: Interim Housing 

Paving 
Paving 10/30/2014 11/18/2014 5 14 

Phase 1B1: Math & Science 

Demolition 
Demolition 11/20/2014 12/5/2014 5 12 

Phase 1B3: Math & Science 

Construction 

Building 

Construction 
1/2/2015 12/31/2015 5 260 

Phase 1B2: Math & Science Site 

Prep 
Site Preparation 2/1/2015 3/11/2015 5 28 

Phase 1B4: Math & Science 

Architectural Coating 

Architectural 

Coating 
8/1/2015 12/31/2015 5 109 

Phase 1B5: Math & Science 

Paving/Landscape 
Paving 10/1/2015 12/1/2015 5 44 

Phase 2a: English & Art 

Demolition 
Demolition 3/1/2016 3/30/2016 5 22 

Phase 2b: English & Art Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2016 7/25/2016 5 29 

Phase 2c: English & Art 

Construction 

Building 

Construction 
6/15/2016 9/13/2017 5 326 

Phase 2d: English & Art 

Architectural Coating 

Architectural 

Coating 
3/1/2017 9/13/2017 5 141 

Phase 2e: English & Art 

Landscape/Hardscape 
Paving 6/16/2017 8/15/2017 5 43 

Phase 3A1: Gym & Field 

Demolition 
Demolition 6/15/2018 7/5/2018 5 15 

Phase 3A2: Gym & Field Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2018 7/25/2018 5 29 

Phase 3A3: Gym & Field 

Construction 

Building 

Construction 
6/15/2018 12/7/2019 5 386 

Phase 3A4: Gym & Field 

Architectural Coating 

Architectural 

Coating 
6/2/2019 12/7/2019 5 135 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

77 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 37 

Table 3.3.B: Proposed Construction Schedule 

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date 

Number 

of Days 

Week 

Number 

of Days 

Phase 3B1: Field B Demolition Demolition 6/15/2019 6/25/2019 5 7 

Phase 3B2: Field B Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2019 7/15/2019 5 21 

Phase 3A5: Gym & Field 

Landscape/Hardscape 
Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44 

Phase 3B3: Field B Landscape/

Hardscape 
Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44 

Source: LSA Associates, Inc., June 2014. 

 

Table 3.3.C: Peak Daily Regional Construction Emissions 

Construction Phase 

Total Regional Pollutant Emissions, lbs/day 

ROG NOX CO SO2 PM10 PM2.5 CO2e 

Phase 1A1: Interim Housing Site Prep 5.4 58 44 0.04097 21 13 4,300 

Phase 1A2: Interim Housing 

Construction 
4.8 36 30 0.0447 3.3 2.4 4,400 

Phase 1A3: Interim Housing Paving 2.1 21 14 0.02068 1.4 1.2 2,100 

Phase 1B1: Math & Science Demolition 4.8 51 38 0.04428 3.6 2.6 4,600 

Phase 1B3: Math & Science 

Construction 
4.5 34 29 0.0446 3.2 2.3 4,400 

Phase 1B2: Math & Science Site Prep 5.3 57 44 0.04097 21 13 4,300 

Phase 1B4: Math & Science 

Architectural Coating 
46 2.7 2.8 0.00484 0.36996 0.26116 400 

Phase 1B5: Math & Science Paving/

Landscape 
2.0 20 14 0.02068 1.4 1.2 2,100 

Phase 2a: English & Art Demolition 4.4 47 37 0.04493 3.5 2.4 4,600 

Phase 2b: English & Art Site Prep 5.1 55 42 0.04097 21 13 4,200 

Phase 2c: English & Art Construction 4.2 32 28 0.0446 3.0 2.2 4,300 

Phase 2d: English & Art Architectural 

Coating 
36 2.3 2.6 0.00484 0.32228 0.21349 400 

Phase 2e: English & Art Landscape/

Hardscape 
1.7 17 13 0.02068 1.2 0.9716 2,100 

Phase 3A1: Gym & Field Demolition 3.6 37 33 0.043 2.4 1.8 4,300 

Phase 3A2: Gym & Field Site Prep 4.3 46 37 0.041 20 12 4,100 

Phase 3A3: Gym & Field Construction 3.3 26 25 0.045 2.5 1.7 4,200 

Phase 3A4: Gym & Field Architectural 

Coating 
2.9 1.9 2.5 0.0048 0.28 0.169 400 

Phase 3B1: Field B Demolition 37 34 31 0.041 1.7 1.5 4,100 

Phase 3B2: Field B Site Prep 3.4 43 35 0.041 20 12 4,000 

Phase 3A5: Gym & Field Landscape/

Hardscape 
4.1 13 13 0.021 0.87 0.704 2,000 

Phase 3B3: Field B Landscape/

Hardscape 
1.3 13 13 0.021 0.87 0.704 2,000 

Peak Daily Emissions 46 58 44 0.045 21 13 4,600 

SCAQMD Thresholds 75 100 550 150 150 55 No 

Threshold Significant Emissions? No No No No No No 

Source: LSA Associates, Inc., June 2014. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

78 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

38 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Table 3.3.C: Peak Daily Regional Construction Emissions 

Construction Phase 

Total Regional Pollutant Emissions, lbs/day 

ROG NOX CO SO2 PM10 PM2.5 CO2e 

CO = carbon monoxide 

CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent 

lbs/day = pounds per day 

NOx = nitrogen oxides 

PM2.5 = particulate matter less than 2.5 microns in size 

PM10 = particulate matter less than 10 microns in size 

ROG = reactive organic compounds 

SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality Management 

District 

SOx = sulfur oxides 

As indicated in Table 3.3.C, construction equipment/vehicle emissions would not exceed the 

SDAPCD’s daily emissions thresholds. Therefore, the project results in a less than significant impact 

as a result of construction emissions, and no mitigation measures are required. 

Odors. Heavy-duty equipment in the project area during construction would emit odors. However, 

construction activity would cease to occur after individual construction is completed. No other 

sources of objectionable odors have been identified for the proposed project, and no mitigation 

measures are required. 

Operational Emissions. Vehicular trips associated with the 2002 CMP analyzed in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND would contribute to congestion at intersections and along roadway segments in the project 

vicinity. The trips associated with the 2002 CMP were related to the construction of the proposed 

Purchasing and Receiving Department. The proposed revised CMP no longer includes the Purchasing 

and Receiving Department as a project component, and the trips associated with the Purchasing and 

Receiving Department would not occur with implementation of the revised CMP. Implementation of 

the proposed revised CMP would not result in any change to existing school capacity. In addition, 

uses that would typically generate long-term traffic are no longer proposed and no new long-term trip 

generating uses are proposed. As a result, long-term regional air quality emissions would not exceed 

operational air quality thresholds established by the SDAPCD nor would there be significant impacts 

to nearby sensitive receptors. Therefore, the proposed changes to the CMP would not result in a new 

significant impact or more severe impacts related to long-term regional air quality. Impacts are less 

than significant and no mitigation is required.  

Given that implementation of the proposed project would not result in any exceedances of air quality 

thresholds, construction and operation of the proposed project is not expected to conflict with the 

AQMP. The air quality plans relevant to this discussion are the State Implementation Plan (SIP) and 

the Regional Air Quality Strategy (RAQS). The SIP includes strategies and tactics to be used to attain 

and maintain acceptable air quality in the Basin; this list of strategies is called the RAQS. Consistency 

with the RAQS is typically determined by two standards. The first standard is whether the Proposed 

Project would exceed assumptions contained in the RAQS. The second standard is whether the 

Proposed Project would increase the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations, contribute 

to new violations, or delay the timely attainment of air quality standards or interim reductions as 

specified in the RAQS. 

The RAQS relies on information from the California Air Resources Board (ARB) and the San Diego 

Association of Governments (SANDAG), including mobile and area source emissions, as well as 

information regarding projected growth in the County, to forecast future emissions and then 

determine the strategies necessary for the reduction of emissions through regulatory controls. The 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

79 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 39 

ARB mobile source emissions projections and the SANDAG growth projections are based on 

population and vehicle use trends and land use plans developed by the cities and the County as part of 

the development of the County’s and cities’ general plans. As such, projects that propose 

development consistent with, or less than, the growth projections anticipated by a general plan would 

be consistent with the RAQS. 

The CMP is the document governing future land use that was considered as part of SANDAG’s 

projections. The revised CMP is consistent with the existing and future land uses on the site. In 

addition, the revised CMP is not expected to result in any increase in long-term regional air quality 

impacts. Therefore, the Proposed Project will not conflict with the RAQS or the SIP, and no 

significant impact will result with respect to implementation of the air quality plan. No mitigation 

measures are required. 

In consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental impacts related to air 

quality. 

Cumulative Impacts. The project would contribute criteria pollutants to the area during the period of 

project construction. A number of individual projects in the area may be under construction 

simultaneously with the revised CMP. However, given the urbanized nature of the surrounding areas, 

such projects are anticipated to be small and temporary in nature. Therefore, in consideration of all of 

the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND 

and will not result in any new significant cumulative environmental impacts related to air quality. 

3.3.4 Findings Related to Air Quality 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to Air 

Quality, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to Air Quality that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact to Air Quality requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

80 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

40 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to Air Quality identified in and considered by the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. 

3.3.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with Air Quality.  

3.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

3.4.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

The SDA campus is located in an urbanized area in the central portion of the City of Encinitas and 

encompasses approximately 32 acres. The existing SDA campus is characterized as developed with 

ornamental landscaping and consists of various indoor classroom and administration facilities, 

outdoor physical education facilities, and parking facilities. The campus is landscaped primarily with 

eucalyptus trees, turf grass, and pine trees.  

3.4.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that the following impacts would be less than significant: 

• Plant Communities: While permanent impacts to the plant communities will add to the 

cumulative loss of plant communities in the region, given the small and isolated nature of the 

native habitats and the disturbed condition of the existing vegetation communities, the proposed 

project is not expected to result in a significant impact to plant communities. Therefore, no 

mitigation is required. 

• Sensitive Plant Species: As identified in the 2003 adopted IS/MND, the proposed project is not 

expected to result in adverse impacts to any sensitive plant species. The campus site supports 

mature pine trees, including Torrey pine and pinyon pine, planted as ornamental trees as part of 

the property’s landscaping. While Torrey pine and pinyon pine are considered a sensitive plant 

species by the California Native Plant Society (CNPS), these pine trees were planted as 

ornamental trees in an urban environment. Thus, the loss of these trees would not result in a 

substantial adverse effect on species identified as candidate, sensitive, or special status in local or 

regional plans, policies, or regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

(CDFW) or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). Impacts are considered less than 

significant and no mitigation is required. 

• Wildlife Movement. The SDA campus contains developed or disturbed areas and is not likely to 

provide important wildlife corridor linkages or resource areas that would draw wildlife to the 

area. In addition, the site has roads on all sides, and residential neighborhoods and commercial 

areas adjacent to the site. No known sensitive wildlife regularly occur on site, nor are any 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

81 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 41 

expected. The SDA campus is not located within areas proposed for conservation under the 

MHCP Subarea Plan for the City of Encinitas. Therefore, long-term and temporary impacts to the 

project area are not expected to adversely affect wildlife linkages and movement. No mitigation is 

required. 

• Natural Community Conservation Planning (NCCP) and Designated Critical Habitat. As 

identified in the 2003 adopted IS/MND, the SDA campus is not located within areas proposed for 

conservation under the MHCP Subarea Plan for the City of Encinitas. Therefore, the project 

would not conflict with local ordinances or the adopted HCP, NCCP, or other approved local, 

regional, or State HCP. Therefore, the project impact to local ordinances and the adopted NCCP/

HCP is less than significant. No mitigation measures are required. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that the following impacts would be less than significant with 

incorporation of mitigation measures: 

• Sensitive Animal Species. No known sensitive wildlife species regularly occur on site, nor are 

any expected. The SDA campus is not located within areas proposed for conservation under the 

MHCP Subarea Plan for the City of Encinitas. It is likely that native resident and migratory birds 

may occupy the ornamental trees during breeding season (generally February 15 through August 

31). Potential species, among others, may include red-tailed or red-shouldered hawks (Buteo 

jamaicensis and Buteo lineatus, respectively), American kestrel (Falco sparverius sparverius), 

great horned owl (Bubo virginianus), barn owl (Tyto alba), Anna’s hummingbird (Calypte anna), 

western kingbird (Tyrannus verticalis), and black phoebe (Sayornis nigricans semiatra). The 

2003 IS/MND identified that direct impacts to nesting birds could result from the removal of the 

trees located within areas to be graded. Impacts were considered potentially significant requiring 

mitigation. With implementation of the identified Mitigation Measures BIO-1 and BIO-2, 

impacts are reduced to a less than significant level. 

• Local Policies/Tree Preservation Ordinance. The 2003 IS/MND identified that the project 

would not conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources as the 

removal of ornamental trees within the school site would be mitigated to a level below significant 

with implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1 and BIO-2. With implementation of the 

identified mitigation measures, impacts would be less than significant. 

Therefore, the adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that with implementation of mitigation measures, 

there would be no significant adverse impacts related to biological resources resulting from 

implementation of the project. 

3.4.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

Modifications to the CMP evaluated in the adopted 2003 IS/MND that may affect biological 

resources include construction of new buildings and expansion of campus facilities on the project site. 

This may require additional grading; however, the site was previously graded for some of the 

improvements proposed for development under the 2002 CMP. Given site conditions, timing, and 

placement of buildings, it is anticipated that areas where new improvements are proposed under the 

revised CMP are either urban (e.g., parking lot/existing building) or have been previously analyzed. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

82 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

42 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

The project site has been partially developed consistent with the 2002 CMP since the adoption of the 

2003 IS/MND with additional facilities and buildings, which required the removal of existing 

vegetation communities on portions of the site. It is anticipated that similar to what was identified in 

the 2003 IS/MND, implementation of the proposed revised CMP would not result in impacts to 

sensitive plants, sensitive animal species, or wildlife movement as the project site is built out. The 

proposed revised CMP is also not likely to conflict with local policies (e.g., tree preservation 

ordinance) or adopted HCP, NCCP, or other approved local, regional, or State HCP due to the built 

out nature of the project site. 

While potential impacts relating to the loss of sensitive trees (e.g., Torrey pine and pinyon pine) were 

identified in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, it was concluded that the loss of these trees would not result 

in a substantial adverse effect on species identified as candidate, sensitive, or special status in local or 

regional plans, policies, or regulations or by the CDFW or the USFWS. Additionally, mitigation 

measures were proposed to reduce potential impacts relating to the Migratory Bird Treaty Act 

(MBTA) to a less than significant level. Furthermore, the area where impacts to these trees were 

identified in the adopted 2003 IS/MND has already been completed as part of implementation of the 

2002 CMP. Therefore, these same potential impacts would not occur under the revised CMP and no 

mitigation is required. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND did not identify the presence of sensitive riparian habitat or other sensitive 

natural communities nor did it identify the presence jurisdictional waters (including federally 

protected wetlands). Thus impacts in this regard would not occur. 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental 

impacts related to biological resources. 

Cumulative Impacts. The study area for biological resources considered for the cumulative impact 

of this project in combination with other projects consisted of (1) the area that could be affected by 

proposed project activities; and (2) the areas affected by other projects whose activities could directly 

or indirectly affect biological resources, or when combined, could affect biological resources. In 

general, only projects occurring adjacent to or very close to the project site were considered. The 

proposed project site has been used and planned as the SDA since 1937. There are no listed species or 

critical habitat on site and the on-site habitat is degraded, consisting of an existing school campus and 

associated school facilities. The loss of small and isolated fragments of native plant communities that 

occur on the project site is not considered significant and does not contribute to a significant 

cumulative impact. The project impacts to biological resources are less than significant after 

mitigation and, given the degraded condition of the site and limited biological resources on the site, 

the project would result in a less than significant contribution to cumulative effects to biological 

resources. Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any 

major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant cumulative 

environmental impacts to biological resources. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

83 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 43 

3.4.4 Findings Related to Biological Resources 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to 

biological resources, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to biological resources that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to biological resources requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to biological resources identified in and considered by the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

3.4.5 Mitigation Measures 

In light of the proposed modifications to the CMP, the adopted 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to 

determine whether or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained 

therein. As detailed below, this Addendum proposes that Mitigation Measures BIO-1 and BIO-2 

also be implemented for the proposed revised CMP. Mitigation measures related to biological 

resources that would be applicable to both the previously approved CMP and the proposed revised 

CMP are provided below. 

Some of the grading and construction activities that were proposed as part of the 2002 CMP have 

occurred on the project site, and Mitigation Measures BIO-1 and BIO-2 have been implemented. 

The proposed revised CMP may potentially result in or contribute to additional impacts associated 

with this issue. Therefore, Mitigation Measure BIO-1 and BIO-2 are still applicable to the proposed 

revised CMP. 

Mitigation Measure BIO-1 All work involving the removal of trees will take place between 

September 1 and February 14 to avoid potential impacts to nesting 

birds; or 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

84 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

44 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Mitigation Measure BIO-2 If trees are to be removed during the nesting season (between 

February 15 and August 31), a nesting bird survey will be conducted 

by a qualified wildlife biologist prior to construction. If active nests 

are observed, construction will be avoided within 50 feet of the nest 

until the nest is no longer active. A qualified wildlife biologist would 

monitor the nest and determine when the nest is no longer active. 

3.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES 

3.5.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

The existing cultural resources environmental setting and an analysis of potential impacts from 

implementation of the proposed project are described in Section 5.5 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND.  

3.5.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please see Section 5.5 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analyses of potential effects of the CMP 

related to cultural resources. Section 5.5 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND addressed the potential for 

impacts to cultural, historic, archaeological, and paleontological resources that have the potential to 

occur on the project site based on a Cultural Resources Study
1
 prepared for the 2002 CMP. The 

Cultural Resources Study was included in Appendix A of the adopted 2003 IS/MND. The Cultural 

Resources Study included a records search, literature review, and field survey conducted in March 

and April 2003 for the project site to identify on-site resources and to evaluate the effect of the 

proposed project on these potential resources. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that the there are no known archaeological, historical, or 

paleontological resources on the project site. Based on a review of records and literature maintained 

by the South Coast Information Center (SAIC) and the research library at Gallegos & Associates, no 

previously recorded prehistoric or historic sites were identified for the project site. The field survey 

conducted on the project site noted that the SDA campus still included eight of the nine original 

structures built in 1937. Additional research revealed that the original structures were designed by 

noted architect Lilian Jeannette Rice, who was the only licensed female architect in San Diego 

County during her lifetime. Based on a review of Lilian Rice and her life’s work, the original 

Academy complex is considered historically significant as it is associated with a person of importance 

from the past and the architecture embodies the Bay Area philosophy characteristic at that time and 

the Arts and Craft movement (Gallegos & Associates 2003). No archaeological or paleontological 

resources were identified through the record searches or survey of the project site. Therefore, project-

related construction will not affect any known archaeological or paleontological resources, and no 

mitigation is required. 

The analysis conducted for the 2003 adopted IS/MND concluded that there are no facts or evidence to 

indicate that Native Americans or people of European descent are buried on the project site. 

Therefore, the adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that there would be no significant adverse impacts 

related to cultural resources resulting from implementation of the project. 

                                                      
1 Cultural Resource Study for the San Dieguito High School Academy Project, Encinitas, California, prepared by 

Gallegos & Associates, April 2003. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

85 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 45 

3.5.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

Modifications to the CMP evaluated in the adopted 2003 IS/MND that may affect cultural resources 

include construction of new buildings and expansion of campus facilities on the project site. This may 

require additional grading; however, the site was previously graded for some of the improvements 

proposed for development under the 2002 CMP. Given site conditions, timing, and placement of 

buildings, it is anticipated that the areas where these new improvements would occur are either urban 

(e.g., parking lot/existing building) or have been previously analyzed. 

The project site has been partially developed consistent with the 2002 CMP since the adoption of the 

2003 IS/MND with additional facilities and buildings, which required a records search and field 

survey to determine the absence or presence of significant cultural resources. It is anticipated that 

similar to what was identified in the 2003 IS/MND, implementation of the proposed revised CMP 

would not result in impacts to known archaeological, historic, or paleontological resources as the 

revised CMP plans are generally similar in nature. 

As noted above, the original SDA complex is considered historically significant as it is associated 

with a person of importance from the past and the architecture embodies the Bay Area philosophy 

characteristic at that time and the Arts and Craft movement (Gallegos & Associates 2003). Similar to 

the 2002 CMP, the revised CMP also proposes to demolish Building 80, which is one of the original 

nine buildings designed by Lilian Rice. The adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that Building 80 does 

not contribute to the historical integrity of the main courtyard complex due to its location (i.e., located 

outside of the main courtyard area and north of the Media Center). The loss of Building 80 is 

therefore not considered a significant impact to a historical resource since the main courtyard and 

other historic structures will remain intact and the overall design would not be diminished. No 

mitigation is required. 

No fossil resources were encountered during the survey and the probability of encountering 

paleontological resources on the project site is low due to the developed nature of the project site. 

Thus, the 2003 IS/MND concluded that impacts to paleontological resources would be less than 

significant. 

The analysis conducted for the 2003 adopted IS/MND concluded that there are no facts or evidence to 

indicate that Native Americans or people of European descent are buried on the project site. In the 

unlikely event that human remains are encountered during project grading, the proper authorities 

would be notified and standards procedures for the respectful handling of human remains during the 

project-related earthmoving activities. This is mandated by state law and adherence to this standard 

requirement would ensure that impacts are less than significant. Therefore, the adopted 2003 IS/MND 

concluded that there would be no significant adverse impacts related to cultural resources resulting 

from implementation of the project. 

Cumulative Impacts. The cumulative impact area for cultural and paleontological resources is the 

County of San Diego and the Southern California region. The analysis above indicates that there 

would be no new significant impacts of the proposed project related to cultural resources. Therefore, 

in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant cumulative environmental 

impacts. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

86 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

46 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.5.4 Findings Related to Cultural Resources 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to cultural 

resources, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to cultural resources that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to cultural resources requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to cultural resources identified in and considered by the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

3.5.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with cultural 

resources. 

3.6 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

3.6.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

The existing geologic and soils environment and an analysis of potential impacts from 

implementation of the proposed project are described in Section 5.6 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

Section 5.6 also addresses the potential for structural damage to occur due to the local geology 

underlying the project site, as well as slope stability, ground settlement, soil conditions, grading, and 

regional seismic conditions. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

87 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 47 

3.6.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please see Section 5.6 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analyses of potential effects of the CMP 

related to geology and soils. The State Architect ensures that structural design shall comply with the 

current edition of the Uniform Building Code (UBC) applicable to structure design and construction 

in order to minimize the potentially damaging effect of severe ground shaking originating from 

earthquakes in the region. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that the following impacts would be less than significant: 

• Surface Rupture: The probability of ground surface rupture appears to be very low due to the 

lack of known active faults crossing the project site. The nearest active fault is the Rose Canyon 

Fault and Fault Zone, located approximately 5 miles from the project site offshore. Similarly, 

impacts related to strong seismic ground shaking would be less than significant given that all new 

structures proposed under the project would adhere to the latest seismic standards in building 

construction. No mitigation is required. 

• Liquefaction. Liquefaction results when soils lose their shear strength for short periods of time 

during an earthquake. Soils most susceptible to liquefaction are clean, loose, saturated, uniformly 

graded, fine-grained sands. The Natural Features Maps published by SANGIS (2003) indicate 

that the site is not mapped within an area considered to be susceptible to liquefaction. Therefore, 

impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

• Lateral Spreading: There are no creeks or open bodies of water within an appropriate distance 

from the site for lateral spreading to occur on site. The probability of lateral spreading occurring 

on site during a seismic event is low and no mitigation is required. 

• Landslides: Landslide hazard areas are generally considered to exist when substantial slopes are 

located on or adjacent to a subject property. The proposed project site is located within a 

relatively level area and is not within a potential landslide area as depicted in the SANGIS 

Natural Features Map (2003). Given the relatively flat terrain of the proposed project site and 

surrounding area, it is not anticipated that landslide hazards are present on the project site. 

Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

• Expansive Soils: Expansive soils are unlikely to be encountered as the project site is underlain by 

cut and fill soils associated with previous grading and construction of the campus. Impacts are 

considered less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

• On-Site Sewage Disposal System: The project does not include the use of septic tanks or 

alternative methods for disposal of wastewater into the subsurface soils. An existing on-site sewer 

system is currently in place. As part of the proposed project, on-site sewer pipelines will be 

extended or modified to serve new campus facilities. The proposed project will utilize the 

existing and expanded sewer system. No on-site sewage disposal systems (e.g., septic tanks) are 

planned. There is no impact with regard to on-site sewage disposal systems and no mitigation is 

required. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that the following impacts would be less than significant with 

incorporation of Project Design Features: 

• Soil Erosion/Loss of Topsoil: Soil erosion is inevitable during construction activities and loose 

and erodible soils may be present locally. To reduce potential impacts from soil erosion, the 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

88 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

48 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

following Project Design Features, which include implementation of Best Management Practices 

(BMPs), will be employed by SDUHSD or it contractors during construction of the proposed 

project: 

o BMPs will be employed to ensure that the project complies with all State and local water 

quality standards, including the preparation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 

(SWPPP); 

o Soil stockpiles and exposed (graded) slopes will be covered with plastic sheeting where 

feasible during inclement weather conditions; 

o Drainage control devices will be constructed to direct surface water runoff away from slopes 

and waterways; hay bale barriers or sandbags will be placed along the toes of graded slopes 

to help control and reduce sedimentation during grading operations. Runoff will be directed 

toward existing storm drain systems and treated, as necessary to remove sediments and 

pollutants; 

o Disturbed slopes will be minimized to reduce disturbance to existing vegetation and slopes; 

o A silt curtain or other drainage control device will be placed around construction areas to 

protect natural drainage channels from sedimentation; 

o Construction and grading during periods of inclement weather will be avoided; 

o A light spray of water will be applied to graded areas and temporary (haul) roads during 

construction to control fugitive dust. 

Implementation of the Project Design Features above would ensure that construction-related runoff 

will be treated prior to discharge into storm drain facilities. The water quality and beneficial uses of 

nearby drainages and the Pacific Ocean will not be altered or affected as a result of project 

implementation. Upon project completion and completion of seeding/landscaping disturbed areas 

with vegetation, it is anticipated that the project would not have a permanent impact to soil erosion or 

topsoil. Implementation of the Project Design Features above would ensure that potential soil erosion 

and loss of topsoil are minimized. Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

Therefore, the adopted 2003 IS/MND concluded that with implementation of Project Design Features, 

there would be no significant adverse impacts related to geology and soils resulting from 

implementation of the project. 

3.6.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

Modifications to the CMP evaluated in the adopted 2003 IS/MND that may affect geology and soils 

include construction of new buildings and expansion of campus facilities on the project site. This may 

require additional grading; however, the site was previously graded for some of the improvements 

proposed for development under the 2002 CMP. 

As with all of Southern California, the project site is subject to strong ground motion resulting from 

earthquakes on nearby faults. Adherence to the most recent seismic design parameters in the 

California Building Code would ensure that impacts resulting from strong seismic ground shaking are 

less than significant. No mitigation is required. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

89 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 49 

Site conditions related to geology and soils have not changed since the adoption of the 2003 IS/MND. 

The site remains underlain by cut and fill soils associated with previous grading and construction of 

the campus. As such, the potential for damage as a result of the presence of expansive soils are less 

than significant as expansive soils are not expected to occur on site. Impacts are less than significant 

and no mitigation is required. 

There is the potential for soil erosion to occur on site during site preparation and grading activities. 

Large areas of soil will be exposed to wind and water erosion. After construction of buildings and 

parking lots and establishment of the landscaped areas, erosion potential would be minimal. Project 

Design Features have been identified for the purpose of minimizing erosion and would be 

incorporated into the project. With implementation of these Project Design Features, soil erosion 

potential will be reduced to less than significant levels and no additional mitigation is required. 

The proposed project will result in a less than significant impact related to ground surface rupture, 

ground cracking, liquefaction, and lateral spreading. In addition, the project does not include the use 

of septic tanks or alternative methods for disposal of wastewater into the subsurface soils. Similar to 

the 2002 CMP, the proposed revised CMP would utilize the existing and expanded sewer system. No 

on-site sewage disposal systems (e.g., septic tanks) are planned. There is no impact with regard to on-

site sewage disposal systems. 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental 

impacts related to geology and soils. 

Cumulative Impacts. Neither the proposed project nor any of the identified projects with potential 

cumulative impacts entailed activities that would affect geology and soils at significant distances from 

the site (e.g., projects requiring significant structural blasting or drilling, high vibration activities, or 

deep excavation). The analysis indicated that there would be no significant cumulative impact of the 

proposed project related to geology and soils. Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the 

changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not 

result in any new significant cumulative environmental impacts. 

3.6.4 Findings Related to Geology and Soils 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts related to 

geology and soils, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to geology and soils that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

90 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

50 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to geology and soils requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to geology and soils identified in and considered by the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

3.6.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with geology and 

soils. 

3.7 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

3.7.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please see Section 5.7 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing environmental 

setting related to hazards and hazardous materials. The information contained in that section is based 

on the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, Academy High School, Encinitas, California (Brown 

& Caldwell, April 2003) and the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Determination (DTSC, 

August 2003). The Phase I Environmental Site Assessment is included as Appendix B of the 2003 IS/

MND while the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Determination is included as Appendix C of 

the 2003 IS/MND. 

The SDA campus was not identified as containing unusual odors or noise, distressed vegetation, 

ponds, pits, lagoons, or septic systems during the on-site inspection conducted for the Phase I Site 

Assessment. Additionally, the site is not utilized for hazardous waste or solid waste disposal nor does 

the site contain underground storage tanks (USTs) or aboveground storage tanks (ASTs). The SDA 

campus stores and utilizes hazardous materials typical of a school setting including cleaning supplies, 

chemicals associated with copying, and chemicals associated with film processing. Additionally, 

some chemicals associated with auto maintenance are located in the auto shop classroom on site. All 

chemicals are stored in locked aboveground cabinets. New and used oil generated on the project site 

is stored in 55-gallon drums with secondary containment. 

At one time there was one UST located at the campus site; however, it was removed by SDUHSD in 

1990. Soil samples were collected from beneath the former UST and did not indicate the presence of 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

91 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 51 

petroleum hydrocarbons, which indicates that a release from the former UST did not occur. Based on 

the results of the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, one historical recognized environmental 

condition (HREC) was identified (i.e., the former UST) and no new recognized environmental 

condition (REC) was identified. 

3.7.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please refer to Section 5.7 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analyses of the potential effects of the 

2002 CMP related to hazards and hazardous materials. 

Construction of the proposed project would involve the transport of gasoline and other fuels to the 

project site for the sole purpose of equipment fueling. However, upon completion of construction, the 

transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials (excluding cleaning products, air conditioning and 

heating unit chemicals, and landscaping chemicals and fertilizers), would not occur on site. The 

nature and amount of the materials kept onsite would not pose a significant hazard and would not 

pose a significant hazardous threat to this campus or nearby school sites. Therefore, a less than 

significant impact associated with the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials 

including reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions are less than significant and no 

mitigation is required.  

Based on the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment prepared for the project, it was concluded that 

the project site is on a list of hazardous sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 

65962.5. A waste oil underground storage tank was removed from the project site in 1990. However, 

no evidence of leaks, including petroleum hydrocarbons, was detected beneath the location of the 

former UST. The permit for the UST has since been closed by the local oversight agency. No other 

USTs or ASTs were observed on site. 

The Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (April 2003) was reviewed by the Department of Toxic 

Substance Control (DTSC). In a letter dated August 19, 2003, the DTSC concluded that the lead from 

lead-based paint and asbestos-containing materials (ACM) required additional investigation. At the 

time of preparation of the 2003 IS/MND, the SDUHSD was in the process of removing asbestos from 

Building No. 30 and was responsible for complying with Federal, State, and local requirements for 

possible mitigation, and management or removal of ACM. Lead is considered a hazardous material 

and potentially significant impacts associated with exposure to lead may occur with project 

implementation. To reduce potential impacts associated with exposure to lead to a less than 

significant level, Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 was identified. Implementation of Mitigation 

Measure HAZ-1 would reduce any potential impacts associated with lead exposure to a less than 

significant level. 

No public or private airports are in the vicinity of the project site; therefore, implementation of the 

proposed project would not expose people residing or working in the area to significant airport-

related safety hazards. No impacts would occur and no mitigation was required. 

The project site is not located within or adjacent to an area identified as susceptible to wildland fires. 

The project site and adjacent areas are urbanized and the potential for a wildland fire is considered 

low. Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

92 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

52 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Some traffic hazards would occur during construction activities, which could interfere with 

emergency response plans or evacuation plans. However, with implementation of proper traffic 

control, the project would have a less than significant impact to emergencies or emergency evacuation 

plans. The proper traffic control would be implemented through the following Project Design Feature 

incorporated into the proposed project: 

• Prior to construction, a traffic control plan will be developed by the SDUHSD in accordance with 

the City of Encinitas traffic control guidelines and will specifically address construction traffic 

during periods of supply delivery or heavy equipment transport. The traffic control plan will 

address construction traffic at the intersection of Santa Fe Drive/Nardo Road and Santa Fe Drive/

Bonita Drive, and will specify access and traffic safety requirements during hours of operation of 

the school. The traffic control plan will include signage and flagmen when necessary to allow 

heavy equipment transport along residential and local streets, and will also include parking and 

laydown areas for construction equipment and construction worker vehicles. 

Adherence to the identified mitigation measure, standard regulatory practices, and Project Design 

Features as identified in this section would reduce potential impacts related to hazardous materials to 

a less than significant level. 

3.7.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The proposed revised CMP focuses on facilities that support campus activities and proposed 

demolition of 16,101 square feet and construction of 57,297 square feet, which is more than what was 

proposed in the 2002 CMP. The proposed modifications to the CMP would not change proposed land 

uses. Generally speaking, all the buildings on campus are and would continue to be educational and 

educational support facilities. Please see Chapter 2.0 for more information regarding the proposed 

revised CMP. 

The project is not located within the vicinity of a public airport or private airstrip. The effects of the 

revised CMP are identical to those evaluated in the certified 2003 IS/MND. No impacts would occur, 

and no mitigation is required. 

Access for emergency vehicles is provided by the entrances along Santa Fe Drive, Nardo Road, and 

Bonita Drive, which would remain open during construction. The sports fields and parking lots are 

available to accommodate emergency evacuation of students and staff and provide emergency access 

to the campus. Because the proposed facilities do not block emergency vehicle access to the site or to 

any adjacent site, implementation of the proposed revised CMP would not substantially interfere with 

adopted emergency response plans. The effects of the revised CMP are similar to those evaluated in 

the adopted 2003 IS/MND. With implementation of proper traffic control, the project would have a 

less than significant impact to emergencies or emergency evacuation plans. The proper traffic control 

would be implemented through the following Project Design Feature, carried over from the adopted 

2003 IS/MND, incorporated into the proposed project: 

• Prior to construction, a traffic control plan will be developed by the SDUHSD in accordance with 

the City of Encinitas traffic control guidelines and will specifically address construction traffic 

during periods of supply delivery or heavy equipment transport. The traffic control plan will 

address construction traffic at the intersection of Santa Fe Drive/Nardo Road and Santa Fe Drive/

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

93 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 53 

Bonita Drive, and will specify access and traffic safety requirements during hours of operation of 

the school. The traffic control plan will include signage and flagmen when necessary to allow 

heavy equipment transport along residential and local streets, and will also include parking and 

laydown areas for construction equipment and construction worker vehicles. 

Therefore, no significant impacts related to emergency response would result from the proposed 

revised CMP. 

As identified in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, the project site is located in an urbanized area. No portion 

of the project site is adjacent to wildland areas. The proposed structures would be constructed to meet 

the requirements of the State Fire Marshal and would have emergency vehicle access through the 

existing site. By adhering to the State of California school fire safety standards, the proposed project 

would not expose structures or future occupants of the facilities to a significant fire risk. The effects 

of the revised CMP are similar to those evaluated in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. Therefore, no 

mitigation measures are required. 

Project construction would involve the routine use of hazardous materials such as fuels, paints, and 

solvents. The amount of these materials planned for use during construction is limited and would not 

pose a significant hazard. Upon completion of construction, the transport, use, or disposal of 

hazardous materials (excluding cleaning products, air conditioning and heating unit chemicals, and 

landscaping chemicals and fertilizers) would not occur on site. The nature and amount of the 

materials kept on site would not pose a significant hazard and would not pose a significant hazardous 

threat to the campus or nearby school sites. Therefore, impacts associated with the routine transport, 

use, or disposal of hazardous materials including reasonably foreseeable upset and accident 

conditions are less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

Similar to the existing campus facilities, the proposed revised CMP would involve the use of 

hazardous materials (e.g., cleaning products, air conditioning and heating unit chemicals, and 

landscaping chemicals and fertilizers) typical of educational facilities. The proposed project would 

not produce hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 

waste. Therefore, there would be no significant hazard to the public or the environment through the 

routine use of hazardous materials typical of educational facilities. Because the proposed project 

would not utilize large quantities of hazardous materials, would not utilize acutely hazardous 

materials, and will comply with local, State, and Federal requirements, it would not create a 

significant hazard to the public or to the environment through routine or reasonably foreseeable upset 

and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment, and no 

mitigation is required. 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant environmental 

impacts. 

Cumulative Impacts. The hazardous materials study area considered for cumulative impacts 

consisted of (1) the area that could be affected by proposed project activities, and (2) the areas 

affected by other projects where activities could directly or indirectly affect the presence or fate of 

hazardous materials on site. In general, only projects occurring adjacent to or very close to the project 

site are considered due to the limited potential impact area associated with release of hazardous 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

94 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

54 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

materials into the environment. The proposed revised CMP is consistent with typical school campus 

uses and would involve continued use of hazardous materials that are currently being used at the site. 

The contribution of hazardous materials use and hazardous waste disposal with implementation of the 

project is minimal, and combined hazardous materials effects from past, present, and reasonably 

foreseeable projects within the City would not be significant. Therefore, in consideration of all of the 

above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and 

would not result in any new significant cumulative environmental impacts. 

3.7.4 Findings Related to Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts related to 

hazards and hazardous materials, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts 

described in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to hazards and hazardous materials that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to hazards and hazardous materials requiring major revisions to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to hazards and hazardous materials identified in and 

considered by the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

3.7.5 Mitigation Measures 

In light of the proposed modifications to the CMP, the adopted 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to 

determine whether or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained 

therein. As detailed below, this Addendum proposes that deletions from the original mitigation 

measures are identified in strikeout text, and underlined text is used to signify new additions. 

Mitigation measures related to Hazards and Hazardous Materials that would be applicable to both the 

previously approved 2002 CMP and the proposed revised CMP are provided below. The following 

revised mitigation measure is incorporated to offset impacts of the proposed project. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

95 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 55 

Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 Upon demolition of Buildings 20, 60, E and L Building No. 30, the 

District, in coordination with DTSC, will test for the presence of lead 

in the surficial soils occurring in the vicinity of Buildings 20, 60, E 

and L. The sampling and subsequent analysis will be conducted in 

accordance with DTSC’s 2001 guidance document Interim Guidance 

for Evaluating Lead-Based Paint and Asbestos-Containing Materials 

at Proposed School Sites. If concentrations of lead are detected 

below 255 mg/kg, then no further investigation or remediation is 

required. If concentrations of lead are detected above 255 mg/kg, the 

District will conduct remediation. All remedial work and plans 

would require DTSC oversight and approval.  

3.8 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 

3.8.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please refer to Section 5.8 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing environmental 

setting for Hydrology and Water Quality. Because the area proposed for improvements is greater than 

one acre, the applicant must file a Notice of Intent (NOI) with the San Diego Regional Water Quality 

Control Board (RWQCB) and obtain a General Construction Activity Storm Water Permit, pursuant 

to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) regulations established under the 

Federal Clean Water Act (CWA). This permit requires preparation and implementation of a Storm 

Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), which is intended to prevent degradation of surface and 

ground waters during the grading and construction process. The SWPPP typically includes a variety 

of erosion and sedimentation controls, good housekeeping practices, fuel spill prevention, 

containment and clean-up procedures, and solid and liquid waste management controls to minimize 

short-term impacts related to sediment discharges and spills or releases of water contaminants, such 

as petroleum-based fuels and lubricants used to power and lubricate earthmoving equipment and 

spillage from trucks hauling dirt. As a result, impacts to water quality during construction would be 

less than significant. 

In the long-term, the proposed project would introduce impervious surfaces and structures to a site 

characterized as ornamental habitat. With the proposed project, runoff may contain pollutants/

sediments that could potentially affect water quality through increased sediment load and erosion into 

nearby waterways. The proposed project is part of a planned urban community and would comply 

with Federal, State, and local policies protecting water quality. 

Additionally, in order to reduce potential impacts to local water quality during post-construction, the 

following Project Design Features would be implemented and impacts would be less than significant: 

• Revegetation of all erodible slopes; 

• Mulching of cleared or freshly seeded areas for erosion/sedimentation control; 

• Placement of storm drain inlet/outlet protection for siltation control; and 

• Planting of grassed swales at parking lot boundaries. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

96 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

56 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.8.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please see Section 5.8 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analyses of the potential effects of the CMP 

on Hydrology and Water Quality. Project impacts to hydrology and water quality were evaluated 

based on the proposed project’s adherence to local, State, and Federal standards; proposed land use; 

site design; and proposed best management practices (BMPs) for control of surface runoff and 

reduction of pollutants in runoff. 

Many of the proposed 2002 CMP project components would be constructed on existing hardscape 

areas, and the drainage pattern of the proposed project would be similar to the existing condition. The 

proposed revised 2002 CMP would create more impervious areas (i.e., expansion of parking lot), 

which would increase the amount of runoff to surrounding streets. However, this increase does not 

represent a significant contribution to surface runoff over current levels of surface flows into the 

existing storm drain system. The campus has an existing drainage system. In the hardscape areas 

(buildings and parking lots), drainage is collected in a series of drain inlets and discharges to an 

existing on-site drainage system. Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

The project site does not rely on groundwater a source of water for use. Therefore, the project would 

not result in a substantial depletion of groundwater supplies. While additional impervious surfaces 

would be introduced with the proposed project, the project site is not identified as a designated 

groundwater recharge area and the amount of new impermeable surfaces would not result in a 

substantial interference with ground water recharge which may result in a net deficit in aquifer 

volume. Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

During construction, the applicant is required to adhere to the General Construction Activity Permit 

and utilize applicable BMPs specifically identified in the SWPPP for the project in order to prevent 

construction pollutants from contacting storm water and to keep all products of erosion from moving 

off site into receiving waters. Degradation of water quality through alteration of temperature, 

turbidity, dissolved oxygen, or increased sediment is not expected. Compliance with the NPDES 

requirements would ensure that runoff into the off-site drainage would not affect local water quality 

during construction. Project Design Features identified above would reduce the potential for water 

quality degradation to a less than significant level. No mitigation is required. 

The project site is not located within the 100-year floodplain. Furthermore, the proposed project 

would not result in the construction of housing; therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation is 

required. All other issues associated with hydrology and water quality were determined to be less than 

significant. 

3.8.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The proposed revised CMP focuses on facilities that support campus activities. Although an increase 

in building square footage is proposed, the revised CMP also includes additional pervious sports 

fields and campus landscaping. Modifications to the revised CMP that may affect hydrology and 

water quality include construction of approximately 57,297 square feet more than proposed in the 

2002 CMP evaluated in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. This may require more grading; however, the 

entire site was previously graded for existing development. The following Project Design Features, as 

identified in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, would reduce potential waste discharge and water quality 

violations related to runoff during construction, including those related to erosion, to less than 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

97 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 57 

significant levels. 

• Revegetation of all erodible slopes; 

• Mulching of cleared or freshly seeded areas for erosion/sedimentation control; 

• Placement of storm drain inlet/outlet protection for siltation control; and 

• Planting of grassed swales at parking lot boundaries. 

The drainage pattern of the proposed revised CMP would be similar to the existing condition. It is 

anticipated that the proposed revised CMP would create more impervious areas (i.e., expansion of 

parking lot), which would increase the amount of runoff to surrounding streets. However, this 

increase does not represent a significant contribution to surface runoff over current levels of surface 

flows into the existing storm drain system. The campus has an existing drainage system. In the 

hardscape areas (buildings and parking lots), drainage is collected in a series of drain inlets and 

discharges to an existing on-site drainage system. Similar to conclusions presented in the 2003 

IS/MND, impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

As previously stated, the project site does not rely on groundwater a source of water for use. 

Therefore, it would not result in a substantial depletion of groundwater supplies. While additional 

impervious surfaces would be introduced with the proposed project, the project site is not identified 

as a designated groundwater recharge area and the amount of new impermeable surfaces would not 

result in a substantial interference with groundwater recharge, which may result in a net deficit in 

aquifer volume. Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

Similar to that described in the 2003 IS/MND, during construction, the applicant is required to adhere 

to the General Construction Activity Permit and utilize applicable BMPs specifically identified in the 

SWPPP for the project in order to prevent construction pollutants from contacting storm water and to 

keep all products of erosion from moving off site into receiving waters. Compliance with the NPDES 

requirements would ensure that runoff into the off-site drainage would not affect local water quality 

during construction. Project Design Features identified above would reduce the potential for water 

quality degradation to a less than significant level. No mitigation is required. 

The project site is not located within the 100-year floodplain. Furthermore, the proposed project 

would not result in the construction of housing; therefore, no impact would occur and no mitigation is 

required. All other issues associated with hydrology and water quality were determined to be less than 

significant. 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental 

impacts related to hydrology and water quality. 

Cumulative Impacts. Past projects in the project vicinity reflect a continuation of the existing urban/

suburban pattern of development, which has resulted in extensive modifications to watercourses in 

the area and increases in impervious area and pollutant loads. Each project must comply with NPDES 

permitting requirements and the respective municipal code and include BMPs to prevent degradation 

of water quality as well as adverse drainage and flooding impacts. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

98 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

58 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Each project that proposes to increase peak storm flows is subject to review by the local enforcement 

agency so that hydrological impacts can be mitigated. As required by compliance with the NPDES 

permit, the SDUHSD shall prepare a design-level hydrology study for the project to ensure that 

adequate drainage structures are provided to address potential impacts to the regional storm drain 

system. Therefore, the project’s contribution to cumulative hydrology impacts is not considered 

significant. 

Future projects that would discharge into the Pacific Ocean are also required to be evaluated for 

potential downstream water quality impacts. Because the proposed revised CMP would not 

significantly affect peak storm flows and would implement Source Control and Treatment BMPs that 

are not currently in place at the campus, it would not cumulatively contribute to significant water 

quality impacts with implementation of BMPs. 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant cumulative 

environmental impacts related to hydrology and water quality. 

3.8.4 Findings Related to Hydrology and Water Quality 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts related to 

hydrology and water quality, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in 

the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to hydrology and water quality that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine if there is new information 

that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate that a new 

significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and analyses 

above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new significant impact 

related to hydrology and water quality requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to hydrology and water quality identified in and 

considered by the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

99 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 59 

3.8.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with hydrology and 

water quality. 

3.9 LAND USE 

3.9.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please see Section 5.9 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing environmental 

setting for Land Use. 

The main guiding documents regulating land use around the project site include the City of Encinitas 

(City) General Plan and the City’s Zoning Code. The adopted 2003 IS/MND Land Use section 

contains a complete analysis of the project’s compliance with the applicable land use policies from 

the City’s General Plan and Zoning Code; however, it should be noted that while coordination and 

consistency between the SDUHSD and the City plans are desired, the SDUHSD retains the authority 

to overrule local zoning and land use designations (Government Resources Code Sections 53094, 

65402(a), and 65403 and Public Resources Code Section 21151.2). 

The Land Use Element of the General Plan designates the existing SDA campus as Public/Semi-

Public. As defined in the City’s General Plan, public uses refer to those activities operated by the 

City, County, or some other governmental agency and include such facilities operated by the Fire 

Department, Sheriff’s Department, California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), water districts, 

and school districts. The zoning for the existing SDA campus is Public/Semi-Public (P/SP). The P/SP 

zoning designation permits several types of public, quasi-public, and institutional land uses, including 

schools. 

3.9.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please refer to Section 5.9 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analysis of potential effects of the 2002 

CMP on Land Use. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND did not identify any significant impacts pertaining to land use. The 

immediate area is developed with urban and suburban uses. The CMP was found to be consistent with 

General Plan policies regarding land use purpose and intent. The campus was founded in 1937 and 

has served as an integral part of the community since that time. Improvements to the SDA campus as 

proposed in the 2002 CMP would not conflict with the use of the site as a school as implementation 

of the project would not change the use of the site. The proposed project will not contribute to a 

pattern of development that adversely affects adjacent land uses, nor will it conflict with existing or 

planned development. 

The SDA campus is located within the Coastal Zone. Land use policies for areas subject to the Local 

Coastal Program (LCP) for the City of Encinitas are identified in the City’s General Plan. Because the 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

100 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

60 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

project proposes improvements within the existing footprint of the campus and no changes in use or 

operation would occur, there project would not conflict with the City’s LCP. 

The adopted 2003 IS/MND also found that implementation of the CMP would not physically divide 

an established community since the improvements identified are located on the existing campus and 

on land that has been zoned for Public/Semi-Public uses. 

3.9.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The proposed revised CMP focuses on facilities that support campus activities and proposed 

demolition of 16,101 square feet and construction of 57,297 square feet, which is more than what was 

proposed in the 2002 CMP. The proposed modifications to the CMP would not change proposed land 

uses. Generally speaking, all the buildings on campus are and would continue to be educational and 

educational support facilities. Please see Chapter 2.0 for more information regarding the proposed 

revised CMP. 

Implementation of the proposed revised CMP would not divide an established community since the 

improvements are located on the existing campus. Implementation of the proposed project would not 

result in the physical division of any established community and no mitigation is required. In 

addition, the proposed modifications to the CMP do not conflict with designated or existing on-site 

land uses because most of the proposed buildings would be constructed in place of the existing 

building or buildings that meet or provide the same services or types of technology or instructional 

capabilities. In addition, all of the components of the revised CMP are part of an integrated Master 

Plan for the campus. 

As analyzed in the 2003 IS/MND, implementation of the CMP would not propose changes to the 

existing land use designation and is consistent with the City’s General Plan land use designation. 

With the proposed modifications incorporated, the proposed revised CMP is substantially similar to 

the CMP analyzed in the IS/MND in that the revised CMP would not conflict with existing on-site or 

adjacent land uses. Therefore, the proposed revised CMP is consistent with the City’s General Plan. 

Similarly, the proposed revised CMP is consistent with the existing zoning designation for the project 

site and no mitigation is required. 

As previously identified, the SDA campus is not located within areas proposed for conservation under 

the MHCP Subarea Plan for the City of Encinitas. Therefore, the project does not conflict with the 

adopted HCP, NCCP, or other approved local, regional, or State HCP and will have less than 

significant impacts related to such plans. 

The SDA campus is located within the Coastal Zone. Land use policies for areas subject to the LCP 

for the City of Encinitas are identified in the City’s General Plan. Because the project proposes 

improvements within the existing footprint of the campus and no changes in use or operation would 

occur, the project would not conflict with the City’s LCP. Furthermore, the project is required to 

adhere to Chapter 30.80 of the City’s Municipal Code which requires the proposed project to obtain a 

Coastal Development Permit (CDP). Final determination of issuance of the Coastal Development 

Permit is conducted by the Planning Commission. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

101 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 61 

In consideration of the previous analysis, the CMP modifications do not require any major changes to 

the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant environmental impacts related 

to land use. 

Cumulative Impacts. The proposed project is a revised CMP for an existing campus located adjacent 

to existing residential and commercial properties. The immediate area is fully developed with urban 

and suburban uses and preserved land. The proposed revised CMP is considered consistent with 

General Plan policies regarding land use purpose and intent. The school was founded in 1937 and has 

served as an integral part of the community since that time. The proposed project would not 

contribute to a pattern of development that adversely affects adjacent land uses, nor would it conflict 

with existing or planned development. Implementation of the revised CMP would complement the 

existing residential land uses both locally and in the surrounding vicinity and would not have 

significant cumulative impacts related to land use and planning. Therefore, the changes to the CMP 

do not require any major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not contribute to any new 

significant cumulative environmental impacts. 

3.9.4 Findings Related to Land Use 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts related to 

land use, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to land use that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to land use requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to land use identified in and considered by the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

102 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

62 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.9.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with land use. 

3.10 MINERAL RESOURCES 

3.10.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please see Section 5.10 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing environmental 

setting for mineral resources. The project site is within an existing urban area and consists of 32 acres 

of existing school uses. No portion of the site is within a designated Mineral Resource Zone (MRZ) 

as defined by the California Surface Mining and Reclamation Act (SMARA). 

3.10.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please see Section 5.10 of the adopted IS/MND for an analysis of the potential effects of the 2002 

CMP related to mineral resources. As identified above, no portion of the project site would affect 

known mineral resources that would be of value to the region and residents of the State. As depicted 

on the California Department of Conservation, Division of Mines and Geology, 1996 updated map of 

Mineral Land Classifications in Western San Diego County, the project area has not been designated 

as having any known mineral resources, or as having a potential for mineral resources. As a result, no 

significant impact pertaining to the loss of availability of a known mineral resource, of value to the 

region and residents of the State or locally-important mineral resource, would occur. No mitigation is 

required. 

3.10.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

Since adoption of the 2003 IS/MND, the project site has not been designated as having known 

mineral resources of as having the potential for mineral resources. Thus, no portion of the project site 

would affect known mineral resources that would be of value to the region and residents of the State. 

As a result, no significant impact pertaining to the loss of availability of a known mineral resource, of 

value to the region and residents of the State or locally-important mineral resource, would occur. No 

mitigation is required. 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental 

impacts. 

Cumulative Impacts. Cumulative impact analysis considers the impacts of all mineral resource 

factors in the vicinity of the project. The proposed project, together with other projects, would not 

contribute to significant cumulative impacts on mineral resources in the surrounding area. The project 

site is not designated as an area containing known mineral resources nor are the areas adjacent to the 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

103 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 63 

project site designated as areas containing known mineral resources. No portion of the City is 

designated as a mineral extraction area; therefore, implementation of the proposed revised would not 

result in a cumulative impact pertaining to the loss of known mineral resources within the City. 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant cumulative 

environmental impacts pertaining to mineral resources. 

3.10.4 Findings Related to Mineral Resources 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts related to 

mineral resources, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to mineral resources that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was certified, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact related to mineral resources requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to mineral resources identified in and considered by the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

3.10.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with mineral 

resources. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

104 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

64 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.11 NOISE 

3.11.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please refer to Section 5.11 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing 

environmental setting for Noise. The primary existing noise sources in the project area are 

transportation facilities. Traffic on Santa Fe Drive, Nardo Road, Bonita Drive, Melba Road, and other 

local streets is the dominant source contributing to area ambient noise levels in the project vicinity. 

Noise generated from vehicles on I-5 are also audible in the project area. Noise from motor vehicles 

is generated by engine vibration, interaction between tires and the road, and exhaust systems. Other 

non-dominant sources of noise associated with the project area include noise generated at the campus 

parking lots.  

 

 

3.11.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please see Section 5.11 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analyses of the potential effects of the 2002 

CMP related to Noise. The analysis in that section is intended to satisfy the requirements for a 

project-specific noise impact analysis by examining the short-term and long-term impacts of the 2002 

CMP on sensitive uses in the project area and the noise impacts on the project site from surrounding 

areas by evaluating the impacts and effectiveness of mitigation measures incorporated as part of 

project design. The noise analysis is based on the San Dieguito High School Academy Master Plan 

Project Focused Environmental Noise Assessment
1
, prepared for the project. 

 

The City of Encinitas has various noise criteria contained within the City’s General Plan Noise 

Element. The City’s General Plan Noise Policy 1.1 states that if a project would cause an increase in 

the traffic noise level by more than 5 decibels (dB), and the resulting Day-Night Equivalent Level 

(Ldn) would be over 55 dB, then mitigation measures must be evaluated.. If the project would increase 

the traffic noise levels by 3dB or more and the resulting Ldn would exceed 60 dB in outdoor use areas 

in residential developments, then noise mitigation must be evaluated.  

 

In addition to the City’s Noise Element criteria, the City has adopted performance standards 

contained within Chapter 30.40 of the City’s Municipal Code to control excessive noise generated in 

the City. Noise limits are in terms of one-hour average sound level. The allowable noise limits depend 

upon the City’s zoning designation and time of day. The project site is zoned P/SP while the adjacent 

properties are zoned Residential. More specifically, properties to the south of the campus are zoned 

R8 (single-family detached; minimum lot size of 5,400 sf; maximum density of 8 units per acre), 

properties to the north are zoned R3 (single-family detached; minimum lot size of 14,500 sf; 

maximum density of 3 units per acre) and properties to the west are zoned R11 (variety of residential 

within coastal area ranging from single-family detached units, single-family attached units [e.g.,  

condominiums, townhouses, and senior housing]; minimum lot size of 3,950 sf; maximum density of 

11 units per acre). The noise criteria for R3 and R8 zoned uses are 50 dB average sound level in any 

one hour between the hours of 7 a.m. and 10 p.m. and 45 dB average sound level in any one hour 

between the hours of 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. The noise criteria for R11 zoned uses are 55 dB average 

                                                      
1  San Dieguito High School Academy Master Plan Project Focused Environmental Noise Assessment, Dudek and 

Associates, April 23, 2003. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

105 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 65 

sound level in any one hour between the hours of 7 a.m. and 10 p.m. and 50 dB average sound level 

in any one hour between the hours of 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. 

 

Noise generated by construction equipment is regulated by Chapter 09.32, Section 410 of the City’s 

Municipal Code. This section states that it is unlawful for any person to operate construction 

equipment at any construction site on Mondays through Saturdays except between the hours of 7 a.m. 

and 7 p.m. It further states that construction activity that does occur on Mondays through Saturdays, 

between the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m., shall not be operated in excess of 75 dB for more than 8 hours 

in any 24 hour period.  

 

Although the SDUHSD, as a distinct jurisdictional entity, would normally not be subject to the City’s 

noise control ordinance, the State’s land use and noise compatibility guidelines and the criteria in the 

City of Encinitas’ Noise Element of the General Plan and Municipal Code are the most tangible 

points of reference for determining potential impacts and for recommending any necessary mitigation 

measures. Therefore, the adopted 2003 IS/MND used the following threshold to assess the 

significance of potential noise impacts: 

 

• Exposure of persons to, or generation of, noise levels in excess of standards established in the 

local General Plan or Noise Ordinance or applicable standards of other agencies. 

 
Noise measurements were conducted along Santa Fe Drive and Bonita Drive adjacent to the project 

site to determine the existing noise level. Noise measurements were conducted on March 25, 2003. 

The results of the noise measurements and corresponding traffic counts are identified in Table 1 of 

the Noise Assessment. The existing traffic volume, as identified in the project’s Traffic Study, was 

approximately 15,340 average daily trips (ADT) along Santa Fe Drive and 2,200 ADT along Bonita 

Drive. The existing noise levels are approximately 68 dB Ldn at the monitoring location along Santa 

Fe Drive and approximately 66 dB Ldn at the monitoring location along Bonita Drive. The 66 dB Ldn 

along Bonita Drive assumes that approximately 60 buses are used daily to pick-up students and an 

additional 44 off-site buses fill up with gasoline at the site.  

 

Short-term noise impacts would be associated with demolition, excavation, grading, and the erection 

of buildings on site during project construction. Construction-related short-term noise levels would be 

higher than existing ambient noise levels in the project area at the present time, but would no longer 

occur once construction of the project was complete. The 2003 IS/MND identified that the closest 

residences to the project site are located along Nardo Road, Bonita Drive, and Melba Road. Based on 

an assumption that construction activities would occur over an 8-hour period in a day, construction 

noise generated at these residences would result in an average noise level ranging from 60 – 70 dB. 

This level of construction noise would not exceed the City’s established noise threshold of 75 dB over 

an 8-hour period
1
 at any property developed and used for residential purposes. Construction activity 

would be restricted to the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. on Monday through Saturday, per the City’s 

Municipal Code. 

 

Noise associated with parking lot activities would include doors opening and closing, starting of 

engines, and the sound of vehicles entering and exiting the parking areas. Based on an assumption 

that all parking spaces are occupied, the one-hour average noise level would be approximately 43 dB 

                                                      
1  Chapter 09.32, Section 410 City of Encinitas Municipal Code, City of Encinitas,  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

106 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

66 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

along the adjacent residential property boundary west of Nardo Road and approximately 42 dB at the 

property boundary along the south side of Santa Fe Drive. These noise levels would not exceed the 

City’s noise ordinance criteria for the adjacent residential land uses.  

 

The noise analysis conducted for the 2002 CMP also considered the construction and operation of a 

Purchasing and Receiving Department proposed under the 2002 CMP. The noise analysis concluded 

that the construction and operation (including project-related traffic noise increases on local roads) of 

the proposed Purchasing and Receiving Department would not exceed the established noise criteria of 

the City. Impacts were determined to be less than significant with no mitigation required.  

 

As identified in the Noise Assessment, implementation of the proposed 2002 CMP would generate a 

total of 120 ADT as a result of construction and operation of the Purchasing and Receiving building. 

Approximately 90 ADT would occur along Santa Fe Drive west of the campus, 20 ADT would occur 

along Bonita Drive east of the campus, and 10 ADT would occur along Melba Road north of the 

campus. When compared to the existing noise levels, project-related noise levels would increase by 

less than on dB Ldn along all adjacent roadways. This increase in noise level would not exceed the 

City’s noise criteria.  

 

Vibration refers to groundborne noise and perceptible motion. Groundborne vibration is almost 

exclusively a concern inside buildings and is rarely perceived as a problem outdoors, where the 

motion may be discernible. Typical sources of groundborne vibration are construction activities (e.g., 

blasting, pile driving, and operating heavy-duty earthmoving equipment), steel-wheeled trains, and 

occasional traffic on rough roads. The proposed project would not require the use of blasting or pile 

driving; however, heavy-duty earthmoving equipment would be used during the construction phase of 

the project. The level of vibration would not be excessive or permanent, nor would it exceed the level 

at which building damage typically occurs. Impacts from construction-related groundborne vibration 

were considered to be less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

 

As discussed above, ambient noise levels in the project vicinity would increase as a result of 

implementation of the project. However, the expected increase in noise levels would not exceed 

standards established by the City. Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

The project is not located in the vicinity of a public airport or private airport. No airport-related noise 

impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.  

 

 

3.11.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

As described in Chapter 2.0, the proposed revised CMP includes demolition of existing buildings, 

construction of new buildings, and improvements to facilities approved as part of the 2002 CMP. 

Please see Chapter 2.0 for more information regarding the proposed revised CMP. 

 

Similar to the discussion in the 2003 IS/MND, short-term noise impacts would be associated with 

demolition, excavation, grading, and the erection of buildings on site during project construction. 

Construction-related short-term noise levels would be higher than existing ambient noise levels in the 

project area at the present time, but would no longer occur once construction of the project was 

complete. The 2003 IS/MND identified that the closest residences to the project site are located along 

Nardo Road, Bonita Drive, and Melba Road. These residences are still in place and are located at 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

107 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 67 

similar distances as analyzed in the 2003 IS/MND. Based on an assumption that construction 

activities would occur over an 8-hour period in a day, construction noise generated at these residences 

would result in an average noise level ranging from 60 – 70 dB. This level of construction noise 

would not exceed the City’s established noise threshold of 75 dB over an 8-hour period
1
 at any 

property developed and used for residential purposes. Construction activity would be restricted to the 

hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. on Monday through Saturday, per the City’s Municipal Code. 

 

Noise associated with parking lot activities would include doors opening and closing, starting of 

engines, and the sound of vehicles entering and exiting the parking areas. Based on an assumption 

that all parking spaces are occupied, the one-hour average noise level would be approximately 43 dB 

along the adjacent residential property boundary west of Nardo Road and approximately 42 dB at the 

property boundary along the south side of Santa Fe Drive. These noise levels would not exceed the 

City’s noise ordinance criteria for the adjacent residential land uses.  

 

The proposed Purchasing and Receiving Department was never constructed and the revised CMP no 

longer includes the Purchasing and Receiving Department. Thus impacts related to noise generated 

from the construction and operation of the Purchasing and Receiving Department would not occur 

under the revised CMP. No new trips would be generated with implementation of the revised CMP as 

no new trip-generating uses are proposed and the campus’ existing capacity would not change. No 

impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.  

 

Because the proposed revised CMP would not introduce any new uses to the site as compared to the 

2002 CMP, noise levels generated by campus operations would not exceed the City’s noise standards.  

 

Implementation of the revised CMP would not require the use of blasting or pile driving; however, 

heavy-duty earthmoving equipment would be used during the construction phase of the project. The 

level of vibration would not be excessive or permanent, nor would it exceed the level at which 

building damage typically occurs. Impacts from construction-related groundborne vibration are 

considered to be less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

 

As discussed above, ambient noise levels in the project vicinity would increase as a result of 

implementation of the project. However, the expected increase in noise levels would not exceed 

standards established by the City. Impacts are less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

In consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental impacts related to 

noise. 

 

 

Cumulative Impacts. The cumulative area for noise impacts is the City of Encinitas. Implementation 

of the CMP would result in the introduction of new noise sources and levels from on-site activities 

and from increased traffic volumes on vicinity roadway and freeways. Construction crew commutes 

and the transport of construction equipment, and materials to the project site would incrementally 

increase noise levels on access roads leading to the site. Secondary sources of noise would include 

noise generated during excavation, grading, and building erection on the project site. Although it is 

                                                      
1  Chapter 09.32, Section 410 City of Encinitas Municipal Code, City of Encinitas,  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

108 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

68 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

not possible to predict if contiguous properties may be constructed at the same time and create 

cumulative noise impacts that would be greater than if developed at separate times, it is unlikely that 

adjacent properties will be developed at the same time as the project site. However, in the unlikely 

event that adjacent properties are developed at the same time as the proposed project, adherence to the 

City’s Municipal Code provisions that regulate construction activities and other development 

standards would render the cumulative impacts of the proposed project to less than significant levels. 

 

 

 

3.11.4 Findings Related to Noise 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to Noise, 

nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to Noise that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND.  

 

 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact to Noise requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to Noise identified in and considered by the adopted 2003 

IS?MND. 

 

 

3.11.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with Noise.  

 

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

109 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 69 

3.12 POPULATION AND HOUSING 

3.12.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please see Section 5.12 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing environmental 

setting related to Population and Housing. The 2002 CMP did not result in a population increase or 

the creation of new housing; therefore, no impacts to population and housing were identified. 

Currently, no housing is located within the project limits and there is no long-term population present 

within the project limits. 

 

 

3.12.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please refer to Section 5.12 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analyses of the potential effects of the 

2002 CMP related to Population and Housing.  

 

The improvements proposed under the 2002 CMP would not result in an increase in student capacity. 

The 2003 IS/MND concluded that there are no homes or businesses proposed as part of the 2002 

CMP and no new infrastructure (including extension of roadways) is proposed that would potential 

result in population growth. No impact would occur and no mitigation is required.  

 

As identified in the 2003 IS/MND, no existing housing is located within the project limits. 

Improvements to the campus proposed under the 2002 CMP would occur entirely within the existing 

campus site. No housing will be displaced with implementation of the proposed project. No 

replacement housing would be required with implementation of the proposed project. The 2003 

IS/MND determined that no impacts related to Population and Housing would occur with 

implementation of the 2002 CMP and no mitigation is required.  

 

 

3.12.3 Analysis of Project Changes  

As previously identified, the proposed revised CMP focuses on facilities that support campus 

activities and proposed demolition of 59,476 sf and construction of 118,153 sf, which is more than 

what was proposed in the 2002 CMP. After implementation of the revised CMP, there would be 

approximately 104,163 sf on the campus. The proposed modifications to the CMP would not change 

proposed land uses. All the buildings on campus are and would continue to be educational and 

educational support facilities.  

 

The analysis presented in the 2003 IS/MND identified that improvements proposed under the 2002 

CMP would not result in an increase in student capacity and also concluded that there are no homes 

or businesses proposed as part of the 2002 CMP and no new infrastructure (including extension of 

roadways) is proposed that would potential result in population growth. Similarly, implementation of 

the proposed revised CMP would not result in an increase in student capacity. The revised CMP does 

not propose the construction of homes or businesses or new infrastructure that would potentially 

result in a substantial level of population growth. Similar to the conclusion presented in the 2003 

IS/MND, no impact would occur and no mitigation is required.  

 

No existing housing is located within the project limits. Improvements to the campus proposed under 

the revised CMP would occur entirely within the existing campus site. No housing will be displaced 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

110 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

70 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

with implementation of the proposed project. No replacement housing would be required with 

implementation of the proposed project. Similar to the conclusions presented in the 2003 IS/MND, no 

impacts related to Population and Housing would occur with implementation of the revised CMP and 

no mitigation is required.  

 

 

Cumulative Impacts. The cumulative area for the discussion of population and housing impacts is 

the City of Encinitas. The project would not contribute to substantial population growth and therefore 

would not result in an increased demand on the current or future housing in the region. The proposed 

project would also not significantly induce growth into areas where growth was not previously 

anticipated. Cumulative impacts relating to population and housing are less than significant and no 

mitigation is required.  

 

 

3.12.4 Findings Related to Population and Housing 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to 

Population and Housing, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to Population and Housing that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND.  

 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact to Population and Housing requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to Population and Housing identified in and considered by 

the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

 

3.12.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with Population and 

Housing.  

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

111 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 71 

 

3.13 PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES 

3.13.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please see Section 5.13 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing environmental 

setting related to Public Services and Facilities. The information contained in that section is based on 

information obtained from SDUHSD. Public facilities, including public schools and libraries, are not 

addressed in the certified 2003 IS/MND. The 2002 CMP did not result in a population increase or the 

creation of new housing; therefore, no impacts to schools or libraries were expected.  

 

The project site is currently provided services by the City of Encinitas Fire Department for fire 

protection and the San Diego County Sheriff’s Department for law enforcement services. The project 

site is located in an urbanized area where public services and facilities are readily available. 

 

 

3.13.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please refer to Section 5.13 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for analyses of the potential effects of the 

2002 CMP related to public services and facilities.  

 

Fire Protection. The 2002 CMP was required to comply with all City of Encinitas Fire Department 

access requirements and California Fire Code (Fire Code) requirements. The 2002 CMP did not 

include the construction of new residential units that would generate additional population in the area. 

As noted in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, because the proposed project would not result in an increase 

in student capacity or expansion of school activities or operation beyond the existing project limits, 

no new additional fire protection services or facilities would be required. Fire protection services are 

already provided to the campus and implementation of the CMP would not result in a significant 

increase in the demand for fire protection services above current levels. Impacts were determined to 

be less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

Law Enforcement. The 2002 CMP did not include the construction of new residential units that 

would generate additional population in the area. Similar to the discussion above for fire protection 

services, because the proposed project would not result in an increase in student capacity or 

expansion of school activities or operation beyond the existing project limits, no new additional 

police protection services or facilities would be required. Police protection services are already 

provided to the campus and implementation of the CMP would not result in a significant increase in 

the demand for police protection services above current levels. Impacts were determined to be less 

than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

Schools. As previously identified, the 2002 CMP did not include the construction of new residential 

units that would generate additional population in the area. Improvements proposed under the 2002 

CMP would not result in a decrease in student capacity or temporary displacement of any students to 

nearby schools during implementation of the CMP. Thus the construction of new school facilities 

would not be required to accommodate implementation of the CMP. No impacts would occur and no 

mitigation is required.  

 

Parks. As previously identified, the 2002 CMP did not include the construction of new residential 

units that would generate additional population in the area. Implementation of the proposed project 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

112 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

72 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

would not affect existing parks within the project vicinity as the project would not generate an 

increase in population. Thus the construction of new parks would not be required to accommodate the 

implementation of the CMP. No impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.   

 

Other Public Facilities. The 2003 adopted IS/MND noted that all construction, maintenance, 

management, and liability of the proposed project would be the responsibility of the SDUHSD. The 

need for additional facilities would not be required as the existing additional facilities are already 

provided to students at the campus. The 2002 CMP did not include the construction of new residential 

units that would generate additional population in the area and implementation of the CMP would not 

change the existing student capacity. As a result, no additional demands on outside public facilities 

would occur. No impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.  

 

 

3.13.3 Analysis of Project Changes  

The proposed modifications to the FMP would not change the proposed land uses. All the buildings 

on campus are and would continue to be educational and educational support facilities.  

 

The analysis presented in the 2003 IS/MND identified that implementation of the project would not 

substantially affect the provision of fire protection, police protection, schools, parks, and other public 

facilities necessitating the construction of new or expanded facilities to accommodate the project. 

Similarly, the proposed revised CMP would not increase demand on City of Encinitas public services 

beyond their capacity, nor would the project result in an increase in population that would result in 

increased demand for public services and facilities. There would be an incremental decrease in 

building square footages as a result from implementation of the revised CMP. Therefore, the analysis 

provided in the 2003 IS/MND is the most conservative analysis. Implementation of the revised CMP 

is not expected to increase demand to a level necessitating the construction of new or expanded public 

service and utility facilities as excess capacity already exists. Therefore, there are no adverse impacts 

related to existing public services and facilities, and no mitigation is required. 

 

 

Cumulative Impacts. Fire Departments generally anticipate cumulative demand in order to plan for 

overall service. Therefore, the Fire Department’s determination that adequate service can be provided 

includes consideration of area demand in light of cumulative planned or anticipated projects. The 

proposed changes identified in the revised CMP will not generate a significant cumulative increase in 

demand for fire protection and emergency medical services. 

 

The need for additional police protection services associated with cumulative growth will be 

addressed through the annual budgeting process when budget adjustments may be made to meet 

changes in service demand. Therefore, the combined cumulative impact associated with the changes 

identified in the revised CMP is considered less than significant. 

 

The proposed changes noted in the revised CMP are not expected to have a significant impact on the 

provision of other public facilities, including schools, parks and other public facilities in the County 

of San Diego or the area surrounding the project site. Any increase that does result from 

implementation of the proposed project would be incidental and not cumulatively considerable 

because the analysis above demonstrates that public facilities would not be adversely impacted by the 

proposed project. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

113 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 73 

 

 

3.13.4 Findings Related to Public Services and Facilities  

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to Public 

Services and Facilities, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to Public Services and Facilities that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND.  

 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact to Public Services and Facilities requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to Public Services and Facilities identified in and 

considered by the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

 

3.13.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with Public Services 

and Facilities.  

 

 

3.14 RECREATION 

3.14.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

The project site is within an existing urban area and consists of 32 acres of existing Public/Semi-

Public uses (e.g., high school campus). Recreational facilities currently developed on the SDA 

campus include: a gymnasium, baseball/softball fields, and a track and field facility.  

 

The closest City or County-operated recreation facilities to the project site include:  

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

114 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

74 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

1. Oakcrest County Park: located northeast of the SDA campus, with a children’s play area, picnic 

facilities, restrooms, bocce courts, horseshoe courts, and restrooms 

2. Ada Harris Park: located south of the SDA campus, with a large grassy area and soccer 

facilities 

3. Encinitas Community Park: currently under construction, located southwest of the SDA 

campus, proposed facilities include a skate park, dog park, soccer field, three multi-use fields 

(two baseball and one softball) and restrooms  

 
 

3.14.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please see Section 5.14 of the adopted IS/MND for an analysis of the potential effects of the 2002 

CMP related to Recreation. That section provides the recreational setting of the project site, including 

surrounding recreation facilities and an analysis of potential impacts that implementation of the 2002 

CMP implementation could have on existing recreation facilities. 

 
The 2002 CMP evaluated in the adopted IS/MND proposed to construct new track and field areas, a 

new concession stand, and modernization of the existing gymnasium and shower/locker facilities. 

These proposed improvements would not result in a loss of athletic fields or other recreation facilities 

on-site or off-site. As a result, it is not expected that neighborhood or regional parks would be 

negatively impacted. Public use of the on-site athletic fields would be allowed at certain times, 

through a joint use agreement between SDUHSD and the City. Compliance with the requirement 

specified in the existing joint use agreement will ensure that potential impacts to the existing 

SDUHSD facilities used by the City are less than significant. 

 

As previously identified, implementation of the CMP would not generate an increase in population as 

no housing is proposed. Furthermore, no change to the existing capacity of the campus would result 

from project implementation. Thus, no additional demand on existing recreational facilities is 

expected to occur with project implementation. Project impacts to recreational facilities in the project 

vicinity would not occur, and no mitigation is required. 

 

The recreational facilities proposed under the CMP are not anticipated to have an adverse physical 

effect on the environment or surrounding land uses. Recreational facilities proposed in the 2002 CMP 

may affect existing disturbed habitat or ornamental vegetation. No existing high quality natural areas 

would be affected by implementation of the proposed project. No impact would occur and no 

mitigation is required.  

 

 

3.14.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The proposed revised CMP includes the construction of new basketball courts and baseball/softball 

fields in place of these existing facilities on-site. The proposed revised CMP also includes the 

construction of new track and field areas, but no longer includes the modernization of the existing 

gymnasium and shower/locker facilities. Instead, the revised CMP now proposes the construction of a 

new Gymnasium and Locker Complex which is proposed as a 46,700 sf facility in place of the 

existing gymnasium and shower/locker facilities building. The recreation components of the CMP are 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

115 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 75 

intended to enhance existing recreation facilities. Please see Chapter 2.0 for more information 

regarding the proposed revised CMP. 

 

The proposed revised CMP would not increase demand on City of Encinitas recreational services or 

facilities beyond their capacity, nor would the project result in an increase in population that would 

result in increased use of existing City parks or other recreation facilities. In addition, the proposed 

project would not preclude the use of any existing recreation facilities in the project vicinity. 

Therefore, there are no adverse impacts related to existing off-site parks and recreation facilities, and 

no mitigation is required. 

 

The effects of the revised CMP are similar to those evaluated in the certified 2003 IS/MND. 

Significant impacts related to the construction of recreation facilities are not anticipated, and no 

mitigation is necessary. In addition, no potentially significant impacts related to existing recreation 

resources were identified for the CMP analyzed in the certified 2003 IS/MND or for the proposed 

revised CMP.  

 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and will not result in any new significant environmental 

impacts. 

 

 

Cumulative Impacts. Cumulative impact analysis considers the impacts of all park and recreation 

factors in the vicinity of the project. The proposed project, together with other projects, would not 

contribute to significant cumulative impacts on parks and recreation facilities in the surrounding area. 

There would be no increase in residential population associated with the proposed revised CMP; thus, 

no permanent increase in needed recreational facilities would be associated with the project. The 

planned recreational facilities in the revised CMP are intended to serve the educational needs of the 

existing SDA students. Implementation of the proposed revised CMP would not result in a 

cumulative impact to existing recreation facilities in the City of Encinitas. Therefore, in consideration 

of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the adopted IS/MND 

and would not result in any new significant cumulative environmental impacts. 

 

 

3.14.4 Findings Related to Recreation 

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to 

Recreation, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to Recreation that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND.  

 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

116 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

76 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact to Recreation requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to Recreation identified in and considered by the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. 

 

 

3.14.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with Recreation.  

 

 

3.15 TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION 

3.15.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please refer to Section 5.15 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for a summary of the existing 

environmental setting related to Traffic and Circulation. The SDA campus is located in an urbanized 

area in the central portion of the City of Encinitas. The SDA campus encompasses approximately 32 

acres and is located approximately 1.5 miles east of the Pacific Ocean and 3.0 miles north of San 

Elijo Lagoon. I-5 is located approximately one-half mile west of the SDA campus. The existing 

campus is bordered by Nardo Road on the west, Santa Fe Drive on the south, Bonita Drive on the 

east, and Melba Road on the north.  

 

 

3.15.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please refer to Section 5.15 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for an analysis of the potential effects of the 

2002 CMP related to Traffic and Circulation.  

 

The project’s Traffic Study identified that a total of 120 average daily trips (ADT) would be 

generated as a result of construction of the proposed Purchasing and Receiving Department and that a 

level of service (LOS) of “C” or better would occur at the intersections and roadways adjacent to the 

SDA campus. The construction of the proposed Purchasing and Receiving Department would not 

increase traffic levels above acceptable City standards (i.e., LOS “D” or below). The Traffic Study 

also concluded that the expansion of the parking lots would not generate new traffic on adjacent 

roadways.  

 

During construction, traffic would be generated by construction crews and equipment/material 

deliveries. Construction traffic would primarily utilize Santa Fe Drive, Bonita Drive, and Nardo 

Road. No roads were proposed for closure during construction. It is expected that construction-related 

traffic would not create a substantial impact on traffic volumes or change traffic patterns on local 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

117 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 77 

roadways; however, delays, hazards and congestion may still result to some degree; therefore, the 

project proposed the following Project Design Feature: 

 

• Prior to construction, a traffic control plan will be developed by SDUHSD in accordance with 

the City of Encinitas traffic control guidelines and will specifically address construction 

traffic during periods of supply delivery or heavy equipment transport. The traffic control 

plan will address construction traffic at the intersection of Santa Fe Drive/Nardo Road and 

Santa Fe Drive/Bonita Drive, and will specify access and traffic safety requirements during 

hours of operation of the school. The traffic control plan will include signage and flagmen 

when necessary to allow heavy equipment transport along residential and local streets, and 

will also include parking and laydown areas for construction equipment and construction 

worker vehicles.  

 

Incorporation of the Project Design Feature described above would minimize construction-related 

impacts, as well as inadequate emergency access, to a level below significance.  

 

As previously identified, there are no public or private airports in the vicinity of the SDA campus. As 

such, the project would not result in a change in air traffic patterns. No impact would occur and no 

mitigation is required.  

 

As noted above, the 2002 CMP proposed the construction of a Purchasing and Receiving Department 

at the southeast corner of the property. Based on field observations conducted as part of the project’s 

Traffic Study, a number of students are picked up and dropped off along Bonita Drive. With the 

addition of delivery trucks traveling along Bonita Drive to access the Purchasing and Receiving 

Department, a potential safety hazard to students may exist with the increased truck traffic. Therefore, 

the following Project Design Feature was incorporated into the proposed project: 

 

• Deliveries will be restricted during the peak morning (7:30 a.m. – 8:00 a.m.) and peak 

afternoon (3:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.) hours of school traffic. 

• Truck access will be prohibited from the north on Bonita Drive. 

 

Incorporation of the Project Design Feature described above would minimize potential design hazard 

impacts to a level below significance.  

 

As identified in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, the site design includes expansion of existing parking lots 

to increase the number of parking spaces located on-site to accommodate all faculty, staff, student, 

and visitor needs. As a result, off-site parking is not expected to be required and parking capacity 

would exist at the SDA campus. No impact would occur and no mitigation is required. 

 

As identified in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, adequate areas located on-site would be developed to 

accommodate turnouts for school buses. Additionally, alternative forms of transportation such as 

bicycle racks shall be included in the project design. No impacts to adopted policies, plans or 

programs supporting alternative transportation would occur as a result of the proposed project.  

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

118 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

78 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.15.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The trip generation and distribution used to evaluate the CMP in the adopted 2003 IS/MND was 

based on the development of the proposed 10,000 sf Purchasing and Receiving Department. The 

Purchasing and Receiving Department was never constructed and the proposed revised CMP no 

longer includes the Purchasing and Receiving Department. At the time of the analysis, it was 

determined that the construction of the Purchasing and Receiving Department was the only 

component of the proposed 2002 CMP that would result in project-related operational traffic as the 

implementation of the CMP would not generate any additional population growth nor would it 

increase existing student capacity at the SDA campus. Therefore, because the proposed revised CMP 

would not result in the construction of any long-term traffic generating land uses, no impacts related 

to long-term traffic impacts would occur and no mitigation is required.  

 

The proposed revised CMP is proposed as a phased project. Implementation of the proposed project is 

expected to occur over the course of 5 phases for a duration of 5 years and 5 months which is 

summarized below: 

 

• Phase 1A: Interim Housing Phase; duration of 11 weeks; 

• Phase 1B: Math and Science Building Phase; duration of 58 weeks; 

• Phase 2: English and Art Building Phase; duration of 80 weeks; 

• Phase 3A: Gym and Field A Phase; duration of 77 weeks; and,  

• Phase 3B: Field B Phase; duration of 21 weeks. 

 

To evaluate a worst-case construction scenario, the phase with the highest level of average daily 

traffic (ADT) was utilized as it reflects the highest likely levels of daily construction traffic. The 

phase with the highest ADT is Phase 2 which is projected to result in approximately 366 vehicles, or 

approximately 672 passenger car equivalents (PCEs). Passenger car equivalents allow the typical 

“real-world” mix of vehicle types to be represented as a single, standardized unit, such as the 

passenger car, to be used for the purposes of capacity and level of service analyses. PCE factors are 

applied to heavy trucks (large two-axles, three-axles, 4+-axles). For reference, the Traffic Study 

prepared for the 2002 CMP identified that in the year 2000 Santa Fe Drive, between Regal Road and 

Nardo Road, had an ADT of approximately 14,340 vehicles; Santa Fe Drive, between Nardo Road 

and Bonita Drive, had an ADT of approximately 15,340 vehicles; and Bonita Drive, between Melba 

Road and Santa Fe Drive, had an ADT of approximately 2,200. By comparison, the addition of 

approximately 366 vehicles associated with the worst-case construction scenario represents only 2.5 

percent of the total ADT along Santa Fe Drive between Regal Road and Nardo Road; 2.4 percent of 

the total ADT along Santa Fe Drive between Nardo Road and Bonita Drive; and 16 percent of the 

total ADT along Bonita Drive between Melba Road and Santa Fe Drive. This level of additional 

construction-related traffic is not expected to exceed the City’s LOS standards for roadway 

operations. This comparison is based on the ADT identified for the year 2000 and likely 

underestimates the existing ADTs along these roadway segments given that development has 

occurred in the project vicinity since the 2002 CMP. Thus the percentages identified above are overly 

conservative and are likely lower than what is identified. 

 

To reduce temporary traffic impacts associated with construction traffic, development of a 

construction area traffic management plan is included as a Project Design Feature, identical to the 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

119 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 79 

Project Design Feature identified above for implementation of the 2002 CMP. With implementation 

of the Project Design Feature described above, construction traffic impacts to the local circulation 

system would ensure that construction-traffic related impacts as well as emergency access impacts 

would remain less than significant. The proposed revised CMP would not result in new or more 

severe impacts related to construction traffic. 

 

The revised CMP proposed to increase on-site parking from 493 spaces to approximately 558 spaces 

through the addition of a new parking adjacent to the new Art, English, and Social Science 

Building/Adult Education Center. Additional components include improvements to existing 

walkways and ramps. Off-site parking is not expected to be required and parking capacity would exist 

at the SDA campus. No impact would occur and no mitigation is required.  

 

As previously identified, there are no public or private airports in the vicinity of the SDA campus. As 

such, the project would not result in a change in air traffic patterns. No impact would occur and no 

mitigation is required.  

 

As noted above, the 2002 CMP proposed the construction of a Purchasing and Receiving Department 

at the southeast corner of the property which may potentially result in design hazard impacts. The 

proposed revised CMP no longer includes this component; therefore, there would be no impacts 

related to design hazards.  

 

As identified in the adopted 2003 IS/MND, adequate areas located on-site would be developed to 

accommodate turnouts for school buses. Additionally, alternative forms of transportation such as 

bicycle racks shall be included in the project design. Similarly, implementation of the proposed 

revised CMP would also include areas for school bus turnouts as well as the provision of bicycle 

racks on the campus. No impacts to adopted policies, plans or programs supporting alternative 

transportation would occur as a result of the proposed project.  

 

Therefore, in consideration of all of the above, the changes to the CMP do not require any major 

changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant environmental 

impacts related to transportation and circulation. 

 

 

Cumulative Impacts. The Traffic Study for the proposed 2002 CMP evaluated in the IS/MND 

analyzed the existing plus project plus cumulative project scenario. As concluded in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND, the addition of project traffic plus projected cumulative traffic would not result in a 

deficient level of service.  

 

The proposed CMP includes a decrease in building square footage and it does not include an increase 

in projected student enrollment. Furthermore, no new uses are proposed that would generate long-

term traffic. Because the project would not result in the generation of long-term traffic, there would 

be no cumulative impact. The changes to the CMP do not require any major changes to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND and would not result in any new significant cumulative environmental impacts related 

to Traffic and Circulation. 

 

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

120 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

80 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

3.15.4 Findings Related to Traffic and Circulation  

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to Traffic 

and Circulation, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. 

 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 

the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 

pertaining to Traffic and Circulation that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND.  

 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact to Traffic and Circulation requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to Traffic and Circulation identified in and considered by 

the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

 

3.15.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with Traffic and 

Circulation.  

 

 

3.16 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 

3.16.1 Existing Environmental Setting 

Please refer to Section 5.16 for a summary of the existing environmental setting related to Utilities 

and Service Systems utilized in the adopted 2003 IS/MND. The SDA campus is an existing facility 

and currently generates a demand for water, sewer, and solid waste services for which facilities are 

already in place and serve the site. Existing storm water drainage features are provided on-site 

 

 

3.16.2 Adopted 2003 IS/MND 

Please refer to Section 5.16 of the adopted 2003 IS/MND for an analysis of the potential effects of the 

2002 CMP related to Utilities and Service Systems.  

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

121 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 81 

The 2003 IS/MND concluded that implementation of the proposed CMP would have less than 

significant impacts related to wastewater treatment requirements, wastewater and water treatment 

facilities, storm drainage systems, water supply and solid waste systems.  

 

Wastewater. The adopted 2003 IS/MND identified that the construction of the proposed Purchasing 

and Receiving Department would add additional structures and staff to the project site. While 

implementation of the proposed project may result in an incremental increase in wastewater 

generation, the incremental increase would not result in an exceedance of wastewater treatment 

requirements or capacity as there is no increase in student capacity. Project-generated wastewater 

would not exceed the existing capacity of the sewer delivery or wastewater treatment system and 

would not require the construction of new sewer delivery facilities. Impacts were determined to be 

less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

 
Storm Drains. The adopted 2003 IS/MND identified that improvements to existing storm drain 

facilities would occur within the project limits. The improvements consisted of new plumbing fixtures 

and upgrades to existing drainage systems. The proposed improvements would not result in 

significant environmental effects as a result of these improvements. Impacts were determined to be 

less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

Water. The adopted 2003 IS/MND identified that the construction of the proposed Purchasing and 

Receiving Department would add additional structures and staff to the project site. There would be an 

incremental increase in demand for water; however, this incremental increase in water was not 

considered to require expanded entitlements. It was determined that the campus would be adequately 

served by existing resources. No new water facilities would be required. Impacts were determined to 

be less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

Solid Waste. The adopted 2003 IS/MND identified that the construction of the proposed Purchasing 

and Receiving Department would add structures and staff which would create an incremental increase 

in solid waste generation. It was determined that the incremental increase in solid waste generation 

would not exceed capacity at receiving landfills. Project implementation would be required to comply 

with all federal, state, and local statutes and regulations relating to solid waste. Impacts were 

determined to be less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

 

3.16.3 Analysis of Project Changes 

The proposed modifications to the CMP would not change proposed land uses. All the buildings on 

campus are and would continue to be educational and educational support facilities. No increase in 

student capacity would result from implementation of the CMP. 

 

As described above, the analysis presented in the 2003 IS/MND identified that additional wastewater 

generation, solid waste generation, and water demand were a result of the construction and operation 

of the proposed Purchasing and Receiving Department. The proposed revised CMP does not include 

the proposed Purchasing and Receiving Department, and the structure was never built. There are no 

new uses proposed under the revised CMP that would result in additional wastewater generation, 

solid waste generation, and water demand; therefore, implementation of the proposed revised CMP 

would not result in a significant impact associated with these issues.  

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

122 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

82 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

As identified above, improvements to existing storm drain facilities would also occur within the 

project limits under the revised CMP. The proposed improvements would be designed and 

constructed per City of Encinitas Public Works standards and the construction of these facilities 

would not result in significant environmental effects as they are existing facilities on the site. Impacts 

are less than significant and no mitigation is required.  

 

 

Cumulative Impacts. The cumulative impact area for Utilities and Service Systems is the City of 

Encinitas. As concluded above, implementation of the CMP would not result in the addition of new 

uses that would generate additional demand for water, or result in additional wastewater or solid 

waste generation. Storm drain facilities would be improved within the project limits and would adhere 

to City Public Works standards. Student capacity would not increase at the campus and no significant 

cumulative impacts related to Utilities and Service Systems is expected to occur.  

 

 

3.16.4 Findings Related to Utilities and Service Systems  

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 

information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 

2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to Utilities 

and Service Systems, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major EIR Revisions. There is no 

information in the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in 

circumstances pertaining to Utilities and Service Systems that would require major changes to the 

adopted 2003 IS/MND.  

 

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 

Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 

information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 

that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 

analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 

significant impact to Utilities and Service Systems requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 

are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 

one or more significant impacts pertaining to Utilities and Service Systems identified in and 

considered by the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

 

 

3.16.5 Mitigation Measures 

The 2003 IS/MND did not recommend mitigation measures as no significant impacts were identified. 

Based on the proposed modifications to CMP, the 2003 IS/MND was reviewed to determine whether 

or not changes to the project would affect the mitigation measures contained therein. Given the 

analysis and information provided above, no changes to the analysis found in the 2003 IS/MND are 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

123 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 83 

required. Therefore, no mitigation measures are required for impacts associated with Utilities and 

Service Systems.  

 

 

3.17 GREENHOUSE GASES 

Global climate change (GCC) is the observed increase in the average temperature of the Earth’s 

atmosphere and oceans along with other significant changes in climate (such as precipitation or wind) 

that last for an extended period of time. The term “global climate change” is often used 

interchangeably with the term “global warming,” but “global climate change” is preferred to “global 

warming” because it helps convey that there are other changes in addition to rising temperatures. 

The prevailing scientific opinion on climate change is that “most of the warming observed over the 

last 50 years is attributable to human activities.”
1
 Increased amounts of carbon dioxide (CO2) and 

other greenhouse gases (GHGs) are the primary causes of the human-induced component of warming. 

The observed warming effect associated with the presence of GHGs in the atmosphere (from either 

natural or human sources) is often referred to as the greenhouse effect.
2
 

GHGs are present in the atmosphere naturally, are released by natural sources, or are formed from 

secondary reactions taking place in the atmosphere. The gases that are widely seen as the principal 

contributors to human-induced GCC are:
3
 

• CO2 

• Methane (CH4) 

• Nitrous oxide (N2O) 

• Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) 

• Perfluorocarbons (PFCs) 

• Sulfur hexafluoride (SF6) 

In June 2005, Governor Schwarzenegger established California’s GHG emissions reduction targets in 

Executive Order (EO) S-3-05. The EO established the following goals for the State of California: 

GHG emissions were to be reduced to 2000 levels by 2010; GHG emissions should be reduced to 

1990 levels by 2020; and GHG emissions should be reduced to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 

2050. 

                                                      
1  Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), Climate Change 2007: Working Group I: The Physical Science 

Basis. http://www.ipcc.ch/publications_and_data/ar4/wg1/en/contents.html. Accessed June 17,2013. 
2  The temperature on Earth is regulated by a system commonly known as the “greenhouse effect.” Just as the glass in a 

greenhouse lets heat from sunlight in and reduces the amount of heat that escapes, greenhouse gases like carbon 

dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide in the atmosphere keep the Earth at a relatively even temperature. Without the 

greenhouse effect, the Earth would be a frozen globe; thus, although an excess of greenhouse gas results in global 

warming, the naturally occurring greenhouse effect is necessary to keep our planet at a comfortable temperature.  
3  The greenhouse gases listed are consistent with the definition in AB 32 (Government Code 38505), as discussed later in 

this section. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

124 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

84 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

California’s major initiative for reducing GHG emissions is outlined in Assembly Bill (AB) 32, the 

“Global Warming Solutions Act,” passed by the California State legislature on August 31, 2006. 

AB 32 requires the California Air Resources Board (ARB) to:  

• Establish a statewide GHG emissions cap for 2020, based on 1990 emissions, by January 1, 2008;  

• Adopt mandatory reporting rules for significant sources of GHG emissions by January 1, 2008;  

• Adopt an emissions reduction plan by January 1, 2009, indicating how emissions reductions will 

be achieved via regulations, market mechanisms, and other actions; and 

• Adopt regulations to achieve the maximum technologically feasible and cost-effective reduction 

of GHGs by January 1, 2011. 

To assist public agencies in the mitigation of GHG emissions or analyzing the effects of GHGs under 

CEQA, including the effects associated with transportation and energy consumption, Senate Bill 

(SB) 97 (Chapter 185, 2007) required the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) to 

develop CEQA guidelines on how to minimize and mitigate a project’s GHG emissions. OPR was 

required to prepare, develop, and transmit these guidelines on or before July 1, 2009, and the 

Resources Agency was required to certify and adopt them by January 1, 2010. On January 8, 2009, 

OPR released preliminary draft amendments to the State CEQA Guidelines. The Natural Resources 

Agency adopted the CEQA Guidelines Amendments and transmitted them to the Office of 

Administrative Law (OAL) on December 31, 2009. On February 16, 2010, the OAL approved the 

Amendments and filed them with the Secretary of State for inclusion in the California Code of 

Regulations. The Amendments became effective on March 18, 2010. The Amendments encourage 

Lead Agencies to consider many factors in conducting a CEQA analysis, but preserve the discretion 

granted by CEQA to Lead Agencies in making their determinations.  

There are several unique challenges to analyzing GCC under CEQA, largely because of its “global” 

nature. Typical CEQA analyses address local actions that have local, or at most, regional effects, 

whereas GCC presents the considerable challenge of analyzing the relationship between emissions 

from an individual project and emissions from activities spread all over the planet with the potential 

for impacts that are by definition, global. Most environmental impact analyses examine the “project-

specific” impacts that a particular project is likely to generate. With regard to GCC, however, it is 

generally accepted that the magnitude of GCC effects is so substantial and the contribution of an 

individual project to the climate so extremely miniscule that direct significant adverse impacts (albeit 

not necessarily cumulative significant adverse impacts) would be highly unlikely. 

The issue of GHG emissions and GCC is also fundamentally different from any other area of air 

quality impact analyses, which are all linked to some region or area in which the impact is significant. 

Instead, a GCC analysis must be conducted on a global level, rather than the typical local or regional 

setting, and requires consideration of not only emissions from the project under consideration, but 

also the extent of the displacement, translocation, and redistribution of emissions. In that context, air 

quality is linked to a particular location or area, and it is appropriate to consider the creation of new 

emissions in that area to be an environmental impact whether or not the emissions are truly “new” 

emissions to the overall globe. In fact, the approval of a new development plan or project does not 

necessarily create new automobile drivers, the primary source of a land use project’s emissions, 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

125 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 85 

Rather, new land use projects merely redistribute existing mobile emissions;
1
 accordingly, the use of 

models that measure overall emissions increases without accounting for existing emissions will 

substantially overstate the impact of the development project on global climate. Overstating the 

impacts can lead to a misallocation of resources in seeking solutions to GHG emissions substantially 

different from other air quality impacts, where the “addition” of redistributed emissions to a new 

locale can make a substantial difference to overall air quality.  

Nevertheless, the Office of Planning and Research (OPR) published a recommended approach for 

GHG analyses in June 2008: (1) identify and quantify GHG emissions, (2) assess the significance of 

the impact on GCC, and (3) if significant, identify alternatives and/or mitigation measures to reduce 

the impact below a level of significance.
2 
The June 2008 OPR guidance provides some additional 

direction regarding planning documents as follows:  

CEQA can be a more effective tool for GHG emissions analysis and mitigation if it is supported 

and supplemented by sound development policies and practices that will reduce GHG emissions 

on a broad planning scale and that can provide the basis for a programmatic approach to project-

specific CEQA analysis and mitigation. For local government Lead Agencies, adoption of 

General Plan policies and certification of General Plan Environmental Impact Reports (EIRs) that 

analyze broad jurisdiction-wide impacts of GHG emissions can be part of an effective strategy for 

addressing cumulative impacts and for streamlining later project-specific CEQA reviews. 

Preliminary guidance from OPR
3
 and recent letters from the Attorney General

4
 critical of CEQA 

documents that have taken different approaches indicate that Lead Agencies should calculate, or 

estimate, project-related emissions from vehicular traffic, energy consumption, water conveyance and 

treatment, waste generation, and construction activities. In addition, SCAQMD recommends that 

direct, indirect, and, if available, life cycle emissions during project construction and operation be 

calculated. Therefore, GHG emissions have been calculated in this section for the proposed project. 

It must be noted that there is great disagreement within the scientific community on any given 

approach. This Addendum cannot, and need not, under CEQA, review every report from an expert or 

agency, especially since new reports are released on an almost daily basis. The preparation of this 

Addendum did include review of multiple key advisories, comment letters, and white papers from 

experts, agencies, and groups such as the Climate Action Team, the California Attorney General, the 

California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Association (CAPCOA), ARB, SCAQMD, the Center for 

Biological Diversity, the Sierra Club, and the California Chapter of the American Planning 

Association. Some of these reports urge “zero emissions” thresholds, while others advocate against 

them. Others evaluate multiple thresholds, such as SCAQMD’s Tiered GHG Threshold (explained 

below). 

                                                      
1  For example, a subdivision of 500 homes generates approximately 3,000 new trips per day; those trips would be added 

to the local streets and intersections and could have local traffic, air quality, and other environmental impacts. In the 

case of GCC, the trips that are associated with those same 500 homes presumably emit roughly the same volume of 

GHGs as they would if they were traveling the same miles at any other location. As a result, a methodology which 

assumes that raw vehicle trip counts occurring within a project area will accurately predict change in global climate 

conditions as reliably as they will predict congestion at intersections is seriously flawed.  
2  State of California, 2008. Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. CEQA and Climate Change: Addressing 

Climate Change Through California Environmental Quality Act Review. June 18. 
3  Office of Planning and Research (OPR), Technical Advisory  on CEQA and Climate Change, June 19, 2008. 
4  California Department of Justice website, http://oag.ca.gov/environment/ceqa/letters, accessed February 5, 2013. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

126 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

86 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.4 states:  

(a) The determination of the significance of greenhouse gas emissions calls for a careful 

judgment by the lead agency consistent with the provisions in section 15064. A lead 

agency should make a good-faith effort, based on available information, to describe, 

calculate or estimate the amount of greenhouse gas emissions resulting from a project. A 

lead agency shall have discretion to determine, in the context of a particular project, 

whether to: 

(1) Use a model or methodology to quantify greenhouse gas emissions resulting from a 

project, and which model or methodology to use. The lead agency has discretion to 

select the model it considers most appropriate provided it supports its decision with 

substantial evidence. The lead agency should explain the limitations of the particular 

model or methodology selected for use; or 

(2) Rely on a qualitative analysis or performance based standards. 

(b) A lead agency may consider the following when assessing the significance of impacts 

from greenhouse gas emissions on the environment: 

(1) The extent to which the project may increase or reduce greenhouse gas emissions as 

compared to the existing environmental setting. 

(2) Whether the project emissions exceed a threshold of significance that the lead agency 

determines applies to the project. 

(3) The extent to which the project complies with regulations or requirements adopted to 

implement a statewide, regional, or local plan for the reduction or mitigation of 

greenhouse gas emissions. Such regulations or requirements must be adopted by the 

relevant public agency through a public review process and must include specific 

requirements that reduce or mitigate the project’s incremental contribution of 

greenhouse gas emissions. If there is substantial evidence that the possible effects of 

a particular project are still cumulatively considerable notwithstanding compliance 

with the adopted regulations or requirements, an EIR must be prepared for the 

project. 

State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064(b) provides that the “determination of whether a project may 

have a significant effect on the environment calls for careful judgment on the part of the public 

agency involved, based to the extent possible on scientific and factual data,” and further states that an 

“ironclad definition of significant effect is not always possible because the significance of an activity 

may vary with the setting.”  

As such, currently neither the CEQA statutes, OPR guidelines, nor the State CEQA Guidelines 

prescribe specific quantitative thresholds of significance or a particular methodology for performing 

an impact analysis. As with most environmental topics, significance criteria are left to the judgment 

and discretion of the Lead Agency. 

The recommended approach for GHG analysis included in the Governor’s OPR June 2008 Technical 

Advisory (TA) is to: (1) identify and quantify GHG emissions, (2) assess the significance of the 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

127 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 87 

impact on climate change, and (3) if significant, identify alternatives and/or mitigation measures to 

reduce the impact below significance.
1
  

While some policy makers and regulators suggest that a zero emissions threshold would be 

appropriate when evaluating GHGs and their potential effect on climate change, such a rule appears 

inconsistent with the State’s approach to mitigation of climate change impacts. AB 32 does not 

prohibit all new GHG emissions; rather, it requires a reduction in statewide emissions to a given 

level. Thus, AB 32 recognizes that GHG emissions will continue to occur and that increases will 

result from certain activities, but that emissions reductions must be achieved overall. Moreover, if all 

economic development were to cease, the State would very likely be unable to fund the very measures 

that are needed to combat climate change.  

As part of the process of developing the State CEQA Guidelines pertaining to GHG emissions 

analysis, OPR asked ARB technical staff to recommend statewide interim thresholds of significance 

for GHGs. The ARB released a preliminary draft staff proposal in October 2008 that included initial 

suggestions for significance criteria related to industrial, commercial, and residential projects. 

Although the ARB anticipated adopting the significance criteria in 2009 to allow coordination with 

OPR’s efforts on GCC, no formal announcement of adoption has been made.
2
 While in draft form, the 

ARB’s Recommended Approaches for Setting Interim Thresholds for Greenhouse Gases Under the 

California Environmental Quality Act does provide some assistance to the District in evaluating 

whether this project would impede the State’s mandatory requirements under AB 32 to reduce 

statewide GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020.  

The Guidance does not specifically identify high school development or master plan projects, but 

does generally describe three classes of common projects: industrial, commercial, and residential 

projects. For each type of project, the Guidance recommends that a two-pronged threshold be 

employed, one performance-based and one numerical. For performance standards, the draft guidance 

suggests that operation and construction of the project be evaluated for their consistency with 

applicable performance standards contained in plans designed to reduce GHG emissions and/or help 

meet the State’s emission reduction objectives in AB 32. The Guidance contains two numerical 

standards that will guide the SDUSHD’s analysis of the impacts of this project to a degree. First, the 

Guidance states that some residential and commercial projects, emitting 1,600 metric tons of carbon 

dioxide equivalent (CO2e) per year or less, would clearly not interfere with achieving the State’s 

emission reduction objectives in AB 32 (and EO S-03-05) and thus may be deemed categorically 

exempt from CEQA. The Guidance does not state or imply that projects emitting more than 1,600 

metric tons of CO2e per year will necessarily result in a significant impact, although at this point the 

Guidance has no precise numerical threshold for commercial and residential projects. For industrial 

projects, the Guidance proposes that projects that emit less than 7,000 metric tons of CO2e per year 

may be considered less than significant, recognizing that AB 32 will continue to reduce or mitigate 

emissions from these sorts of projects over time. 

                                                      
1  State of California, 2008. Governor’s OPR. CEQA and Climate Change: Addressing Climate Change Through 

California Environmental Quality Act Review. June 19. 
2 California, State of, 2008. California ARB. Preliminary Draft Staff Proposal: Recommended Approaches for Setting 

Interim Thresholds for Greenhouse Gases Under the California Environmental Quality Act. October 24. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

128 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

88 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Addendum analyzes whether the emissions in the proposed revised CMP should be considered 

significant. It is important to note that analysis of greenhouse gas emissions was not required at the 

time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted. 

A project may result in a significant GCC impact if it would impede achievement of the State’s 

mandatory requirement under AB 32 to reduce statewide GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020. To 

determine whether the project would impede achievement of the State’s mandatory requirement under 

AB 32 to reduce statewide GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020, the analysis relies on the draft 

significance criteria proposed by the ARB. 

Until appropriate regulatory entities develop CEQA thresholds for GHGs for projects emitting more 

than 1,600 metric tons of CO2e per year, interim standards based on the existing draft significance 

criteria proposed by ARB should be applied. For residential and commercial projects, the project’s 

consistency with State policies and strategies designed to meet the State’s emission reduction 

objectives in AB 32,
1
 will be evaluated, and the project emissions will also be evaluated numerically. 

Until further guidance is provided by the State or other appropriate expert agencies, the State’s 

proposed threshold for industrial projects, which is 7,000 metric tons of CO2e per year, will be 

applied. 

Until more guidance is provided from the expert agencies, for the purposes of the analysis of the 

proposed project, SDUHSD considers emissions of 1,600 metric tons of CO2e per year or less to be 

less than significant. If the project exceeds the screening threshold of 1,600 metric tons of CO2e per 

year, the proposed project will be considered to have a significant impact if it either (1) is not 

substantially consistent with policies and standards set out in federal, State, and local plans designed 

to reduce GHG emissions, or (2) would emit more than 7,000 metric tons of CO2e per year. 

Therefore, if the project is not substantially consistent with policies and standards set out in federal, 

State, and local plans designed to reduce GHG emissions and would emit more than 7,000 metric tons 

of CO2e per year, it would be considered to have significant impacts under this threshold, and thus 

could be expected to impede the State’s mandatory requirement under AB 32 to reduce statewide 

GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020. It is recognized that this standard is interim and will likely 

change over time as further guidance is provided by the expert regulatory agencies. 

For the purpose of this technical analysis, the concept of CO2e is used to describe how much global 

warming a given type and amount of GHG may cause, using the functionally equivalent amount or 

concentration of CO2 as the reference. Individual GHGs have varying global warming potentials and 

atmospheric lifetimes. The CO2e is a consistent methodology for comparing GHG emissions since it 

normalizes various GHG to the same metric. The reference gas is CO2, which has a global warming 

potential equal to 1. 

The equation below provides the basic calculation required to determine CO2e from the total mass of 

a given GHG using the global warming potentials published by the Intergovernmental Panel on 

Climate Change (IPCC). 

                                                      
1 These interim standards are consistent with the general guidance on cumulative impacts analysis. For instance, Section 

15064(h)(3) of the proposed amendment to the CEQA Guidelines states that a Lead Agency may determine that a 

project’s incremental contribution to a cumulative effect is not cumulatively considerable if the project will comply 

with the requirements in a plan or regulation that apply to the project that is specified in law or adopted by the public 

agency and has specific requirements to reduce the emissions of GHG. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

129 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 89 

Tonnes (Metric Tons) of CO2e = Tonnes (Metric Tons) of GHG × GWP 

Where: CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent 

 GHG = greenhouse gas 

 GWP = global warming potential 

This method was used to evaluate GHG emissions during construction and operation of the proposed 

project. For this analysis only, CO2, CH4, and N2O are considered. This is due to the relatively large 

contribution of these gases in comparison to other GHGs produced during the project construction 

and operation phases. 

The GHG emission estimates were calculated using CalEEMod which stands for “California 

Emissions Estimator Model,” and is an air quality modeling program that estimates air pollution 

emissions in lbs/day or tons per year for various land uses, area sources, construction projects, and 

project operations. Mitigation measures can also be specified to analyze the effects of mitigation on 

project emissions. CalEEMod estimates a project’s CO2, N2O, and CH4 emissions from area and 

mobile sources, energy and water consumption, and waste generation.  

An individual project cannot generate enough GHG emissions to significantly influence climate 

change, but individual projects can incrementally contribute toward the potential for the cumulative 

emissions driving GCC. This analysis analyzes whether the project’s contributions combined with 

emissions from all other past, present, and probable future projects contribute toward the potential for 

GCC on a cumulative basis and whether the project’s contribution to the impact is “cumulatively 

considerable.” 

Construction and operation of the proposed revised CMP would generate GHG emissions, with the 

majority of energy consumption (and associated generation of GHG emissions) occurring during the 

project’s operation (as opposed to its construction). Typically, more than 80 percent of the total 

energy consumption takes place during the use of buildings, and less than 20 percent is consumed 

during construction.
1
 

Overall, the following activities associated with the proposed project could directly or indirectly 

contribute to the generation of GHG emissions: 

• Removal of Vegetation: The removal of vegetation for construction results in a loss of the CO 

sequestration in plants. However, planting of additional vegetation would result in additional CO 

sequestration and would reduce the GHG emissions of the project.  

• Construction Activities: During construction of the project, GHGs would be emitted through the 

operation of construction equipment and from worker and builder supply vendor vehicles, each of 

which typically uses fossil-based fuels to operate. The combustion of fossil-based fuels creates 

GHGs such as CO2, CH4, and N2O.  

• Gas, Electricity, and Water Use: Natural gas use results in the emissions of two GHGs: CH4 

(the major component of natural gas) and CO2 (from the combustion of natural gas). Electricity 

use can result in GHG production if the electricity is generated by combusting fossil fuel. 

                                                      
1  United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP), 2007. Buildings and Climate Change: Status, Challenges and 

Opportunities, Paris, France. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

130 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

90 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

California’s water conveyance system is energy-intensive. Approximately one-fifth of the 

electricity and one-third of the nonpower plant natural gas consumed in California are associated 

with water delivery, treatment, and use.
1
 

• Solid Waste Disposal: Solid waste generated by the project could contribute to GHG emissions 

in a variety of ways. Landfilling and other methods of disposal use energy for transporting and 

managing the waste, and they produce additional GHGs to varying degrees. Landfilling, the most 

common waste management practice, results in the release of CH4 from the anaerobic 

decomposition of organic materials. CH4 is 25 times more potent a GHG than CO2. However, 

landfill CH4 can also be a source of energy. In addition, many materials in landfills do not 

decompose fully, and the carbon that remains is sequestered in the landfill and not released into 

the atmosphere. 

• Motor Vehicle Use: Transportation associated with the proposed project would result in GHG 

emissions from fuel combustion in daily automobile and truck trips. CO2 is the most significant 

GHG emitted by vehicles, but lesser amounts of CH4 and N2O are also emitted in vehicle exhaust. 

Construction GHG Emissions. GHG emissions associated with the revised CMP would occur over 

the short term from construction activities, consisting primarily of emissions from equipment exhaust. 

As discussed below, there would also be long-term regional emissions associated with project-related 

vehicular trips and stationary source emissions such as natural gas used for heating. The calculation 

presented below includes construction emissions in terms of CO2 and annual CO2e GHG emissions 

from increased energy consumption, water usage, and solid waste disposal, as well as estimated GHG 

emissions from vehicular traffic that would result from implementation of the project.  

GHG emissions generated construction of the proposed project would predominantly consist of CO2. 

In comparison to criteria air pollutants such as ozone (O3) and PM10, CO2 emissions persist in the 

atmosphere for a substantially longer period of time. While emissions of other GHGs such as CH4 are 

important with respect to GCC, emission levels of other GHGs are less dependent on the land use and 

circulation patterns associated with the proposed land use development project than are levels of CO2.  

Construction activities produce combustion emissions from various sources such as site grading, 

utility engines, on-site heavy-duty construction vehicles, equipment hauling materials to and from the 

site, asphalt paving, and motor vehicles transporting the construction crew. Exhaust emissions from 

on-site construction activities would vary daily as construction activity levels change. Although the 

2002 CMP was proposed as a phased project, to evaluate a worst-case construction scenario it was 

assumed that the FMP analyzed in the certified EIR would be built in a single 18-month phase 

wherein all projects would be implemented consecutively, with some construction overlapping. 

Because this scenario includes overlapping construction periods, it reflects the highest likely levels of 

daily construction emissions. The demolition and construction of the buildings proposed in the 

revised 2011 FMP would require additional grading and construction time. However, it is anticipated 

that the same level of construction intensity would occur under the extended construction duration.  

                                                      
1  California ARB, 2010. Economic Sectors Portal. Website: www.arb.ca.gov/cc/ghgsectors/ghgsectors.htm. Accessed 

June 19, 2013. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

131 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 91 

When the IS/MND was prepared in 2003, the analysis of global climate impacts was not considered 

to be a necessary component of CEQA documents. Since adoption of the 2003 IS/MND, only a few 

buildings have been constructed on the campus. A calculation of the GHG emissions from 

construction of the project as described in the revised CMP was performed using CalEEMod and is 

shown in Table 3.12.A. The calculations provided in Table 3.12.A amortize the construction 

emissions over a 30 year period. Details of the emission factors and other assumptions are included in 

Appendix C. 

As noted in Table 3.12.A, construction emissions would be below the screening threshold of 1,600 

metric tons of CO2e per year, and project construction would be considered to have a less than 

significant impact related to GHG emissions and would not impede or interfere with achieving the 

State’s emission reduction objectives in AB 32 (and EO S-03-05). No mitigation is required. 

Table 3.12.A: Revised CMP Annual Regional Construction Emissions 

Construction Phase 

Total Regional Pollutant Emissions, mt/yr 

CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e 

Phase 1A1: Interim Housing Site Prep 23 0.00673 0 24 

Phase 1A2: Interim Housing Construction 149 0.02529 0 149 

Phase 1A3: Interim Housing Paving 13 0.00362 0 14 

Phase 1B1: Math & Science Demolition 25 0.00617 0 25 

Phase 1B3: Math & Science Construction 508 0.08553 0 510 

Phase 1B2: Math & Science Site Prep 54 0.01571 0 55 

Phase 1B4: Math & Science Architectural Coating 22 0.00223 0 22 

Phase 1B5: Math & Science Paving/Landscape 42 0.01139 0 42 

Phase 2a: English & Art Demolition 46 0.01119 0 46 

Phase 2b: English & Art Site Prep 55 0.0162 0 56 

Phase 2c: English & Art Construction 276 0.04589 0 277 

Phase 2d: English & Art Architectural Coating 347 0.05745 0 348 

Phase 3A1: Gym & Field Demolition 29 0.00754 0 29 

Phase 3A2: Gym & Field Site Prep 54 0.01619 0 54 

Phase 3A3: Gym & Field Construction 265 0.04369 0 266 

Phase 3A4: Gym & Field Architectural Coating 447 0.0737 0 449 

Phase 3B1: Field B Demolition 25 0.00185 0 25 

Phase 3B2: Field B Site Prep 13 0.0035 0 13 

Phase 3A5: Gym & Field Landscape/Hardscape 38 0.01176 0 38 

Phase 3B3: Field B Landscape/Hardscape 39 0.01134 0 39 

Source: LSA Associates, Inc., June 2014. 

 CH4 = methane 

CO2 = carbon dioxide 

CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent 

mt/yr = metric tons per year 

N2O = nitrous oxide 

Operational GHG Emissions. Long-term operation of the proposed project would generate GHG 

emissions from area and mobile sources and indirect emissions from stationary sources associated 

with energy consumption. Mobile-source emissions of GHGs would include project-generated vehicle 

trips associated with on-site facilities and customers/employees/deliveries to the project site. The trip 

generation and distribution used to evaluate the 2002 CMP in the adopted 2003 IS/MND was based 

on a projected student capacity of 1,628 students and assumes no increase in capacity. The proposed 

revised CMP projects that SDA would also have a student capacity of 1,628 students and assumes no 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

132 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

92 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

increase in capacity. Area-source emissions would be associated with activities such as landscaping 

and maintenance of proposed land uses, natural gas for heating, and other sources. Increases in 

stationary source emissions would also occur at off-site utility providers as a result of demand for 

electricity, natural gas, and water by the proposed uses. 

When the IS/MND was prepared in 2003, the analysis of global climate impacts was not considered 

to be a necessary component of CEQA documents. Thus, a calculation of the operational GHG 

emissions from the project as described in the 2002 CMP was performed using the CalEEMod model 

and is shown in Table 3.12.B. A calculation of the operational GHG emissions from the project as 

described in the revised CMP was performed using the CalEEMod model and is shown in Table 

3.12.C. 

Details of the emission factors and other assumptions are included in Appendix C. Table 3.12.B 

shows that project operations from implementation of the 2002 CMP would result in average annual 

emissions of 3,500 metric tons of CO2e per year. It is anticipated that since the revised CMP would 

generate less GHG emissions due to a reduction in projected long-term traffic and changes in overall 

vehicle fleet mix (i.e., the 2012 fleet has an increased percentage of newer vehicles that meet more 

stringent emissions standards, and therefore has reduced GHG  emissions overall). Table 3.12.C 

shows that project operations from implementation of the revised CMP would result in average 

annual emissions of 3,300 metric tons of CO2e per year. 

Due to the global nature of this phenomenon and the scale of emissions, total emissions are expressed 

in units of teragrams (a trillion [10
12

] grams or 1 million metric tons [MMT]) per year (Tg/year). This 

is the standard metric unit used worldwide. Forecast emissions calculated for the project indicate that 

the project, during operation, would exceed the screening threshold of 1,600 metric tons of CO2e per 

year but would not exceed the interim numerical standard of 7,000 metric tons of CO2e per year. 

Table 3.12.B: 2002 CMP Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Category 

Pollutant Emissions, MT/year 

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e 

Area 0 0.029 0.029 0.00009 0 0.031 

Energy 0 560 560 0.021 0.0055 560 

Mobile 0 2,700 2,700 0.13 0 2,700 

Waste 62 0 62 3.7 0 140 

Water 2.9 110 110 0.3 0.0079 120 

Total Project Emissions 65 3,400 3,400 4.2 0.013 3,500 

Source: LSA Associates, Inc., June 2014. 

Note: Numbers in table may not appear to add up correctly due to rounding of all numbers to two significant digits. 

Bio-CO2 = biologically generated CO2 

CH4 = methane 

CO2 = carbon dioxide 

CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent 

MT/year = metric tons per year 

N2O = nitrous oxide 

NBio-CO2 = non-biologically generated CO2 

 

Table 3.12.C: Revised CMP Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Category 

Pollutant Emissions, MT/year 

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e 

Area 0 0.029 0.029 0.00008 0 0.031 

Energy 0 490 490 0.018 0.0048 490 

Mobile 0 2,600 2,600 0.12 0 2,600 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

133 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 93 

Table 3.12.C: Revised CMP Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Category 

Pollutant Emissions, MT/year 

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e 

Waste 60 0 60 3.6 0 140 

Water 2.3 97 100 0.24 0.0063 110 

Total Project Emissions 62 3,200 3,300 4.0 0.011 3,300 

Source: LSA Associates, Inc., June 2014. 

Note: Numbers in table may not appear to add up correctly due to rounding of all numbers to two significant digits. 

Bio-CO2 = biologically generated CO2 

CH4 = methane 

CO2 = carbon dioxide 

CO2e = carbon dioxide equivalent 

MT/year = metric tons per year 

N2O = nitrous oxide 

NBio-CO2 = non-biologically generated CO2 

Summary. The proposed revised CMP would generate less than the 3,500 metric tons of CO2e per 

year of new emissions identified for the 2002 CMP. The emissions from solid waste disposal and 

water/energy consumption would comprise approximately 23 percent of the 2002 CMP’s total CO2e 

emissions. The emissions from vehicle exhaust would comprise approximately 77 percent of the 

project’s total CO2e emissions. Tailpipe emission controls are within the jurisdiction of the State and 

federal governments and are outside the control of the SDUHSD.  

The remaining CO2e emissions are primarily associated with building heating systems and electricity 

generation. The proposed revised CMP would comply with existing State and federal regulations 

regarding the energy efficiency of buildings, appliances, and lighting, which would reduce the 

proposed revised CMP’s electricity demand. The new buildings constructed in accordance with 

current energy efficiency standards would be more energy efficient than older buildings.  

At present, there is a federal ban on chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs); therefore, it is assumed the 

proposed revised CMP would not generate emissions of CFCs. The proposed revised CMP may emit 

a small amount of HFC emissions from leakage and service of refrigeration and air conditioning 

equipment and from disposal at the end of the life of the equipment. However, the details regarding 

refrigerants to be used in the project site are unknown at this time. PFCs and SF6 are typically used in 

industrial applications, none of which would be used on site. Therefore, it is not anticipated that the 

proposed revised CMP would contribute significant emissions of these additional GHGs. 

As stated above, forecast emissions indicate that the 2002 CMP and revised CMP, during operation, 

would exceed the screening threshold of 1,600 metric tons of CO2e per year, but not the interim 

numerical standard of 7,000 metric tons of CO2e per year. Although the proposed 2002 CMP and 

revised CMP would exceed the secondary thresholds, it is also necessary to analyze whether the 

approved 2002 CMP and the proposed revised CMP would be substantially consistent with policies 

and standards set out in federal, State, and local plans designed to reduce GHG emissions. 

The California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) Climate Action Team (CAT) and ARB 

have developed several reports to achieve the Governor’s GHG targets that rely on voluntary actions 

of California businesses, local government and community groups and State incentive and regulatory 

programs. These include the CAT 2006 “Report to Governor Schwarzenegger and the Legislature,” 

ARB’s 2007 “Expanded List of Early Action Measures to Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions in 

California,” and ARB’s “Climate Change Proposed Scoping Plan: a Framework for Change.” 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

134 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

94 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

The reports identify strategies to reduce California’s emissions to the levels proposed in EO S-3-05 

and AB 32 that are applicable to the proposed project. The proposed Scoping Plan is the most recent 

document, and the strategies included in the Scoping Plan that apply to the project can be found in 

Table 3.12.D. Table 3.12.D also summarizes the extent to which the approved 2002 CMP and the 

proposed revised CMP would comply with the strategies to help California reach the emission 

reduction targets. 

The strategies listed in Table 3.12.D are addressed as either part of the approved 2002 CMP or the 

proposed revised CMP, Project Design Features, or requirements under local or State ordinances. 

Implementation of these strategies/measures would ensure that the approved 2002 CMP and the 

proposed revised CMP would not conflict with or impede the implementation of reduction goals 

identified in AB 32, the Governor’s EO S-3-05, and other strategies to help reduce GHGs to the level 

proposed by the Governor. Many of the individual elements of this measure are already included as 

part of the proposed revised CMP or are required as part of project-specific Project Design Features. 

GHG emissions are not confined to a particular air basin but are dispersed worldwide. Consequently, 

it is speculative to determine how project-related GHG emissions would contribute to GCC and how 

GCC may impact the State. Project-related GHG emissions are not project-specific impacts to global 

warming, but are instead the project’s contribution to this cumulative impact. Therefore, the proposed 

revised CMP’s contribution to cumulative GHG emissions would be less than significant, and the 

project would not result in a new significant impact not previously disclosed in the adopted 2003 

IS/MND. 

Table 3.12.D: Project Consistency with Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies 

Strategy Project Compliance 

Energy Efficiency Measures 

Energy Efficiency. Maximize energy efficiency 

building and appliance standards, and pursue additional 

efficiency efforts including new technologies, and new 

policy and implementation mechanisms. Pursue 

comparable investment in energy efficiency from all 

retail providers of electricity in California (including 

both investor-owned and publicly owned utilities). 

Renewables Portfolio Standard. Achieve a 33 percent 

renewable energy mix statewide. 

Green Building Strategy. Expand the use of green 

building practices to reduce the carbon footprint of 

California’s new and existing inventory of buildings. 

Consistent. The proposed project would be required 

to comply with the updated Title 24 standards for 

building construction, including those contained in 

the California Green Building Code. In addition, the 

proposed revised CMP includes several 

modernization efforts to existing structures which 

would substantially reduce energy usage on the 

campus. It is estimated that the modernization 

efforts would reduce the campus electrical 

consumption and demand. 

Water Conservation and Efficiency Measures 

Water Use Efficiency. Continue efficiency programs 

and use cleaner energy sources to move and treat water. 

Approximately 19 percent of all electricity, 30 percent 

of all natural gas, and 88 million gallons of diesel are 

used to convey, treat, distribute and use water and 

wastewater. Increasing the efficiency of water transport 

and reducing water use would reduce GHG emissions. 

Consistent. The proposed revised CMP would 

incorporate water-efficient plumbing fixtures and 

water-efficient landscaping.  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

135 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 95 

Table 3.12.D: Project Consistency with Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies 

Strategy Project Compliance 

Solid Waste Reduction Measures 

Increase Waste Diversion, Composting, and 

Commercial Recycling, and Move Toward Zero-

Waste. Increase waste diversion from landfills beyond 

the 50 percent mandate to provide for additional 

recovery of recyclable materials. Composting and 

commercial recycling could have substantial GHG 

reduction benefits. In the long term, zero-waste policies 

that would require manufacturers to design products to 

be fully recyclable may be necessary.  

Consistent. The Integrated Waste Management Act 

of 1989 required that every city and county in 

California implement programs to recycle, reduce 

refuse at the source, and compost waste to achieve a 

50 percent reduction in solid waste being taken to 

landfills. In order to assist in maintaining this goal, 

the SDUHSD incorporated storage and collection of 

recyclable materials into the project design and to 

include provisions for the collection of recyclables 

in refuse collection contracts. In addition, SDUHSD 

already has facilities in place to facilitate the 

collection and proper transportation of recyclable 

materials. 

Transportation and Motor Vehicle Measures 

Vehicle Climate Change Standards. AB 1493 (Pavley) 

required the State to develop and adopt regulations 

that achieve the maximum feasible and cost-effective 

reduction of GHG emissions from passenger vehicles 

and light duty trucks. Regulations were adopted by ARB 

in September 2004. 

Light-Duty Vehicle Efficiency Measures. Implement 

additional measures that could reduce light-duty GHG 

emissions. For example, measures to ensure that tires 

are properly inflated can both reduce GHG emissions 

and improve fuel efficiency. 

Adopt Heavy- and Medium-Duty Fuel and Engine 

Efficiency Measures. Regulations to require retrofits to 

improve the fuel efficiency of heavy-duty trucks that 

could include devices that reduce aerodynamic drag and 

rolling resistance. This measure could also include 

hybridization of and increased engine efficiency of 

vehicles. 

Low Carbon Fuel Standard. ARB identified this 

measure as a Discrete Early Action Measure. This 

measure would reduce the carbon intensity of 

California’s transportation fuels by at least 10 percent 

by 2020. 

Consistent. The project does not involve the 

manufacture, sale, or purchase of vehicles. 

However, vehicles that operate within and access 

the project site are subject to any vehicle and fuel 

standards that ARB adopts. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

136 of 543



 
 
A D D E N D U M  L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .   
S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H O O L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S  J U N E  2 0 1 4  
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T   

 

96 P:\SDU1301\SDU1301A\Addendum\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

Table 3.12.D: Project Consistency with Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies 

Strategy Project Compliance 

Regional Transportation-Related Greenhouse Gas 
Targets. Develop regional GHG emissions reduction 
targets for passenger vehicles. Local governments will 
play a significant role in the regional planning process to 
reach passenger vehicle GHG emissions reduction 
targets. Local governments have the ability to directly 
influence both the siting and design of new residential 
and commercial developments in a way that reduces 
GHGs associated with vehicle travel. 

Consistent. Specific regional emission targets for 
transportation emissions do not directly apply to this 
project; regional GHG reduction target development 
is outside the scope of this project. The project is 
consistent with the applicable General Plan Land 
Use and Zoning designations for the site. 

Measures to Reduce High Global Warming Potential 
Gases. ARB has identified Discrete Early Action 
measures to reduce GHG emissions from the 
refrigerants used in car air conditioners, semiconductor 
manufacturing, and consumer products. ARB has also 
identified potential reduction opportunities for future 
commercial and industrial refrigeration, changing the 
refrigerants used in auto air conditioning systems, and 
ensuring that existing car air conditioning systems do 
not leak.  

Consistent. New commercial air-conditioning 
products used or serviced on site are subject to 
future ARB rules and regulations. 

Source: LSA Associates, Inc., June 2014. 
AB = Assembly Bill ARB = California Air Resources Board 
gal/day = gallons per day GHG = greenhouse gas 

3.17.1 Findings Related to Greenhouse Gases  

No New Significant Effects Requiring Major Revisions. Based on the foregoing analysis and 
information, there is no evidence that project modifications require a major change to the adopted 
2003 IS/MND. The revised CMP will not result in new significant environmental impacts to 
Greenhouse Gases, nor is there a substantial increase in the severity of impacts described in the 
adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

No Substantial Change in Circumstances Requiring Major Revisions. There is no information in 
the record or otherwise available that indicates that there are substantial changes in circumstances 
pertaining to Greenhouse Gases that would require major changes to the adopted 2003 IS/MND.  

No New Information Showing Greater Significant Effects than the Adopted 2003 IS/MND. This 
Addendum has analyzed all available relevant information to determine whether there is new 
information that was not available at the time the 2003 IS/MND was adopted, which would indicate 
that a new significant effect not reported in that document might occur. Based on the information and 
analyses above, there is no substantial new information indicating that there would be a new 
significant impact to Greenhouse Gases requiring major revisions to the adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

137 of 543



 
 
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .  A D D E N D U M   
J U N E  2 0 1 4  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H O O L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S  
 S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

 

P:\SDU1301\SDU1301A\Addendum\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 97 

No New Information Showing Ability to Reduce Significant Effects in Previous IS/MND. There 
are no alternatives to the project or additional mitigation measures that would substantially reduce 
one or more significant impacts pertaining to Greenhouse Gases identified in and considered by the 
adopted 2003 IS/MND. 

3.18 DETERMINATION 

Based on information and analyses in this Addendum and pursuant to Section 15162 of the State 
CEQA Guidelines, the SDUHSD has determined the following: 

1. There are no substantial changes to the project that would require major revisions of the 2003 
IS/MND due to new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in severity of 
impacts identified in the 2003 IS/MND;  

2. Substantial changes have not occurred in the circumstances under which the project is being 
undertaken that will require major revisions to the 2003 IS/MND to disclose new significant 
effects; 

3. There is no new information of substantial importance which was not known at the time the 2003 
IS/MND was adopted, indicating any of the following: 

 the project will have one or more new significant effects not discussed in the adopted 2003 
IS/MND;  

 there are impacts determined to be significant in the 2003 IS/MND that would be 
substantially more severe;  

 there are additional mitigation measures or alternatives to the project that would substantially 
reduce one or more significant effects identified in the 2003 IS/MND; and  

 there are additional mitigation measures or alternatives rejected by the project proponent that 
are considerably different from those analyzed in the 2003 IS/MND that would substantially 
reduce a significant impact identified in that IS/MND. 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

138 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

98 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

139 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

APPENDIX A 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS CHECKLIST 

 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

140 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-1

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS CHECKLIST 

For Projects with Previously Certified/Approved 

Environmental Documents: 

Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

The following checklist takes into consideration the preparation of an environmental document prepared 

at an earlier stage of the proposed project. This checklist evaluates the adequacy of the earlier document 

pursuant to Section 15162 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 

ISSUES & SUPPORTING DATA SOURCES: 

New 

Significant 

Impact 

More Severe 

Impacts 

No Substantial 

Change from 

Previous 

Analysis 

1. AESTHETICS. Would the project:    

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a designated 

public scenic vista?  
   

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including but 

not limited to significant stands of trees, prominent 

rock outcroppings, and historic structures within a 

State or locally designated scenic highway?  

   

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or 

quality of the site and its surroundings?  
   

d) Create a new source of light or glare that would 

substantially and adversely affect day or nighttime 

views of sensitive viewers?  
   

2. AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTRY 

RESOURCES 

In determining whether impacts to agricultural 

resources are significant environmental effects, lead 

agencies may refer to the California Agricultural 

Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) 

prepared by the California Department of 

Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing 

impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining 

whether impacts to forest resources, including 

timberland, are significant environmental effects, 

lead agencies may refer to information compiled by 

the California Department of Forestry and Fire 

Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest 

land, including the Forest and Range Assessment 

Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project, 

and forest carbon measurement methodology 

provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the 

California Air Resources Board. Would the project: 

   

a) Convert Prime Farmland Unique Farmland, or Farmland of 

Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps 

prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 

Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-

agricultural use?  

   

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

141 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-2

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a 

Williamson Act contract?  
   

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, 

forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 

122220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources 

Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 

Production (as defined by Government Code section 

51104(g))?  

   

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land 

to non-forest use?  
   

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, 

due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of 

Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest 

land to non-forest use?  

   

3. AIR QUALITY 

Where available, the significance criteria established 

by the applicable air quality management or air 

pollution control district may be relied upon to make 

the following determinations. Would the project: 

   

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable 

air quality plan?  
   

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially 

to an existing air quality violation?  
   

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any 

criteria pollutant for which the project region is in 

nonattainment under an applicable federal or State ambient 

air quality standard (including releasing emissions that 

exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)?  

   

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 

concentrations?  
   

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of 

people? 
   

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

Would the project: 

   

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through 

habitat modifications, on any species identified as candidate, 

sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, 

policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of 

Fish and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service?  

   

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or 

other sensitive natural community identified in local or 

regional plans, policies, or regulations by the California 

Department of Fish and Game or US Fish and Wildlife 

Service?  

   

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected 

wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 

(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, 

etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological 

interruption, or other means?  

   

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

142 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-3

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native 

resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with 

established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, 

or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?  

   

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting 

biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or 

ordinance?  
   

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat 

Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, 

or other approved local, regional, or state habitat 

conservation plan?  

   

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES 

Would the project: 

   

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 

historical resource as defined in § 15064.5?  
   

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an 

archaeological resources pursuant to § 15064.5?  
   

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological 

resource or site or unique geologic feature?  
   

d) Disturb any human remains, including those intered outside 

of formal cemeteries?  
   

6. GEOLOGY & SOILS 

Would the project: 
   

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse 

effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving 

rupture of a known earthquake fault as delineated on the 

most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map 

issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other 

substantial evidence of a known fault, strong seismic ground 

shaking, or seismic-related ground failure, including 

liquefaction or landslides? 

   

b) Create substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?    

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that 

would become unstable as a result of the project, and 

potentially result in an on- or off-site landslide, lateral 

spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?  

   

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of 

the Uniform Building Code (UBC) (1994), creating 

substantial risks to life or property?  
   

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of 

septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems 

where sewers are not available for the disposal of 

wastewater?  

   

7. HAZARDS & HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Would the project: 
   

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 

through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 

materials? 
   

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

143 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-4

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment 

through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident 

conditions involving the release of hazardous materials 

into the environment?  

   

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely 

hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one 

quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?  
   

d) Be located on a site that is located on a list of hazardous 

materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code 

Section 65962.5 and, as a result, create a significant hazard 

to the public or the environment?  

   

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan, or 

where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles 

of a public airport or public land use airport, would the 

project result in a safety hazard for people residing or 

working in the project area (?  

   

f) For a project in the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 

project result in a safety hazard for people residing or 

working in the project area? 
   

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an 

adopted emergency response plan or emergency 

evacuation plan? 
   

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk or loss or 

injury or death involving wildland fires, including areas 

where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where 

residences are intermixed with wildlands?  

   

8. HYDROLOGY & WATER QUALITY. 
Would the project: 

   

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge 

requirements? 
   

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere 

substantially with groundwater recharge such that there 

would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the 

local groundwater level (e.g., the production rate of 

preexisting nearby wells would drop to a level that would 

not support existing land uses or planned uses for which 

permits have been granted)?  

   

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 

area, including through the alteration of the course of a 

stream or river, in a manner that would result in substantial 

erosion or siltation on or off site?  

   

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 

area, including through the alteration of the course of a 

stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount 

of surface runoff in a manner that would result in flooding 

on or off site? 

   

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the 

capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems 

to provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 
   

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?    

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as 

mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood 

Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?  
   

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

144 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-5

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which 

would impede or redirect flood flows?  
   

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, 

injury, or death involving flooding, including flooding as a 

result of the failure of a levee or dam? 
   

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?    

9. LAND USE & PLANNING 

Would the project: 
   

a) Physically divide an established community?     

b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy, or 

regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project 

(including but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, 

local coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the 

purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?  

   

d) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or 

natural community conservation plan?  
   

10. MINERAL RESOURCES  

Would the project: 
   

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral 

resources that would be of value to the region and the 

residents of the state?  
   

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important 

mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general 

plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?  
   

11. NOISE  

Would the project: 

   

a) Expose persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of 

standards established in the local general plan or noise 

ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?  
   

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive 

groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?  
   

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in 

the project vicinity above levels existing without the 

project? 
   

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient 

noise level in the project vicinity above levels existing 

without the project?  
   

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, 

where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of 

a public airport or public use airport, would the project 

expose people residing or working in the project area to 

excessive noise levels? 

   

f) For a project in the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 

project expose people residing or working in the project area 

to excessive noise levels? 
   

12. POPULATION AND HOUSING 

Would the project: 
   

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

145 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-6

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either 

directly (for example, by proposing new homes and 

businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of 

roads or other infrastructure)? 

   

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, 

necessitating the construction of replacement housing 

elsewhere?  
   

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the 

construction of replacement housing elsewhere? 
   

13. PUBLIC SERVICES 

Would the project result in substantial adverse 

physical impacts associated with the provision of new 

or physically altered governmental facilities, need for 

new or physically altered governmental facilities, the 

construction of which could cause significant 

environmental impact, in order to maintain 

acceptable service ratios, response times or other 

performance objectives for any of the public 

services: 

   

a) Fire protection?    

b) Police protection?     

c) Schools?    

d) Parks?     

e) Other public facilities?     

14. RECREATION 

Would the project: 

   

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional 

parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial 

physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be 

accelerated? 

   

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the 

construction or expansion of recreational facilities which 

might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?  
   

15. TRANSPORTATION & TRAFFIC 

Would the project: 

   

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance, or policy 

establishing measures of effectiveness for the performance 

of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of 

transportation including mass transit and non-motorized 

travel and relevant components of the circulation system, 

including the not limited to intersections, streets, highways 

and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass 

transit?  

   

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management 

program, including, but not limited to level of service 

standards and ravel demand measures, or other standards 

established by the county congestion management agency 

for designated roads or highways? 

   

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

146 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-7

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an 

increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results 

in substantial safety risks? 
   

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., 

sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible 

uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 
   

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?    

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding 

public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise 

decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 
   

16. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 

Would the project: 
   

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 

wastewater treatment facilities, the construction of which 

could cause significant environmental effects? 
   

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 

wastewater treatment facilities, the construction of which 

could cause significant environmental effects? 
   

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water 

drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the 

construction of which could cause significant environmental 

effects? 

   

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project 

from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or 

expanded entitlements needed? 
   

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment 

provider which serves or may serve the project that it has 

adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in 

addition to the provider’s existing commitments? 

   

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to 

accommodate the project’s solid waste disposal needs?    

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statues and regulations 

related to solid waste?    

17. GREENHOUSE GAS EMMISSIONS 

Would the project: 
   

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or 

indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the 

environment? 
   

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation 

adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of 

greenhouse gases? 
   

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 

SIGNIFICANCE 
   

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of 

the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or 

wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop 

below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or 

animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range 

of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate 

important examples of the major periods of California 

history or prehistory? 

   

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

147 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-8

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited 

but cumulatively considerable? (“Cumulatively 

considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project 

are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects 

of past projects, the effects of other current projects, or the 

effects of probable future projects.) 

   

c) Does project have environmental effects that will cause 

substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly 

or indirectly? 

   

 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

148 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     
J U N EJ U N EJ U N EJ U N E     2 0 12 0 12 0 12 0 1 4444     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O LI G H  S C HO O L     D I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C TD I S T R I C T     

    

P:\SDU1301A\Addendum Checklist.doc «06/04/14» A-9

This page intentionally left blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

149 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

APPENDIX B 

CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CALCULATIONS 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

150 of 543



Construction Activities and Schedule Assumptions

Construction Activities
Start Date End Date Duration 

Phase 1A Interim Housing

Hardscape Demolition ‐ if any NA

Hardscape Demolition Debris Haul (if applicable) NA

Site Preparation 7/1/2014 7/16/2014 15

Site Preparation Soil Haul (if applicable) 7/10/2014 7/12/2014 2

Tennis Court Construction 7/15/2014 8/29/2014 45

Interim housing pad/and setup 8/1/2015 8/31/2015 30

Architectural Coating
AC paving/landscaping  8/14/2014 8/28/2014 14

ACBM Abatement 6/15/2014 6/25/2014 10

Phase1B Math & Science

Demo Building/Hardscape 11/20/2014 12/5/2014 15

Demolition Debris Haul (if applicable) 11/20/2014 12/5/2014 15

Site Preparation 2/1/2015 3/11/2015 40

 Site Prep Soil Haul 2/12/2015 2/15/2015 3

Concrete (This is not a continuous 90 days.  Concrete will 
be poured intermittently in this 90 day window.                   

3/12/2015 6/12/2015 90

Building Construction 1/1/2015 1/1/2016 360

Architectural Coating 8/11/2015 8/16/2015 5

Landscape/Hardscape 10/1/2015 12/1/2015 60

Phase2 English and Art Building

Demo Building/Hardscape 3/1/2016 3/21/2016 20
Demolition Debris Haul (if applicable) 3/10/2016 3/30/2016 20

Site Preparation 6/15/2016 7/25/2016 40

 Site Prep Soil Haul 6/30/2016 7/4/2016 5

Concrete (This is not a continuous 100 days.  Concrete 
will be poured intermittently in this 100 day window.          

7/25/2016 11/5/2016 100

Building Construction 6/15/2016 9/13/2017 455

Architectural Coating 4/15/2017 4/22/2017 7
Landscape/Hardscape 6/16/2017 8/15/2017 60

Phase 3A Gym &Field A

Demo Building/Hardscape 6/15/2018 7/5/2018 20

Site Preparation 6/15/2018 7/25/2018 40

 Site Prep Soil Haul 6/30/2018 7/5/2018 5

Concrete (This is not a continuous 100 days.  Concrete 
will be poured intermittently in this 100 day window.          

7/25/2018 11/5/2018 100

Building Construction 6/15/2018 12/7/2019 540

Architectural Coating 4/15/2017 4/22/2017 7

Landscape/Hardscape 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 60

Phase 3B Field B

Demo Building/Hardscape 6/15/2019 2/1/2019 5

Site Preparation 6/15/2019 7/15/2019 30

Landscape/Hardscape 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 60

Construction Schedule

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

151 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

152 of 543



    
    
L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .     A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M  A D D E N D U M      
J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     
    S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I SI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TT R I C TT R I C TT R I C T     

    

E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

APPENDIX C 

CALEEMOD CALCULATIONS FOR GHG EMISSIONS 

  

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

153 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - No construction

Vehicle Trips - Office building weekday trip rate from 2003 Master Plan traffic study, all others CalEEMod defaults.

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2014

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 4:52 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Existing Master Plan
San Diego County, Summer

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

General Office Building 10.50 1000sqft 0.24 10,500.00 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

154 of 543



22,401.264
2

Total 18.8830 28.9449 130.6413 0.2399 16.0020 0.4533 16.4552 4.2714 0.4187 4.6901 22,376.79
33

22,376.793
3

1.0292 9.2200e-
003

505.8291

Mobile 12.5348 28.5242 130.1145 0.2374 16.0020 0.4208 16.4227 4.2714 0.3862 4.6576 21,873.66
54

21,873.665
4

1.0185 21,895.054
0

Energy 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 502.7693 502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

Total 18.8830 28.9449 130.6413 0.2399 1.0292 9.2200e-
003

22,401.264
2

16.0020 0.4533 16.4552 4.2714 0.4187 4.6901

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

22,376.79
33

22,376.793
3

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

505.8291

Mobile 12.5348 28.5242 130.1145 0.2374 16.0020 0.4208 16.4227 4.2714 0.3862 4.6576 21,873.66
54

21,873.665
4

1.0185 21,895.054
0

Energy 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 502.7693 502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

Area 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2

0.00

2.2 Overall Operational

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00Percent 
Reduction

0.00

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

NBio- CO2 Total CO2

Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

ROG NOx CO SO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2eFugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

155 of 543



Hauling 
Vehicle Class

HDT_Mix HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Demolition 6 15.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Demolition Demolition 1/1/2015 12/31/2014 5 0

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

156 of 543



0.006537 0.000620 0.003469

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509376 0.073655 0.192210 0.135105 0.001820 0.0020920.037177 0.005354 0.012300 0.020284

4.4 Fleet Mix
Historical Energy Use: N

High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

General Office Building 9.50 7.30 7.30 33.00 48.00 19.00 77 19 4

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839
Total 2,899.49 1,017.97 417.29 5,939,181 5,939,181

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

21,895.054
0

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

General Office Building 115.61 24.89 10.29 209,342 209,342

Mitigated 12.5348 28.5242 130.1145 0.2374 16.0020 0.4208 16.4227 4.2714 0.3862 4.6576 21,873.66
54

21,873.665
4

1.0185

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Unmitigated 12.5348 28.5242 130.1145 0.2374 16.0020 0.4208 16.4227 4.2714 0.3862 4.6576 21,873.66
54

21,873.665
4

1.0185 21,895.054
0

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

157 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

502.7693

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx Total CO2

434.2227

Total 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5200e-
003

502.7693 9.6300e-
003

9.2100e-
003

505.82910.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318

High School 3668.57 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

General Office 
Building

604.973 6.5200e-
003

0.0593 0.0498 3.6000e-
004

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

71.1733 71.1733 1.3600e-
003

1.3000e-
003

71.6064

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

505.82910.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

502.7693

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 502.7693 502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

505.8291

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- CO2 Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

158 of 543



0.0000Consumer 
Products

4.8465 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.4379 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.38116.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3586 0.3586

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Unmitigated 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

434.2227

Total 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5200e-
003

9.6300e-
003

9.2100e-
003

505.82910.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

502.7693 502.7693

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx

High School 3.66857 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

General Office 
Building

0.604973 6.5200e-
003

0.0593 0.0498 3.6000e-
004

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

71.1733 71.1733 1.3600e-
003

1.3000e-
003

71.6064

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

159 of 543



0.3811

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

Total 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0177 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

Consumer 
Products

4.8465 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.4379 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.38116.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3586 0.3586

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Landscaping 0.0177 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

160 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - No construction

Vehicle Trips - Office building weekday trip rate from 2003 Master Plan traffic study, all others CalEEMod defaults.

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2014

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 4:54 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Existing Master Plan
San Diego County, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

General Office Building 10.50 1000sqft 0.24 10,500.00 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

161 of 543



21,328.62
33

Total 19.8300 30.7279 137.3395 0.2282 16.0020 0.4564 16.4583 4.2714 0.4215 4.6929 21,304.14
05

21,304.140
5

1.0298 9.2200e-
003

505.8291

Mobile 13.4818 30.3073 136.8127 0.2257 16.0020 0.4239 16.4258 4.2714 0.3890 4.6604 20,801.01
26

20,801.012
6

1.0191 20,822.41
31

Energy 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 502.7693 502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

Total 19.8300 30.7279 137.3395 0.2282 1.0298 9.2200e-
003

21,328.62
33

16.0020 0.4564 16.4583 4.2714 0.4215 4.6929

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

21,304.14
05

21,304.140
5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

505.8291

Mobile 13.4818 30.3073 136.8127 0.2257 16.0020 0.4239 16.4258 4.2714 0.3890 4.6604 20,801.01
26

20,801.012
6

1.0191 20,822.41
31

Energy 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 502.7693 502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

Area 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2

0.00

2.2 Overall Operational

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00Percent 
Reduction

0.00

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

ROG NOx CO SO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2eFugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

162 of 543



Hauling 
Vehicle Class

HDT_Mix HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Demolition 6 15.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix

Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Demolition Demolition 1/1/2015 12/31/2014 5 0

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

163 of 543



0.006537 0.000620 0.003469

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509376 0.073655 0.192210 0.135105 0.001820 0.0020920.037177 0.005354 0.012300 0.020284

High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

General Office Building 9.50 7.30 7.30 33.00 48.00 19.00 77 19 4

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839
Total 2,899.49 1,017.97 417.29 5,939,181 5,939,181

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

20,822.41
31

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

General Office Building 115.61 24.89 10.29 209,342 209,342

Mitigated 13.4818 30.3073 136.8127 0.2257 16.0020 0.4239 16.4258 4.2714 0.3890 4.6604 20,801.01
26

20,801.012
6

1.0191

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Unmitigated 13.4818 30.3073 136.8127 0.2257 16.0020 0.4239 16.4258 4.2714 0.3890 4.6604 20,801.01
26

20,801.012
6

1.0191 20,822.41
31

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

164 of 543



502.7693

Mitigated

434.2227

Total 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5200e-
003

502.7693 9.6300e-
003

9.2100e-
003

505.82910.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318

High School 3668.57 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

General Office 
Building

604.973 6.5200e-
003

0.0593 0.0498 3.6000e-
004

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

71.1733 71.1733 1.3600e-
003

1.3000e-
003

71.6064

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

505.82910.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

502.7693

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5100e-
003

0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318 502.7693 502.7693 9.6400e-
003

9.2200e-
003

505.8291

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.4 Fleet Mix
Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

165 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Mitigated 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.38116.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3586 0.3586

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Unmitigated 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

434.2227

Total 0.0461 0.4190 0.3519 2.5200e-
003

9.6300e-
003

9.2100e-
003

505.82910.0318 0.0318 0.0318 0.0318

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

502.7693 502.7693

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx

High School 3.66857 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

General Office 
Building

0.604973 6.5200e-
003

0.0593 0.0498 3.6000e-
004

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

4.5100e-
003

71.1733 71.1733 1.3600e-
003

1.3000e-
003

71.6064

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

166 of 543



0.3811

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

9.0 Operational Offroad

Total 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0177 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

Consumer 
Products

4.8465 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.4379 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 6.3021 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

1.0700e-
003

0.38116.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3586 0.3586

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0177 1.7000e-
003

0.1749 1.0000e-
005

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

6.4000e-
004

0.3586 0.3586 1.0700e-
003

0.3811

Consumer 
Products

4.8465 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

Architectural 
Coating

1.4379 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

167 of 543



Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

168 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 0.00

2.0 Emissions Summary

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - No construction

Vehicle Trips - Office building weekday trip rate from 2003 Master Plan traffic study, all others CalEEMod defaults.

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2014

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 4:51 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Existing Master Plan
San Diego County, Annual

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

General Office Building 10.50 1000sqft 0.24 10,500.00 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

169 of 543



557.4677Energy 8.4100e-
003

0.0765 0.0642 4.6000e-
004

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

0.0000 555.3433 555.3433 0.0206 5.4600e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 1.1485 1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0311

Total 2.9568 4.3887 19.0914 0.0329 4.1330 0.0133 3,536.441
4

2.2327 0.0661 2.2988 0.5971 0.0612 0.6583

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

65.1611 3,380.358
3

3,445.5194

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

139.6046

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.8672 109.5652 112.4323 0.2989 7.8700e-
003

121.1476

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 62.2939 0.0000 62.2939 3.6815 0.0000

557.4677

Mobile 1.7998 4.3121 19.0114 0.0325 2.2327 0.0602 2.2929 0.5971 0.0553 0.6524 0.0000 2,715.420
6

2,715.4206 0.1319 0.0000 2,718.190
4

Energy 8.4100e-
003

0.0765 0.0642 4.6000e-
004

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

0.0000 555.3433 555.3433 0.0206 5.4600e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

Area 1.1485 1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0311

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2

0.00

2.2 Overall Operational

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00Percent 
Reduction

0.00

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

ROG NOx CO SO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2eFugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

170 of 543



Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Trips and VMT

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Demolition Demolition 1/1/2015 12/31/2014 5 0

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.15 0.00

3,536.436
8

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 2.9568 4.3887 19.0914 0.0329 2.2327 0.0661 2.2988 0.5971 0.0612 0.6583 65.1611 3,380.358
3

3,445.5194 4.1329 0.0133

139.6046

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.8672 109.5652 112.4323 0.2988 7.8500e-
003

121.1430

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 62.2939 0.0000 62.2939 3.6815 0.0000

Mobile 1.7998 4.3121 19.0114 0.0325 2.2327 0.0602 2.2929 0.5971 0.0553 0.6524 0.0000 2,715.420
6

2,715.4206 0.1319 0.0000 2,718.190
4

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

171 of 543



Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

General Office Building 9.50 7.30 7.30 33.00 48.00 19.00 77 19 4

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839
Total 2,899.49 1,017.97 417.29 5,939,181 5,939,181

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

2,718.190
4

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

General Office Building 115.61 24.89 10.29 209,342 209,342

Unmitigated 1.7998 4.3121 19.0114 0.0325 2.2327 0.0602 2.2929 0.5971 0.0553 0.6524 0.0000 2,715.420
6

2,715.4206 0.1319 0.0000

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 1.7998 4.3121 19.0114 0.0325 2.2327 0.0602 2.2929 0.5971 0.0553 0.6524 0.0000 2,715.420
6

2,715.4206 0.1319 0.0000 2,718.190
4

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

HDT_Mix HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Demolition 6 15.00 0.00 0.00 10.80

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

172 of 543



NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

Electricity 
Unmitigated

472.1042 472.1042 0.0190 3.9300e-
003

473.72200.0000 0.0000 0.0000

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.00000.0000

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

83.7457

Electricity 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 472.1042 472.1042 0.0190 3.9300e-
003

473.7220

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

8.4100e-
003

0.0765 0.0642 4.6000e-
004

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

0.0000 83.2391 83.2391 1.6000e-
003

1.5300e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

8.4100e-
003

0.0765 0.0642 4.6000e-
004

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

0.0000 83.2391 83.2391 1.6000e-
003

1.5300e-
003

83.7457

0.006537 0.000620 0.003469

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509376 0.073655 0.192210 0.135105

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.001820 0.0020920.037177 0.005354 0.012300 0.020284

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.4 Fleet Mix
Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

173 of 543



High School 1.28719e+
006

420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

Total 472.1042 0.0190 3.9300e-
003

473.7220

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity
Unmitigated

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr t
o
n

MT/yr

General Office 
Building

157395 51.4381 2.0700e-
003

4.3000e-
004

51.6143

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Total 8.4100e-
003

0.0765 0.0642 4.5000e-
004

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

0.0000 83.2391 83.2391 1.6000e-
003

1.5300e-
003

83.7457

High School 1.33903e+
006

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

General Office 
Building

220815 1.1900e-
003

0.0108 9.0900e-
003

6.0000e-
005

8.2000e-
004

8.2000e-
004

8.2000e-
004

8.2000e-
004

0.0000 11.7835 11.7835 2.3000e-
004

2.2000e-
004

11.8552

Mitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Total 8.4100e-
003

0.0765 0.0642 4.5000e-
004

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

5.8100e-
003

0.0000 83.2391 83.2391 1.6000e-
003

1.5300e-
003

83.7457

High School 1.33903e+
006

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

General Office 
Building

220815 1.1900e-
003

0.0108 9.0900e-
003

6.0000e-
005

8.2000e-
004

8.2000e-
004

8.2000e-
004

8.2000e-
004

0.0000 11.7835 11.7835 2.3000e-
004

2.2000e-
004

11.8552

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

174 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Unmitigated 1.1485 1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.03116.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 1.1485 1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0311

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Total 472.1042 0.0190 3.9300e-
003

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

473.7220

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG

Land Use kWh/yr t
o
n

MT/yr

General Office 
Building

157395 51.4381 2.0700e-
003

4.3000e-
004

51.6143

High School 1.28719e+
006

420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

Mitigated

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

175 of 543



0.0311

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category t
o
n

MT/yr

Unmitigated 112.4323 0.2989 7.8700e-
003

121.1476

Total 1.1485 1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293 9.0000e-
005

0.0000

0.0000

Landscaping 1.5900e-
003

1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0311

Consumer 
Products

0.8845 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

0.2624 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 1.1485 1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.03116.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 1.5900e-
003

1.5000e-
004

0.0157 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0293 0.0293 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0311

Consumer 
Products

0.8845 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.2624 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

176 of 543



High School 7.17127 / 
18.4404

99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

Total 112.4323 0.2989 7.8500e-
003

121.1430

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Mitigated

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal t
o
n

MT/yr

General Office 
Building

1.8662 / 
1.1438

12.6864 0.0613 1.5300e-
003

14.4491

General Office 
Building

1.8662 / 
1.1438

12.6864 0.0613 1.5400e-
003

14.4500

High School 7.17127 / 
18.4404

99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

Total 112.4323 0.2989 7.8700e-
003

121.1476

Mitigated 112.4323 0.2988 7.8500e-
003

121.1430

7.2 Water by Land Use
Unmitigated

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal t
o
n

MT/yr

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

177 of 543



High School 297.11 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Total 62.2939 3.6815 0.0000 139.6046

Mitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

8.2 Waste by Land Use
Unmitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons t
o
n

MT/yr

General Office 
Building

9.77 1.9832 0.1172 0.0000 4.4445

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

t
o
n

MT/yr

 Mitigated 62.2939 3.6815 0.0000 139.6046

 Unmitigated 62.2939 3.6815 0.0000 139.6046

Category/Year

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

178 of 543



Total 62.2939 3.6815 0.0000

Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

139.6046

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year

Land Use tons t
o
n

MT/yr

General Office 
Building

9.77 1.9832 0.1172 0.0000 4.4445

High School 297.11 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

179 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 326.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 75.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 260.00

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - From project plans

Demolition - 

Vehicle Trips - 

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 141.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 109.00

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2015

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 5:11 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Proposed Master Plan
San Diego County, Summer

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

180 of 543



tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 1/1/2016 2/1/2015

tblProjectCharacteristics OperationalYear 2014 2015

2.0 Emissions Summary

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 11/19/2014 11/20/2014

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/2/2015 3/1/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 9/14/2017 6/16/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 1/1/2016 10/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 3/31/2016 6/15/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 2/9/2016 3/11/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 9/14/2017 3/1/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 3/12/2015 8/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/26/2016 6/15/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/6/2014 1/2/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/4/2014 12/5/2014

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/31/2015 3/30/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 11/13/2017 8/15/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 3/2/2016 12/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 5/10/2016 7/25/2016

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 28.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 3/29/2018 9/13/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 8/11/2015 12/31/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 10/24/2017 9/13/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/4/2015 12/31/2015

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 43.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 14.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 12.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 29.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 12.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 22.00

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

181 of 543



6,720.4259

Total 108.7808 284.6842 224.7039 0.2861 57.8941 16.3878 74.2819 30.7862 15.2081 45.9943 0.0000 28,430.22
98

28,430.229
8

6.4368 0.0000 28,565.401
7

2017 41.3321 48.8414 41.3552 0.0702 1.2920 3.0113 4.3034 0.3474 2.8203 3.1677 0.0000 6,693.204
9

6,693.2049 1.2962 0.0000

8,668.5167

2016 9.2294 86.9028 68.3818 0.0856 19.1940 4.9629 24.1569 10.2345 4.6043 14.8388 0.0000 8,516.051
1

8,516.0511 1.9421 0.0000 8,556.8344

2015 52.8523 91.2300 71.0176 0.0856 19.1940 5.2746 24.4686 10.2345 4.8956 15.1300 0.0000 8,627.334
0

8,627.3340 1.9611 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

2014 5.3670 57.7100 43.9493 0.0447 18.2141 3.1390 21.3531 9.9699 2.8878 12.8577 0.0000 4,593.639
8

4,593.6398 1.2374 0.0000 4,619.6247

6,720.4259

Total 108.7808 284.6842 224.7039 0.2861 6.4368 0.0000 28,565.401
7

57.8941 16.3878 74.2819 30.7862 15.2081 45.9943

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 28,430.22
98

28,430.229
8

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO

2017 41.3321 48.8414 41.3552 0.0702 1.2920 3.0113 4.3034 0.3474 2.8203 3.1677 0.0000 6,693.204
9

6,693.2049 1.2962 0.0000

8,668.5167

2016 9.2294 86.9028 68.3818 0.0856 19.1940 4.9629 24.1569 10.2345 4.6043 14.8388 0.0000 8,516.051
1

8,516.0511 1.9421 0.0000 8,556.8344

2015 52.8523 91.2300 71.0176 0.0856 19.1940 5.2746 24.4686 10.2345 4.8956 15.1300 0.0000 8,627.334
0

8,627.3340 1.9611 0.0000

N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

2014 5.3670 57.7100 43.9493 0.0447 18.2141 3.1390 21.3531 9.9699 2.8878 12.8577 0.0000 4,593.639
8

4,593.6398 1.2374 0.0000 4,619.6247

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

NBio- CO2 Total CO2

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

CH4

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

182 of 543



20,977.919
5

Total 17.1758 25.2303 115.0284 0.2311 15.4191 0.3660 15.7851 4.1159 0.3384 4.4543 20,956.29
23

20,956.292
3

0.9131 7.9100e-
003

434.2227

Mobile 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038 20,543.318
8

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Total 17.1758 25.2303 115.0284 0.2311 0.9131 7.9100e-
003

20,977.919
5

15.4191 0.3660 15.7851 4.1159 0.3384 4.4543

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

20,956.29
23

20,956.292
3

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

434.2227

Mobile 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038 20,543.318
8

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.00 0.00 0.00

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

2.2 Overall Operational
Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

183 of 543



Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 323,958; Non-Residential Outdoor: 107,986 (Architectural Coating – 

13 Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 6/16/2017

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

141

11 Phase 2c - English&Art 
Constuction

Building Construction 6/15/2016 9/13/2017 5

8/15/2017 5

326

12 Phase 2d - English&Art 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 3/1/2017 9/13/2017 5

43

8 Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Paving 10/1/2015 12/1/2015 5 44

9 Phase 2a - English&Art 
Demolition

Demolition 3/1/2016 3/30/2016 5 22

10 Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2016 7/25/2016 5 29

5 Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Building Construction 1/2/2015 12/31/2015 5 260

6 Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 2/1/2015 3/11/2015 5 28

7 Phase 1B4 - Math&Science 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 8/1/2015 12/31/2015 5 109

2 Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Building Construction 7/17/2014 10/29/2014 5 75

3 Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing 
Paving

Paving 10/30/2014 11/18/2014 5 14

4 Phase 1B1 - Math&Science 
Demolition

Demolition 11/20/2014 12/5/2014 5 12

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 7/1/2014 7/16/2014 5 12

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

184 of 543



Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B4 - Math&Science 
Architectural Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

185 of 543



HDT_Mix HHDTPhase 2e - 
English&Art

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix

Phase 2c - English&Art 
Constuction

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2d - 
English&Art

1 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2a - 
English&Art Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 102.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2b - 
English&Art Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B4 - 
Math&Science

1 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B5 - 
Math&Science

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B3 - 
Math&Science

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B2 - 
Math&Science Site

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1A3 - Interim 
Housing Paving

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B1 - 
Math&Science

6 15.00 0.00 45.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Phase 1A1 - Interim 
Housing Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1A2 - Interim 
Housing Construction

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 2d - English&Art Architectural 
Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

186 of 543



Total 0.0761 0.0902 0.9885 1.8700e-
003

9.2600e-
003

167.82070.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404 167.6262 167.6262

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0761 0.0902 0.9885 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404 167.6262 167.6262 9.2600e-
003

167.8207

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,181.6817

Total 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 1.2281 4,181.681718.0663 3.1377 21.2040 9.9307 2.8867 12.8174

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,155.891
4

4,155.8914

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 3.1377 3.1377 2.8867 2.8867 4,155.891
4

4,155.8914 1.2281

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.2 Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

187 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0761 0.0902 0.9885 1.8700e-
003

9.2600e-
003

167.82070.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

167.6262 167.6262

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.3 Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing Construction - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0761 0.0902 0.9885 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404 167.6262 167.6262 9.2600e-
003

167.8207

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,181.6817

Total 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 1.2281 4,181.681718.0663 3.1377 21.2040 9.9307 2.8867 12.8174

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,155.891
4

4,155.8914

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 3.1377 3.1377 2.8867 2.8867 0.0000 4,155.891
4

4,155.8914 1.2281

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

188 of 543



Total 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 0.6889 2,723.66302.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973 0.0000 2,709.196
9

2,709.1969

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 2.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973 0.0000 2,709.196
9

2,709.1969 0.6889 2,723.6630

Total 0.8633 4.9165 9.6944 0.0179 0.0555 1,704.83670.9799 0.0924 1.0723 0.2646 0.0849 0.3495

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,703.671
3

1,703.6713

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

856.4099

Worker 0.3845 0.4561 4.9972 9.4800e-
003

0.7475 6.2700e-
003

0.7538 0.1983 5.7300e-
003

0.2040 847.4436 847.4436 0.0468 848.4268

Vendor 0.4788 4.4604 4.6972 8.3800e-
003

0.2323 0.0861 0.3184 0.0663 0.0792 0.1455 856.2277 856.2277 8.6700e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 0.6889 2,723.66302.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,709.196
9

2,709.1969

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Off-Road 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 2.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973 2,709.196
9

2,709.1969 0.6889 2,723.6630

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

189 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

0.0000

Total 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 0.5590 1,951.95791.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,940.219
7

1,940.2197

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 1.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588 1,940.219
7

1,940.2197 0.5590 1,951.9579

Total 0.8633 4.9165 9.6944 0.0179 0.0555 1,704.83670.9799 0.0924 1.0723 0.2646 0.0849 0.3495

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,703.671
3

1,703.6713

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.4 Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

856.4099

Worker 0.3845 0.4561 4.9972 9.4800e-
003

0.7475 6.2700e-
003

0.7538 0.1983 5.7300e-
003

0.2040 847.4436 847.4436 0.0468 848.4268

Vendor 0.4788 4.4604 4.6972 8.3800e-
003

0.2323 0.0861 0.3184 0.0663 0.0792 0.1455 856.2277 856.2277 8.6700e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

190 of 543



0.0000

Worker 0.0845 0.1003 1.0983 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448 186.2513 186.2513 0.0103 186.4674

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 0.5590 1,951.95791.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1,940.219
7

1,940.2197

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 1.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588 0.0000 1,940.219
7

1,940.2197 0.5590 1,951.9579

Total 0.0845 0.1003 1.0983 2.0800e-
003

0.0103 186.46740.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

186.2513 186.2513

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0845 0.1003 1.0983 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448 186.2513 186.2513 0.0103 186.4674

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

191 of 543



Total 0.1594 1.5052 1.7270 4.3800e-
003

0.0104 429.77160.1886 0.0269 0.2155 0.0506 0.0247 0.0753 429.5540 429.5540

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0634 0.0752 0.8237 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 1.0300e-
003

0.1243 0.0327 9.4000e-
004

0.0336 139.6885 139.6885 7.7200e-
003

139.8506

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0961 1.4300 0.9033 2.8200e-
003

0.0653 0.0259 0.0912 0.0179 0.0238 0.0417 289.8655 289.8655 2.6500e-
003

289.9211

4,187.7164

Total 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 1.1253 4,187.71640.8305 2.5270 3.3576 0.1258 2.3593 2.4850

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,164.085
8

4,164.0858

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 2.5270 2.5270 2.3593 2.3593 4,164.085
8

4,164.0858 1.1253

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.8305 0.0000 0.8305 0.1258 0.0000 0.1258 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0845 0.1003 1.0983 2.0800e-
003

0.0103 186.46740.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

186.2513 186.2513

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.5 Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

192 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.1594 1.5052 1.7270 4.3800e-
003

0.0104 429.77160.1886 0.0269 0.2155 0.0506 0.0247 0.0753

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

429.5540 429.5540

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.6 Phase 1B3 - Math&Science Construction - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0634 0.0752 0.8237 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 1.0300e-
003

0.1243 0.0327 9.4000e-
004

0.0336 139.6885 139.6885 7.7200e-
003

139.8506

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0961 1.4300 0.9033 2.8200e-
003

0.0653 0.0259 0.0912 0.0179 0.0238 0.0417 289.8655 289.8655 2.6500e-
003

289.9211

4,187.7164

Total 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 1.1253 4,187.71640.8305 2.5270 3.3576 0.1258 2.3593 2.4850

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,164.085
8

4,164.0858

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 2.5270 2.5270 2.3593 2.3593 0.0000 4,164.085
8

4,164.0858 1.1253

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.8305 0.0000 0.8305 0.1258 0.0000 0.1258 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

193 of 543



Total 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 0.6748 2,703.74832.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904 0.0000 2,689.577
1

2,689.5771

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 2.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904 0.0000 2,689.577
1

2,689.5771 0.6748 2,703.7483

Total 0.7620 4.2290 8.7513 0.0178 0.0503 1,665.06610.9798 0.0684 1.0483 0.2646 0.0629 0.3275

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,664.011
0

1,664.0110

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

845.1570

Worker 0.3488 0.4114 4.4992 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.8700e-
003

0.7534 0.1983 5.3800e-
003

0.2037 819.0077 819.0077 0.0429 819.9091

Vendor 0.4132 3.8176 4.2521 8.3500e-
003

0.2323 0.0626 0.2949 0.0663 0.0575 0.1238 845.0033 845.0033 7.3200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 0.6748 2,703.74832.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,689.577
1

2,689.5771

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Off-Road 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 2.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904 2,689.577
1

2,689.5771 0.6748 2,703.7483

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

194 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

4,137.5225

Total 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 1.2275 4,137.522518.0663 3.0883 21.1545 9.9307 2.8412 12.7719

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,111.744
4

4,111.7444

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 3.0883 3.0883 2.8412 2.8412 4,111.744
4

4,111.7444 1.2275

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.7620 4.2290 8.7513 0.0178 0.0503 1,665.06610.9798 0.0684 1.0483 0.2646 0.0629 0.3275

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,664.011
0

1,664.0110

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.7 Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

845.1570

Worker 0.3488 0.4114 4.4992 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.8700e-
003

0.7534 0.1983 5.3800e-
003

0.2037 819.0077 819.0077 0.0429 819.9091

Vendor 0.4132 3.8176 4.2521 8.3500e-
003

0.2323 0.0626 0.2949 0.0663 0.0575 0.1238 845.0033 845.0033 7.3200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

195 of 543



0.0000

Worker 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 162.0015 162.0015 8.4900e-
003

162.1798

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,137.5224

Total 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 1.2275 4,137.522418.0663 3.0883 21.1545 9.9307 2.8412 12.7719

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,111.744
4

4,111.7444

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 3.0883 3.0883 2.8412 2.8412 0.0000 4,111.744
4

4,111.7444 1.2275

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

8.4900e-
003

162.17980.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

162.0015 162.0015

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 162.0015 162.0015 8.4900e-
003

162.1798

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

196 of 543



Total 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

8.4900e-
003

162.17980.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 162.0015 162.0015

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 162.0015 162.0015 8.4900e-
003

162.1798

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

282.2177

Total 46.3254 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.0367 282.21770.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.4066 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 281.4481 281.4481 0.0367

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 45.9188 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

8.4900e-
003

162.17980.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

162.0015 162.0015

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.8 Phase 1B4 - Math&Science Architectural Coating - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

197 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

8.4900e-
003

162.17980.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

162.0015 162.0015

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.9 Phase 1B5 - Math&Science Paving/Landscape - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0690 0.0814 0.8900 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 162.0015 162.0015 8.4900e-
003

162.1798

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

282.2177

Total 46.3254 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.0367 282.21770.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.4066 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.0000 281.4481 281.4481 0.0367

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 45.9188 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

198 of 543



0.0000

Total 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 0.5588 1,933.04461.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280 0.0000 1,921.309
0

1,921.3090

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 1.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280 0.0000 1,921.309
0

1,921.3090 0.5588 1,933.0446

Total 0.0767 0.0904 0.9888 2.0800e-
003

9.4300e-
003

180.19980.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

180.0017 180.0017

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0767 0.0904 0.9888 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448 180.0017 180.0017 9.4300e-
003

180.1998

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 0.5588 1,933.04461.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,921.309
1

1,921.3091

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 1.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280 1,921.309
1

1,921.3091 0.5588 1,933.0446

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

199 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

4,112.6374

Total 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 1.1121 4,112.63741.0173 2.2921 3.3094 0.1541 2.1365 2.2906

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,089.284
1

4,089.2841

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 2.2921 2.2921 2.1365 2.1365 4,089.284
1

4,089.2841 1.1121

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 1.0173 0.0000 1.0173 0.1541 0.0000 0.1541 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0767 0.0904 0.9888 2.0800e-
003

9.4300e-
003

180.19980.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

180.0017 180.0017

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.10 Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0767 0.0904 0.9888 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448 180.0017 180.0017 9.4300e-
003

180.1998

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

200 of 543



0.0000

Worker 0.0524 0.0615 0.6711 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 9.2000e-
004

0.1242 0.0327 8.5000e-
004

0.0335 130.2798 130.2798 6.5300e-
003

130.4169

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0909 1.2993 0.9275 3.4700e-
003

0.0808 0.0178 0.0985 0.0221 0.0163 0.0385 349.4322 349.4322 2.4900e-
003

349.4844

4,112.6374

Total 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 1.1121 4,112.63741.0173 2.2921 3.3094 0.1541 2.1365 2.2906

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,089.284
1

4,089.2841

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 2.2921 2.2921 2.1365 2.1365 0.0000 4,089.284
1

4,089.2841 1.1121

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 1.0173 0.0000 1.0173 0.1541 0.0000 0.1541 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1433 1.3608 1.5986 5.0300e-
003

9.0200e-
003

479.90130.2040 0.0187 0.2227 0.0548 0.0172 0.0720

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

479.7120 479.7120

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0524 0.0615 0.6711 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 9.2000e-
004

0.1242 0.0327 8.5000e-
004

0.0335 130.2798 130.2798 6.5300e-
003

130.4169

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0909 1.2993 0.9275 3.4700e-
003

0.0808 0.0178 0.0985 0.0221 0.0163 0.0385 349.4322 349.4322 2.4900e-
003

349.4844

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

201 of 543



Total 0.0629 0.0738 0.8053 1.8700e-
003

7.8300e-
003

156.50020.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402 156.3358 156.3358

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0629 0.0738 0.8053 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402 156.3358 156.3358 7.8300e-
003

156.5002

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,090.7544

Total 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 1.2262 4,090.754418.0663 2.9387 21.0049 9.9307 2.7036 12.6343

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,065.005
3

4,065.0053

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 2.9387 2.9387 2.7036 2.7036 4,065.005
3

4,065.0053 1.2262

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1433 1.3608 1.5986 5.0300e-
003

9.0200e-
003

479.90130.2040 0.0187 0.2227 0.0548 0.0172 0.0720

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

479.7120 479.7120

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.11 Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

202 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0629 0.0738 0.8053 1.8700e-
003

7.8300e-
003

156.50020.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

156.3358 156.3358

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.12 Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0629 0.0738 0.8053 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402 156.3358 156.3358 7.8300e-
003

156.5002

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,090.7544

Total 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 1.2262 4,090.754418.0663 2.9387 21.0049 9.9307 2.7036 12.6343

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,065.005
3

4,065.0053

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 2.9387 2.9387 2.7036 2.7036 0.0000 4,065.005
3

4,065.0053 1.2262

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

203 of 543



Total 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 0.6620 2,683.18901.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485 0.0000 2,669.286
4

2,669.2864

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 1.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485 0.0000 2,669.286
4

2,669.2864 0.6620 2,683.1890

Total 0.6832 3.6903 7.9646 0.0178 0.0461 1,626.39080.9799 0.0558 1.0356 0.2646 0.0513 0.3158

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,625.423
7

1,625.4237

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

835.1951

Worker 0.3181 0.3733 4.0712 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.6100e-
003

0.7532 0.1983 5.1600e-
003

0.2034 790.3641 790.3641 0.0396 791.1957

Vendor 0.3651 3.3170 3.8934 8.3300e-
003

0.2323 0.0502 0.2825 0.0663 0.0461 0.1124 835.0596 835.0596 6.4500e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 0.6620 2,683.18901.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,669.286
4

2,669.2864

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Off-Road 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 1.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485 2,669.286
4

2,669.2864 0.6620 2,683.1890

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

204 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 0.6497 2,653.44901.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,639.805
3

2,639.8053

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 1.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730 2,639.805
3

2,639.8053 0.6497 2,653.4490

Total 0.6832 3.6903 7.9646 0.0178 0.0461 1,626.39080.9799 0.0558 1.0356 0.2646 0.0513 0.3158

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,625.423
7

1,625.4237

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.12 Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

835.1951

Worker 0.3181 0.3733 4.0712 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.6100e-
003

0.7532 0.1983 5.1600e-
003

0.2034 790.3641 790.3641 0.0396 791.1957

Vendor 0.3651 3.3170 3.8934 8.3300e-
003

0.2323 0.0502 0.2825 0.0663 0.0461 0.1124 835.0596 835.0596 6.4500e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

205 of 543



821.0807

Worker 0.2891 0.3393 3.6822 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.4400e-
003

0.7530 0.1983 5.0100e-
003

0.2033 759.8659 759.8659 0.0366 760.6353

Vendor 0.3347 2.9663 3.6545 8.3100e-
003

0.2323 0.0435 0.2759 0.0663 0.0400 0.1063 820.9526 820.9526 6.1000e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 0.6497 2,653.44901.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2,639.805
3

2,639.8053

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 1.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730 0.0000 2,639.805
3

2,639.8053 0.6497 2,653.4490

Total 0.6238 3.3055 7.3367 0.0178 0.0427 1,581.71600.9799 0.0490 1.0288 0.2646 0.0451 0.3096

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,580.818
5

1,580.8185

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

821.0807

Worker 0.2891 0.3393 3.6822 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.4400e-
003

0.7530 0.1983 5.0100e-
003

0.2033 759.8659 759.8659 0.0366 760.6353

Vendor 0.3347 2.9663 3.6545 8.3100e-
003

0.2323 0.0435 0.2759 0.0663 0.0400 0.1063 820.9526 820.9526 6.1000e-
003

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

206 of 543



Total 0.0572 0.0671 0.7284 1.8700e-
003

7.2500e-
003

150.45530.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402 150.3031 150.3031

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0572 0.0671 0.7284 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402 150.3031 150.3031 7.2500e-
003

150.4553

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

282.0721

Total 35.8298 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.0297 282.07210.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.3323 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 281.4481 281.4481 0.0297

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 35.4975 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.6238 3.3055 7.3367 0.0178 0.0427 1,581.71600.9799 0.0490 1.0288 0.2646 0.0451 0.3096

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,580.818
5

1,580.8185

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.13 Phase 2d - English&Art Architectural Coating - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

207 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0572 0.0671 0.7284 1.8700e-
003

7.2500e-
003

150.45530.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

150.3031 150.3031

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.14 Phase 2e - English&Art Landscape/Hardscape - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0572 0.0671 0.7284 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402 150.3031 150.3031 7.2500e-
003

150.4553

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

282.0721

Total 35.8298 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.0297 282.07210.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.3323 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.0000 281.4481 281.4481 0.0297

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 35.4975 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

208 of 543



0.0000

Total 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 0.5588 1,885.56091.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269 0.0000 1,873.826
4

1,873.8264

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 1.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269 0.0000 1,873.826
4

1,873.8264 0.5588 1,885.5609

Total 0.0635 0.0746 0.8093 2.0800e-
003

8.0500e-
003

167.17260.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

167.0035 167.0035

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0635 0.0746 0.8093 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447 167.0035 167.0035 8.0500e-
003

167.1726

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 0.5588 1,885.56091.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,873.826
4

1,873.8264

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 1.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269 1,873.826
4

1,873.8264 0.5588 1,885.5609

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

209 of 543



20,543.318
8

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

Unmitigated 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038 20,543.318
8

Total 0.0635 0.0746 0.8093 2.0800e-
003

8.0500e-
003

167.17260.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

167.0035 167.0035

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0635 0.0746 0.8093 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447 167.0035 167.0035 8.0500e-
003

167.1726

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

210 of 543



NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

0.006541 0.000614 0.003471

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509603 0.073619 0.192430 0.134105

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.001832 0.0020870.036943 0.005309 0.012459 0.020989

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.4 Fleet Mix
Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- CO2 Total CO2

High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Total 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

211 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

431.5961 431.5961

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx NBio- CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3.66857 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

431.5961

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3668.57 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

212 of 543



0.3780

7.0 Water Detail

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

213 of 543



7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

214 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 326.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 75.00

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - From project plans

Demolition - 

Vehicle Trips - 

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 141.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 109.00

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2015

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 5:12 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Proposed Master Plan
San Diego County, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

215 of 543



tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 1/1/2016 2/1/2015

tblProjectCharacteristics OperationalYear 2014 2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 11/19/2014 11/20/2014

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/2/2015 3/1/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 9/14/2017 6/16/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 1/1/2016 10/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 3/31/2016 6/15/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 2/9/2016 3/11/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 9/14/2017 3/1/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 3/12/2015 8/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/26/2016 6/15/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/6/2014 1/2/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/4/2014 12/5/2014

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/31/2015 3/30/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 11/13/2017 8/15/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 3/2/2016 12/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 5/10/2016 7/25/2016

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 28.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 3/29/2018 9/13/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 8/11/2015 12/31/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 10/24/2017 9/13/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/4/2015 12/31/2015

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 43.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 14.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 12.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 29.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 260.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 12.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 22.00

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

216 of 543



6,648.493
9

2017 41.4066 48.9703 42.4900 0.0693 1.2920 3.0118 4.3038 0.3474 2.8207 3.1681 0.0000 6,621.269
4

6,621.2694 1.2964 0.0000

8,602.411
6

2016 9.3096 87.0378 69.5892 0.0848 19.1940 4.9635 24.1574 10.2345 4.6048 14.8393 0.0000 8,452.030
7

8,452.0307 1.9422 0.0000 8,492.817
5

2015 52.9489 91.3849 72.2750 0.0849 19.1940 5.2754 24.4693 10.2345 4.8963 15.1307 0.0000 8,561.225
3

8,561.2253 1.9613 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

2014 5.3721 57.7210 43.9291 0.0442 18.2141 3.1390 21.3531 9.9699 2.8878 12.8577 0.0000 4,584.477
5

4,584.4775 1.2374 0.0000 4,610.462
4

6,648.493
9

Total 109.0371 285.1140 228.2833 0.2832 6.4373 0.0000 28,354.18
54

57.8941 16.3896 74.2837 30.7862 15.2097 45.9958

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 28,219.00
30

28,219.003
0

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO

2017 41.4066 48.9703 42.4900 0.0693 1.2920 3.0118 4.3038 0.3474 2.8207 3.1681 0.0000 6,621.269
4

6,621.2694 1.2964 0.0000

8,602.411
6

2016 9.3096 87.0378 69.5892 0.0848 19.1940 4.9635 24.1574 10.2345 4.6048 14.8393 0.0000 8,452.030
7

8,452.0307 1.9422 0.0000 8,492.817
5

2015 52.9489 91.3849 72.2750 0.0849 19.1940 5.2754 24.4693 10.2345 4.8963 15.1307 0.0000 8,561.225
3

8,561.2253 1.9613 0.0000

N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

2014 5.3721 57.7210 43.9291 0.0442 18.2141 3.1390 21.3531 9.9699 2.8878 12.8577 0.0000 4,584.477
5

4,584.4775 1.2374 0.0000 4,610.462
4

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

CH4

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

217 of 543



434.2227

Mobile 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043 19,542.41
93

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Total 17.9831 26.7863 121.0258 0.2198 0.9136 7.9100e-
003

19,977.02
00

15.4191 0.3681 15.7872 4.1159 0.3404 4.4563

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

19,955.38
14

19,955.381
4

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

434.2227

Mobile 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043 19,542.41
93

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.00 0.00 0.00

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

2.2 Overall Operational
Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 109.0371 285.1140 228.2833 0.2832 57.8941 16.3896 74.2837 30.7862 15.2097 45.9958 0.0000 28,219.00
30

28,219.003
0

6.4373 0.0000 28,354.18
54

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

218 of 543



Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 323,958; Non-Residential Outdoor: 107,986 (Architectural Coating – 

13 Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 6/16/2017

141

11 Phase 2c - English&Art 
Constuction

Building Construction 6/15/2016 9/13/2017 5

8/15/2017 5

326

12 Phase 2d - English&Art 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 3/1/2017 9/13/2017 5

43

8 Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Paving 10/1/2015 12/1/2015 5 44

9 Phase 2a - English&Art 
Demolition

Demolition 3/1/2016 3/30/2016 5 22

10 Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2016 7/25/2016 5 29

5 Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Building Construction 1/2/2015 12/31/2015 5 260

6 Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 2/1/2015 3/11/2015 5 28

7 Phase 1B4 - Math&Science 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 8/1/2015 12/31/2015 5 109

2 Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Building Construction 7/17/2014 10/29/2014 5 75

3 Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing 
Paving

Paving 10/30/2014 11/18/2014 5 14

4 Phase 1B1 - Math&Science 
Demolition

Demolition 11/20/2014 12/5/2014 5 12

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 7/1/2014 7/16/2014 5 12

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19,977.02
00

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 17.9831 26.7863 121.0258 0.2198 15.4191 0.3681 15.7872 4.1159 0.3404 4.4563 19,955.38
14

19,955.381
4

0.9136 7.9100e-
003

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

219 of 543



Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B4 - Math&Science 
Architectural Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

220 of 543



Phase 2a - English&Art 
Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 102.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2b - English&Art 
Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B4 - 
Math&Science

1 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B5 - 
Math&Science

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B3 - 
Math&Science

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B2 - 
Math&Science Site

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1A3 - Interim 
Housing Paving

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B1 - 
Math&Science

6 15.00 0.00 45.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Phase 1A1 - Interim 
Housing Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1A2 - Interim 
Housing Construction

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 2d - English&Art Architectural 
Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

221 of 543



0.0000

Worker 0.0811 0.1013 0.9682 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404 157.4408 157.4408 9.2600e-
003

157.6353

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,181.681
7

Total 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 1.2281 4,181.681
7

18.0663 3.1377 21.2040 9.9307 2.8867 12.8174

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,155.891
4

4,155.8914

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 3.1377 3.1377 2.8867 2.8867 4,155.891
4

4,155.8914 1.2281

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

HDT_Mix HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.2 Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Phase 2c - English&Art 
Constuction

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2d - English&Art 
Architectural Coating

1 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

222 of 543



Total 0.0811 0.1013 0.9682 1.7600e-
003

9.2600e-
003

157.63530.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404 157.4408 157.4408

3.3 Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing Construction - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0811 0.1013 0.9682 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404 157.4408 157.4408 9.2600e-
003

157.6353

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,181.681
7

Total 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 1.2281 4,181.681
7

18.0663 3.1377 21.2040 9.9307 2.8867 12.8174

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,155.891
4

4,155.8914

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.2910 57.6198 42.9609 0.0391 3.1377 3.1377 2.8867 2.8867 0.0000 4,155.891
4

4,155.8914 1.2281

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0811 0.1013 0.9682 1.7600e-
003

9.2600e-
003

157.63530.1479 1.2400e-
003

0.1491 0.0392 1.1300e-
003

0.0404

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

157.4408 157.4408

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

223 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.9642 5.0857 11.0294 0.0172 0.0557 1,646.888
9

0.9799 0.0934 1.0733 0.2646 0.0859 0.3505

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,645.719
8

1,645.7198

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

849.9550

Worker 0.4099 0.5119 4.8949 8.9000e-
003

0.7475 6.2700e-
003

0.7538 0.1983 5.7300e-
003

0.2040 795.9507 795.9507 0.0468 796.9339

Vendor 0.5543 4.5738 6.1346 8.3400e-
003

0.2323 0.0872 0.3195 0.0663 0.0802 0.1465 849.7691 849.7691 8.8500e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 0.6889 2,723.663
0

2.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,709.196
9

2,709.1969

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 2.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973 2,709.196
9

2,709.1969 0.6889 2,723.663
0

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

224 of 543



0.0000

Total 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 0.5590 1,951.957
9

1.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588 1,940.219
7

1,940.2197

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 1.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588 1,940.219
7

1,940.2197 0.5590 1,951.957
9

Total 0.9642 5.0857 11.0294 0.0172 0.0557 1,646.888
9

0.9799 0.0934 1.0733 0.2646 0.0859 0.3505

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,645.719
8

1,645.7198

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.4 Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

849.9550

Worker 0.4099 0.5119 4.8949 8.9000e-
003

0.7475 6.2700e-
003

0.7538 0.1983 5.7300e-
003

0.2040 795.9507 795.9507 0.0468 796.9339

Vendor 0.5543 4.5738 6.1346 8.3400e-
003

0.2323 0.0872 0.3195 0.0663 0.0802 0.1465 849.7691 849.7691 8.8500e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 0.6889 2,723.663
0

2.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2,709.196
9

2,709.1969

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Off-Road 3.8680 31.2537 18.9298 0.0268 2.2280 2.2280 2.0973 2.0973 0.0000 2,709.196
9

2,709.1969 0.6889 2,723.663
0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

225 of 543



0.0000

Total 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 0.5590 1,951.957
9

1.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588 0.0000 1,940.219
7

1,940.2197

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.9954 20.9999 12.6669 0.0186 1.2575 1.2575 1.1588 1.1588 0.0000 1,940.219
7

1,940.2197 0.5590 1,951.957
9

Total 0.0901 0.1125 1.0758 1.9600e-
003

0.0103 175.15030.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

174.9342 174.9342

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0901 0.1125 1.0758 1.9600e-
003

0.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448 174.9342 174.9342 0.0103 175.1503

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

226 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.1070 1.4763 1.1331 2.8200e-
003

0.0653 0.0260 0.0913 0.0179 0.0239 0.0418 289.1910 289.1910 2.6700e-
003

289.2472

4,187.716
4

Total 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 1.1253 4,187.716
4

0.8305 2.5270 3.3576 0.1258 2.3593 2.4850

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,164.085
8

4,164.0858

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 2.5270 2.5270 2.3593 2.3593 4,164.085
8

4,164.0858 1.1253

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.8305 0.0000 0.8305 0.1258 0.0000 0.1258 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0901 0.1125 1.0758 1.9600e-
003

0.0103 175.15030.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

174.9342 174.9342

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.5 Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0901 0.1125 1.0758 1.9600e-
003

0.1643 1.3800e-
003

0.1657 0.0436 1.2600e-
003

0.0448 174.9342 174.9342 0.0103 175.1503

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

227 of 543



Total 0.1746 1.5606 1.9399 4.2900e-
003

0.0104 420.60990.1886 0.0270 0.2156 0.0506 0.0248 0.0754 420.3917 420.3917

0.0000

Worker 0.0676 0.0844 0.8069 1.4700e-
003

0.1232 1.0300e-
003

0.1243 0.0327 9.4000e-
004

0.0336 131.2007 131.2007 7.7200e-
003

131.3627

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.1070 1.4763 1.1331 2.8200e-
003

0.0653 0.0260 0.0913 0.0179 0.0239 0.0418 289.1910 289.1910 2.6700e-
003

289.2472

4,187.716
4

Total 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 1.1253 4,187.716
4

0.8305 2.5270 3.3576 0.1258 2.3593 2.4850

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,164.085
8

4,164.0858

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.5962 49.5429 36.2873 0.0399 2.5270 2.5270 2.3593 2.3593 0.0000 4,164.085
8

4,164.0858 1.1253

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.8305 0.0000 0.8305 0.1258 0.0000 0.1258 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1746 1.5606 1.9399 4.2900e-
003

0.0104 420.60990.1886 0.0270 0.2156 0.0506 0.0248 0.0754

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

420.3917 420.3917

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0676 0.0844 0.8069 1.4700e-
003

0.1232 1.0300e-
003

0.1243 0.0327 9.4000e-
004

0.0336 131.2007 131.2007 7.7200e-
003

131.3627

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

228 of 543



Total 0.8495 4.3740 10.0305 0.0172 0.0504 1,608.813
9

0.9798 0.0692 1.0490 0.2646 0.0636 0.3281 1,607.755
2

1,607.7552

Mitigated Construction On-Site

838.7164

Worker 0.3709 0.4617 4.3893 8.9000e-
003

0.7475 5.8700e-
003

0.7534 0.1983 5.3800e-
003

0.2037 769.1960 769.1960 0.0429 770.0975

Vendor 0.4786 3.9123 5.6412 8.3100e-
003

0.2323 0.0633 0.2956 0.0663 0.0582 0.1245 838.5592 838.5592 7.4900e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 0.6748 2,703.748
3

2.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,689.577
1

2,689.5771

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 2.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904 2,689.577
1

2,689.5771 0.6748 2,703.748
3

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.6 Phase 1B3 - Math&Science Construction - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

229 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.8495 4.3740 10.0305 0.0172 0.0504 1,608.813
9

0.9798 0.0692 1.0490 0.2646 0.0636 0.3281

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,607.755
2

1,607.7552

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.7 Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

838.7164

Worker 0.3709 0.4617 4.3893 8.9000e-
003

0.7475 5.8700e-
003

0.7534 0.1983 5.3800e-
003

0.2037 769.1960 769.1960 0.0429 770.0975

Vendor 0.4786 3.9123 5.6412 8.3100e-
003

0.2323 0.0633 0.2956 0.0663 0.0582 0.1245 838.5592 838.5592 7.4900e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 0.6748 2,703.748
3

2.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2,689.577
1

2,689.5771

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.6591 30.0299 18.7446 0.0268 2.1167 2.1167 1.9904 1.9904 0.0000 2,689.577
1

2,689.5771 0.6748 2,703.748
3

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

230 of 543



4,137.522
4

Total 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 1.2275 4,137.522
4

18.0663 3.0883 21.1545 9.9307 2.8412 12.7719 0.0000 4,111.744
4

4,111.7444

Off-Road 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 3.0883 3.0883 2.8412 2.8412 0.0000 4,111.744
4

4,111.7444 1.2275

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

8.4900e-
003

152.32700.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

152.1487 152.1487

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 152.1487 152.1487 8.4900e-
003

152.3270

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4,137.522
5

Total 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 1.2275 4,137.522
5

18.0663 3.0883 21.1545 9.9307 2.8412 12.7719

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,111.744
4

4,111.7444

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.2609 56.8897 42.6318 0.0391 3.0883 3.0883 2.8412 2.8412 4,111.744
4

4,111.7444 1.2275

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

231 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

282.2177

Total 46.3254 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.0367 282.21770.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.4066 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 281.4481 281.4481 0.0367

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 45.9188 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

8.4900e-
003

152.32700.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

152.1487 152.1487

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.8 Phase 1B4 - Math&Science Architectural Coating - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 152.1487 152.1487 8.4900e-
003

152.3270

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

232 of 543



0.0000Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

282.2177

Total 46.3254 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.0367 282.21770.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.4066 2.5703 1.9018 2.9700e-
003

0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.2209 0.0000 281.4481 281.4481 0.0367

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 45.9188 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

8.4900e-
003

152.32700.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

152.1487 152.1487

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 152.1487 152.1487 8.4900e-
003

152.3270

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

233 of 543



Total 0.0815 0.1015 0.9647 1.9600e-
003

9.4300e-
003

169.25220.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448 169.0541 169.0541

0.0000

Worker 0.0815 0.1015 0.9647 1.9600e-
003

0.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448 169.0541 169.0541 9.4300e-
003

169.2522

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 0.5588 1,933.044
6

1.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,921.309
1

1,921.3091

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 1.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280 1,921.309
1

1,921.3091 0.5588 1,933.044
6

Total 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

8.4900e-
003

152.32700.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

152.1487 152.1487

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.9 Phase 1B5 - Math&Science Paving/Landscape - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Worker 0.0734 0.0913 0.8682 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.1600e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0600e-
003

0.0403 152.1487 152.1487 8.4900e-
003

152.3270

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

234 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0815 0.1015 0.9647 1.9600e-
003

9.4300e-
003

169.25220.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

169.0541 169.0541

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.10 Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0815 0.1015 0.9647 1.9600e-
003

0.1643 1.2900e-
003

0.1656 0.0436 1.1800e-
003

0.0448 169.0541 169.0541 9.4300e-
003

169.2522

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 0.5588 1,933.044
6

1.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1,921.309
0

1,921.3090

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.9601 20.3064 12.6794 0.0186 1.2241 1.2241 1.1280 1.1280 0.0000 1,921.309
0

1,921.3090 0.5588 1,933.044
6

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

235 of 543



4,112.637
4

Off-Road 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 2.2921 2.2921 2.1365 2.1365 0.0000 4,089.284
1

4,089.2841 1.1121

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 1.0173 0.0000 1.0173 0.1541 0.0000 0.1541 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1567 1.4102 1.8501 4.9300e-
003

9.0500e-
003

471.15340.2040 0.0187 0.2227 0.0548 0.0172 0.0720

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

470.9634 470.9634

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0556 0.0690 0.6519 1.4700e-
003

0.1232 9.2000e-
004

0.1242 0.0327 8.5000e-
004

0.0335 122.3507 122.3507 6.5300e-
003

122.4878

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.1012 1.3412 1.1982 3.4600e-
003

0.0808 0.0178 0.0986 0.0221 0.0164 0.0385 348.6127 348.6127 2.5200e-
003

348.6656

4,112.637
4

Total 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 1.1121 4,112.637
4

1.0173 2.2921 3.3094 0.1541 2.1365 2.2906

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

4,089.284
1

4,089.2841

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 2.2921 2.2921 2.1365 2.1365 4,089.284
1

4,089.2841 1.1121

Category lb/day lb/day

Fugitive Dust 1.0173 0.0000 1.0173 0.1541 0.0000 0.1541 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

236 of 543



4,090.754
4

Total 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 1.2262 4,090.754
4

18.0663 2.9387 21.0049 9.9307 2.7036 12.6343 4,065.005
3

4,065.0053

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 2.9387 2.9387 2.7036 2.7036 4,065.005
3

4,065.0053 1.2262

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1567 1.4102 1.8501 4.9300e-
003

9.0500e-
003

471.15340.2040 0.0187 0.2227 0.0548 0.0172 0.0720

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

470.9634 470.9634

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.11 Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0556 0.0690 0.6519 1.4700e-
003

0.1232 9.2000e-
004

0.1242 0.0327 8.5000e-
004

0.0335 122.3507 122.3507 6.5300e-
003

122.4878

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.1012 1.3412 1.1982 3.4600e-
003

0.0808 0.0178 0.0986 0.0221 0.0164 0.0385 348.6127 348.6127 2.5200e-
003

348.6656

Total 4.2876 45.6559 35.0303 0.0399 1.1121 4,112.637
4

1.0173 2.2921 3.3094 0.1541 2.1365 2.2906

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,089.284
1

4,089.2841

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

237 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

4,090.754
4

Total 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 1.2262 4,090.754
4

18.0663 2.9387 21.0049 9.9307 2.7036 12.6343

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4,065.005
3

4,065.0053

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 5.0771 54.6323 41.1053 0.0391 2.9387 2.9387 2.7036 2.7036 0.0000 4,065.005
3

4,065.0053 1.2262

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0667 0.0829 0.7823 1.7600e-
003

7.8300e-
003

146.98540.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

146.8209 146.8209

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0667 0.0829 0.7823 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402 146.8209 146.8209 7.8300e-
003

146.9854

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

238 of 543



828.7962

Worker 0.3372 0.4189 3.9551 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.6100e-
003

0.7532 0.1983 5.1600e-
003

0.2034 742.2610 742.2610 0.0396 743.0926

Vendor 0.4224 3.3974 5.2399 8.2900e-
003

0.2323 0.0507 0.2830 0.0663 0.0466 0.1129 828.6572 828.6572 6.6200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 0.6620 2,683.189
0

1.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,669.286
4

2,669.2864

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 1.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485 2,669.286
4

2,669.2864 0.6620 2,683.189
0

Total 0.0667 0.0829 0.7823 1.7600e-
003

7.8300e-
003

146.98540.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

146.8209 146.8209

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.12 Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0667 0.0829 0.7823 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.1100e-
003

0.1490 0.0392 1.0200e-
003

0.0402 146.8209 146.8209 7.8300e-
003

146.9854

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

239 of 543



Total 0.7596 3.8163 9.1950 0.0172 0.0462 1,571.888
8

0.9799 0.0563 1.0361 0.2646 0.0518 0.3163 1,570.918
2

1,570.9182

3.12 Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

828.7962

Worker 0.3372 0.4189 3.9551 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.6100e-
003

0.7532 0.1983 5.1600e-
003

0.2034 742.2610 742.2610 0.0396 743.0926

Vendor 0.4224 3.3974 5.2399 8.2900e-
003

0.2323 0.0507 0.2830 0.0663 0.0466 0.1129 828.6572 828.6572 6.6200e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 0.6620 2,683.189
0

1.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2,669.286
4

2,669.2864

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.4062 28.5063 18.5066 0.0268 1.9674 1.9674 1.8485 1.8485 0.0000 2,669.286
4

2,669.2864 0.6620 2,683.189
0

Total 0.7596 3.8163 9.1950 0.0172 0.0462 1,571.888
8

0.9799 0.0563 1.0361 0.2646 0.0518 0.3163

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,570.918
2

1,570.9182

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

240 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.6914 3.4172 8.5227 0.0172 0.0429 1,529.114
3

0.9799 0.0494 1.0293 0.2646 0.0455 0.3100

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,528.213
3

1,528.2133

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

814.7701

Worker 0.3055 0.3807 3.5597 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.4400e-
003

0.7530 0.1983 5.0100e-
003

0.2033 713.5748 713.5748 0.0366 714.3442

Vendor 0.3860 3.0365 4.9630 8.2700e-
003

0.2323 0.0440 0.2763 0.0663 0.0405 0.1067 814.6385 814.6385 6.2600e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 0.6497 2,653.449
0

1.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,639.805
3

2,639.8053

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 1.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730 2,639.805
3

2,639.8053 0.6497 2,653.449
0

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

241 of 543



282.0721

Total 35.8298 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.0297 282.07210.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 281.4481 281.4481

Off-Road 0.3323 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 281.4481 281.4481 0.0297

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 35.4975 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.6914 3.4172 8.5227 0.0172 0.0429 1,529.114
3

0.9799 0.0494 1.0293 0.2646 0.0455 0.3100

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,528.213
3

1,528.2133

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.13 Phase 2d - English&Art Architectural Coating - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

814.7701

Worker 0.3055 0.3807 3.5597 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.4400e-
003

0.7530 0.1983 5.0100e-
003

0.2033 713.5748 713.5748 0.0366 714.3442

Vendor 0.3860 3.0365 4.9630 8.2700e-
003

0.2323 0.0440 0.2763 0.0663 0.0405 0.1067 814.6385 814.6385 6.2600e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 0.6497 2,653.449
0

1.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2,639.805
3

2,639.8053

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Off-Road 3.1024 26.4057 18.1291 0.0268 1.7812 1.7812 1.6730 1.6730 0.0000 2,639.805
3

2,639.8053 0.6497 2,653.449
0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

242 of 543



282.0721

Total 35.8298 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.0297 282.07210.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.0000 281.4481 281.4481

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 0.3323 2.1850 1.8681 2.9700e-
003

0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.1733 0.0000 281.4481 281.4481 0.0297

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 35.4975 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0604 0.0753 0.7041 1.7600e-
003

7.2500e-
003

141.29890.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

141.1467 141.1467

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0604 0.0753 0.7041 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402 141.1467 141.1467 7.2500e-
003

141.2989

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

243 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 0.5588 1,885.560
9

1.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,873.826
4

1,873.8264

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 1.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269 1,873.826
4

1,873.8264 0.5588 1,885.560
9

Total 0.0604 0.0753 0.7041 1.7600e-
003

7.2500e-
003

141.29890.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

141.1467 141.1467

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.14 Phase 2e - English&Art Landscape/Hardscape - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0604 0.0753 0.7041 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0800e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.9000e-
004

0.0402 141.1467 141.1467 7.2500e-
003

141.2989

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

244 of 543



Total 0.0671 0.0837 0.7823 1.9500e-
003

8.0500e-
003

156.99870.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447 156.8296 156.8296

0.0000

Worker 0.0671 0.0837 0.7823 1.9500e-
003

0.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447 156.8296 156.8296 8.0500e-
003

156.9987

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 0.5588 1,885.560
9

1.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1,873.826
4

1,873.8264

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.6554 16.8035 12.4837 0.0186 1.0056 1.0056 0.9269 0.9269 0.0000 1,873.826
4

1,873.8264 0.5588 1,885.560
9

Total 0.0671 0.0837 0.7823 1.9500e-
003

8.0500e-
003

156.99870.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

156.8296 156.8296

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0671 0.0837 0.7823 1.9500e-
003

0.1643 1.1900e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.1000e-
003

0.0447 156.8296 156.8296 8.0500e-
003

156.9987

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

245 of 543



0.006541 0.000614 0.003471

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509603 0.073619 0.192430 0.134105 0.001832 0.0020870.036943 0.005309 0.012459 0.020989

4.4 Fleet Mix

High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Total 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

19,542.41
93

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

Unmitigated 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043 19,542.41
93

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

246 of 543



Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961

Mitigated

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3668.57 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

431.5961

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

247 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

431.5961 431.5961

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3.66857 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

248 of 543



0.3780

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

249 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 326.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 75.00

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - From project plans

Demolition - 

Vehicle Trips - 

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 141.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 109.00

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2015

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 5:10 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Proposed Master Plan
San Diego County, Annual

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

250 of 543



tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 1/1/2016 2/1/2015

tblProjectCharacteristics OperationalYear 2014 2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 11/19/2014 11/20/2014

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/2/2015 3/1/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 9/14/2017 6/16/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 1/1/2016 10/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 3/31/2016 6/15/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 2/9/2016 3/11/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 9/14/2017 3/1/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 3/12/2015 8/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/26/2016 6/15/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/6/2014 1/2/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/4/2014 12/5/2014

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/31/2015 3/30/2016

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 11/13/2017 8/15/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 3/2/2016 12/1/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 5/10/2016 7/25/2016

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 28.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 3/29/2018 9/13/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 8/11/2015 12/31/2015

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 10/24/2017 9/13/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/4/2015 12/31/2015

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 43.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 14.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 12.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 29.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 260.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 12.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 22.00

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

251 of 543



415.11232017 2.9100 3.2524 2.8634 4.8100e-
003

0.1012 0.2014 0.3027 0.0273 0.1895 0.2168 0.0000 413.6233 413.6233 0.0709 0.0000

627.9909

2016 0.4176 3.6233 2.9587 4.2400e-
003

0.3459 0.2127 0.5586 0.1654 0.1988 0.3641 0.0000 376.6999 376.6999 0.0734 0.0000 378.2403

2015 3.2267 5.8665 4.7355 7.0200e-
003

0.3908 0.3664 0.7572 0.1763 0.3437 0.5200 0.0000 625.5803 625.5803 0.1148 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

2014 0.2542 2.1642 1.6923 2.3100e-
003

0.1524 0.1300 0.2824 0.0709 0.1216 0.1925 0.0000 210.4397 210.4397 0.0419 0.0000 211.3187

415.1126

Total 6.8085 14.9064 12.2499 0.0184 0.3009 0.0000 1,632.663
5

0.9903 0.9106 1.9009 0.4398 0.8535 1.2933

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1,626.344
6

1,626.3446

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO

2017 2.9100 3.2524 2.8634 4.8100e-
003

0.1012 0.2014 0.3027 0.0273 0.1895 0.2168 0.0000 413.6237 413.6237 0.0709 0.0000

627.9914

2016 0.4177 3.6233 2.9587 4.2400e-
003

0.3459 0.2127 0.5586 0.1654 0.1988 0.3641 0.0000 376.7002 376.7002 0.0734 0.0000 378.2406

2015 3.2267 5.8665 4.7355 7.0200e-
003

0.3908 0.3664 0.7572 0.1763 0.3437 0.5200 0.0000 625.5808 625.5808 0.1148 0.0000

N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

2014 0.2542 2.1642 1.6923 2.3100e-
003

0.1524 0.1300 0.2824 0.0709 0.1216 0.1925 0.0000 210.4399 210.4399 0.0419 0.0000 211.3188

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction

NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

CH4

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

252 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Total 2.6995 3.8304 16.8415 0.0317 3.9374 0.0111 3,290.289
3

2.1542 0.0535 2.2077 0.5762 0.0495 0.6257

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

62.5858 3,141.563
2

3,204.1489

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

135.1600

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.2751 97.4708 99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 60.3106 0.0000 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000

493.9981

Mobile 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000 2,554.402
7

Energy 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 492.1217 492.1217 0.0183 4.8100e-
003

N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.00 0.00 0.00

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

2.2 Overall Operational
Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 6.8085 14.9064 12.2499 0.0184 0.9903 0.9106 1.9009 0.4398 0.8535 1.2933 0.0000 1,626.343
2

1,626.3432 0.3009 0.0000 1,632.662
2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

253 of 543



13 Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 6/16/2017

141

11 Phase 2c - English&Art 
Constuction

Building Construction 6/15/2016 9/13/2017 5

8/15/2017 5

326

12 Phase 2d - English&Art 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 3/1/2017 9/13/2017 5

43

8 Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Paving 10/1/2015 12/1/2015 5 44

9 Phase 2a - English&Art 
Demolition

Demolition 3/1/2016 3/30/2016 5 22

10 Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2016 7/25/2016 5 29

5 Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Building Construction 1/2/2015 12/31/2015 5 260

6 Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 2/1/2015 3/11/2015 5 28

7 Phase 1B4 - Math&Science 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 8/1/2015 12/31/2015 5 109

2 Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Building Construction 7/17/2014 10/29/2014 5 75

3 Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing 
Paving

Paving 10/30/2014 11/18/2014 5 14

4 Phase 1B1 - Math&Science 
Demolition

Demolition 11/20/2014 12/5/2014 5 12

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 7/1/2014 7/16/2014 5 12

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00

3,290.285
6

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 2.6995 3.8304 16.8415 0.0317 2.1542 0.0535 2.2077 0.5762 0.0495 0.6257 62.5858 3,141.563
2

3,204.1489 3.9374 0.0111

135.1600

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.2751 97.4708 99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 60.3106 0.0000 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000

493.9981

Mobile 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000 2,554.402
7

Energy 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 492.1217 492.1217 0.0183 4.8100e-
003

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

254 of 543



Phase 1B4 - Math&Science 
Architectural Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B3 - Math&Science 
Construction

Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing 
Construction

Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 323,958; Non-Residential Outdoor: 107,986 (Architectural Coating 

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

255 of 543



Phase 1B3 - 
Math&Science

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1A3 - Interim 
Housing Paving

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B1 - 
Math&Science

6 15.00 0.00 45.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Phase 1A1 - Interim 
Housing Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1A2 - Interim 
Housing Construction

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 2d - English&Art Architectural 
Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 1B5 - Math&Science 
Paving/Landscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

256 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

22.7614

Total 0.0318 0.3457 0.2578 2.3000e-
004

6.6800e-
003

0.0000 22.76140.1084 0.0188 0.1272 0.0596 0.0173 0.0769

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 22.6210 22.6210

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0318 0.3457 0.2578 2.3000e-
004

0.0188 0.0188 0.0173 0.0173 0.0000 22.6210 22.6210 6.6800e-
003

0.0000

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.1084 0.0000 0.1084 0.0596 0.0000 0.0596 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

HDT_Mix HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Phase 2e - English&Art 
Landscape/Hardscape

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.2 Phase 1A1 - Interim Housing Site Prep - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Phase 2c - English&Art 
Constuction

9 91.00 35.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2d - English&Art 
Architectural Coating

1 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2a - English&Art 
Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 102.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 2b - English&Art 
Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B4 - 
Math&Science

1 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B5 - 
Math&Science

8 20.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 1B2 - 
Math&Science Site

7 18.00 0.00 0.00 10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

257 of 543



0.0000

Worker 4.5000e-
004

6.0000e-
004

5.7600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

2.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.8655 0.8655 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.8665

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

22.7613

Total 0.0318 0.3457 0.2578 2.3000e-
004

6.6800e-
003

0.0000 22.76130.1084 0.0188 0.1272 0.0596 0.0173 0.0769

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 22.6209 22.6209

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0318 0.3457 0.2578 2.3000e-
004

0.0188 0.0188 0.0173 0.0173 0.0000 22.6209 22.6209 6.6800e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.1084 0.0000 0.1084 0.0596 0.0000 0.0596 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 4.5000e-
004

6.0000e-
004

5.7600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.86658.7000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

2.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.4000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.8655 0.8655

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 4.5000e-
004

6.0000e-
004

5.7600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

2.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.8655 0.8655 5.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.8665

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

258 of 543



Total 0.0338 0.1915 0.3939 6.5000e-
004

1.8900e-
003

0.0000 56.42190.0359 3.4900e-
003

0.0394 9.7100e-
003

3.1900e-
003

0.0129 0.0000 56.3822 56.3822

Mitigated Construction On-Site

29.0423

Worker 0.0142 0.0189 0.1820 3.4000e-
004

0.0274 2.4000e-
004

0.0276 7.2700e-
003

2.1000e-
004

7.4900e-
003

0.0000 27.3461 27.3461 1.5900e-
003

0.0000 27.3796

Vendor 0.0196 0.1726 0.2119 3.1000e-
004

8.5400e-
003

3.2500e-
003

0.0118 2.4400e-
003

2.9800e-
003

5.4300e-
003

0.0000 29.0361 29.0361 3.0000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1451 1.1720 0.7099 1.0100e-
003

0.0234 0.0000 92.65750.0836 0.0836 0.0787 0.0787

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 92.1653 92.1653

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.1451 1.1720 0.7099 1.0100e-
003

0.0836 0.0836 0.0787 0.0787 0.0000 92.1653 92.1653 0.0234 0.0000 92.6575

Total 4.5000e-
004

6.0000e-
004

5.7600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.86658.7000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

2.3000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.4000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.8655 0.8655

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.3 Phase 1A2 - Interim Housing Construction - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

259 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0338 0.1915 0.3939 6.5000e-
004

1.8900e-
003

0.0000 56.42190.0359 3.4900e-
003

0.0394 9.7100e-
003

3.1900e-
003

0.0129

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 56.3822 56.3822

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.4 Phase 1A3 - Interim Housing Paving - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

29.0423

Worker 0.0142 0.0189 0.1820 3.4000e-
004

0.0274 2.4000e-
004

0.0276 7.2700e-
003

2.1000e-
004

7.4900e-
003

0.0000 27.3461 27.3461 1.5900e-
003

0.0000 27.3796

Vendor 0.0196 0.1726 0.2119 3.1000e-
004

8.5400e-
003

3.2500e-
003

0.0118 2.4400e-
003

2.9800e-
003

5.4300e-
003

0.0000 29.0361 29.0361 3.0000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1451 1.1720 0.7099 1.0100e-
003

0.0234 0.0000 92.65740.0836 0.0836 0.0787 0.0787

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 92.1652 92.1652

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.1451 1.1720 0.7099 1.0100e-
003

0.0836 0.0836 0.0787 0.0787 0.0000 92.1652 92.1652 0.0234 0.0000 92.6574

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

260 of 543



0.0000

Total 0.0140 0.1470 0.0887 1.3000e-
004

3.5500e-
003

0.0000 12.39558.8000e-
003

8.8000e-
003

8.1100e-
003

8.1100e-
003

0.0000 12.3210 12.3210

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0140 0.1470 0.0887 1.3000e-
004

8.8000e-
003

8.8000e-
003

8.1100e-
003

8.1100e-
003

0.0000 12.3210 12.3210 3.5500e-
003

0.0000 12.3955

Total 5.8000e-
004

7.8000e-
004

7.4600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

7.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.12331.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.1000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.1219 1.1219

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 5.8000e-
004

7.8000e-
004

7.4600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.1219 1.1219 7.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.1233

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 0.0140 0.1470 0.0887 1.3000e-
004

3.5500e-
003

0.0000 12.39558.8000e-
003

8.8000e-
003

8.1100e-
003

8.1100e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 12.3210 12.3210

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0140 0.1470 0.0887 1.3000e-
004

8.8000e-
003

8.8000e-
003

8.1100e-
003

8.1100e-
003

0.0000 12.3210 12.3210 3.5500e-
003

0.0000 12.3955

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

261 of 543



22.7942

Total 0.0276 0.2973 0.2177 2.4000e-
004

6.1200e-
003

0.0000 22.79424.9800e-
003

0.0152 0.0201 7.5000e-
004

0.0142 0.0149 0.0000 22.6656 22.6656

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 0.0276 0.2973 0.2177 2.4000e-
004

0.0152 0.0152 0.0142 0.0142 0.0000 22.6656 22.6656 6.1200e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 4.9800e-
003

0.0000 4.9800e-
003

7.5000e-
004

0.0000 7.5000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 5.8000e-
004

7.8000e-
004

7.4600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

7.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.12331.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.1000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.1219 1.1219

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.5 Phase 1B1 - Math&Science Demolition - 2014
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 5.8000e-
004

7.8000e-
004

7.4600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.1300e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.1219 1.1219 7.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.1233

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

262 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 6.2000e-
004

8.8900e-
003

6.3400e-
003

2.0000e-
005

3.8000e-
004

1.6000e-
004

5.4000e-
004

1.1000e-
004

1.4000e-
004

2.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.5762 1.5762 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.5765

22.7942

Total 0.0276 0.2973 0.2177 2.4000e-
004

6.1200e-
003

0.0000 22.79424.9800e-
003

0.0152 0.0201 7.5000e-
004

0.0142 0.0149

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 22.6655 22.6655

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0276 0.2973 0.2177 2.4000e-
004

0.0152 0.0152 0.0142 0.0142 0.0000 22.6655 22.6655 6.1200e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 4.9800e-
003

0.0000 4.9800e-
003

7.5000e-
004

0.0000 7.5000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 1.0000e-
003

9.3900e-
003

0.0111 3.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.29861.1000e-
003

1.7000e-
004

1.2700e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.5000e-
004

4.5000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2.2975 2.2975

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.8000e-
004

5.0000e-
004

4.8000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

7.2000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

7.3000e-
004

1.9000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.7212 0.7212 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.7221

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 6.2000e-
004

8.8900e-
003

6.3400e-
003

2.0000e-
005

3.8000e-
004

1.6000e-
004

5.4000e-
004

1.1000e-
004

1.4000e-
004

2.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.5762 1.5762 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.5765

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

263 of 543



Total 0.1032 0.5709 1.2392 2.2500e-
003

5.9300e-
003

0.0000 191.07430.1245 8.9300e-
003

0.1334 0.0337 8.2100e-
003

0.0419 0.0000 190.9497 190.9497

99.3537

Worker 0.0446 0.0591 0.5663 1.1700e-
003

0.0949 7.6000e-
004

0.0956 0.0252 7.0000e-
004

0.0259 0.0000 91.6143 91.6143 5.0600e-
003

0.0000 91.7206

Vendor 0.0586 0.5119 0.6729 1.0800e-
003

0.0296 8.1700e-
003

0.0378 8.4700e-
003

7.5100e-
003

0.0160 0.0000 99.3354 99.3354 8.7000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.4757 3.9039 2.4368 3.4900e-
003

0.0796 0.0000 318.86390.2752 0.2752 0.2588 0.2588

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 317.1926 317.1926

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.4757 3.9039 2.4368 3.4900e-
003

0.2752 0.2752 0.2588 0.2588 0.0000 317.1926 317.1926 0.0796 0.0000 318.8639

Total 1.0000e-
003

9.3900e-
003

0.0111 3.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 2.29861.1000e-
003

1.7000e-
004

1.2700e-
003

3.0000e-
004

1.5000e-
004

4.5000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2.2975 2.2975

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.6 Phase 1B3 - Math&Science Construction - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.8000e-
004

5.0000e-
004

4.8000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

7.2000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

7.3000e-
004

1.9000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.7212 0.7212 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.7221

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

264 of 543



Total 0.1032 0.5709 1.2392 2.2500e-
003

5.9300e-
003

0.0000 191.07430.1245 8.9300e-
003

0.1334 0.0337 8.2100e-
003

0.0419 0.0000 190.9497 190.9497

3.7 Phase 1B2 - Math&Science Site Prep - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

99.3537

Worker 0.0446 0.0591 0.5663 1.1700e-
003

0.0949 7.6000e-
004

0.0956 0.0252 7.0000e-
004

0.0259 0.0000 91.6143 91.6143 5.0600e-
003

0.0000 91.7206

Vendor 0.0586 0.5119 0.6729 1.0800e-
003

0.0296 8.1700e-
003

0.0378 8.4700e-
003

7.5100e-
003

0.0160 0.0000 99.3354 99.3354 8.7000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.4757 3.9039 2.4368 3.4900e-
003

0.0796 0.0000 318.86350.2752 0.2752 0.2588 0.2588

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 317.1923 317.1923

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.4757 3.9039 2.4368 3.4900e-
003

0.2752 0.2752 0.2588 0.2588 0.0000 317.1923 317.1923 0.0796 0.0000 318.8635

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

265 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.2529 0.0000 0.2529 0.1390 0.0000 0.1390 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 9.5000e-
004

1.2600e-
003

0.0121 2.0000e-
005

1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.95382.0200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.0400e-
003

5.4000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.9516 1.9516

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 9.5000e-
004

1.2600e-
003

0.0121 2.0000e-
005

2.0200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.0400e-
003

5.4000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.9516 1.9516 1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.9538

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

52.5490

Total 0.0737 0.7965 0.5968 5.5000e-
004

0.0156 0.0000 52.54900.2529 0.0432 0.2962 0.1390 0.0398 0.1788

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 52.2216 52.2216

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0737 0.7965 0.5968 5.5000e-
004

0.0432 0.0432 0.0398 0.0398 0.0000 52.2216 52.2216 0.0156 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.2529 0.0000 0.2529 0.1390 0.0000 0.1390 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

266 of 543



13.9533

Total 2.5247 0.1401 0.1037 1.6000e-
004

1.8100e-
003

0.0000 13.95330.0120 0.0120 0.0120 0.0120 0.0000 13.9152 13.9152

Off-Road 0.0222 0.1401 0.1037 1.6000e-
004

0.0120 0.0120 0.0120 0.0120 0.0000 13.9152 13.9152 1.8100e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 2.5026 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 9.5000e-
004

1.2600e-
003

0.0121 2.0000e-
005

1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.95382.0200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.0400e-
003

5.4000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.9516 1.9516

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.8 Phase 1B4 - Math&Science Architectural Coating - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 9.5000e-
004

1.2600e-
003

0.0121 2.0000e-
005

2.0200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.0400e-
003

5.4000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.5000e-
004

0.0000 1.9516 1.9516 1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.9538

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

52.5489

Total 0.0737 0.7965 0.5968 5.5000e-
004

0.0156 0.0000 52.54890.2529 0.0432 0.2962 0.1390 0.0398 0.1788

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 52.2215 52.2215

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0737 0.7965 0.5968 5.5000e-
004

0.0432 0.0432 0.0398 0.0398 0.0000 52.2215 52.2215 0.0156 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

267 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

13.9533

Total 2.5247 0.1401 0.1037 1.6000e-
004

1.8100e-
003

0.0000 13.95330.0120 0.0120 0.0120 0.0120

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 13.9152 13.9152

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0222 0.1401 0.1037 1.6000e-
004

0.0120 0.0120 0.0120 0.0120 0.0000 13.9152 13.9152 1.8100e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 2.5026 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.7000e-
003

4.9000e-
003

0.0470 1.0000e-
004

4.2000e-
004

0.0000 7.60597.8700e-
003

6.0000e-
005

7.9300e-
003

2.0900e-
003

6.0000e-
005

2.1500e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 7.5971 7.5971

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.7000e-
003

4.9000e-
003

0.0470 1.0000e-
004

7.8700e-
003

6.0000e-
005

7.9300e-
003

2.0900e-
003

6.0000e-
005

2.1500e-
003

0.0000 7.5971 7.5971 4.2000e-
004

0.0000 7.6059

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

268 of 543



0.0000Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 0.0431 0.4467 0.2790 4.1000e-
004

0.0112 0.0000 38.57980.0269 0.0269 0.0248 0.0248

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 38.3456 38.3456

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0431 0.4467 0.2790 4.1000e-
004

0.0269 0.0269 0.0248 0.0248 0.0000 38.3456 38.3456 0.0112 0.0000 38.5798

Total 3.7000e-
003

4.9000e-
003

0.0470 1.0000e-
004

4.2000e-
004

0.0000 7.60597.8700e-
003

6.0000e-
005

7.9300e-
003

2.0900e-
003

6.0000e-
005

2.1500e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 7.5971 7.5971

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.9 Phase 1B5 - Math&Science Paving/Landscape - 2015
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.7000e-
003

4.9000e-
003

0.0470 1.0000e-
004

7.8700e-
003

6.0000e-
005

7.9300e-
003

2.0900e-
003

6.0000e-
005

2.1500e-
003

0.0000 7.5971 7.5971 4.2000e-
004

0.0000 7.6059

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

269 of 543



Total 1.6600e-
003

2.2000e-
003

0.0211 4.0000e-
005

1.9000e-
004

0.0000 3.41143.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5600e-
003

9.4000e-
004

3.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

0.0000 3.4075 3.4075

3.10 Phase 2a - English&Art Demolition - 2016

0.0000

Worker 1.6600e-
003

2.2000e-
003

0.0211 4.0000e-
005

3.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5600e-
003

9.4000e-
004

3.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

0.0000 3.4075 3.4075 1.9000e-
004

0.0000 3.4114

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 0.0431 0.4467 0.2790 4.1000e-
004

0.0112 0.0000 38.57980.0269 0.0269 0.0248 0.0248

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 38.3456 38.3456

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0431 0.4467 0.2790 4.1000e-
004

0.0269 0.0269 0.0248 0.0248 0.0000 38.3456 38.3456 0.0112 0.0000 38.5798

Total 1.6600e-
003

2.2000e-
003

0.0211 4.0000e-
005

1.9000e-
004

0.0000 3.41143.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5600e-
003

9.4000e-
004

3.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 3.4075 3.4075

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Worker 1.6600e-
003

2.2000e-
003

0.0211 4.0000e-
005

3.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5600e-
003

9.4000e-
004

3.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

0.0000 3.4075 3.4075 1.9000e-
004

0.0000 3.4114

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

270 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 1.6400e-
003

0.0156 0.0193 6.0000e-
005

9.0000e-
005

0.0000 4.71852.1900e-
003

2.1000e-
004

2.4000e-
003

5.9000e-
004

1.9000e-
004

7.8000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4.7166 4.7166

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 5.7000e-
004

7.5000e-
004

7.1300e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.3200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3300e-
003

3.5000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.2331 1.2331 7.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.2344

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 1.0700e-
003

0.0148 0.0122 4.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

2.0000e-
004

1.0700e-
003

2.4000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

4.2000e-
004

0.0000 3.4836 3.4836 2.0000e-
005

0.0000 3.4841

41.0401

Total 0.0472 0.5022 0.3853 4.4000e-
004

0.0111 0.0000 41.04010.0112 0.0252 0.0364 1.6900e-
003

0.0235 0.0252

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 40.8071 40.8071

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0472 0.5022 0.3853 4.4000e-
004

0.0252 0.0252 0.0235 0.0235 0.0000 40.8071 40.8071 0.0111 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.0112 0.0000 0.0112 1.6900e-
003

0.0000 1.6900e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

271 of 543



53.8105Off-Road 0.0736 0.7922 0.5960 5.7000e-
004

0.0426 0.0426 0.0392 0.0392 0.0000 53.4718 53.4718 0.0161 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.2620 0.0000 0.2620 0.1440 0.0000 0.1440 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 1.6400e-
003

0.0156 0.0193 6.0000e-
005

9.0000e-
005

0.0000 4.71852.1900e-
003

2.1000e-
004

2.4000e-
003

5.9000e-
004

1.9000e-
004

7.8000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 4.7166 4.7166

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.11 Phase 2b - English&Art Site Prep - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 5.7000e-
004

7.5000e-
004

7.1300e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.3200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.3300e-
003

3.5000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

3.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.2331 1.2331 7.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.2344

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 1.0700e-
003

0.0148 0.0122 4.0000e-
005

8.7000e-
004

2.0000e-
004

1.0700e-
003

2.4000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

4.2000e-
004

0.0000 3.4836 3.4836 2.0000e-
005

0.0000 3.4841

41.0401

Total 0.0472 0.5022 0.3853 4.4000e-
004

0.0111 0.0000 41.04010.0112 0.0252 0.0364 1.6900e-
003

0.0235 0.0252

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 40.8071 40.8071

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0472 0.5022 0.3853 4.4000e-
004

0.0252 0.0252 0.0235 0.0235 0.0000 40.8071 40.8071 0.0111 0.0000

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive Dust 0.0112 0.0000 0.0112 1.6900e-
003

0.0000 1.6900e-
003

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

272 of 543



53.8105

Total 0.0736 0.7922 0.5960 5.7000e-
004

0.0161 0.0000 53.81050.2620 0.0426 0.3046 0.1440 0.0392 0.1832 0.0000 53.4717 53.4717

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 0.0736 0.7922 0.5960 5.7000e-
004

0.0426 0.0426 0.0392 0.0392 0.0000 53.4717 53.4717 0.0161 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.2620 0.0000 0.2620 0.1440 0.0000 0.1440 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 9.0000e-
004

1.1800e-
003

0.0113 3.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
004

0.0000 1.95262.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.9505 1.9505

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 9.0000e-
004

1.1800e-
003

0.0113 3.0000e-
005

2.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

0.0000 1.9505 1.9505 1.0000e-
004

0.0000 1.9526

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0736 0.7922 0.5960 5.7000e-
004

0.0161 0.0000 53.81050.2620 0.0426 0.3046 0.1440 0.0392 0.1832

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 53.4718 53.4718

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

273 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.2436 2.0382 1.3232 1.9200e-
003

0.0429 0.0000 174.04160.1407 0.1407 0.1322 0.1322

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 173.1398 173.1398

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.2436 2.0382 1.3232 1.9200e-
003

0.1407 0.1407 0.1322 0.1322 0.0000 173.1398 173.1398 0.0429 0.0000 174.0416

Total 9.0000e-
004

1.1800e-
003

0.0113 3.0000e-
005

1.0000e-
004

0.0000 1.95262.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.9505 1.9505

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.12 Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction - 2016
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 9.0000e-
004

1.1800e-
003

0.0113 3.0000e-
005

2.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

0.0000 1.9505 1.9505 1.0000e-
004

0.0000 1.9526

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

274 of 543



53.9995

Worker 0.0223 0.0295 0.2810 6.4000e-
004

0.0522 4.0000e-
004

0.0526 0.0139 3.7000e-
004

0.0142 0.0000 48.6238 48.6238 2.5700e-
003

0.0000 48.6777

Vendor 0.0285 0.2445 0.3425 5.9000e-
004

0.0163 3.6000e-
003

0.0199 4.6600e-
003

3.3100e-
003

7.9700e-
003

0.0000 53.9906 53.9906 4.2000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.2435 2.0382 1.3232 1.9200e-
003

0.0429 0.0000 174.04140.1407 0.1407 0.1322 0.1322

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 173.1396 173.1396

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.2435 2.0382 1.3232 1.9200e-
003

0.1407 0.1407 0.1322 0.1322 0.0000 173.1396 173.1396 0.0429 0.0000 174.0414

Total 0.0508 0.2740 0.6236 1.2300e-
003

2.9900e-
003

0.0000 102.67720.0685 4.0000e-
003

0.0725 0.0185 3.6800e-
003

0.0222

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 102.6144 102.6144

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

53.9995

Worker 0.0223 0.0295 0.2810 6.4000e-
004

0.0522 4.0000e-
004

0.0526 0.0139 3.7000e-
004

0.0142 0.0000 48.6238 48.6238 2.5700e-
003

0.0000 48.6777

Vendor 0.0285 0.2445 0.3425 5.9000e-
004

0.0163 3.6000e-
003

0.0199 4.6600e-
003

3.3100e-
003

7.9700e-
003

0.0000 53.9906 53.9906 4.2000e-
004

0.0000

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

275 of 543



Total 0.0592 0.3140 0.7383 1.5800e-
003

3.5500e-
003

0.0000 127.82020.0876 4.5000e-
003

0.0921 0.0237 4.1400e-
003

0.0278 0.0000 127.7456 127.7456

Mitigated Construction On-Site

67.9358

Worker 0.0259 0.0343 0.3242 8.2000e-
004

0.0668 5.0000e-
004

0.0673 0.0177 4.6000e-
004

0.0182 0.0000 59.8206 59.8206 3.0400e-
003

0.0000 59.8845

Vendor 0.0333 0.2797 0.4142 7.6000e-
004

0.0208 4.0000e-
003

0.0248 5.9600e-
003

3.6800e-
003

9.6400e-
003

0.0000 67.9250 67.9250 5.1000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.2839 2.4161 1.6588 2.4500e-
003

0.0539 0.0000 220.25590.1630 0.1630 0.1531 0.1531

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 219.1234 219.1234

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.2839 2.4161 1.6588 2.4500e-
003

0.1630 0.1630 0.1531 0.1531 0.0000 219.1234 219.1234 0.0539 0.0000 220.2559

Total 0.0508 0.2740 0.6236 1.2300e-
003

2.9900e-
003

0.0000 102.67720.0685 4.0000e-
003

0.0725 0.0185 3.6800e-
003

0.0222

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 102.6144 102.6144

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.12 Phase 2c - English&Art Constuction - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

276 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0592 0.3140 0.7383 1.5800e-
003

3.5500e-
003

0.0000 127.82020.0876 4.5000e-
003

0.0921 0.0237 4.1400e-
003

0.0278

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 127.7456 127.7456

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.13 Phase 2d - English&Art Architectural Coating - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

67.9358

Worker 0.0259 0.0343 0.3242 8.2000e-
004

0.0668 5.0000e-
004

0.0673 0.0177 4.6000e-
004

0.0182 0.0000 59.8206 59.8206 3.0400e-
003

0.0000 59.8845

Vendor 0.0333 0.2797 0.4142 7.6000e-
004

0.0208 4.0000e-
003

0.0248 5.9600e-
003

3.6800e-
003

9.6400e-
003

0.0000 67.9250 67.9250 5.1000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.2839 2.4161 1.6588 2.4500e-
003

0.0539 0.0000 220.25570.1630 0.1630 0.1531 0.1531

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 219.1231 219.1231

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.2839 2.4161 1.6588 2.4500e-
003

0.1630 0.1630 0.1531 0.1531 0.0000 219.1231 219.1231 0.0539 0.0000 220.2557

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

277 of 543



18.0403

Total 2.5260 0.1540 0.1317 2.1000e-
004

1.9000e-
003

0.0000 18.04030.0122 0.0122 0.0122 0.0122 0.0000 18.0004 18.0004

Off-Road 0.0234 0.1540 0.1317 2.1000e-
004

0.0122 0.0122 0.0122 0.0122 0.0000 18.0004 18.0004 1.9000e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 2.5026 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.9400e-
003

5.2300e-
003

0.0494 1.3000e-
004

4.6000e-
004

0.0000 9.12670.0102 8.0000e-
005

0.0103 2.7000e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.7700e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 9.1170 9.1170

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.9400e-
003

5.2300e-
003

0.0494 1.3000e-
004

0.0102 8.0000e-
005

0.0103 2.7000e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.7700e-
003

0.0000 9.1170 9.1170 4.6000e-
004

0.0000 9.1267

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

18.0404

Total 2.5260 0.1540 0.1317 2.1000e-
004

1.9000e-
003

0.0000 18.04040.0122 0.0122 0.0122 0.0122

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 18.0004 18.0004

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0234 0.1540 0.1317 2.1000e-
004

0.0122 0.0122 0.0122 0.0122 0.0000 18.0004 18.0004 1.9000e-
003

0.0000

Archit. Coating 2.5026 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

278 of 543



0.0000

Total 0.0356 0.3613 0.2684 4.0000e-
004

0.0109 0.0000 36.77690.0216 0.0216 0.0199 0.0199 0.0000 36.5480 36.5480

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0356 0.3613 0.2684 4.0000e-
004

0.0216 0.0216 0.0199 0.0199 0.0000 36.5480 36.5480 0.0109 0.0000 36.7769

Total 3.9400e-
003

5.2300e-
003

0.0494 1.3000e-
004

4.6000e-
004

0.0000 9.12670.0102 8.0000e-
005

0.0103 2.7000e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.7700e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 9.1170 9.1170

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.14 Phase 2e - English&Art Landscape/Hardscape - 2017
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.9400e-
003

5.2300e-
003

0.0494 1.3000e-
004

0.0102 8.0000e-
005

0.0103 2.7000e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.7700e-
003

0.0000 9.1170 9.1170 4.6000e-
004

0.0000 9.1267

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

279 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 0.0356 0.3613 0.2684 4.0000e-
004

0.0109 0.0000 36.77680.0216 0.0216 0.0199 0.0199

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 36.5480 36.5480

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0356 0.3613 0.2684 4.0000e-
004

0.0216 0.0216 0.0199 0.0199 0.0000 36.5480 36.5480 0.0109 0.0000 36.7768

Total 1.3400e-
003

1.7700e-
003

0.0167 4.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
004

0.0000 3.09263.4500e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.4700e-
003

9.2000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.4000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 3.0893 3.0893

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 1.3400e-
003

1.7700e-
003

0.0167 4.0000e-
005

3.4500e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.4700e-
003

9.2000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.4000e-
004

0.0000 3.0893 3.0893 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 3.0926

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

280 of 543



High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

Total 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

2,554.402
7

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

Unmitigated 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000 2,554.402
7

Total 1.3400e-
003

1.7700e-
003

0.0167 4.0000e-
005

1.6000e-
004

0.0000 3.09263.4500e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.4700e-
003

9.2000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.4000e-
004

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.0000 3.0893 3.0893

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

0.0000

Worker 1.3400e-
003

1.7700e-
003

0.0167 4.0000e-
005

3.4500e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.4700e-
003

9.2000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.4000e-
004

0.0000 3.0893 3.0893 1.6000e-
004

0.0000 3.0926

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

281 of 543



4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556 71.4556 71.8904

NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

High School 1.33903e+
006

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.89044.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.00004.9900e-
003

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

422.1077

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Electricity 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 420.6661 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Electricity 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 420.6661 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

0.006541 0.000614 0.003471

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509603 0.073619 0.192430 0.134105

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.001832 0.0020870.036943 0.005309 0.012459 0.020989

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.4 Fleet Mix
Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

282 of 543



High School 1.28719e+
006

420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

Total 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

Mitigated

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

Unmitigated

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr t
o
n

MT/yr

3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556

4.9900e-
003

0.0000

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Total 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

High School 1.33903e+
006

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

Mitigated

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556Total 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

283 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

0.0309

Unmitigated 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.03096.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO

Mitigated 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

422.1077

Land Use kWh/yr t
o
n

MT/yr

High School 1.28719e+
006

420.6661 0.0169

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

422.1077

Total 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

3.5000e-
003

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

284 of 543



0.0309

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category t
o
n

MT/yr

Mitigated 99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

Total 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000

0.0000

Landscaping 1.5300e-
003

1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Consumer 
Products

0.8435 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

0.2503 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.03096.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 1.5300e-
003

1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Consumer 
Products

0.8435 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.2503 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

285 of 543



8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Land Use Mgal t
o
n

MT/yr

High School 7.17127 / 
18.4404

99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

Total 99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

High School 7.17127 / 
18.4404

99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

Total 99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

Mitigated

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Unmitigated 99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

7.2 Water by Land Use
Unmitigated

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal t
o
n

MT/yr

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

286 of 543



High School 297.11 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Total 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Mitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

 Unmitigated 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

8.2 Waste by Land Use
Unmitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons t
o
n

MT/yr

Category/Year

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

t
o
n

MT/yr

 Mitigated 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

287 of 543



Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power

Land Use tons t
o
n

MT/yr

High School 297.11 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Total 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

288 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 15.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 29.00

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - From project plans

Demolition - 

Vehicle Trips - 

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 135.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 386.00

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2015

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 5:26 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Proposed Master Plan
San Diego County, Summer

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

289 of 543



12,624.790
9

2019 47.7117 102.1320 92.6946 0.1319 19.4650 5.2549 24.7199 10.3064 4.8893 15.1956 0.0000 12,561.13
04

12,561.130
4

3.0315 0.0000

N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

2018 11.2312 109.2529 93.9003 0.1285 19.7892 5.7230 25.5122 10.3429 5.3166 15.6595 0.0000 12,482.10
87

12,482.108
7

3.0201 0.0000 12,545.530
7

tblProjectCharacteristics OperationalYear 2014 2015

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)
Unmitigated Construction

ROG NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/16/2019 9/8/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/6/2018 6/15/2018

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/8/2019 6/15/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 6/26/2019 6/15/2019

11/8/2019 9/8/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/17/2019 6/25/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 7/24/2019 7/15/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 1/8/2020 11/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/8/2019 6/2/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/26/2018 6/15/2018

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 6/12/2020 12/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 1/16/2020 12/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 9/13/2019 11/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 8/15/2018 7/25/2018

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 7.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 21.00

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

290 of 543



Total 17.1758 25.2303 115.0284 0.2311 0.9131 7.9100e-
003

20,977.919
5

15.4191 0.3660 15.7851 4.1159 0.3384 4.4543 20,956.29
23

20,956.292
3

434.2227

Mobile 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038 20,543.318
8

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.00 0.00 0.00

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

2.2 Overall Operational
Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

12,624.790
9

Total 58.9429 211.3848 186.5949 0.2604 39.2543 10.9779 50.2321 20.6492 10.2058 30.8551 0.0000 25,043.23
91

25,043.239
1

6.0516 0.0000 25,170.321
7

2019 47.7117 102.1320 92.6946 0.1319 19.4650 5.2549 24.7199 10.3064 4.8893 15.1956 0.0000 12,561.13
04

12,561.130
4

3.0315 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

2018 11.2312 109.2529 93.9003 0.1285 19.7892 5.7230 25.5122 10.3429 5.3166 15.6595 0.0000 12,482.10
87

12,482.108
7

3.0201 0.0000 12,545.530
7

Total 58.9429 211.3848 186.5949 0.2604 6.0516 0.0000 25,170.321
7

39.2543 10.9779 50.2321 20.6492 10.2058 30.8551

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 25,043.23
91

25,043.239
1

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

291 of 543



8 Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44

5 Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Demolition 6/15/2019 6/25/2019 5 7

6 Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2019 7/15/2019 5 21

7 Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44

2 Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 6/15/2018 7/25/2018 5 29

3 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field 
Construction

Building Construction 6/15/2018 12/7/2019 5 386

4 Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 6/2/2019 12/7/2019 5 135

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field 
Demolition

Demolition 6/15/2018 7/5/2018 5 15

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

20,977.919
5

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 17.1758 25.2303 115.0284 0.2311 15.4191 0.3660 15.7851 4.1159 0.3384 4.4543 20,956.29
23

20,956.292
3

0.9131 7.9100e-
003

434.2227

Mobile 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038 20,543.318
8

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

292 of 543



Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field Architectural 
Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 323,958; Non-Residential Outdoor: 107,986 (Architectural Coating – 

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

293 of 543



4,006.4585

Total 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.1015 4,006.45850.4372 1.8090 2.2461 0.0662 1.6856 1.7518 3,983.328
2

3,983.3282

Off-Road 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.8090 1.8090 1.6856 1.6856 3,983.328
2

3,983.3282 1.1015

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive Dust 0.4372 0.0000 0.4372 0.0662 0.0000 0.0662 0.0000 0.0000

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

10.80 7.30

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

3.2 Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3B2 - Field B 
Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

8 20.00 0.00 0.00

20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3B1 - Field B 
Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A5 - 
Gym&Field

8 20.00 0.00 0.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3A4 - 
Gym&Field

1 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A3 - 
Gym&Field

9 91.00 35.00 0.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

10.80

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Phase 3A2 - 
Gym&Field Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A1 - 
Gym&Field Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 30.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

294 of 543



4,006.4585

Total 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.1015 4,006.45850.4372 1.8090 2.2461 0.0662 1.6856 1.7518 0.0000 3,983.328
2

3,983.3282

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.8090 1.8090 1.6856 1.6856 0.0000 3,983.328
2

3,983.3282 1.1015

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.4372 0.0000 0.4372 0.0662 0.0000 0.0662 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0791 0.5021 0.9221 3.0500e-
003

6.6500e-
003

266.32360.1581 7.5200e-
003

0.1656 0.0422 6.9200e-
003

0.0492

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

266.1841 266.1841

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0435 0.0510 0.5510 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 8.8000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 120.5544 120.5544 5.6200e-
003

120.6724

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0357 0.4510 0.3712 1.4900e-
003

0.0349 6.6400e-
003

0.0415 9.5400e-
003

6.1100e-
003

0.0157 145.6296 145.6296 1.0300e-
003

145.6512

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

295 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

3,965.5297

Total 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 1.2265 3,965.529718.0663 2.3654 20.4317 9.9307 2.1762 12.1069

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

3,939.773
1

3,939.7731

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 2.3654 2.3654 2.1762 2.1762 3,939.773
1

3,939.7731 1.2265

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0791 0.5021 0.9221 3.0500e-
003

6.6500e-
003

266.32360.1581 7.5200e-
003

0.1656 0.0422 6.9200e-
003

0.0492

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

266.1841 266.1841

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.3 Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0435 0.0510 0.5510 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 8.8000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 120.5544 120.5544 5.6200e-
003

120.6724

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0357 0.4510 0.3712 1.4900e-
003

0.0349 6.6400e-
003

0.0415 9.5400e-
003

6.1100e-
003

0.0157 145.6296 145.6296 1.0300e-
003

145.6512

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

296 of 543



Total 0.0521 0.0612 0.6611 1.8700e-
003

6.7400e-
003

144.80690.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402 144.6653 144.6653

0.0000

Worker 0.0521 0.0612 0.6611 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402 144.6653 144.6653 6.7400e-
003

144.8069

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

3,965.5297

Total 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 1.2265 3,965.529718.0663 2.3654 20.4317 9.9307 2.1762 12.1069

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 3,939.773
1

3,939.7731

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 2.3654 2.3654 2.1762 2.1762 0.0000 3,939.773
1

3,939.7731 1.2265

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0521 0.0612 0.6611 1.8700e-
003

6.7400e-
003

144.80690.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

144.6653 144.6653

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0521 0.0612 0.6611 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402 144.6653 144.6653 6.7400e-
003

144.8069

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

297 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.5786 2.9889 6.8248 0.0178 0.0401 1,539.06030.9798 0.0458 1.0256 0.2646 0.0421 0.3067

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,538.219
1

1,538.2191

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

806.9810

Worker 0.2636 0.3096 3.3424 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.3300e-
003

0.7529 0.1983 4.9300e-
003

0.2032 731.3636 731.3636 0.0341 732.0793

Vendor 0.3150 2.6793 3.4824 8.3000e-
003

0.2323 0.0404 0.2727 0.0663 0.0372 0.1035 806.8554 806.8554 5.9800e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 0.6387 2,623.35171.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,609.939
0

2,609.9390

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 1.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048 2,609.939
0

2,609.9390 0.6387 2,623.3517

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.4 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

298 of 543



Total 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 0.6279 2,593.94791.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083 2,580.761
8

2,580.7618

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 1.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083 2,580.761
8

2,580.7618 0.6279 2,593.9479

Total 0.5786 2.9889 6.8248 0.0178 0.0401 1,539.06030.9798 0.0458 1.0256 0.2646 0.0421 0.3067

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,538.219
1

1,538.2191

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.4 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

806.9810

Worker 0.2636 0.3096 3.3424 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.3300e-
003

0.7529 0.1983 4.9300e-
003

0.2032 731.3636 731.3636 0.0341 732.0793

Vendor 0.3150 2.6793 3.4824 8.3000e-
003

0.2323 0.0404 0.2727 0.0663 0.0372 0.1035 806.8554 806.8554 5.9800e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 0.6387 2,623.35171.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2,609.938
9

2,609.9389

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Category lb/day lb/day

Off-Road 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 1.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048 0.0000 2,609.938
9

2,609.9389 0.6387 2,623.3517

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

299 of 543



Total 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 0.6279 2,593.94791.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083 0.0000 2,580.761
8

2,580.7618

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 1.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083 0.0000 2,580.761
8

2,580.7618 0.6279 2,593.9479

Total 0.5400 2.7253 6.3915 0.0178 0.0379 1,498.68740.9798 0.0429 1.0227 0.2645 0.0395 0.3040

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,497.891
8

1,497.8918

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

793.0806

Worker 0.2450 0.2861 3.0826 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.3000e-
003

0.7528 0.1983 4.9100e-
003

0.2032 704.9337 704.9337 0.0321 705.6069

Vendor 0.2950 2.4392 3.3090 8.2900e-
003

0.2323 0.0376 0.2699 0.0663 0.0346 0.1008 792.9581 792.9581 5.8300e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

300 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

281.9473

Total 37.3416 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.0238 281.94730.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.2664 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 281.4481 281.4481 0.0238

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 37.0752 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.5400 2.7253 6.3915 0.0178 0.0379 1,498.68740.9798 0.0429 1.0227 0.2645 0.0395 0.3040

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,497.891
8

1,497.8918

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.5 Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field Architectural Coating - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

793.0806

Worker 0.2450 0.2861 3.0826 9.4700e-
003

0.7475 5.3000e-
003

0.7528 0.1983 4.9100e-
003

0.2032 704.9337 704.9337 0.0321 705.6069

Vendor 0.2950 2.4392 3.3090 8.2900e-
003

0.2323 0.0376 0.2699 0.0663 0.0346 0.1008 792.9581 792.9581 5.8300e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

301 of 543



Total 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

6.3400e-
003

139.57060.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 139.4374 139.4374

0.0000

Worker 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 139.4374 139.4374 6.3400e-
003

139.5706

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

281.9473

Total 37.3416 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.0238 281.94730.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.2664 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.0000 281.4481 281.4481 0.0238

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 37.0752 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

6.3400e-
003

139.57060.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

139.4374 139.4374

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 139.4374 139.4374 6.3400e-
003

139.5706

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

302 of 543



Total 0.0404 0.0472 0.5081 1.5600e-
003

5.2800e-
003

116.30880.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 116.1979 116.1979

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0404 0.0472 0.5081 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 116.1979 116.1979 5.2800e-
003

116.3088

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.0974 3,952.27741.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

3,929.232
7

3,929.2327

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316 3,929.232
7

3,929.2327 1.0974 3,952.2774

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.6 Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

303 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0404 0.0472 0.5081 1.5600e-
003

5.2800e-
003

116.30880.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

116.1979 116.1979

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.7 Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0404 0.0472 0.5081 1.5600e-
003

0.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 116.1979 116.1979 5.2800e-
003

116.3088

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.0974 3,952.27741.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 3,929.232
7

3,929.2327

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316 0.0000 3,929.232
7

3,929.2327 1.0974 3,952.2774

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

304 of 543



3,902.4810

Total 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 1.2266 3,902.481018.0663 2.1505 20.2167 9.9307 1.9784 11.9091 0.0000 3,876.723
3

3,876.7233

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 2.1505 2.1505 1.9784 1.9784 0.0000 3,876.723
3

3,876.7233 1.2266

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

6.3400e-
003

139.57060.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

139.4374 139.4374

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 139.4374 139.4374 6.3400e-
003

139.5706

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

3,902.4810

Total 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 1.2266 3,902.481018.0663 2.1505 20.2167 9.9307 1.9784 11.9091

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

3,876.723
3

3,876.7233

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 2.1505 2.1505 1.9784 1.9784 3,876.723
3

3,876.7233 1.2266

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

305 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.97820.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.9782

Total 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

6.3400e-
003

139.57060.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

139.4374 139.4374

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.8 Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field Landscape/Hardscape - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0485 0.0566 0.6097 1.8700e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 139.4374 139.4374 6.3400e-
003

139.5706

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

306 of 543



Total 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

7.0400e-
003

155.07840.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 154.9305 154.9305

0.0000

Worker 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 154.9305 154.9305 7.0400e-
003

155.0784

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.97820.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.9782

Total 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

7.0400e-
003

155.07840.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

154.9305 154.9305

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 154.9305 154.9305 7.0400e-
003

155.0784

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

307 of 543



Total 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

7.0400e-
003

155.07840.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 154.9305 154.9305

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 154.9305 154.9305 7.0400e-
003

155.0784

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.97820.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.9782

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.9 Phase 3B3 - Field B Landscape/Hardscape - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

308 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2eExhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Total 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

7.0400e-
003

155.07840.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

154.9305 154.9305

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0538 0.0629 0.6775 2.0800e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 154.9305 154.9305 7.0400e-
003

155.0784

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.97820.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.9782

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

309 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

0.006541 0.000614 0.003471

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509603 0.073619 0.192430 0.134105

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.001832 0.0020870.036943 0.005309 0.012459 0.020989

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.4 Fleet Mix
Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- CO2 Total CO2

High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Total 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

20,543.318
8

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

Unmitigated 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038

Category lb/day lb/day

Mitigated 11.1262 24.8689 114.5544 0.2289 15.4191 0.3380 15.7571 4.1159 0.3105 4.4264 20,524.33
99

20,524.339
9

0.9038 20,543.318
8

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

310 of 543



Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961

6.0 Area Detail

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3.66857 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

431.5961

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3668.57 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

431.5961

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

311 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx NBio- CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

312 of 543



0.3780

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

313 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 15.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - From project plans

Demolition - 

Vehicle Trips - 

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 135.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 386.00

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2015

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 5:28 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Proposed Master Plan
San Diego County, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

314 of 543



N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

2018 11.3009 109.3810 95.1074 0.1277 19.7892 5.7234 25.5126 10.3429 5.3170 15.6599 0.0000 12,414.78
52

12,414.785
2

3.0203 0.0000 12,478.21
11

tblProjectCharacteristics OperationalYear 2014 2015

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)
Unmitigated Construction

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/16/2019 9/8/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/6/2018 6/15/2018

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/8/2019 6/15/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 6/26/2019 6/15/2019

11/8/2019 9/8/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/17/2019 6/25/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 7/24/2019 7/15/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 1/8/2020 11/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/8/2019 6/2/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/26/2018 6/15/2018

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 6/12/2020 12/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 1/16/2020 12/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 9/13/2019 11/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 8/15/2018 7/25/2018

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 29.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 7.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 21.00

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

315 of 543



434.2227

Mobile 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043 19,542.41
93

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.00 0.00 0.00

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

2.2 Overall Operational
Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

12,551.55
25

Total 59.0747 211.6227 188.8351 0.2587 39.2543 10.9787 50.2329 20.6492 10.2066 30.8558 0.0000 24,902.67
35

24,902.673
5

6.0519 0.0000 25,029.76
36

2019 47.7739 102.2417 93.7277 0.1309 19.4650 5.2553 24.7203 10.3064 4.8896 15.1960 0.0000 12,487.88
83

12,487.888
3

3.0316 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

2018 11.3009 109.3810 95.1074 0.1277 19.7892 5.7234 25.5126 10.3429 5.3170 15.6599 0.0000 12,414.78
52

12,414.785
2

3.0203 0.0000 12,478.21
11

12,551.55
25

Total 59.0747 211.6227 188.8351 0.2587 6.0519 0.0000 25,029.76
36

39.2543 10.9787 50.2329 20.6492 10.2066 30.8558

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 24,902.67
35

24,902.673
5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO

2019 47.7739 102.2417 93.7277 0.1309 19.4650 5.2553 24.7203 10.3064 4.8896 15.1960 0.0000 12,487.88
83

12,487.888
3

3.0316 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

316 of 543



5 Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Demolition 6/15/2019 6/25/2019 5 7

6 Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2019 7/15/2019 5 21

2 Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 6/15/2018 7/25/2018 5 29

3 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field 
Construction

Building Construction 6/15/2018 12/7/2019 5 386

4 Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 6/2/2019 12/7/2019 5 135

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field 
Demolition

Demolition 6/15/2018 7/5/2018 5 15

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19,977.02
00

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 17.9831 26.7863 121.0258 0.2198 15.4191 0.3681 15.7872 4.1159 0.3404 4.4563 19,955.38
14

19,955.381
4

0.9136 7.9100e-
003

434.2227

Mobile 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043 19,542.41
93

Energy 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Total 17.9831 26.7863 121.0258 0.2198 0.9136 7.9100e-
003

19,977.02
00

15.4191 0.3681 15.7872 4.1159 0.3404 4.4563

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

19,955.38
14

19,955.381
4

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

317 of 543



Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field Architectural 
Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

8 Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 323,958; Non-Residential Outdoor: 107,986 (Architectural Coating – 

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

7 Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

318 of 543



Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive Dust 0.4372 0.0000 0.4372 0.0662 0.0000 0.0662 0.0000 0.0000

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

10.80 7.30

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

3.2 Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3B2 - Field B 
Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

8 20.00 0.00 0.00

20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3B1 - Field B 
Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A5 - 
Gym&Field

8 20.00 0.00 0.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3A4 - 
Gym&Field

1 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A3 - 
Gym&Field

9 91.00 35.00 0.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

10.80

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Phase 3A2 - 
Gym&Field Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A1 - 
Gym&Field Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 30.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

319 of 543



4,006.458
5

Total 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.1015 4,006.458
5

0.4372 1.8090 2.2461 0.0662 1.6856 1.7518 0.0000 3,983.328
2

3,983.3282

Off-Road 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.8090 1.8090 1.6856 1.6856 0.0000 3,983.328
2

3,983.3282 1.1015

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.4372 0.0000 0.4372 0.0662 0.0000 0.0662 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0851 0.5228 1.0128 2.9500e-
003

6.6600e-
003

258.63140.1581 7.5400e-
003

0.1656 0.0422 6.9400e-
003

0.0492

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

258.4916 258.4916

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0458 0.0573 0.5299 1.4600e-
003

0.1232 8.8000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 113.2044 113.2044 5.6200e-
003

113.3224

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0394 0.4655 0.4829 1.4900e-
003

0.0349 6.6600e-
003

0.0415 9.5400e-
003

6.1300e-
003

0.0157 145.2872 145.2872 1.0400e-
003

145.3091

4,006.458
5

Total 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.1015 4,006.458
5

0.4372 1.8090 2.2461 0.0662 1.6856 1.7518

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

3,983.328
2

3,983.3282

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 3.5606 36.8310 31.7250 0.0399 1.8090 1.8090 1.6856 1.6856 3,983.328
2

3,983.3282 1.1015

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

320 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

3,965.529
7

Total 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 1.2265 3,965.529
7

18.0663 2.3654 20.4317 9.9307 2.1762 12.1069

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

3,939.773
1

3,939.7731

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 2.3654 2.3654 2.1762 2.1762 3,939.773
1

3,939.7731 1.2265

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0851 0.5228 1.0128 2.9500e-
003

6.6600e-
003

258.63140.1581 7.5400e-
003

0.1656 0.0422 6.9400e-
003

0.0492

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

258.4916 258.4916

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.3 Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0458 0.0573 0.5299 1.4600e-
003

0.1232 8.8000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 113.2044 113.2044 5.6200e-
003

113.3224

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0394 0.4655 0.4829 1.4900e-
003

0.0349 6.6600e-
003

0.0415 9.5400e-
003

6.1300e-
003

0.0157 145.2872 145.2872 1.0400e-
003

145.3091

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

321 of 543



0.0000Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

3,965.529
7

Total 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 1.2265 3,965.529
7

18.0663 2.3654 20.4317 9.9307 2.1762 12.1069

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 3,939.773
1

3,939.7731

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.2921 45.6088 36.2346 0.0391 2.3654 2.3654 2.1762 2.1762 0.0000 3,939.773
1

3,939.7731 1.2265

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0549 0.0687 0.6359 1.7600e-
003

6.7400e-
003

135.98680.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

135.8453 135.8453

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0549 0.0687 0.6359 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402 135.8453 135.8453 6.7400e-
003

135.9868

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

322 of 543



Total 0.6395 3.0889 7.9665 0.0172 0.0402 1,488.252
9

0.9798 0.0462 1.0260 0.2646 0.0425 0.3071 1,487.408
1

1,487.4081

800.7640

Worker 0.2776 0.3474 3.2148 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.3300e-
003

0.7529 0.1983 4.9300e-
003

0.2032 686.7732 686.7732 0.0341 687.4889

Vendor 0.3618 2.7415 4.7517 8.2600e-
003

0.2323 0.0408 0.2731 0.0663 0.0376 0.1038 800.6349 800.6349 6.1500e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 0.6387 2,623.351
7

1.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,609.939
0

2,609.9390

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 1.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048 2,609.939
0

2,609.9390 0.6387 2,623.351
7

Total 0.0549 0.0687 0.6359 1.7600e-
003

6.7400e-
003

135.98680.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

135.8453 135.8453

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.4 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Worker 0.0549 0.0687 0.6359 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.8000e-
004

0.0402 135.8453 135.8453 6.7400e-
003

135.9868

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

323 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.6395 3.0889 7.9665 0.0172 0.0402 1,488.252
9

0.9798 0.0462 1.0260 0.2646 0.0425 0.3071

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,487.408
1

1,487.4081

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.4 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

800.7640

Worker 0.2776 0.3474 3.2148 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.3300e-
003

0.7529 0.1983 4.9300e-
003

0.2032 686.7732 686.7732 0.0341 687.4889

Vendor 0.3618 2.7415 4.7517 8.2600e-
003

0.2323 0.0408 0.2731 0.0663 0.0376 0.1038 800.6349 800.6349 6.1500e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 0.6387 2,623.351
7

1.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2,609.938
9

2,609.9389

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 2.6687 23.2608 17.5327 0.0268 1.4943 1.4943 1.4048 1.4048 0.0000 2,609.938
9

2,609.9389 0.6387 2,623.351
7

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

324 of 543



Total 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 0.6279 2,593.947
9

1.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083 0.0000 2,580.761
8

2,580.7618

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 1.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083 0.0000 2,580.761
8

2,580.7618 0.6279 2,593.947
9

Total 0.5950 2.8155 7.4969 0.0171 0.0381 1,449.553
8

0.9798 0.0433 1.0231 0.2645 0.0398 0.3044

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,448.754
6

1,448.7546

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

786.9575

Worker 0.2577 0.3210 2.9537 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.3000e-
003

0.7528 0.1983 4.9100e-
003

0.2032 661.9231 661.9231 0.0321 662.5963

Vendor 0.3374 2.4946 4.5432 8.2400e-
003

0.2323 0.0380 0.2702 0.0663 0.0349 0.1012 786.8315 786.8315 6.0000e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 0.6279 2,593.947
9

1.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

2,580.761
8

2,580.7618

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Category lb/day lb/day

Off-Road 2.3516 20.9650 17.1204 0.0268 1.2850 1.2850 1.2083 1.2083 2,580.761
8

2,580.7618 0.6279 2,593.947
9

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

325 of 543



281.9473

Total 37.3416 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.0238 281.94730.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 281.4481 281.4481

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 0.2664 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 281.4481 281.4481 0.0238

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 37.0752 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.5950 2.8155 7.4969 0.0171 0.0381 1,449.553
8

0.9798 0.0433 1.0231 0.2645 0.0398 0.3044

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,448.754
6

1,448.7546

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.5 Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field Architectural Coating - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

786.9575

Worker 0.2577 0.3210 2.9537 8.8900e-
003

0.7475 5.3000e-
003

0.7528 0.1983 4.9100e-
003

0.2032 661.9231 661.9231 0.0321 662.5963

Vendor 0.3374 2.4946 4.5432 8.2400e-
003

0.2323 0.0380 0.2702 0.0663 0.0349 0.1012 786.8315 786.8315 6.0000e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

326 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

281.9473

Total 37.3416 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.0238 281.94730.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 281.4481 281.4481

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.2664 1.8354 1.8413 2.9700e-
003

0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.1288 0.0000 281.4481 281.4481 0.0238

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 37.0752 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

6.3400e-
003

131.06300.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

130.9299 130.9299

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 130.9299 130.9299 6.3400e-
003

131.0630

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

327 of 543



0.0000

Worker 0.0425 0.0529 0.4869 1.4600e-
003

0.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 109.1082 109.1082 5.2800e-
003

109.2192

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.0974 3,952.277
4

1.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

3,929.232
7

3,929.2327

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316 3,929.232
7

3,929.2327 1.0974 3,952.277
4

Total 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

6.3400e-
003

131.06300.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

130.9299 130.9299

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.6 Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 130.9299 130.9299 6.3400e-
003

131.0630

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

328 of 543



Total 0.0425 0.0529 0.4869 1.4600e-
003

5.2800e-
003

109.21920.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 109.1082 109.1082

3.7 Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 0.0425 0.0529 0.4869 1.4600e-
003

0.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335 109.1082 109.1082 5.2800e-
003

109.2192

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.0974 3,952.277
4

1.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 3,929.232
7

3,929.2327

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 3.3224 33.9413 30.8050 0.0399 1.6448 1.6448 1.5316 1.5316 0.0000 3,929.232
7

3,929.2327 1.0974 3,952.277
4

Total 0.0425 0.0529 0.4869 1.4600e-
003

5.2800e-
003

109.21920.1232 8.7000e-
004

0.1241 0.0327 8.1000e-
004

0.0335

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

109.1082 109.1082

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

329 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

6.3400e-
003

131.06300.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

130.9299 130.9299

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 130.9299 130.9299 6.3400e-
003

131.0630

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

3,902.481
0

Total 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 1.2266 3,902.481
0

18.0663 2.1505 20.2167 9.9307 1.9784 11.9091

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

3,876.723
3

3,876.7233

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 2.1505 2.1505 1.9784 1.9784 3,876.723
3

3,876.7233 1.2266

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

330 of 543



0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.978
2

0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.978
2

Total 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

6.3400e-
003

131.06300.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

130.9299 130.9299

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.8 Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field Landscape/Hardscape - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0510 0.0635 0.5842 1.7600e-
003

0.1479 1.0500e-
003

0.1489 0.0392 9.7000e-
004

0.0402 130.9299 130.9299 6.3400e-
003

131.0630

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

3,902.481
0

Total 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 1.2266 3,902.481
0

18.0663 2.1505 20.2167 9.9307 1.9784 11.9091

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 3,876.723
3

3,876.7233

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 4.0188 42.5046 34.8088 0.0391 2.1505 2.1505 1.9784 1.9784 0.0000 3,876.723
3

3,876.7233 1.2266

Fugitive Dust 18.0663 0.0000 18.0663 9.9307 0.0000 9.9307 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

331 of 543



0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.978
2

0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.978
2

Total 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

7.0400e-
003

145.62560.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

145.4776 145.4776

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 145.4776 145.4776 7.0400e-
003

145.6256

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

332 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.978
2

0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.978
2

Total 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

7.0400e-
003

145.62560.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

145.4776 145.4776

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.9 Phase 3B3 - Field B Landscape/Hardscape - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 145.4776 145.4776 7.0400e-
003

145.6256

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

333 of 543



Total 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

7.0400e-
003

145.62560.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 145.4776 145.4776

0.0000

Worker 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 145.4776 145.4776 7.0400e-
003

145.6256

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.5585 1,827.978
2

0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 1.2520 12.5889 12.1441 0.0187 0.7111 0.7111 0.6560 0.6560 0.0000 1,816.249
0

1,816.2490 0.5585 1,827.978
2

Total 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

7.0400e-
003

145.62560.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

145.4776 145.4776

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 0.0566 0.0705 0.6492 1.9500e-
003

0.1643 1.1600e-
003

0.1655 0.0436 1.0800e-
003

0.0447 145.4776 145.4776 7.0400e-
003

145.6256

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

334 of 543



0.006541 0.000614 0.003471

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509603 0.073619 0.192430 0.134105 0.001832 0.0020870.036943 0.005309 0.012459 0.020989

4.4 Fleet Mix

High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Total 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

19,542.41
93

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

Unmitigated 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 11.9335 26.4250 120.5518 0.2176 15.4191 0.3401 15.7592 4.1159 0.3124 4.4283 19,523.42
90

19,523.429
0

0.9043 19,542.41
93

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

335 of 543



Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961

Mitigated

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3668.57 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

431.5961

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

336 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Total 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.22270.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

431.5961 431.5961

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

High School 3.66857 0.0396 0.3597 0.3021 2.1600e-
003

0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 0.0273 431.5961 431.5961 8.2700e-
003

7.9100e-
003

434.2227

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

337 of 543



0.3780

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

1.3713 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 6.0101 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

1.0300e-
003

0.37806.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.3563 0.3563

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 0.0170 1.6600e-
003

0.1719 1.0000e-
005

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

6.2000e-
004

0.3563 0.3563 1.0300e-
003

0.3780

Consumer 
Products

4.6218 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

338 of 543



tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 15.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - 

Construction Phase - From project plans

Demolition - 

Vehicle Trips - 

Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 135.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 230.00 386.00

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.6 Precipitation Freq (Days) 40

Climate Zone 13 Operational Year 2015

Utility Company San Diego Gas & Electric

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

720.49 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2013.2.2 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6/4/2014 5:21 PM

San Dieguito Academy - Proposed Master Plan
San Diego County, Annual

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

High School 1,628.00 Student 4.96 215,972.07 0

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

339 of 543



N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

2018 0.3223 2.8142 2.5594 4.0400e-
003

0.3365 0.1573 0.4938 0.1638 0.1470 0.3108 0.0000 347.0820 347.0820 0.0675 0.0000 348.4992

tblProjectCharacteristics OperationalYear 2014 2015

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction
Unmitigated Construction

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/16/2019 9/8/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/6/2018 6/15/2018

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/8/2019 6/15/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 6/26/2019 6/15/2019

11/8/2019 9/8/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 12/17/2019 6/25/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 7/24/2019 7/15/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 1/8/2020 11/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 12/8/2019 6/2/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/26/2018 6/15/2018

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 18.00 44.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 6/12/2020 12/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 1/16/2020 12/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 9/13/2019 11/7/2019

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 8/15/2018 7/25/2018

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 29.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 20.00 7.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 5.00 21.00

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

340 of 543



493.9981

Mobile 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000 2,554.402
7

Energy 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 492.1217 492.1217 0.0183 4.8100e-
003

N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.00 0.00 0.00

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

2.2 Overall Operational
Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

604.1824

Total 3.3129 6.9679 6.7191 0.0112 0.6617 0.3878 1.0495 0.3046 0.3631 0.6677 0.0000 948.8835 948.8835 0.1809 0.0000 952.6813

2019 2.9906 4.1537 4.1597 7.1800e-
003

0.3252 0.2305 0.5557 0.1409 0.2161 0.3569 0.0000 601.8018 601.8018 0.1134 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

2018 0.3223 2.8142 2.5594 4.0400e-
003

0.3365 0.1573 0.4938 0.1638 0.1470 0.3108 0.0000 347.0817 347.0817 0.0675 0.0000 348.4989

604.1829

Total 3.3129 6.9679 6.7191 0.0112 0.1809 0.0000 952.68210.6617 0.3878 1.0495 0.3046 0.3631 0.6677

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 948.8843 948.8843

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO

2019 2.9906 4.1537 4.1597 7.1800e-
003

0.3252 0.2305 0.5557 0.1409 0.2161 0.3569 0.0000 601.8023 601.8023 0.1134 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

341 of 543



3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field 
Demolition

Demolition 6/15/2018 7/5/2018 5 15

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00

3,290.285
6

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Total 2.6995 3.8304 16.8415 0.0317 2.1542 0.0535 2.2077 0.5762 0.0495 0.6257 62.5858 3,141.563
2

3,204.1489 3.9374 0.0111

135.1600

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.2751 97.4708 99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 60.3106 0.0000 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000

493.9981

Mobile 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000 2,554.402
7

Energy 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 492.1217 492.1217 0.0183 4.8100e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Area 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Total 2.6995 3.8304 16.8415 0.0317 3.9374 0.0111 3,290.289
3

2.1542 0.0535 2.2077 0.5762 0.0495 0.6257

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

62.5858 3,141.563
2

3,204.1489

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

135.1600

Water 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 2.2751 97.4708 99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

Waste 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 60.3106 0.0000 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

342 of 543



Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Welders 1 8.00 46 0.45

Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field Architectural 
Coating

Air Compressors 1 6.00 78 0.48

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Forklifts 3 8.00 89 0.20

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Generator Sets 1 8.00 84 0.74

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 3 7.00 97 0.37

Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction Cranes 1 7.00 226 0.29

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

8 Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 323,958; Non-Residential Outdoor: 107,986 (Architectural Coating 

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

5 Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Demolition 6/15/2019 6/25/2019 5 7

6 Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Site Preparation 6/15/2019 7/15/2019 5 21

7 Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving 9/8/2019 11/7/2019 5 44

2 Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site 
Prep

Site Preparation 6/15/2018 7/25/2018 5 29

3 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field 
Construction

Building Construction 6/15/2018 12/7/2019 5 386

4 Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field 
Architectural Coating

Architectural Coating 6/2/2019 12/7/2019 5 135

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

343 of 543



HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

10.80 7.30

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

3.2 Phase 3A1 - Gym&Field Demolition - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3B2 - Field B 
Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

8 20.00 0.00 0.00

20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3B1 - Field B 
Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A5 - 
Gym&Field

8 20.00 0.00 0.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

10.80

10.80 7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix

Phase 3A4 - 
Gym&Field

1 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A3 - 
Gym&Field

9 91.00 35.00 0.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

10.80

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Phase 3A2 - 
Gym&Field Site Prep

7 18.00 0.00 0.00

Phase 3A1 - 
Gym&Field Demolition

6 15.00 0.00 30.00

HHDT

7.30 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 4 8.00 97 0.37

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Rollers 2 6.00 80 0.38

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Rubber Tired Dozers 2 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep Rubber Tired Dozers 3 8.00 255 0.40

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Excavators 3 8.00 162 0.38

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Pavers 1 8.00 125 0.42

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Paving Equipment 2 6.00 130 0.36

Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field 
Landscape/Hardscape

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 8.00 97 0.37

Phase 3B3 - Field B 
Landscape/Hardscape

Cement and Mortar Mixers 2 6.00 9 0.56

Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

344 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 3.2800e-
003

0.0000 3.2800e-
003

5.0000e-
004

0.0000 5.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 6.0000e-
004

3.9200e-
003

7.3100e-
003

2.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.76871.1600e-
003

6.0000e-
005

1.2200e-
003

3.1000e-
004

6.0000e-
005

3.7000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.7678 1.7678

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.2000e-
004

4.2000e-
004

3.9600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

9.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

9.1000e-
004

2.4000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.5000e-
004

0.0000 0.7779 0.7779 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.7787

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 2.8000e-
004

3.5000e-
003

3.3500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.6000e-
004

5.0000e-
005

3.1000e-
004

7.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

1.2000e-
004

0.0000 0.9899 0.9899 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.9900

27.2595

Total 0.0267 0.2762 0.2379 3.0000e-
004

7.4900e-
003

0.0000 27.25953.2800e-
003

0.0136 0.0169 5.0000e-
004

0.0126 0.0131

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 27.1021 27.1021

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0267 0.2762 0.2379 3.0000e-
004

0.0136 0.0136 0.0126 0.0126 0.0000 27.1021 27.1021 7.4900e-
003

0.0000

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive Dust 3.2800e-
003

0.0000 3.2800e-
003

5.0000e-
004

0.0000 5.0000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

345 of 543



52.1633

Total 0.0622 0.6613 0.5254 5.7000e-
004

0.0161 0.0000 52.16330.2620 0.0343 0.2963 0.1440 0.0316 0.1755 0.0000 51.8245 51.8245

Off-Road 0.0622 0.6613 0.5254 5.7000e-
004

0.0343 0.0343 0.0316 0.0316 0.0000 51.8245 51.8245 0.0161 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.2620 0.0000 0.2620 0.1440 0.0000 0.1440 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 6.0000e-
004

3.9200e-
003

7.3100e-
003

2.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.76871.1600e-
003

6.0000e-
005

1.2200e-
003

3.1000e-
004

6.0000e-
005

3.7000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.7678 1.7678

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.3 Phase 3A2 - Gym&Field Site Prep - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.2000e-
004

4.2000e-
004

3.9600e-
003

1.0000e-
005

9.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

9.1000e-
004

2.4000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

2.5000e-
004

0.0000 0.7779 0.7779 4.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.7787

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 2.8000e-
004

3.5000e-
003

3.3500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.6000e-
004

5.0000e-
005

3.1000e-
004

7.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
005

1.2000e-
004

0.0000 0.9899 0.9899 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.9900

27.2595

Total 0.0267 0.2762 0.2379 3.0000e-
004

7.4900e-
003

0.0000 27.25953.2800e-
003

0.0136 0.0169 5.0000e-
004

0.0126 0.0131

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 27.1021 27.1021

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0267 0.2762 0.2379 3.0000e-
004

0.0136 0.0136 0.0126 0.0126 0.0000 27.1021 27.1021 7.4900e-
003

0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

346 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

52.1632

Total 0.0622 0.6613 0.5254 5.7000e-
004

0.0161 0.0000 52.16320.2620 0.0343 0.2963 0.1440 0.0316 0.1755

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 51.8244 51.8244

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0622 0.6613 0.5254 5.7000e-
004

0.0343 0.0343 0.0316 0.0316 0.0000 51.8244 51.8244 0.0161 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.2620 0.0000 0.2620 0.1440 0.0000 0.1440 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 7.4000e-
004

9.8000e-
004

9.1900e-
003

3.0000e-
005

9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.80662.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.8047 1.8047

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 7.4000e-
004

9.8000e-
004

9.1900e-
003

3.0000e-
005

2.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

0.0000 1.8047 1.8047 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.8066

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

347 of 543



51.8096Vendor 0.0243 0.1960 0.3072 5.9000e-
004

0.0162 2.8800e-
003

0.0191 4.6200e-
003

2.6500e-
003

7.2800e-
003

0.0000 51.8014 51.8014 3.9000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1895 1.6515 1.2448 1.9000e-
003

0.0411 0.0000 168.97040.1061 0.1061 0.0997 0.0997

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 168.1065 168.1065

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.1895 1.6515 1.2448 1.9000e-
003

0.1061 0.1061 0.0997 0.0997 0.0000 168.1065 168.1065 0.0411 0.0000 168.9704

Total 7.4000e-
004

9.8000e-
004

9.1900e-
003

3.0000e-
005

9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.80662.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.8047 1.8047

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.4 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction - 2018
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 7.4000e-
004

9.8000e-
004

9.1900e-
003

3.0000e-
005

2.0900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

2.1100e-
003

5.6000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.7000e-
004

0.0000 1.8047 1.8047 9.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.8066

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

348 of 543



Total 0.0426 0.2202 0.5347 1.2300e-
003

2.5900e-
003

0.0000 96.53080.0680 3.2600e-
003

0.0712 0.0184 3.0000e-
003

0.0214 0.0000 96.4765 96.4765

3.4 Phase 3A3 - Gym&Field Construction - 2019

51.8096

Worker 0.0183 0.0243 0.2275 6.4000e-
004

0.0518 3.8000e-
004

0.0522 0.0138 3.5000e-
004

0.0141 0.0000 44.6751 44.6751 2.2000e-
003

0.0000 44.7212

Vendor 0.0243 0.1960 0.3072 5.9000e-
004

0.0162 2.8800e-
003

0.0191 4.6200e-
003

2.6500e-
003

7.2800e-
003

0.0000 51.8014 51.8014 3.9000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.1895 1.6515 1.2448 1.9000e-
003

0.0411 0.0000 168.97020.1061 0.1061 0.0997 0.0997

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 168.1063 168.1063

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.1895 1.6515 1.2448 1.9000e-
003

0.1061 0.1061 0.0997 0.0997 0.0000 168.1063 168.1063 0.0411 0.0000 168.9702

Total 0.0426 0.2202 0.5347 1.2300e-
003

2.5900e-
003

0.0000 96.53080.0680 3.2600e-
003

0.0712 0.0184 3.0000e-
003

0.0214

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 96.4765 96.4765

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Worker 0.0183 0.0243 0.2275 6.4000e-
004

0.0518 3.8000e-
004

0.0522 0.0138 3.5000e-
004

0.0141 0.0000 44.6751 44.6751 2.2000e-
003

0.0000 44.7212

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

349 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0681 0.3450 0.8634 2.1000e-
003

4.2000e-
003

0.0000 161.55380.1168 5.2500e-
003

0.1221 0.0316 4.8400e-
003

0.0364

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 161.4656 161.4656

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

87.4908

Worker 0.0291 0.0386 0.3596 1.0900e-
003

0.0890 6.5000e-
004

0.0897 0.0237 6.0000e-
004

0.0243 0.0000 73.9886 73.9886 3.5500e-
003

0.0000 74.0631

Vendor 0.0390 0.3064 0.5038 1.0100e-
003

0.0278 4.6000e-
003

0.0324 7.9400e-
003

4.2400e-
003

0.0122 0.0000 87.4771 87.4771 6.5000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.2869 2.5577 2.0887 3.2700e-
003

0.0695 0.0000 287.08920.1568 0.1568 0.1474 0.1474

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 285.6298 285.6298

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.2869 2.5577 2.0887 3.2700e-
003

0.1568 0.1568 0.1474 0.1474 0.0000 285.6298 285.6298 0.0695 0.0000 287.0892

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

350 of 543



17.2650Off-Road 0.0180 0.1239 0.1243 2.0000e-
004

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

0.0000 17.2345 17.2345 1.4600e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 2.5026 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0681 0.3450 0.8634 2.1000e-
003

4.2000e-
003

0.0000 161.55380.1168 5.2500e-
003

0.1221 0.0316 4.8400e-
003

0.0364

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 161.4656 161.4656

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.5 Phase 3A4 - Gym&Field Architectural Coating - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

87.4908

Worker 0.0291 0.0386 0.3596 1.0900e-
003

0.0890 6.5000e-
004

0.0897 0.0237 6.0000e-
004

0.0243 0.0000 73.9886 73.9886 3.5500e-
003

0.0000 74.0631

Vendor 0.0390 0.3064 0.5038 1.0100e-
003

0.0278 4.6000e-
003

0.0324 7.9400e-
003

4.2400e-
003

0.0122 0.0000 87.4771 87.4771 6.5000e-
004

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.2869 2.5577 2.0887 3.2700e-
003

0.0695 0.0000 287.08880.1568 0.1568 0.1474 0.1474

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 285.6294 285.6294

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Off-Road 0.2869 2.5577 2.0887 3.2700e-
003

0.1568 0.1568 0.1474 0.1474 0.0000 285.6294 285.6294 0.0695 0.0000 287.0888

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

351 of 543



17.2650

Total 2.5206 0.1239 0.1243 2.0000e-
004

1.4600e-
003

0.0000 17.26508.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

0.0000 17.2344 17.2344

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Off-Road 0.0180 0.1239 0.1243 2.0000e-
004

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

0.0000 17.2344 17.2344 1.4600e-
003

0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Archit. Coating 2.5026 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 3.1800e-
003

4.2200e-
003

0.0394 1.2000e-
004

3.9000e-
004

0.0000 8.10549.7400e-
003

7.0000e-
005

9.8100e-
003

2.5900e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.6500e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 8.0973 8.0973

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.1800e-
003

4.2200e-
003

0.0394 1.2000e-
004

9.7400e-
003

7.0000e-
005

9.8100e-
003

2.5900e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.6500e-
003

0.0000 8.0973 8.0973 3.9000e-
004

0.0000 8.1054

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 2.5206 0.1239 0.1243 2.0000e-
004

1.4600e-
003

0.0000 17.26508.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

8.6900e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 17.2345 17.2345

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

352 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 0.0116 0.1188 0.1078 1.4000e-
004

3.4800e-
003

0.0000 12.54915.7600e-
003

5.7600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 12.4759 12.4759

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0116 0.1188 0.1078 1.4000e-
004

5.7600e-
003

5.7600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

0.0000 12.4759 12.4759 3.4800e-
003

0.0000 12.5491

Total 3.1800e-
003

4.2200e-
003

0.0394 1.2000e-
004

3.9000e-
004

0.0000 8.10549.7400e-
003

7.0000e-
005

9.8100e-
003

2.5900e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.6500e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 8.0973 8.0973

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.6 Phase 3B1 - Field B Demolition - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 3.1800e-
003

4.2200e-
003

0.0394 1.2000e-
004

9.7400e-
003

7.0000e-
005

9.8100e-
003

2.5900e-
003

7.0000e-
005

2.6500e-
003

0.0000 8.0973 8.0973 3.9000e-
004

0.0000 8.1054

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

353 of 543



0.0000

Worker 1.4000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

1.7000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

4.2000e-
004

0.0000 4.2000e-
004

1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.1000e-
004

0.0000 0.3499 0.3499 2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.3502

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0116 0.1188 0.1078 1.4000e-
004

3.4800e-
003

0.0000 12.54915.7600e-
003

5.7600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 12.4759 12.4759

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0116 0.1188 0.1078 1.4000e-
004

5.7600e-
003

5.7600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

5.3600e-
003

0.0000 12.4759 12.4759 3.4800e-
003

0.0000 12.5491

Total 1.4000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

1.7000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.35024.2000e-
004

0.0000 4.2000e-
004

1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.1000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.3499 0.3499

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 1.4000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

1.7000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

4.2000e-
004

0.0000 4.2000e-
004

1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.1000e-
004

0.0000 0.3499 0.3499 2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.3502

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

354 of 543



Total 5.0000e-
004

6.6000e-
004

6.1200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.26091.5200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.5300e-
003

4.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.2596 1.2596

Mitigated Construction On-Site

0.0000

Worker 5.0000e-
004

6.6000e-
004

6.1200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.5200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.5300e-
003

4.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.2596 1.2596 6.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.2609

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

37.1729

Total 0.0422 0.4463 0.3655 4.1000e-
004

0.0117 0.0000 37.17290.1897 0.0226 0.2123 0.1043 0.0208 0.1250

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 36.9275 36.9275

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0422 0.4463 0.3655 4.1000e-
004

0.0226 0.0226 0.0208 0.0208 0.0000 36.9275 36.9275 0.0117 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.1897 0.0000 0.1897 0.1043 0.0000 0.1043 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 1.4000e-
004

1.8000e-
004

1.7000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.35024.2000e-
004

0.0000 4.2000e-
004

1.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.1000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.3499 0.3499

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.7 Phase 3B2 - Field B Site Prep - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

355 of 543



CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Total 5.0000e-
004

6.6000e-
004

6.1200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.26091.5200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.5300e-
003

4.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.1000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.2596 1.2596

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.8 Phase 3A5 - Gym&Field Landscape/Hardscape - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 5.0000e-
004

6.6000e-
004

6.1200e-
003

2.0000e-
005

1.5200e-
003

1.0000e-
005

1.5300e-
003

4.0000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

4.1000e-
004

0.0000 1.2596 1.2596 6.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.2609

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

37.1728

Total 0.0422 0.4463 0.3655 4.1000e-
004

0.0117 0.0000 37.17280.1897 0.0226 0.2123 0.1043 0.0208 0.1250

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 36.9275 36.9275

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Off-Road 0.0422 0.4463 0.3655 4.1000e-
004

0.0226 0.0226 0.0208 0.0208 0.0000 36.9275 36.9275 0.0117 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 0.1897 0.0000 0.1897 0.1043 0.0000 0.1043 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

356 of 543



0.0000

Total 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0112 0.0000 36.48290.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144 0.0000 36.2488 36.2488

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144 0.0000 36.2488 36.2488 0.0112 0.0000 36.4829

Total 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.93533.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

3.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.9353

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0112 0.0000 36.48290.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 36.2488 36.2488

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144 0.0000 36.2488 36.2488 0.0112 0.0000 36.4829

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

357 of 543



0.0000

Total 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0112 0.0000 36.48290.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144 0.0000 36.2488 36.2488

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144 0.0000 36.2488 36.2488 0.0112 0.0000 36.4829

Total 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.93533.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

3.9 Phase 3B3 - Field B Landscape/Hardscape - 2019
Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

3.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.9353

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

358 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Total 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0112 0.0000 36.48290.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 36.2488 36.2488

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.0275 0.2770 0.2672 4.1000e-
004

0.0157 0.0157 0.0144 0.0144 0.0000 36.2488 36.2488 0.0112 0.0000 36.4829

Total 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.93533.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Worker 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

3.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.9353

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

ROG NOx CO

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

359 of 543



High School 9.50 7.30 7.30 77.80 17.20 5.00 75 19 6

Total 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

4.3 Trip Type Information

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-
W

H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

2,554.402
7

4.2 Trip Summary Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated
Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

High School 2,783.88 993.08 407.00 5,729,839 5,729,839

Unmitigated 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Mitigated 1.5970 3.7646 16.7709 0.0314 2.1542 0.0484 2.2027 0.5762 0.0445 0.6206 0.0000 2,551.941
6

2,551.9416 0.1172 0.0000 2,554.402
7

Total 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.93533.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

0.0000

Worker 1.1500e-
003

1.5300e-
003

0.0143 4.0000e-
005

3.5300e-
003

3.0000e-
005

3.5500e-
003

9.4000e-
004

2.0000e-
005

9.6000e-
004

0.0000 2.9324 2.9324 1.4000e-
004

0.0000 2.9353

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

360 of 543



4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556 71.4556 71.8904

NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

High School 1.33903e+
006

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.89044.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.00004.9900e-
003

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

422.1077

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Electricity 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 420.6661 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Electricity 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 420.6661 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

0.006541 0.000614 0.003471

5.0 Energy Detail

SBUS MH

0.509603 0.073619 0.192430 0.134105

NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.001832 0.0020870.036943 0.005309 0.012459 0.020989

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

4.4 Fleet Mix
Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

ROG NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2

LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

361 of 543



High School 1.28719e+
006

420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

Total 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

422.1077

Mitigated

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

Unmitigated

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kWh/yr t
o
n

MT/yr

3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556

4.9900e-
003

0.0000

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Total 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 71.4556 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr tons/yr MT/yr

High School 1.33903e+
006

7.2200e-
003

0.0656 71.4556 1.3700e-
003

0.0551 3.9000e-
004

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

Mitigated

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

4.9900e-
003

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

4.9900e-
003

0.0000 71.4556Total 7.2200e-
003

0.0656 0.0551 3.9000e-
004

71.4556 1.3700e-
003

1.3100e-
003

71.8904

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

362 of 543



Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

0.0309

Unmitigated 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.03096.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

6.2 Area by SubCategory
Unmitigated

ROG NOx CO

Mitigated 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

ROG NOx NBio- 
CO2

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

422.1077

Land Use kWh/yr t
o
n

MT/yr

High School 1.28719e+
006

420.6661 0.0169

CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

422.1077

Total 420.6661 0.0169 3.5000e-
003

3.5000e-
003

Electricity 
Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

363 of 543



0.0309

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category t
o
n

MT/yr

Mitigated 99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

Total 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000

0.0000

Landscaping 1.5300e-
003

1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Consumer 
Products

0.8435 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Architectural 
Coating

0.2503 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 1.0953 1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.03096.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- 
CO2

Mitigated

ROG NOx CO Total CO2

0.0000

Landscaping 1.5300e-
003

1.5000e-
004

0.0155 0.0000 6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

6.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0291 0.0291 8.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0309

Consumer 
Products

0.8435 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SubCategory tons/yr MT/yr

Architectural 
Coating

0.2503 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

364 of 543



8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Land Use Mgal t
o
n

MT/yr

High School 7.17127 / 
18.4404

99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

Total 99.7459 0.2376 6.3200e-
003

106.6940

High School 7.17127 / 
18.4404

99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

Total 99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

Mitigated

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Unmitigated 99.7459 0.2376 6.3300e-
003

106.6976

7.2 Water by Land Use
Unmitigated

Indoor/Out
door Use

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use Mgal t
o
n

MT/yr

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

365 of 543



High School 297.11 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Total 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Mitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

 Unmitigated 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

8.2 Waste by Land Use
Unmitigated

Waste 
Disposed

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use tons t
o
n

MT/yr

Category/Year

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

t
o
n

MT/yr

 Mitigated 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

366 of 543



Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Vegetation

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power

Land Use tons t
o
n

MT/yr

High School 297.11 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Total 60.3106 3.5643 0.0000 135.1600

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

367 of 543



    
    
A D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U MA D D E N D U M     L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .L S A  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .         
S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  S A N  D I E G U I T O  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  H I G H  S C H OO L  A C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T SA C A D E M Y  I M P R O V E M E N T S     J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4J U N E  2 0 1 4     
S A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  HS A N  D I E G U I T O  U N I O N  H I G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C TI G H  S C HO O L  D I S T R I C T         

    

 E:\SDA\Complete Addendum 06_10_14.docx «06/10/14» 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Attachment to 
06-19-14 Minutes 
Item 18

ITEM 6
Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14

368 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED AND      
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt, Superintendent  
 
SUBJECT:    ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS AND DONATIONS 
  
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  

The district administration is requesting acceptance of gifts and donations to the 
district, as shown on the attached report.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board accept the gifts and donations submitted to the 
district, as shown on the attached report.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
Not applicable 
 
 
 

 
       
 
 
        

ITEM 11A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
369 of 543



GIFTS AND DONATIONS

SDUHSD BOARD MEETING

JULY 17, 2014
Item #  Donation Description Donor Department School Site

1 $15.68 Mileage Costs Canyon Crest Academy Foundation Athletics CCA

2 $1,040.16 Theater Technician Costs San Dieguito High School Academy Theater SDHSA

3 $200.00 School Supplies Carmel Valley Middle School PTSA Administration CVMS

4 $12,600.00 Academic Support Earl Warren Middle School PTSA Administration EWMS

5 $6.66 School Supplies Box Tops for Education Administration EWMS

6 $289.10 Artist in Residence Cost Earl Warren Middle School PTSA Music EWMS

7 $5,000.00 Artist in Residence Cost SDAF Music Council Music SDHSA

8 $5,994.61 Conservatory Teachers Cost Canyon Crest Academy Foundation Administration CCA

9 $61.50 PE Supplies Canyon Crest Academy Foundation PE CCA

10 $132.79 School Supplies TRUIST Administration CCA

11 $42.38 School Supplies TRUIST Administration CVMS

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

$25,382.88 Monetary Donations

*Value of Donated Items

$25,382.88 TOTAL VALUE

ITEM 11A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
370 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
TO:       BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:    June 20, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    July  17, 2014  
 
PREPARED BY:     Michael Grove, Ed.D. 
       Associate Superintendent of   
       Educational Services 
 
SUBMITTED BY:     Rick Schmitt, Superintendent  
 
SUBJECT:      Approval / Ratification of Field Trip  
       Requests 
   

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The district administration is requesting approval / ratification of out-of-state, overnight, 
and / or out-of-county field trips, as shown on the attached reports. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve / ratify the field trips, as shown on the 
attached supplement. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
As listed on the attached supplement. 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 11B

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
371 of 543



FIELD TRIP REQUESTS

SDUHSD BOARD MEETING

 July 17, 2014

Item 

# Date

Sponsor, 

Last Name First Name

School 

Team/Club

Total # 

Students

Total # 

Chaperones

Event Description / 

Name of Conference City State

Loss of 

Class 

Time  $ Cost

1

04-05-14 - 

04-11-14

Whattoff / 

Villanova Anne / Amy

CCA Instrumental 

& Vocal Music 45 6 Music Tour

Amsterdam, 

Paris

Holland, 

France None CCA Foundation / ASB

2

08-08-14 - 

08-10-14 Kortman Tanner CCA ASB 35 1 ASB Retreat Forest Falls CA None CCA Foundation / ASB

* Dollar amounts are listed only when District/site funds are being spent.

   Other activities are paid for by student fees or ASB funds. 1

ITEM 11B

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
372 of 543



 
San Dieguito Union High School District 

 
INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 8, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
  
PREPARED BY:   Torrie Norton 
     Associate Superintendent/Human Resources 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 

Superintendent 
    
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF CERTIFICATED and 

CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL 
   

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Please find the following Personnel actions attached for Board Approval: 
 

Certificated  
 
Employment 
Change in Assignment 
Leave of Absence 
Resignation 
 
Classified 
 
Employment 
Change in Assignment 
Resignation 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve the attached Personnel actions. 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
General Fund          

ITEM 12A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
373 of 543



 PERSONNEL LIST 
 
 

CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL 
 

Employment 
 

1. Kristi Christensen, 100% Temporary Teacher (special ed – Mild/Moderate Disabilities) at 
Canyon Crest Academy, for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

2. Sean Floyd, 80% Temporary Teacher (Spanish) at Carmel Valley Middle School, for the 
2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

3. Lindsey Geissler, 60% Temporary Teacher (biology/chemistry) at La Costa Canyon High 
School, for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

4. Joseph Kutney, 100% Temporary Teacher (mathematics) at Diegueno Middle School, for 
the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

5. Taylor Lowe, 80% Temporary Teacher (science) at Earl Warren Middle School, for the 
2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

6. Jeannine Marquie, Temporary Teacher (English/drama) at San Dieguito High School 
Academy, 67% assignment Semester I, effective 8/19/14 through 1/23/15; increased to 
100% assignment Semester II, effective 1/26/15 through 6/12/15. 

7. Amy Masuda, 100% Temporary Teacher (social science) at Earl Warren Middle School, 
for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

8. Eric Neubauer, 67% Permanent Teacher (ROP Auto/Game Design) at San Dieguito 
Academy, additional 33% Temporary Assignment for the 2014-15 school year, effective 
8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

9. Victoria Polyak, 60% Temporary Teacher (art) at Earl Warren Middle School, for the 
2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

10. Katherine Scott, 67% Temporary Teacher (biology/chemistry) at San Dieguito High 
School Academy, for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

11. Laura Spaulding, 100% Temporary Teacher (special education – TAP) at Carmel Valley 
Middle School, for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

 

Change in Assignment 
 

1. Meredith (Wadley) Amsbaugh, Change in Assignment from Coordinator of Special 
Education to Coordinator of Student Services (management) at the District Office, 
effective 7/01/14. 

2. Adam Camacho, Change in Assignment from Middle School Assistant Principal at Carmel 
Valley Middle School to Middle School Principal at Earl Warren Middle School, effective 
7/01/14. 

3. Scott Jordon, Teacher, (multi-media) at Carmel Valley Middle School and La Costa 
Canyon High School, Change in Assignment from 80% to 100% (permanent) beginning in 
the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14. 

ITEM 12A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
374 of 543



4. Julianna Newell, Teacher (science) at Torrey Pines High School, Change in Assignment 
from 80% to 100% (permanent) beginning in the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14. 

5. MaryAnne Nuskin, Change in Assignment from Principal at Earl Warren Middle School 
to Principal of New Middle School #5 (yet to be named) effective 7/01/14. 

 

Leave of Absence 
 

1. Lisa Caston, Teacher (English) at Canyon Crest Academy, requests a 33% Unpaid Leave 
of Absence (67% assignment) for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 
6/12/15. 

2. Joy Kuemmerle, Teacher (PE/Adaptive PE) at Torrey Pines, requests a 40% Unpaid Leave 
of Absence for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 6/12/15. 

3. Sylwia Nelson, Teacher (English) at Carmel Valley Middle School, requests a 20% Unpaid 
Leave of Absence (80% assignment) for the 2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 
through 6/12/15. 

4. Thienan Nguyen, Teacher, (mathematics) at Canyon Crest Academy, requests a 100% 
Unpaid Leave of Absence Semester I/2014-15 school year, effective 8/19/14 through 
1/23/15; and, a 33% Unpaid Leave of Absence (67% assignment) Semester II/2014-15 
school year, effective 1/26/15 through 6/12/15. 

 

Resignation 
 

1. Mary Sanchez-Allwein, Counselor at Torrey Pines High School, granted an Unpaid Leave 
of Absence for the 2014-15 school year, resignation from employment with our district, 
effective 7/01/14. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
dr 

7/17/14 
certbdagenda 
 
 

ITEM 12A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
375 of 543



PERSONNEL LIST                 

CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL 

 
Employment 
 

1. Amador, Corrie, Director of Classified Personnel, G5R2, 100% FTE, District Office-Human 
Resources, effective 7/14/14 

2. Chavez, Adrian, HVAC Technician, SR49, 100.00% FTE, Facilities, effective 07/01/14 
3. Rowe, Jason, Maintenance Worker II, SR40, 100.00% FTE, Facilities, effective 6/19/14 
4. Tsuda, Dayne, Network Technician, SR57, 100.00% FTE, District Office-Technology, 

effective 7/14/14 
 
Change in Assignment 
 

1. Brand, Pam, from Administrative Secretary, SR 40, 75.00% FTE, Nutrition Department to 
Secretary, SR36, 100.00% FTE, Carmel Valley Middle School, effective 08/01/2014 

2. Horwedel, Daric, from Network Technician, SR57, 100.00% FTE, District Office-Technology  
to Network Analyst, SR66, 100.00% FTE, effective 06/16/14 

3. Medina, Jesus, from Custodian Crew Leader, SR38, 100.00% FTE, San Dieguito High 
School Academy to School Plant Supervisor, Middle School, SR39, 100.00% FTE, Oak Crest 
Middle School, effective 06/25/14 

4. Roberts, Caroline, from Construction and Facility Projects Coordinator, SR44, 100.00% FTE, 
Facilities-Construction Department to Construction Services Analyst, SR60, 100.00% FTE, 
effective 06/13/14 

 
Resignation 
 

1. Al-Shamma, Maria, Instructional Assistant-SpEd(NS), SR34, 48.75% FTE, La Costa Canyon 
High School, effective 06/13/14 

2. Santamaria, Kelsey, Instructional Assistant-SpEd(NS), SR34, 37.50% FTE, Torrey Pines 
High School, effective 06/13/14 

3. Stone, Christopher, Instructional Assistant-SpEd(NS), SR34, 48.75% FTE, Earl Warren 
Middle School, effective 6/11/14 

4. Volpe, Cassandra, Instructional Assistant-SpEd(NS), SR34, 37.50% FTE, Torrey Pines High 
School, effective 06/13/14 

5. Wagner, Nathalie, Instructional Assistant-SpEd(NS), SR34, 37.50% FTE, Torrey Pines High 
School, effective 06/27/14 

6. Webber, Dalton, Lead Grounds Worker, SR44, 100.00% FTE, Facilities, resignation for the 
purpose of retirement effective 10/07/14 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
sj 
07/17/14  
classbdagenda 
  

ITEM 12A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
376 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Jason Viloria, Executive Director of  

Educational Services 
Michael Grove, Associate Superintendent of 
Educational Services 

    
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT:    APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS/ 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 

  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
The attached Professional Services Report/Educational Services summarizes four contracts.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve and/or ratify the contracts, as shown 
in the attached Professional Services Report. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
As noted on attached supplement 
 

 
       

ITEM 13A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
377 of 543



 1 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICES - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REPORT                   Board Meeting Date: 07-17-14 
 

Contract 
Effective 

Dates 

Consultant/ 
Vendor 

 
Description of Services 

School/ 
Department 

Budget 

Fee 
Not to Exceed 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Phyllis Quan dba 
Quan Consulting 

Provide advice and counsel in fundraising for high school 
sports and other academic and extracurricular activities 

General Fund  
03-00 

$5,400.00 

07/01/13 – 
06/30/14 

 

San Diego 
County 
Superintendent 
of Schools 
/County Office of 
Education 

Provide credential services for Adult Education teachers Adult Education 
Fund 11-00 

$286.00 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

 
 

San Diego 
County 
Superintendent 
of Schools 
/County Office of 
Education 

Provide credential services for Adult Education teachers Adult Education 
Fund 11-00 

$286.00 

10/01/13 – 
06/30/14 

 

San Diego 
County 
Superintendent 
of Schools 
/County Office of 
Education 

Provide advanced Specially Designed Academic Instruction in 
English (SDAIE) professional development for San Dieguito 
Union High School District teachers 

General Fund 
/Restricted 06-00 

$2,575.00 

 

ITEM 13A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
378 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Jason Viloria, Executive Director of  

Educational Services 
Michael Grove, Associate Superintendent of 
Educational Services 

    
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT:    APPROVAL / RATIFICATION OF 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS 
  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
The attached Professional Services Report/Educational Services summarizes one amendment 
to agreements.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve and/or ratify the contract, as shown in 
the attached Professional Services Report. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
As noted on attached supplement 
 

 
       

ITEM 13B

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
379 of 543



 1 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICES - AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS REPORT    Board Meeting Date: 07-17-14 
 

Contract 
Effective 

Dates 

Consultant/ 
Vendor 

 
Description of Services 

School/ 
Department 

Budget 

Fee 
Not to Exceed 

06/20/14 – 
06/30/15 and 

then 
continuing 
with annual 
renewals 
unless 

terminated 
with 30 day 

advance 
written notice 

 

Rosetta Stone, 
Ltd. 

Amending the agreement to include 20 additional licenses Title 1 
General Fund 
/Restricted 06-00 

$2,180.00 

 

ITEM 13B

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
380 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 3, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Chuck Adams, Director of Special Education 

      Michael Grove,  Associate Superintendent, 
 Educational Services 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL / RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 

 
  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The attached Special Education Agreements Report summarizes twenty five contracts.  
Approval of twenty two of these contracts is based on the North County Consortium for Special 
Education (NCCSE) approved 2014-15 rates. Three of the attached rate sheets show all of the 
non-public schools (NPS), non-public agencies (NPA), and NPA/NPS residential treatment 
centers (RTC) currently approved by NCCSE for use by school districts, as well as others that 
are still pending per negotiations with NCCSE. San Dieguito Union High School District only 
intends to use some of the approved contractors from this list. All contractors listed on the 
Special Education Agreements Report, including the independent contractors (ICA) are 
continually used each year, and pre-approval to enter into contracts at the rates shown in the 
attachments at the beginning of the school year facilitates a streamlined process that allows 
contracts and purchase orders to be completed in an expedited manner. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve and/or ratify the contracts as shown 
on the attached Special Education Agreements report. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 
As noted on the attached report.     

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
381 of 543



 1 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
 

SPECIAL EDUCATION AGREEMENTS          Board Meeting Date: 07-17-14  
 

Contract 
Effective 

Dates 
Contract/Vendor Description of Services 

Department 
Budget 

Current #  
of Students 

Fee 
Not to Exceed 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Sharon A. Criger, PT, DPT 
(ICA) 

To provide physical therapy, 
assessments, and IEP support in 
an educational setting. 

General Fund 
03-00 

12 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Daniel & Davis Optometry, 
Inc. (ICA) 

To provide vision therapy, 
assessments, and IEP support in 
an educational setting. 

General Fund 
03-00 

5 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Amanda J. Gretsch, Inc. 
(ICA) 

To provide occupational therapy, 
assessments, and IEP support in 
an educational setting. 

General Fund 
 03-00 

Varies At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

06/12/14 – 
06/30/15 

Yellowstone Boys & Girls 
Ranch (NPS) 

To provide twenty-four hour 
residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, 
emotional, and mental health 
issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment  

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Banyan Tree Learning 
Center (NPA) 

To provide an alternative 
education model for both diploma 
bound and non-diploma bound 
students. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

2 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Lindamood Bell Learning 
Processes (NPA) 

To provide intensive reading 
instruction and intervention. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

2 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Dependable Nursing, LLC 
(NPA) 

To provide nursing services for 
medically fragile students. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Maxim Healthcare 
Services (NPA) 

To provide nursing services for 
medically fragile students. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

ACES (NPA) To provide one to one 
educationally & behavior related 
services and consultation for 
students with autism. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
382 of 543



 2 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Autism Spectrum 
Consultants, Inc. (NPA) 

To provide one to one 
educationally & behavior related 
services and consultation for 
students with autism. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

4 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Comprehensive Autism 
Services & Education 
(NPA) 

To provide one to one 
educationally & behavior related 
services and consultation for 
students with autism. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

San Diego Center for 
Vision Care (NPA) 

To provide services as an 
Independent educational evaluator 
for vision therapy and 
assessments. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Arch Academy (NPS) To provide an alternative 
education model for diploma 
bound students with high 
functioning autism and/or social, 
emotional, mental health issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

3 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Excelsior Academy (NPS) To provide an alternative 
education model for diploma 
bound students with social, 
emotional, mental health issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Winston School (NPS) To provide an alternative 
education model for diploma 
bound students with high 
functioning autism and/or 
moderate to severe learning 
disabilities. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

9 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Banyan Tree Foundations 
Academy (NPS) 

To provide an alternative 
education model for non-diploma 
bound students with moderate to 
severe autism and/or intellectual 
disabilities. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

3 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Community School of San 
Diego (NPS) 

To provide an alternative 
education model for non-diploma 
bound students with moderate to 
severe autism and/or intellectual 
disabilities. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
383 of 543



 3 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

New Bridge School (NPS) To provide an alternative 
education model for diploma 
bound students with high 
functioning autism and/or 
moderate to severe learning 
disabilities up to Grade 8. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Sierra Academy (NPS) To provide an alternative 
education model for non-diploma 
bound students with moderate to 
severe autism and/or intellectual 
disabilities. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

3 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

TERI, Inc. (NPS) To provide an alternative 
education model for non-diploma 
bound students with moderate to 
severe autism and/or intellectual 
disabilities. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

9 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

San Diego Center for 
Children Academy (NPS) 

To provide twenty-four hour 
residential treatment and an 
alternative education model for 
diploma bound students with high 
functioning autism and/or social, 
emotional, mental health issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

4 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Family Life Center (NPS) To provide twenty-four hour 
residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, 
emotional, and mental health 
issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Heritage Schools, Inc. 
(NPS) 

To provide twenty-four hour 
residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, 
emotional, and mental health 
issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

2 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Provo Canyon School 
(NPS, NPA) 

To provide twenty-four hour 
residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, 
emotional, and mental health 
issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

1 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
384 of 543



 4 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Oak Grove Institute (NPS) To provide twenty-four hour 
residential treatment for diploma 
bound students with severe social, 
emotional, and mental health 
issues. 

General Fund / 
Restricted 06-00 

2 At the rates shown 
on the attachment 

 

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
385 of 543



Sharon A. Criger, PT, DPT 
CA License #13473 

619. 838.9481 (mobile) 
858.780.8681 (fax) 

 
 

 
 

2014-2015 Physical Therapy Services Rate Sheet 
 
 

Physical Therapy Assessment                                          $ 350.00 
(May include: record review, clinical observations, ROM, MMT,  
parent/provider interview, developmental screening, fall risk assessment,  
and does include a type written report) 
  

Additional Standardized Tests                                          $ 200.00/each test 
Performed as necessary or upon request, such as:                                                                
TGMD-2, BOT-2, Sensorimotor Performance Analysis, QNST-3 
Brigance Inventory of Early Development III, Standardized 
 

Physical Therapy Direct Service                                      $   100.00/hour 
 

Physical Therapy Consultation Service                            $   100.00/hour 
 
IEP Meeting Attendance                                                   $   100.00/hour 
 
Report Charge                                                                   $    30.00/each 
Annual Progress Summary, Draft Goals, Benchmark Updates, 
Goal Progress, Present Levels, Sensory Diet, Visual Schedule  
                  

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
386 of 543



 
 

Susan L. Daniel, O.D.  Christopher Davis, O.D.  Camilla E. Dukes, O.D., F.C.O.V.D.   Karen E. Love, O.D., F.C.O.V.D. 

3144 El Camino Real, Suite 202  Carlsbad, CA 92008  (760) 434-3314  (760) 434-5624 Fax 
Adult & Pediatric Eye Exams ∙ Contact Lenses/Frames ∙ Visual Efficiency & Perceptual Testing/Training ∙ Stroke Visual Rehabilitation ∙ Traumatic Brain Injury 

Visual Rehabilitation ∙ Therapy for Visually Related Learning Problems ∙ Laser Surgery Consultation ∙ Therapeutic Treatment of Ocular Disease 

Vision Source! Network Affiliate 

 

2014-2015 FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 Developmental Visual Assessment with report $698.00 

 Vision Therapy Sessions: $135/session 

 Vision Therapy Materials Fee: $30 (typically charged every 12 therapy sessions) 

 Vision Therapy Progress Evaluation with Report: (typically performed after 12 therapy 

sessions)  

Approximately 1-2 hours $260.00 

 IEP Consultation: Includes travel time $280.00/hour 

 Consultation and training of School Personnel: $280.00/hour with Materials fee of $100 

every 12 weeks. 

 Extended Chart Review $125 

 

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
387 of 543



 
Amanda J Gretsch, Inc. 

171 Calle Magdalena, Ste. 101, Encinitas, CA 92024 

Phone: 760-525-3111   Fax: 760-479-0059 

www.amandagretschOT.com 

 
 

        

FEE SCHEDULE  

Occupational Therapy  

 

EVALUATIONS 

Comprehensive Evaluation with School Observation and IEP Attendance     $  750.00 

Includes 1 ½ - 2 hours of standardized assessment, clinical observations, review of records, school 

observation, detailed written report, and attendance at one IEP meeting (up to one hour; additional time  

will be charged at the regularly hourly rate). Does not include driving time. 

          

 Sensory Integration and Praxis Test (SIPT) “Gold-standard in sensory processing assessment”      $1500.00 

Approximately 3-4 hours of testing, typically divided into two sessions, including the SIPT and other  

applicable standardized testing; review of records; detailed written report, which includes explanations of  

the connections between sensory integration issues and functional performance; and attendance at one IEP  

meeting (up to one hour; additional time will be charged at the regularly hourly rate). Does not include  

driving time. 

 

DIRECT TREATMENT AND/OR SCHOOL CONSULTATION - Does not include driving time. 

Individual Occupational Therapy Treatment/Consultation – 60 minutes     $ 125.00  

 

Individual Occupational Therapy Treatment/Consultation – 45 minutes     $ 110.00  

 

Individual Occupational Therapy Treatment/Consultation – 30 minutes     $   80.00  

                                    

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

These services are billed at the regularly hourly rate of $125.00 per hour.  

1. Driving time. 

2. IEP Consultation and/or Attendance. 

3. School Observations. 

4. Additional meetings, consultations, or telephone calls with families or other professionals. 

 

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
388 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

ACES Kristen Farmer
37-68338-0110809

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

19.93/HR

SCIA Assistance (one to one aide)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3731 6th Ave., Ste. 100
San Diego CA  92102kfarmer@aces.vu

$272.64
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 497-2463

SCIA Assistance (one to one aide)

Schools with Services
X

A. Related Services

School

Arch Academy Julie BeDell
37683386206833

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation 
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

9445 Farnham Street, Suite 101
San Diego, CA  92123 drdeb40@earthlink.com

225.93

$224.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

619-887-3522
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
389 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Aseltine School Hayden Thomas
37683386975270

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

18.00/HR
18.00/One Way
18.00/One Way
36.00/Month
72.00/Month
18.00/Month

SCIA/1:1 Aide

Transportation - Emergency Bus Trip
Transportation Dual Enrollment
Bus Pass - Youth Rate (or SANDAG Rate)

Bus Pass - Disabled Rate/With proper ID (or SANDAG Rate)
New Replacement Cards (or SANDAG Per Month Instance)

2.00/Instance

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4027 Normal Street
San Diego  CA  92103hthomas@aseltine.org

178.06

$179.58
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 296-2135

SCIA/1:1 Aide
Transportation - Emergency Bus Trip

Bus Pass - Adult Rate (or SANDAG Rate)

Transportation Dual Enrollment
Bus Pass - Youth Rate (or SANDAG Rate)
Bus Pass - Adult Rate (or SANDAG Rate)
Bus Pass - Disabled Rate/With proper ID (or SANDAG Rate)
New Replacement Cards (or SANDAG Per Month Instance)

Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

Balboa/City School Jeanie Lindfelt
374683387077357

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

525 Hawthorne St.  Ste.1
San Diego CA  92101sparker@balboaschool.com

132.28

$132.28
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 298-2990 x207
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
390 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Banyan Tree Foundations Academy - Mira Mesa Laura Johnson
37-68338-0118836

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

95./HR

75./HR
75./HR
95./HR

Speech (for service beyond 1.5 hrs. all inclusive)

OT (for service beyond 1.5 hrs. all inclusive)
Counseling (for service beyond 1.5 hrs. all inclusive)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
95./HR
95./HR
95./HR
95./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

9636 Tierra Grande St.  Ste. 200
San Diego CA  92126ljohnson@btlearningcenters.com

265. (L1 165. (L2)

$265. (L1) $165.
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(858) 578-6616

Speech (for service beyond 1.5 hrs. all inclusive)
OT (for service beyond 1.5 hrs. all inclusive)
Counseling (for service beyond 1.5 hrs. all inclusive)

Schools with Services
X

A. Related Services

School

Banyan Tree Foundations Academy - Pt. Loma Nanci Engle
37-68338-0118844

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3555 Kenyon Street, #101
San Diego, CA  92110NEngle@BanyanTLC.org

265. (L1) 165. (L2)

$265. (L1) $165.
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

619-226-6171
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
391 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

CASE - Comprehensive Autism Services & Education, Inc Cynthia Norall
37-73551-6139844

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

785 Grand Ave. Suite 101
San Diego, CA 92008casecon@aol.com

167.00

$167.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 720-4964
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

Community School of San Diego (100% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation 
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net

287.00

$287.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 758-9424
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
392 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Community School of San Diego (33% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net

160.00

$160.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 758-9424
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

Community School of San Diego (50% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net

199.00

$199.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 758-9424
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
393 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Community School of San Diego (66% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net

235.00

$235.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 758-9424
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

Discovery Academy Schools - Discovery Academy Brent Hall
77-76422-0128884

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

4,450/month
2,670./month
1,780/month

Residential

Clinical
Academic

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

105 North 500 West
Provo, UT 84601brenth@discoveryacademy.com

$8,900.month
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(801) 400-5034

Residential
Clinical
Academic

Schools with Services
x

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
394 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Discovery Academy Schools - Discovery Connections Brent Hall
77-76422-0128884

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

5,250./month
3,150./month
2,100./month

Residential

Clinical
Academic

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

105 North 500 West
Provo, UT 84601brenth@discoveryacademy.com

$10,500./month
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(801) 400-5034

Residential
Clinical
Academic

Schools with Services
x

A. Related Services

School

Discovery Academy Schools - Discovery Ranch Brent Hall
77-76422-0128884

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

5,950./month
3,570./month
2,380./month

Residential

Clinical
Academic

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

105 North 500 West
Provo, UT 84601brenth@discoveryacademy.com

$11,900./month
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(801) 400-5034

Residential
Clinical
Academic

Schools with Services
x

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
395 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Discovery Academy Schools - Oxbow Academy Brent Hall
77-76422-0128884

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

5,850./month
3,510./month
2,340./month

Residential

Clinical
Academic

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

105 North 500 West 
Provo, UT 84601brenth@discoveryacademy.com

$11,700./month
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(801) 400-5034

Residential
Clinical
Academic

Schools with Services
x

A. Related Services

School

Excelsior Academy Julie Gillis
37683387067846

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

7202 Princess View Drive
San Diego  CA  92120karana@excelsioracademy.com

136.07

$136.07
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 583-6762
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
396 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Fred Finch of San Diego Bret Calhoun
37681896206270

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3434 Grove Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945bretcalhoun@fredfinch.org

207.06

$210.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

619.797.1090 x4207
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

New Bridge School Steven Mayo
37-68296-6130777

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation 
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

12285 Oak Knoll Road
Poway CA  92064 newbridgeschool@me.com

120.97

$128.09
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(858) 679-5744
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
397 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

New Haven School-Day School Jeff Kozlowski
37 68452 7072713

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

Internal Rev Rate

137.55/DAY
30./HR

Day Student Education Program (All Inclusive)

SCI Assistance (1:1)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

80./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510) 
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

P.O. Box 1199
Vista  CA  92085-1199JKozlowksi@newhavenyfs.org

137.55

$137.55
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 630-4035

Day Student Education Program (All Inclusive)
SCI Assistance (1:1)

Schools with Services
x

A. Related Services

School

New Haven School-Residential Jeff Kozlowski
37 68452 7072713

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

Internal Rev Rate

122.00/DAY
8,529.00/MO
30./HR

Education Program for Residential Students (All Inclusive)

Room & Board (All Inclusive)
SCI Assistance (1:1)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate 

216 West Los Angeles Drive
Vista  CA  92083jkozlowksi@newhavenyfs.org

122.00

$122.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 224-2845

Education Program for Residential Students (All Inclusive)
Room & Board (All Inclusive)
SCI Assistance (1:1)

Schools with Services
x

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
398 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Oak Grove Institute-Day Program Athene Banche
33-75200-7071533

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

90./HR
70./HR
80./HR

50./HR

75./HR

upon request

155.85/DAY
170.56/DAY
198.28/DAY
80.00/DAY
12.77/HR
70.-90./HR

Basic Ed Day Student includes therapeutic srvs defined in MC

Basic Education - Autism Specific
Extended Day Student
Day Treatment Services (Day Student Rate + $80./Day)

LSDR - Consultation: $70/HR; LSDR - Assessment: $90/HR
OT -Group/Consult: $70;  Indiv.: $80; Assessment: $90
Wraparound Services
Non Medical Board and Care (RCL 12)
Tutoring Services70-90./HR

2,692./MO
8,711./MO
50./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
125./HR
100./HR
100./HR
125./HR

125./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

24275 Jefferson Avenue
Murrieta CA  92562atheneb@oakgrovecenter.org

155.85

$155.85
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(951) 677-5599 x282

Basic Ed Day Student includes therapeutic srvs defined in MC
Basic Education - Autism Specific

Individual Instructional Asst.

Extended Day Student
Day Treatment Services (Day Student Rate + $80./Day)
Individual Instructional Asst.
LSDR - Consultation: $70/HR; LSDR - Assessment: $90/HR
OT -Group/Consult: $70;  Indiv.: $80; Assessment: $90
Wraparound Services
Non Medical Board and Care (RCL 12)
Tutoring Services 

Schools with Services
x

A. Related Services

School

Oak Grove Institute-Residential Room & Board Athene Banche
33-75200-7071533

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

24275 Jefferson Avenue
Murrieta CA  92562atheneb@oakgrovecenter.org

8711.

$8,711./mo
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(951) 677-5599 x282
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
399 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Oak Grove Institute-Residential School Program Athene Banche
33-75200-7071533

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

90./HR
70./HR
80./HR

75./HR

upon request

144.13/DAY
170.56/DAY
198.28/DAY
80.00/DAY
12.77/HR
70.-90./HR

Basic Ed Res Student includes therapeutic srvs defined in MC

Basic Education - Autism Specific
Extended Day Student
Day Treatment Services (Day Student Rate + $80./Day)

LSDR - Consultation: $70/HR; LSDR - Assessment: $90/HR
OT -Group/Consult: $70;  Indiv.: $80; Assessment: $90
Wraparound Services
Non Medical Board and Care (RCL 12)
Tutoring Services70-90./HR

2,692./MO
8,711.00/MO
50./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
125./HR
100./HR
100./HR
125./HR

125./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

24275 Jefferson Avenue
Murrieta CA  92562atheneb@oakgrovecenter.org

144.13

$144.13
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(951) 677-5599 x282

Basic Ed Res Student includes therapeutic srvs defined in MC
Basic Education - Autism Specific

Individual Instructional Asst.

Extended Day Student
Day Treatment Services (Day Student Rate + $80./Day)
Individual Instructional Asst.
LSDR - Consultation: $70/HR; LSDR - Assessment: $90/HR
OT -Group/Consult: $70;  Indiv.: $80; Assessment: $90
Wraparound Services
Non Medical Board and Care (RCL 12)
Tutoring Services 

Schools with Services
x

A. Related Services

Agency

Palomar Family Counseling Services, Inc. Irene Saper
1A-37-045

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

15./HR

Group Counseling

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

45./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1002 East Grand Avenue
Escondido,  CA  92025pfcs_02@sbcglobal.net

Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 741-2660

Group Counseling

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
400 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Pioneer Day School James Leiner
37-68338-6132799

x

Inactive
x

Certif Expires

db

$25./HR
$95./HR(each)
$55./HR

1:1 Aide

1:1 OT and Speech Therapy
1:1 Teacher/Academic Instruction

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515) 
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net

119.66

119.66
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 758-9424

1:1 Aide
1:1 OT and Speech Therapy
1:1 Teacher/Academic Instruction

Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

San Diego Center for Children Academy Nancy Macnamara
37-68338-7093115

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

15./HR

SCIA

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

80./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3002 Armstrong Street
San Diego, CA 92111nmacnamara@centerforchildren.org

167.63

$172.85
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

858-569-2131

SCIA

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
401 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Sierra Academy of San Diego Katy Disano
37-68338-7100852

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

68.81/HR

152.17
16.21/HR

Basic Education (SE)

Special Circumstances Assistant (1:1 Aide)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6460 Boulder Lake Avenue
San Diego CA  92119kdisano@sierra-school.com

147.58

$148.51
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 460-5066 ext. 11

Basic Education (SE)
Special Circumstances Assistant (1:1 Aide)

Schools with Services
X

A. Related Services

School

Spectrum Center Schools and Programs Carmen Rivera-Jara

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5250 Almar Street
Riverside, CA 92505crivera-jara@spectrumschools.com

PENDING
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

951.264.1958
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
402 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Springall Academy Heather Dierolf
37-68338-6992994

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

28.50./HR
18.00/MO
30.00/One Time
15.00/HR
17.00/HR

Emergency Transportation

Bus Pass
Transportation ID
Before and After Care

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

52.00/HR
20.00/HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6460 Boulder Lake Ave.
San Diego CA  92119hdierolf@springall.org

170.39

$171.47
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 460-5090 x104

Emergency Transportation
Bus Pass

Special Circumstances Assistant (1:1 Aide)

Transportation ID 
Before and After Care
Special Circumstances Assistant (1:1 Aide)

Schools with Services
X

A. Related Services

School

Stein Center - Decena Michael Brown
37-68338-6997969

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

15.93/HR
Current Rate
14.57/HR
14.57/HR

Bus Aide

Bus Pass - Current SANDAG Rate
Emergency Transportation Driver Only + IRS Mileage Rate
Emergency Transportation - Each Additional Aide

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training 
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6145 Decena Drive
San Diego,  CA  92120mbrown@vistahill.org

198.84

$206.64
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 281-5511 x211

Bus Aide
Bus Pass - Current SANDAG Rate
Emergency Transportation Driver Only + IRS Mileage Rate
Emergency Transportation - Each Additional Aide

Schools with Services
X

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
403 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Stein Center - Transition Michael Brown
37-68338-7093966

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

15.93/HR
Current Rate
14.57/HR
14.57/HR

Bus Aide

Bus Pass - Current SANDAG Rate
Emergency Transportation Driver Only + IRS Mileage Rate
Emergency Transportation - Each Additional Aide

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6145 Decena Drive
San Diego,  CA  92120mbrown@vistahill.org

198.84

$206.64
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 281-5511 x211

Bus Aide
Bus Pass - Current SANDAG Rate
Emergency Transportation Driver Only + IRS Mileage Rate
Emergency Transportation - Each Additional Aide

Schools with Services
X

A. Related Services

School

TERI Country School 1:1 Krysti Dezonia
37737916927644

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org

243.31

$248.84
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 744-4870
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
404 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

TERI Country School 1:3 Krysti Dezonia
37737916927644

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org

171.44

$175.24
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 744-4870
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

TERI Country School 1:9 Krysti Dezonia
37737916927644

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org

130.96

$132.43
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 744-4870
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
405 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

TERI Learning Academy 1:1 Krysti Dezonia
37735697105075

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org

243.31

$248.84
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 721-1706
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

TERI Learning Academy 1:3 Krysti Dezonia
37735697105075

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org

173.29

$175.24
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(760) 721-1706
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
406 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

The Koonings Center Steven Mayo
37-68296-0127308

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

12271 Oak Knoll Road
Poway, CA 92064 kooningscenter@icloud.com

200.00

$200.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

858-679-5745
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

TIEE - AIM HIGH at Mt. Helix Academy (Site 4) Suzanne Fitch
37-68197-6927636

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

110./DAY
IRS + 24./HR
130./HR

SCIA

Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

130./HR
75./HR
140./HR

85./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org

170.59

$172.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 460-5090 x104, 243-1327 (Suzy)

SCIA
Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
407 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

TIEE - Children’s Workshop (Site 1) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-6987960

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

110./DAY
IRS + 24./HR
130./HR

SCIA

Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

130./HR
75./HR
140./HR

85./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org

242.11

$250.85
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 243-1325

SCIA
Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

TIEE - Cook Education Center (Site 3) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-7079817

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

110./DAY
IRS + 24./HR
130./HR

SCIA

Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

130./HR
75./HR
140./HR

85./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org

171.46

$177.63
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 460-5090 x104, 243-1327 (Suzy)

SCIA
Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
408 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

TIEE - Urban Skills Center (Site 2) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-7078165

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

110./DAY
IRS + 24./HR
130./HR

SCIA

Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

130./HR
75./HR
140./HR

85./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org

171.46

$177.63
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 460-5090 x104, 243-1327 (Suzy)

SCIA
Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

TIEE - Workshop @ Cook (Site 3) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-7079817

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

110./DAY
IRS + 24./HR
130./HR

SCIA

Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

130./HR
75./HR
140./HR

85./HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org

242.11

$250.85
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(619) 243-1325

SCIA
Transportation - Current IRS Rate +$24/HR
Behavior Intervention Planning Level 2

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
409 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Winston School Mike Peterson
37-68346-7050925

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

5.00/Day

2,760.00/Series
125.00/Session
25.00/Each

FastForward

Metronome
State Testing for Students Not Properly Notified of Test Date

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

215 Ninth Street
Del Mar,  CA  92014mikepeterson@thewinstonschool.com

132.40

$135.21
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(858) 259-8155

FastForward
Metronome
State Testing for Students Not Properly Notified of Test Date

Schools with Services
X

A. Related Services

School

Acadia Healthcare - Acadia Montana Lloyd Spell

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

325.-350./Day

Inclusive Daily Rate

•Acadia Montana

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

830 Crescent Centre Drive, Suite 610
Franklin, TN  37067lloyd.spell@acadiahealthcare.com

$325.00-350.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

855.526.8222

Inclusive Daily Rate
•Acadia Montana

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
410 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Acadia Healthcare - Cedar Crest Lloyd Spell

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

325.-350./Day

Inclusive Daily Rate

•Belton Independent School District

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

830 Crescent Centre Drive, Suite 610
Franklin, TN  37067lloyd.spell@acadiahealthcare.com

$325.00-350.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

855.526.8222

Inclusive Daily Rate
•Belton Independent School District

Schools with Services
x

A. Related Services

School

Acadia Healthcare - Desert Hills Lloyd Spell

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

325.-350./Day

400.-630./Day

Inclusive Daily Rate

•La Academia de Esperanza (Charter School)
Inlcusive Specialty Programs
•La Academia de Esperanza (Charter School)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training 
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

830 Crescent Centre Drive, Suite 610
Franklin, TN  37067lloyd.spell@acadiahealthcare.com

$325.00-350.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

855.526.8222

Inclusive Daily Rate
•La Academia de Esperanza (Charter School)
Inlcusive Specialty Programs
•La Academia de Esperanza (Charter School)

Schools with Services
x

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
411 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Acadia Healthcare - lakeland Lloyd Spell

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

325.-350./Day

Inclusive Daily Rate

•Lakeland Regional School (LRS)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

830 Crescent Centre Drive, Suite 610
Franklin, TN  37067lloyd.spell@acadiahealthcare.com

$325.00-350.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

855.526.8222

Inclusive Daily Rate
•Lakeland Regional School (LRS)

Schools with Services
x

A. Related Services

School

Bellefaire/Monarch Center for Autism - Residential Cynthia Hartz
77-76422-0128181

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2014

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515) 
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

22001 Fairmont Boulevard
Shaker Heights, OH 44118hartz@bellefairejcb.org

PENDING
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

216.320.8317
Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
412 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Casa Pacifica - Residential Treatment with Special Education Scott Mastroianni, M.Ed
56-72546-7087984

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

15,950.

Monthly Rate (All Inclusive)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent 

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1722 S. Lewis Road
Camarillo, CA  93012smastroianni@casapacifica.org

$15,950./MONTH
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

805.366.4072

Monthly Rate (All Inclusive)

Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

Devereux Arizona - California Rates Diane Crerand
77-76422-0119917

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

78/HR

122.50/HR

122.50/HR

223.30/Day
110.64/Day
128.38/Day
35./HR

Room & Board

Mental Health Related Services
Tuition
1:1 Services

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
300./Assessment
122.50/HR

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6436 E. Sweetwater Avenue
Scottsdale, AZ  85254

$404.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

(480) 998-2920 X5151

Room & Board
Mental Health Related Services
Tuition
1:1 Services

Schools with Services
x

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
413 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Excelsior Youth Center James E. Uhernik

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

15001 East Oxford Avenue
Aurora, CO 80014jimu@excelsioryc.org

Pending
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

303-693-1550 X239
Schools with Services

A. Related Services

School

Lakemary Shawn Kelsey, CFO
77-76422-0128173

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

215.78/Day
375./Day

Education (based on 203 school days in extended yr)

Residential

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

100 Lakemary Drive
Paola, KS  66071skelsey@lakemaryctr.org

$215.78-375.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

913.557.4000 X400

Education (based on 203 school days in extended yr)
Residential

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
414 of 543



NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS WITH SERVICES
2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone

A. Related Services

School

Milhous Treatment Ranch- Residential Treatment Center Mike Stine
29-66357-6936876

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

$161.48
190.00
9,669./MO

Basic Ed Prgm/Spec Ed Instruction - Sacramento (200 days)

Basic Ed Prgm/Dual Enrollment - Nevada City (200 days)
Room and Board

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

259./200 Days

A. Related Services (continued) Rate

Rate

NPS Fee Schedule 14151a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

24077 State Highway 49
Nevada City, CA 95959mike@milhous.us

$190.00
Per Diem Rate

21. Other

530.265.9057

Basic Ed Prgm/Spec Ed Instruction - Sacramento (200 days)
Basic Ed Prgm/Dual Enrollment - Nevada City (200 days)
Room and Board 

Schools with Services

6/16/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
415 of 543



Name Contact Per Diem Rate School

NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES
Daily All Inclusive Rates Only

 Days in
School

Year

San Diego County Office of Education
Fee Schedule Updated

Band

School Yr/ESYAddress/Phone X

Acadia Healthcare - Acadia Montana Lloyd Spell 325.00-350.00
Inclusive

180830 Crescent Centre Drive, Suite 610
Franklin, TN  37067 lloyd.spell@acadiahealthcare.com
855.526.8222

Acadia Healthcare - Cedar Crest Lloyd Spell 325.00-350.00
Inclusive

180830 Crescent Centre Drive, Suite 610
Franklin, TN  37067lloyd.spell@acadiahealthcare.com
855.526.8222

Arch Academy Julie BeDell
37683386206833

$224.001809445 Farnham Street, Suite 101
San Diego, CA  92123drdeb40@earthlink.com
619-887-3522

Aseltine School Hayden Thomas
37683386975270

30 179.581804027 Normal Street
San Diego  CA  92103capaseltine@yahoo.com
(619) 296-2135

Balboa/City School Jeanie Lindfelt
374683387077357

$132.28180525 Hawthorne St.  Ste.1
San Diego CA  92101 sparker@balboaschool.com
(619) 298-2990 x207

Banyan Tree Foundations Academy - Pt. Loma Nanci Engle
37-68338-0118844

$265. (L1) $165. (L2)1803555 Kenyon Street, #101
San Diego, CA  92110NEngle@BanyanTLC.org
619-226-6171

Bellefaire/Monarch Center for Autism - Residential Cynthia Hartz
77-76422-0128181

PENDING18022001 Fairmont Boulevard
Shaker Heights, OH 44118hartz@bellefairejcb.org
216.320.8317

Casa Pacifica - Residential Treatment with Special
Education Services

Scott Mastroianni, M.Ed
56-72546-7087984

15,950./MONTH1801722 S. Lewis Road
Camarillo, CA  93012smastroianni@casapacifica.org
805.366.4072

CASE - Comprehensive Autism Services &
Education, Inc

Cynthia Norall
37-73551-6139844

$167.00180785 Grand Ave. Suite 101
San Diego, CA 92008casecon@aol.com
(760) 720-4964

Community School of San Diego (100% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

$287.001804764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net
(619) 758-9424

Community School of San Diego (33% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

$160.001804764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net
(619) 758-9424

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
416 of 543



Name Contact Per Diem Rate School

NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES
Daily All Inclusive Rates Only

 Days in
School

Year

San Diego County Office of Education
Fee Schedule Updated

4/15/2014 Moderate/Severe

Band

School Yr/ESYAddress/Phone X

Community School of San Diego (50% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

$199.001804764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net
(619) 758-9424

Community School of San Diego (66% AAS) James Leiner
37-68338-0127811

$235.001804764 Santa Monica Avenue
San Diego CA  92107-2209pioneerschool@sbcglobal.net
(619) 758-9424

Excelsior Academy Julie Gillis
37683387067846

$136.071807202 Princess View Drive
San Diego  CA  92120karana@excelsioracademy.com

(619) 583-6762

Excelsior Youth Center James E. Uhernik Pending18015001 East Oxford Avenue
Aurora, CO 80014jimu@excelsioryc.org
303-693-1550 X239

Fred Finch of San Diego Bret Calhoun
37681896206270

50 $210.001803434 Grove Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945bretcalhoun@fredfinch.org
619.797.1090 x4207

Lakemary Shawn Kelsey, CFO
77-76422-0128173

215.78-375.00180100 Lakemary Drive
Paola, KS  66071skelsey@lakemaryctr.org
913.557.4000 X400

Milhous Treatment Ranch- Residential Treatment
Center

Mike Stine
29-66357-6936876

190.0024077 State Highway 49
Nevada City, CA 95959mike@milhous.us
530.265.9057

New Bridge School Steven Mayo
37-68296-6130777

$128.0918012285 Oak Knoll Road
Poway CA  92064newbridgeschool@me.com
(858) 679-5744

Oak Grove Institute-Residential Room & Board Athene Banche
33-75200-7071533

$8,711./mo18024275 Jefferson Avenue
Murrieta CA  92562atheneb@oakgrovecenter.org
(951) 677-5599 x282

San Diego Center for Children Academy Nancy Macnamara
37-68338-7093115

191 $171.191803002 Armstrong Street
San Diego, CA 92111nmacnamara@centerforchildren.org
858-569-2131

Spectrum Center Schools and Programs Carmen Rivera-Jara PENDING1805250 Almar Street
Riverside, CA 92505crivera-jara@spectrumschools.com
951.264.1958

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
417 of 543



Name Contact Per Diem Rate School

NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES
Daily All Inclusive Rates Only

 Days in
School

Year

San Diego County Office of Education
Fee Schedule Updated

4/15/2014

Band

School Yr/ESYAddress/Phone X

TERI Country School 1:1 Krysti Dezonia
37737916927644

55 $248.841801145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org
(760) 744-4870

TERI Country School 1:3 Krysti Dezonia
37737916927644

55 $175.241801145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org
(760) 744-4870

TERI Country School 1:9 Krysti Dezonia
37737916927644

55 $132.431801145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org
(760) 744-4870

TERI Learning Academy 1:1 Krysti Dezonia
37735697105075

55 $248.841801145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org
(760) 721-1706

TERI Learning Academy 1:3 Krysti Dezonia
37735697105075

55 $175.241801145 Linda Vista Drive, #105
San Marcos, CA 92078krystid@teriinc.org
(760) 721-1706

The Koonings Center Steven Mayo
37-68296-0127308

$200.0018012271 Oak Knoll Road
Poway, CA 92064kooningscenter@icloud.com
858-679-5745

TIEE - AIM HIGH at Mt. Helix Academy (Site 4) Suzanne Fitch
37-68197-6927636

30 PENDING1802255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org
(619) 460-5090 x104, 243-1327 (Suzy)

TIEE - Children’s Workshop (Site 1) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-6987960

30 PENDING1802255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org
(619) 243-1325

TIEE - Cook Education Center (Site 3) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-7079817

30 PENDING
MediationG

1802255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org
(619) 460-5090 x104, 243-1327 (Suzy)

TIEE - Urban Skills Center (Site 2) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-7078165

30 PENDING1802255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org
(619) 460-5090 x104, 243-1327 (Suzy)

TIEE - Workshop @ Cook (Site 3) Suzanne Fitch
37-68338-7079817

30 PENDING1802255 Camino Del Rio S.
San Diego  CA  92108sfitch@tiee.org
(619) 243-1325

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
418 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Behavior Intervention Implementation of Behavior Mod Plans
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Able Pathways Matthew A.T. Lehman
1A-37-149

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

30./QTR.HR
12.50/QTR.HR

Behavior Intervention Including Development & Modification

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

830 E. Vista Way #1085251
Vista, CA 92084mLehman@ablepathways.com

21. Other

760-230-5251

Behavior Intervention Including Development & Modification
Behavior Intervention Implementation of Behavior Mod Plans

$30 per 1/4 hr

$12.50 per 1/4 hr

Behavior Intervention Including
Development and Modification

Behavior Intervention Implementation of
Behavior Modification Plans

A. Related Services
Agency

Accent Care Anita Shaw
1A-37-054

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

37.-65./HR

Nursing Services

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5050 Murphy Canyon Road, Suite 201
San Diego,  CA  92123epeterson@accentcare.com

21. Other

(858) 502-1088 $37-$45 per hourNursing-LVN

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
419 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Social Skills Group - Dyad
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

ACES Academy Jessica Jacobs

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

125./HR

90./HR

90./HR

60./HR

50./HR
60./HR
50./HR
40./HR
.40/mile
76./HR

Tutors

Social Skills Group - Triad
Social Skills Group - Quad

Early Infant Intervention

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

150./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3731 Sixth Ave.  #100
San Diego CA  92103jjacobs@acesangels.com

21. Other

(619) 278-0884

Tutors
Social Skills Group - Dyad

Supervision to Travel (outside 80 mile RT radius) per mile

Social Skills Group - Triad
Social Skills Group - Quad
Supervision to Travel (outside 80 mile RT radius) per mile
Early Infant Intervention

$125/hr

$50/hr

$90/hr

$90/hr

Social Skills Group - Quad

$60/hr

$60/hr

$50/hr

$40/hr

Psych Services/Psych Evals

Supervision Travel (outsid 80 mile RT
radius) per mile

$150/hr

$.40/mile

Early Infant Intervention $76/hr

Supervision

Tutors

OT

Speech

PT

Social Skills Group - Dyad

Social Skills Group - Triad

A. Related Services
Agency

Advantage On Call Rami Isa
1A-37-135

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

78./HR

70./HR

55./HR
52./HR

55./HR
55./HR
68../HR
36./HR
21./HR

COTA

SLPA
LVN

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2515 Camino Del Rio South, Suite 142
San Diego, CA  92108

21. Other

COTA
PTA

Para Professional

SLPA
LVN
Para Professional

$78/hr

$70/hr

$55/hr

$55/hr

LVN

$55/hr

$68/hr

$52/hr

$36/hr

Para Professional $21/hr

Speech Language Therapist

Occupational Therapist

Physical therapist

COTA

PTA8i

SLPA

Registered Nurse

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
420 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

AEFCT Autism Experts Empowering Families & Children Together Maria Linfoot
1A-37-128

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

55./HR
120./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2535 Kettner Blvd. #1C1
San Diego CA  92101shannon@aefct.com

21. Other

619-269-6057 $55/hr

$120/hr

Behavior Intervention - Implementation

Behavior Intervention - Development
(Supervision)

A. Related Services
Agency

Alpha Vista Services, Inc. Pradeesh Thomas
1A-43-102

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

64.49/HR
64.49/HR
64.49/HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group
Occupational Therapy

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

74.49/HR

Psychological Services (530)

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1290 Kifer Road, Suite #301
Sunnyvale, CA 94086mathew@alphavistaausa.com

21. Other

408-331-2181 ext. 420 $70 - $75/hr

$70 - $75/hr

$70 - $75/hr

$75/hr

$55/hr

$55/hr

Speech Therapists

Occupational Thereapists

Physical Therapists

Psychologists

Special Ed Teachers

School Nurses

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
421 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Behavior Intervention - Implementation
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Applied Interventions and Methodologies (AIM) Sandy Shaw
1A-37-111

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

110./HR
45./HR
110./HR
110./HR

Behavior Intervention - Dev/Mod

Early Intervention - Dev/Mod/Implementation
School Trng.,Consulting, IEP, In-Services

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

110./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6540 Lusk Blvd., Suite C256
San Diego, CA 92121Dr.Sandy.Shaw.AIM@gmail.com

21. Other

(858) 657-9217

Behavior Intervention - Dev/Mod
Behavior Intervention - Implementation
Early Intervention - Dev/Mod/Implementation
School Trng.,Consulting, IEP, In-Services

$110/hr

$45/hr

$110/hr

$110/hr

$110/hr

Behavior Intervention Dev/Mod

Behavior Intervention-Implementation

Early Intervention -
Development/Modification/Implementation

Parent Counseling

School Training, Consulting, IEP,
In-Services

A. Related Services
Agency

Ardor Health Solutions Maria Aguayo
2A-FL-004

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2014

db

65.-74./HR

65.-74./HR

65.-74./HR

55.-64./HR
55.-64./HR
55.-64./HR
67.-76./HR
No fee
IRS Standard

Physical Therapy & Occupational Therapy Assistants

Speech Therapy Assistants
Bilingual Therapists

Mileage Rate between school sites on same day (if applicable)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

65.-74./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent 

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5830 Coral Ridge Drive, Suite 120
Coral Springs, FL 33076Maria@ardorhealth.com

21. Other

(866) 425-5768

Physical Therapy & Occupational Therapy Assistants
Speech in Clinical Fellowship Year

Permanent Placement after 1 year contract

Speech Therapy Assistants
Bilingual Therapists
Permanent Placement after 1 year contract
Mileage Rate between school sites on same day (if applicable)

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
422 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Behavior Intervention-Program Coordination
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Autism Partnership, Inc. Julie McEachin
1A-30-082

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

53./HR
75./HR
175./HR
1750/DAY

Behavior Intervention-Program Specialist

Behavior Intervention-Program Developemnt on-site
Behavior Intervention-School Consult (per day)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

200 Marina Drive #C
Seal Beach CA 90740www.autismpartnership.com

21. Other

(562) 431-9293

Behavior Intervention-Program Specialist
Behavior Intervention-Program Coordination
Behavior Intervention-Program Developemnt on-site
Behavior Intervention-School Consult (per day)

$53.00/hr

$75/hr

$175/hr

$1750/day

Behavior Intervention-Program Specialist

Behavior Intervention-Program
Coordination

Behavior Intervention-Program
Developemnt on-site

Behavior Intervention-School Consult (per
day)

A. Related Services
Agency

Autism Solutions for Kids, Inc. (ASK) Kimberly Orliczky
1A-30-068

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2012

db

110./HR
47./HR

Behavior Interven-Development

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4000 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 900
Newport Beach, CA 92660kimberlywais@autismsolutionsforkids.

21. Other

949-791-9275

Behavior Interven-Development
Behavior Interven-Implementation

$110/hr

$47/hr

Behavior Interven-Development

Behavior Interven-Implementation

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
423 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

ABA Service Behavior Intervention
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Autism Spectrum Consultants Dawn Holman
1A-37-142

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

46.85/HR
111.30/HR

ABA Service Supervision

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

8333 Clairemont Mesa Blvd., Ste. 211
San Diego, CA 92109www.autismconsultants.com

21. Other

(858) 272-2662 $46.45/hr

$110.35

$83.30/hr

Behavior Intervention - I

Behavior Intervention - D

Counseling & Group TTherapy (Behavior
Intervention)

A. Related Services
School

Banyan Tree Foundations Academy - Pt. Loma Nanci Engle
37-68338-0118844

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3555 Kenyon Street, #101
San Diego, CA  92110NEngle@BanyanTLC.org

265. (L1) 165. (L2)

21. Other

619-226-6171 265.00

165.00

Level I Daily Rate (Inclusive of 1.5 hrs. of
Related Srvs.) 1:1 instruction for up to 
4hrs/day Groups of 2-3 remainder of day. 
Level II Daily Rate (Inclusive of 1 hr per
day Groups of 2-3 the remainder of the
day.

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
424 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Specialized Academic Instruction (provided at Contracting School)
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Banyan Tree Learning Center - Mira Mesa Laura Johnson
1A-37-065

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

70/HR
80/HR
75/HR
75/HR
80/HR
95/HR

Specialized Academic Instruction (provided at Center)

Occupational Therapy/Physical Therapy 
Speech & Language Services

Assessments
FastForward (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Interactive Metronome (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Cogmed (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)

350. + hrly fee
200. + hrly fee
1000. + hrly fee

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
80/hr
80/hr
80/hr
80/hr

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

9636 Tierra Grande St.  Ste. 200
San Diego CA  92126LJohnson@BanyanTLC.org

21. Other

(858) 578-6616

Specialized Academic Instruction (provided at Center)
Specialized Academic Instruction (provided at Contracting

IEP attendance at contracting school

Occupational Therapy/Physical Therapy
Speech & Language Services
IEP attendance at contracting school
Assessments
FastForward (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Interactive Metronome (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Cogmed (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)

$70/hr

$80/hr

$75/hr

$75/hr

Interactive Metronome (enrollment fee +
hrly fee)

$80/hr

$95/hr

$350. + hrly fee

$200. + hrly fee

Cogmed (enrollment fee + hrly fee)

Integrated Listening System (enrollment
fee + hrly fee)

$1000. +hrly fee

$195. + hrly fee

Specialized Academic Instruction
(provided at Center) 

Specialized Academic Instruction
(provided at Contracting School)

Occupational/Physical Therapy

Language & Speech Services

IEP Attendance (at contracting school)

Assessments

FastForWord (enrollment fee + hrly fee)

A. Related Services
Agency

Banyan Tree Learning Center - Pt. Loma Nanci Engle
1A-37-130

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

70/hr
80/hr
75/hr
75/hr
80/hr
95/hr

Specialized Academic Instruction (provided at Center)

Occupational Therapy/Physical Therapy
Speech & Language Services

Assessments
FastForward (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Interactive Metronome (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Cogmed (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)

350. + hrly fee
200. + hrly fee
1000. + hrly fee

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
80/hr
80/hr
80/hr
80/hr

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counseling & Training (520)

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3555 Kenyon Street, #101
San Diego, CA  92110

21. Other

858-578-6616

Specialized Academic Instruction (provided at Center)
Specialized Academic Instruction (provided at Contracting

IEP attendance at contracting school

Occupational Therapy/Physical Therapy
Speech & Language Services
IEP attendance at contracting school
Assessments
FastForward (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Interactive Metronome (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Cogmed (enrollment fee plus hrly fee) 

$70/hr

$80/hr

$75/hr

$75/hr

Interactive Metronome (enrollment fee +
hrly fee)

$80/hr

$95/hr

$350. + hrly fee

$200. + hrly fee

Cogmed (enrollment fee + hrly fee)

Integrated Listening System (enrollment
fee + hrly fee)

$1000. +hrly fee

$195. + hrly fee

Specialized Academic Instruction
(provided at Center) 

Specialized Academic Instruction
(provided at Contracting School)

Occupational/Physical Therapy

Language & Speech Services

IEP Attendance (at contracting school)

Assessments

FastForWord (enrollment fee + hrly fee)

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
425 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

620 Assessment
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

 BEST - Behavioral & Educational Support Team Camela B. Sanford
1A-37-068

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

68.21/HR
36.73/HR
68.21/HR
36.73/HR
68.21/HR
36.79/HR

805 Assessment

805 Direct
620 Direct

620 Supervision

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

Assessment
FastForward (enrollment fee plus hrly fee)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counseling & Training (520)

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

411 S. Magnolia Avenue
El Cajon CA  92020bestservices@sbcglobal.net

21. Other

(619) 442-1271

805 Assessment
620 Assessment

805 Supervision

805 Direct
620 Direct
805 Supervision
620 Supervision

$67.63/hr

$36.42/hr

805 Assessment

620 Assessment

805 Direct

620 Direct

805 Supervision

620 Supervision

Behavioral Services

A. Related Services
Agency

Bilingual Therapies Meryt Merrill
2A-IL-001

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

65.00/HR
65.00/HR
64.00/HR
45.00/HR

45.00/HR
74.00/HR
55.00/HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group
Occupational Therapy
Music Therapy

Orientation/Mobility Training
Physical Therapy
Nursing Services

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

8001 North Lincoln Avenue, Suite 800
Skokie, IL  60077Meryt.Wyss@bilingualtherapies.com

21. Other

847-745-0086 $67-89/hr

$49-65/hr

$65-89/hr

$49-65 /hr

Special Ed Teachers

$69-85/hr

$49-65/hr

$65-85/hr

$50-70/hr

School Nurses

Interpreters

$35-55/hr

$50-70/hr

Speech Language Pathologist

Speech Language Pathologist Asst.

Physical Therapist

Physical Therapist Asst.

Occupational Therapist

Occupational Therapist Asst.

School Psychologist

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
426 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Bridgepoint Solutions, Inc. David M. Sims
1A-37-113

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

72./HR

Speech Language Pathologist

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

7668 El Camino Real, Suite 104, #107
La Costa, CADaves@bridgepointspeech.com

21. Other

(760) 918-0617

Speech Language Pathologist

$72/hrSpeech Language Pathologist

A. Related Services
Agency

Bridges Educational Corporation Candace Garmer
1A-37-117

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

70.00/HR
70.00 HR

ABA Service Supervision

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5694 Mission Center Road, Suite 602
San Diego, CA 92108cgarmer@bridgesaba.com

21. Other

(619) 540-0676 $70/hr

$70/hr

$70/hr

$70/hr

$70/hr

$70/hr

Development of FA. BSP, BIP

Behavioral Instruction/Direct Service

Supervision/Consultation

Staff Training
(Theoretical/Lecture)

Classroom Management

In-Home Programming/Caregiver Training

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
427 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

CARD - Center for Autism & Related Disorders-SD Theresa Bruhn-Conteras
1A-37-066

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

110./HR
45./HR

Therapy & Senior Therapy

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

7297 Ronson Road, Suite H
San Diego  CA 92111A.Macken@centerforautism.com

21. Other

(858) 278-6603

Therapy & Senior Therapy

$110/hr

$45/hr

Supervision

Therapy and Senior Therapy

A. Related Services
Agency

CareerStaff Unlimited/Therapists Unlimited Carissa Rowe
1A-37-053

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

60./HR
60./HR
73./HR
73./HR
67./HR

65./HR

57.67/HR

Education Counseling - Indvidual
Education Counseling - Group
Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
Occupational Therapy

Physical Therapy

COTA

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

80./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent 

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

404 Camino del Rio S. #106
San Diego CA  92108daniel.rietti@sunh.com

21. Other

(619) 285-1002

COTA

Speech Language Therapy

Occupational Therapy

Certified Occupational Therapy Assistance

Physical Therapy

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
428 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Behavior Supervisor (3 hrs required per 10-12 hrs of aides)
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

 CARES - Center for Autism Research Evaluation and Services Alan Lincoln, Ph.D.
1A-37-050

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

5,260.02 Flat
Rate113.41/HR
113.41/HR
52./HR
130./HR
1,200. Flat Rate

ABC Program (Assessment & 1 month Diagnostic Clinic)

Behavior Aide
Program Consultant (1 hr per month minimum w/aide)

Professinal Development
(ABC Program fee includes presentation of  report & travel time)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

10065 Old Grove Road, Suite 200
San Diego, CA 92131

21. Other

858-444-8823

ABC Program (Assessment & 1 month Diagnostic Clinic)
Behavior Supervisor (3 hrs required per 10-12 hrs of aides)

Assessment: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological

Behavior Aide
Program Consultant (1 hr per month minimum w/aide)
Assessment: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
Professinal Development
(ABC Program fee includes presentation of  report & travel time)

$5260.02 flat rate

$113.41/hr

$113.41/hr

$52/hr

$130/hr

$1200 flat rate

ABC Program (Assessment & 1 month
Diagnostic Clinic)

Behavior Supervisor (3 hrs required per 10
-12 hrs of aides)

Behavior Aide

Program Consultant (1 hr per month
minimum w/aide)

Assessment:
Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological

Professinal Development

(ABC Program fee includes presentation of
report & travel time)

A. Related Services
Agency

CASE - Comprehensive Autism Services & Education, Inc Cynthia Norall
1A-37-076

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

167./DAY

105./HR

105./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

90./HR
125./HR
125./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

580 Beech Avenue, Ste. A
Carlsbad CA  92008casecon@aol.com

21. Other

(760) 720-4964 $50/hr

$50/hr

$125/hr

$105/hr

$125/hr

$1205/hr

$125/hr

Behavior Intervention (BII)

Behavior Intervention (BID)

Counseling and Guidance Services (CG)

Language and Speech Development &
Remediation (LSDR)

Psychological Services (PS)

Occupational Therapy Services (OT)

Parent Counseling and Training (PCT)

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
429 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Exam - Inintal, Report, Conference
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Center for Vision Therapy Carl Hillier
1A-37-080

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

143./HR
347./HR
150./HR
75./HR
150./HR
75./HR

Vision Therapy

Visual Perception Testing
Post Vision Therapy

Progress Evaluation
Depostitions

150./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

7898 Broadway
Lemon Grove CA  91945vtherapy@pacbell.net

21. Other

619-464-7713

Vision Therapy
Exam - Inintal, Report, Conference

IEP Meeting, Conference, Report

Visual Perception Testing
Post Vision Therapy
IEP Meeting, Conference, Report
Progress Evaluation
Depostitions

$143/hour

$347/service

$150/service

$75/service

Vision Therapy Supplies

$150/hour

$75/service

$150/hour

Vision Therapy

Exam - Inintal, Report, Conference

Visual Perception Testing

Post Vision Therapy

IEP Meeting, Conference, Report

Progress Evaluation

Depostitions

A. Related Services
Agency

Coast Music Therapy Michelle Lazar

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

95.82-120.82/hr

Music Therapy - Weekly Direct Service - Consultation/IEP Per Hour

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

P.O. Box 221016
San Diego CA  92192mlazar@coastmusictherapy.com

21. Other

(858) 453-5211 $575 Flat Rate

$95/Hour

Assessment

Music Therapy (includes mileage)

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
430 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

PTA
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

CompHealth Medical Staffing Julie Ptak
2A-MI-001

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

66-70./HR

68-72./HR

56-60./HR
58-62./HR
72-76./HR

COTA

SLP

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2900 Charlevoix Drive, Suite 200
Grand Rapids, MI 49546brentalles@comphelath.com

21. Other

800-634-9582

COTA
PTA
SLP

$66-70/hr

$56-60/hr

$68-72/hr

$58-62/hr

$72-76/hr

Occupational Therapy

Certified Occupational Therapy Asst.

Physical Therapy

Physical Therapy Asst.

Speech/Language Pathology

A. Related Services
Agency

Contract Behavioral Services Jean Cook, M.S.
1A-37-007

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
50./HR
50./HR
50./HR
50./HR
50./HR
50./HR
480.

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counseling & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive FTE Rate  ($60/hr x 8)

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3554 Ames Place
Carlsbad, CA  92010jcookb@roadrunner.com

21. Other

619-917-9144

$35/ 1/2 hr

$25/hr

$75/hr

Assessment

 Individual Counseling (510)

Counseling & Guidance (515)

Parent Counseling & Training (520)

Psychological Services (530)

Social Work Servcies (525)

*ERMHS Provider All Inclusive FTE Rate

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
431 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

ABA Service Behavior Intervention
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Coyne & Associates Educational Corporation Paul Coyne
1A-37-090

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

68./HR
80./HR

ABA Service Supervision

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

741 Gardenview Crt, Ste. 104
Encinitas CA  92023pdcoyne@mac.com

21. Other

760-815-7152 $80/hr

$80/hr

Behavior Intervention-Implentation

Behavior Intervention - Development

A. Related Services
Agency

Cumberland Therapy Services, LLC Erin Corcoran
2A-NC-001

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530) 
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

9140 Arrowpoint Blvd., Suite 140
Charlotte, NC  28273-8117clientservices@cumberlandtherapy.com

21. Other

(800) 337-5965 Not yet met with SELPA Directors to
discuss rates.

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
432 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Nursing Services - RN
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Dependable Nursing Jackson Long
1A-37-093

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

36./HR
40./48
65./HR

Nursing Services - LVN

Nursing Services - CRN

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5055 Avenida Encinas, Suite 120
Carlsbad, CA 92008

21. Other

760-602-0583

Nursing Services - LVN
Nursing Services - RN
Nursing Services - CRN

$35.79/hr

$40.13/hr

$27.11/hr

$65.07/hr

$40.13/hr

Licensed Nurse

Registered Nurse

Certified Nurses Assistant

Nurse Technology Training

Screen Vision & Hearing

A. Related Services
Agency

Educational Based Services (EBS) Mark T. Stubits
2A-PA-001

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

67.63/HR
62.43/HR
67.63/HR
67.63/HR

Speech Language Pathologist

Special Ed Teachers
School Psychologists

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

200 Skiles Boulevard
West Chester, PA 19382

21. Other

800-578-7906

Speech Language Pathologist
OT/PT
Special Ed Teachers
School Psychologists

$67.63/h

$62.43/hr

$67.63/hr

$67.63/hr

Speech Language Pathologist

OT/PT

Special Ed Teachers

School Psychologists

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
433 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Encinitas Learning Center Lynda Detweiler-Newcomb

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

70./HR

70./HR
50./HR
65./HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual

Occupational Therapy
Music Therapy
Adapted Physical Education  (Swimming)

Other - APD Evaluation

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

543 Encinitas Blvd., Suite #108
Encinitas  CA  92024enclearn@pacbell.net

21. Other

(760) 634-6886

Other - APD Evaluation

A. Related Services
Agency

Excel Home Health Sri Gopal
1A-37-105

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

35./HR/47./HR

Nursing Services -LVN/RN

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5575 Lake Park Way #220
La Mesa CA  91942jgunifer@excelhomehealth.com

21. Other

(619) 460-6622 $47/hr

$50/hr

$35hr

$120/hr

$125/hr

$150/hr

$25/hr

Health & Nursing Services

Registered Nurse

LVN

OT

PT

Social Worker Services

CHHA

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
434 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

HMSystems, Inc. Kyle Heebner
1A-37-137

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

70-95./HR
70-95.HR
70-95.HR

70-90.HR
70-90./HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group
Occupational Therapy

Physical Therapy
Nursing Services

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

P.O. Box 833
Oceanside, CA 92049kyle@hmsystemsinc.com

21. Other

760-632-1241 $90/hr OR
$680/day

$90/hr OR
$680/day

$90/hr OR
$680/day

Language and Speech Developement and
Remediation (LSDR)

Occupational Therapist (OT)

Physcial Therapist (PT)

A. Related Services
Agency

Invo HealthCare Associates, Inc. Jason Ralph
2A-PA-003

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

45./HR
80./HR
48.50/HR
48.50/HR
75./HR
75./HR
70./HR

52./HR
52./HR
68.50/HR
52.50/HR
115./HR

ABA Service Supervision
Education Counseling - Indvidual
Education Counseling - Group
Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group
Occupational Therapy

Adapted Physical Education
Orientation/Mobility Training
Physical Therapy
Nursing Services
Consultation to Include: Pschoeducational/Neuropsychological

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
80./HR
48.50/HR
48.50./HR
48.50/HR
48.50.HR
48.50/HR
48.50/HR

Assessment - Psychology
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counseling & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive FTE Rate

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1780 Kendarbren Drive
Jamison, PA  18929www.invohealthcare.com

21. Other

800-434-4686 $85/hr

$85//hr

$90/hr

Occupational Therapist

Physical Therapist

Speech and Language Pathologist

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
435 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

K.I.D.S. Therapy Associates, Inc. Betsy Slavik
1A-37-101

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

69.50/525.

69.50/525.

69.50/525.

 53.50/420.
Language/Speech Therapy - Individual - HOURLY/DAILY

Occupational Therapy - HOURLY/DAILY

Physical Therapy - HOURLY/DAILY

Certified Occupational Therapy Asst. (COTA) - HOURLY/DAILY

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

11838 Bernardo Plaza Court, Suite 110
San Diego CA  92128kidstherapyassociates@yahoo.com

21. Other

(858) 673-5437

Certified Occupational Therapy Asst. (COTA) - HOURLY/DAILY

$83/hr

$510/daily

     Speech Therapy

     OT/PT

A. Related Services
Agency

L.E.T.S. Grow Sharronda Allen
1A-37-164

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2012

db

50./HR
70./HR

ABA Service Supervision

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
100./HR

Assessment

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

7373 University Avenue, Suite 114
La Mesa, CA  91942sharronda@letsgrowaba.com

21. Other

619-403-0637 $70/hr

$70/hr

$50/hr

$3000. for 30 hrs
up to 6 people

$100/hr

Consultation

Supervision

1:1 Aide/Shadow

Training Workshops (includes follow-up
visits)

Assessments from BCBA

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
436 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Lindamood-Bell Learning Process Sara Daub
1A-37-018

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

$84/session

1:1 Instruction

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

445 Marine View Avenue,  #290
Del Mar CA  92014lblpsd@lblp.com

21. Other

(858) 259-3206

1:1 Instruction

$84/session1:1 Instruction

A. Related Services
Agency

Lovaas Institute for Early Intervention Simone Stevens
1A-19-279

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

59.50/HR
59.50/HR
38./HR
160./HR

Behavior Intervention Direct Instruction 1

Behavior Intervention Direct Instruction 2
Supervision 2

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6167 Bristol Parkway, Suite 130
Culver City, CA 90230crhee@lovaas.com

21. Other

310-410-4450 Ext. 105

Behavior Intervention Direct Instruction 1
Supervision 1
Behavior Intervention Direct Instruction 2
Supervision 2

$59.50/hr

$59.50/hr

$38.00/hr

$160.00/hr

Behavior Intervention Direct Instruction 1

Supervision 1

Behavior Intervention Direct Instruction 2

Supervision 2

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
437 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Licensed SLP
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Maxim Healthcare Services Allison Hurtado
1A-37-144

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

65./HR

65./HR
37./HR 49/HR

60./HR
67./HR

Occupational Therapy

Physical Therapy
Nursing Services - LVN/RN

RN - Credentialed

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2878 Camino Del Rio S. #220
San Diego CA  92108altilley@maxhealth.com

21. Other

(619) 272-5490

RN - Credentialed
Licensed SLP

$37/hr

$49/hr

$60/hr

$47/hr

Licensed PT/OT

$60/hr

$28/hr

$67/hr

$65/hr

PT Asst./COTA $55/hr

LVN

RN

RN - Credentialed

LVN Visit (2 hr. min)

RN  Visit (2 hr. min)

Para Educator/Health Aid

Licensed SLP

A. Related Services
Agency

Mediscan, Inc Van Serebryany
1A-19-316

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

69-72./HR
69-72./9HR
53-58./HR
60-65./HR
48-52./HR
36-39./HR

SLP

COTA/PTA
Psychologist

Nurses (LVN)
Braillist

45./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

21. Other

SLP
OT/PT

Nurses (RN)

COTA/PTA
Psychologist
Nurses (RN)
Nurses (LVN)
Braillist

$69-77/hr

$69-77/hr

$53-58/hr

$60-65/hr

$48-52/hr

$36-39/hr

$45/hr

SLP

OT/PT

COTA/PTA

Psychologist

Nurses (RN)

Nurses (LVN)

Braillist

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
438 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Other: ASL Interpreting for Deaf & Hard of Hearing Wkdays 5pm-12am
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Network Interpreting Service Clifford Hanks

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

62./HR
72./HR
82./HR

10./HR

Other: ASL Interpreting for Deaf & Hard of Hearing Weekdays 7am-5pm

Other: ASL Interpreting for Deaf & Hard of Hearing Wkdays 12am-7am
Other: Mileage - Reimbursed at Fed (IRS) Standard Business Rate

Other: Weekends - Add $10. per hour
Other: Federally Observed Holidays - Add $20 per hour
Other: Trilingual Interpreting (Spanish/Eng/ASL) - Add $25/per hour
Other: Deaf-Blind Tactile and/or Other Specialized Skill - Add $10/hr

Other: Emergency Medical Services - $150/hr, Billed portal-to-portal

20./HR
25./HR
10./HR
150./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

4201 Mr. Voss Drive
San Diego  CA  92117nis@aslnis.com

21. Other

(800) 284-1043

Other: ASL Interpreting for Deaf & Hard of Hearing Weekdays 
Other: ASL Interpreting for Deaf & Hard of Hearing Wkdays 5pm

Other:  Parking - Any fees incurred will be reimbursed at cost

Other: ASL Interpreting for Deaf & Hard of Hearing Wkdays
Other: Mileage - Reimbursed at Fed (IRS) Standard Business
Other:  Parking - Any fees incurred will be reimbursed at cost
Other: Weekends - Add $10. per hour
Other: Federally Observed Holidays - Add $20 per hour
Other: Trilingual Interpreting (Spanish/Eng/ASL) - Add $25/per
Other: Deaf-Blind Tactile and/or Other Specialized Skill - Add
Other: Emergency Medical Services - $150/hr, Billed portal-to-

A. Related Services
Agency

New Haven Youth and Family Services Jeff Kozlowski
1A-37-161

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
75./HR
100./HR
65./HR
100./HR

2,220./MO

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation 
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

P.O. Box 1199
Vista  CA  92085-1199jkozlowksi@newhavenyfs.org

21. Other

(760) 630-4035 $100/Hr

$80/Hr

$100/Hr

$80/Hr

Case Management - Community Based
Social Work Services

$65/Hr

$75/Hr

$117/Hr

$50/Hr

Intensive Community Based Case
Management Services (At least 3 hrs/wk)

$2,200/Month

Individual Counseling - Community Based

Individual Counseling - NH Outpatient
Office(s)

Family Counseling - Community Based

Family Counseling - NH Outpatient Office
(s)

Group Counseling (Per client) - Community
Based

Behavior Intervention Specialist (Includes
Assessment, Intervention Plan)

Therapeutic Behavioral Services/Coaching
(TBS) - Current Riverside County Rates

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
439 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Occupational Therapy Services Marjorie Block
1A-37-067

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

95./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

9606 Tierra Grande, Suite 104
San Diego,  CA  92126

21. Other

858-695-9444 $95/hrOT

A. Related Services
Agency

Palomar Family Counseling Services, Inc. Irene Saper
1A-37-045

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

15./HR

Group Counseling

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

45./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1002 East Grand Avenue
Escondido,  CA  92025pfcs_02@sbcglobal.net

21. Other

(760) 741-2660

Group Counseling

$45/hr

$15/hr

Individual Counseling

Group Counseling

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
440 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Other: Independent Educational Evaluation
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Pathways 2 Speech Mary Clemons
1A-37-147

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

150./HR
1200./HR

Other: Auditory Verbal Services

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2103 S. El Camino Real, Suite 202
Oceanside, CA 92054pathways2speech@me.com

21. Other

760-439-7844

Other: Auditory Verbal Services
Other: Independent Educational Evaluation

$150/hr

$150/hr

LI

LSDR

A. Related Services
Agency

Pediatric and Adult Physical Therapy Roxanne Husson

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

150./HR
175./HR
125./HR

Audiological Testing

Hearing Aid Programming

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

180 Otay Lakes Rd.  Ste. 105
Bonita CA  91902

21. Other

619-475-6910

Audiological Testing
Cochlear Implant Mapping
Hearing Aid Programming

$150/hr

$175/hr

$125/hr

Audiological Testing

Cochlear Implant Mapping

Hearing Aid Programming

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
441 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Preferred Healthcare Registry, Inc. Scott M. Greene

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

55./HR
55./HR
68./HR
68./HR
63./HR

63./HR

Education Counseling - Indvidual
Education Counseling - Group
Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group
Occupational Therapy

Physical Therapy

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual 
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530) 
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

P.O. Box 17860
San Diego, CA 92177AccountMgr@PrefferedRegistry.com

21. Other

800-787-6787 $66/hr

$56/hr

$56/hr

$78/hr

Physical Therapist

Physical Therapist Asst.

Certified Occupational Therapy Asst.

Speech and Language Pathologist

A. Related Services
Agency

Premier Healthcare Services Clare Ryan
1A-37-159

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12-31-2013

db

38-60./HR
75-80./HR

Health & Nursing Services

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

790 E. Colorado Blvd.
Pasadena, CA 91101sboler@phs-west.com

21. Other

626-204-7930

Health & Nursing Services
Social Worker Services

$38-$60/hr

$75-$80/hr

Health & Nursing Services

Social Worker Services

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
442 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Presence Learning Mark Mantel

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

70./HR
70./HR
70./HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group
Occupational Therapy

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

580 Market Street, 6th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104mark@presencelearning.com

21. Other

909.973.3295 Met with Reg SELPA Dirs - no rates
given?

A. Related Services
Agency

Progressus Therapy, LLC Laurie McCloskey
1A-21-032

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

70./HR
55./HR
55./HR
55./HR

Speech//Occupational/Physical Therapist

Physical Therapy Assistant
Speech/Language Pathology Assistant

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

321 Karen Way
Tiburon, CA  94920

21. Other

813-545-5821

Speech//Occupational/Physical Therapist
Certified Occupational Therapist Asst.
Physical Therapy Assistant
Speech/Language Pathology Assistant

$70/ hr

$55/hr

$55/hr

$55/hr

Speech//Occupational/Physical Therapist

Certified Occupational Therapist Asst.

Physical Therapy Assistant

Speech/Language Pathology Assistant

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
443 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Cochlear Implant Mapping
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Project Talk, Inc. (Formerly Pediatric Hearing Specialists) Joan Hewitt
1A-37-038

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

150./HR
175./HR
125./HR

Audiological Testing

Hearing Aid Programming

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

1991 Village Park Way, Suite 201A
Encinitas CA  92024joanhewitt@adelphia.net

21. Other

760-634-1553

Audiological Testing
Cochlear Implant Mapping
Hearing Aid Programming

$150/hr

$175/hr

$125/hr

Audiological Testing

Cochlear Implant Mapping

Hearing Aid Programming

A. Related Services
Agency

Re Spectrum Community Courtney Olinger
1A-37-158

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

Behavior Intervention - Design or Planning (BID)

Ranges in rates reflect licensing of provider.

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

45-90./HR
45-90./HR
90-110./HR
45-90./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

7839 University Avenue, Suite 103A
La Mesa, CA 91942

21. Other

619-741-4466

Behavior Intervention - Design or Planning (BID)
Behavior Intervention-Implentation (BII)

Ranges in rates reflect licensing of provider.

$55-110/hr

$45-90/hr

$45-90/hr

$45-90/hr

$90-110/hr

$45-90/hr

Behavior Intervention - Design or Planning
(BID)

Behavior Intervention-Implentation (BII)

Counseling and Guidance Services (CG)

Parent Counseling and Training (PCT)

Psychological Services Other Than
Assessment and IEP Development PS)

Social Worker Services (SW)

Ranges in rates reflect licensing of
provider.

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
444 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Exam, Initial Report, Conference ( 1.5 hrs)
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

San Diego Center for Vision Care - Optometry, P.C. - Lemon Grove Carl G. Hillier, O.D.
1A-37-080

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

6/30/2013

db

157./HR
387./HR
200./HR
150./HR
300./HR

Vision Therapy

Visual Perception Testing (2.0 hrs)
IEP Meeting, Conference, Report

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy 
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

7898 Broadway
Lemon Grove, CA 91945

21. Other

619-464-7713

Vision Therapy
Exam, Initial Report, Conference ( 1.5 hrs)

Depositions

Visual Perception Testing (2.0 hrs)
IEP Meeting, Conference, Report
Depositions

$157/hr

$387/service

$200/service

$150/hr

$300/hr

Vision Therapy

Exam, Initial Report, Conference ( 1.5 hrs)

Visual Perception Testing (2.0 hrs)

IEP Meeting, Conference, Report

Depositions

A. Related Services
Agency

San Diego County Speech Pathology Services, Inc. Edmund L. Thile, Ph.D., CCC-SLP
1A-37-162

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

70./HR
70./HR

70./HR
70./HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group

Other: Speech/Language Assessements/IEE

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

411 Camino Del Rio South, Suite 101
San Diego, CA  92108speechpath@county-speech.com

21. Other

619-574-8181

Other: Speech/Language Assessements/IEE
Other: Expert Witness Services, Including attendance at

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
445 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Name Contact Person Address/Phone
Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Sound Therapies, Inc. Rachel Tapper Zijlstra
1A-37-103

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

65./HR
65./HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3551 Redwood St.
San Diego CA  92104rachel@soundtherapiesinc.com

21. Other

(619) 641-7744 $62.43/hr (based
on 8 hr/day)

Language & Speech

A. Related Services
Agency

Specialized Therapy Services Steve Oas
1A-37-106

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

65./HR

65./HR

65./HR B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training 
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3555 Kenyon Street #101
San Diego CA   92110steve_oas@yahoo.com

21. Other

(619) 252-4557 $65/hr

$65/hr

PT/OT

 Speech Therapy

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
446 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Licensed Speech Language Pathologists
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Speech & Language Professional Services, LLC Keith Thomas
1A-30-133

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

72./HR
75./HR
80./HR
53./HR
57./HR
75./HR

Speech Language Pathologists/CFYs

Bilingual SLP/CFY
Certified Speech Language Pathology Assistants

Occupational Therapists
COTA

53./HR

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

18377 Beach Boulevard, #214
Huntington Beach, CA 92648

21. Other

714-847-7577

Speech Language Pathologists/CFYs
Licensed Speech Language Pathologists

Bilingual Certified SLP Assistants

Bilingual SLP/CFY
Certified Speech Language Pathology Assistants
Bilingual Certified SLP Assistants
Occupational Therapists
COTA

$72/hr

$75/hr

$80/hr

$53/hr

$57/hr

$75/hr

$53/hr

Speech Language Pathologists/CFYs

Licensed Speech Language Pathologists

Bilingual SLP/CFY

Certified Speech Language Pathology
Assistants

Bilingual Certified SLP Assistants

Occupational Therapists

COTA

A. Related Services
Agency

Speech Pathology Education Services Shirley Keating-Hudson
1A-37-191

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2014

db

RATES PENDING

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

508 Rudder Avenue
Carlsbad, CA 92011skeatinghudson@yanoo.com

21. Other

760.420.1147

RATES PENDING

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
447 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Other: Physical Therapist Assistant
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Staff Rehab Sara Palmer
1A-30-199

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

65-85/HR

68-85/HR

65-80/HR

52-64/HR
49-55/HR
48-55./HR
58-78./HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual

Occupational Therapy

Physical Therapy

Other: Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant

Other: SLPA
Oher: Teletherapy Rates - SLP

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5000 Birch Street Suite 3000 West Tower
Newport Beach, CA 92660spalmer@staffrehab.com

21. Other

888-835-0894

Other: Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant
Other: Physical Therapist Assistant
Other: SLPA
Oher: Teletherapy Rates - SLP

$65-$85hr

$68-$85/hr

$52-$64/hr

$65-$80/hr

Teletherapy - SLP

$49-$55/hr

$48-$55/hr

$58-$78/hrSLP

Occupational Therapist

Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant

Physical Therapist

Physical therapist Assistant

SLPA

Mileage Negotiated prior to start and billed
at current IRS rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Staffing Options and Solutions, Inc Diane Powers, President
2A-IN-001

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

75.95/HR
72.83/HR
75.95/HR

Speech Language Pathologist (CCC)

Occupational Therapist

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training 
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6249 South East Street, Suite E
Indianapolis, IN  46227

21. Other

317-791-2456

Speech Language Pathologist (CCC)
Speech Language Pathologist (CFY)
Occupational Therapist

$75.95/hr

$72.83/hr

$75.95/hr

Speech Language Pathologist (CCC)

Speech Language Pathologist (CFY)

Occupational Therapist

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
448 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Behavior Intervention-Unlicensed
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

STAR Program, Inc. Linda Collins

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

120./HR
70./HR
120./HR
70./HR
120./HR
70./HR

Behavior Intervention-Licensed

Behavior Intervention Implementaion-Licensed
Behavior Intervention Implementation-Unlicensed

Psychological Services-Unlicensed

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation 
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

6150  Lusk Blvd. 205
San Diego CA  92121lcollins@starprograms.org

21. Other

(858) 450-4785

Behavior Intervention-Licensed
Behavior Intervention-Unlicensed

Psychological Services-Licensed

Behavior Intervention Implementaion-Licensed
Behavior Intervention Implementation-Unlicensed
Psychological Services-Licensed
Psychological Services-Unlicensed

$120/hr

$70/hr

$120/hr

$70/hr

$120/hr

$70/hr

Behavior Intervention-Licensed

Behavior Intervention-Unlicensed

Behavior Intervention Implementaion-
Licensed

Behavior Intervention Implementation-
Unlicensed

Psychological Services-Licensed

Psychological Services-Unlicensed

A. Related Services
Agency

Step Ahead Educational Services Kelly Colerick
1A-37-166

x

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

50./HR 75./HR
75./HR
50./HR
50./HR

Assistive Technology Services (ATS)

Specialized Services for Low Incidence
Specially Designed Vocational Education

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

75./HR

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530) 
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3138 Roosevelt Street, Suite H
Carlsbad, CA 92008

21. Other

Assistive Technology Services (ATS)
Intstruction in Home or Hospital
Specialized Services for Low Incidence
Specially Designed Vocational Education

$75/hr

$50/hr

$50/hr

$75/hr

$75/hr

$50/hr

$50/hr

Assistive Technology Services (ATS)

Behavior Intervention -Design or Planning

Behavior Intervention - Implementation

Instruction in the Home or Hospital

Parent Counseling and Training

Specialized Services for Low Incidence

Specially Designed Vocational Education
and Career Development

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
449 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

PT/OT
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Sunbelt Staffing, LLC Jena Zander
2A-FL-002

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

75./HR
70./HR
60./HR
60./HR
75./HR
IRS Rate

SLP

SLPA/PTA/COTA
School Nurse

Mileage

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

3687 Tampa Road, Suite 200
Oldsmar, FL  34677jena.brinkman@sunbeltstaffing.com

21. Other

(800) 659-1522

SLP
PT/OT

Psychologist

SLPA/PTA/COTA
School Nurse
Psychologist
Mileage

$75/hr

$70/hr

$60/hr

$60/hr

$75/hr

IRS Rate

SLP

PT/OT

SLPA/PTA/COTA

School Nurse

Psychologist

Mileage

A. Related Services
Agency

The Speech Pathology Group Susan Stark, Director

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

70./HR
70./HR

Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group (7-8 hrs/day)

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530) 
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

2021 Ygnacio Valley Rd. Suite C-103
Walnut Creek CA  94598susan@speechpath.com

21. Other

(925) 945-1474

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
450 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Physical Therapy Asst.
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

TheraStaff, Inc. Debbie Fechter

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

59.65/hr
44.46/hr
59.65/h
44.46/hr
62.90/hr

Physical Therapy

Occupational Therapy
COTA

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

5151 Murphy Canyon Rd. #150
San Diego CA  92123debbie@therastaff.com

21. Other

(800) 478-6856

Physical Therapy
Physical Therapy Asst.

Speech

Occupational Therapy
COTA
Speech

$59.65/hr

$44.46/hr

$59.65/h

$44.46/hr

$62.90/hr

Physical Therapy

Physical Therapy Asst.

Occupational Therapy

COTA

Speech

A. Related Services
Agency

Total Education Solutions - West 6th Street Meaghan Donahue
1A-19-115

4/15 X

Inactive

Certif Expires

12/31/2013

db

47./HR
60./HR
60./HR
42.50/HR
70./HR
40./HR
65./HR

65./HR

70./HR
65./HR

125./HR

ABA Service Supervision
Education Counseling - Indvidual
Education Counseling - Group
Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
Language/Speech Therapy - Group
Occupational Therapy

Adapted Physical Education

Physical Therapy
Nursing Services

Other: FBA/FAA

B. Education Related Mental Health Services
90./HR
65./HR
65./HR
60./HR
70./HR
60./HR
486./Day

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counseling & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive FTE Rate

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group 
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

625 S Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 200
S. Pasadena CA 91030njlavelle@tesidea.com

21. Other

323-404-1027

Other: FBA/FAA

$70/hr

$80/hr

$80/hr

$80/hr

Instruction in the home or Hospital

$52.02/hr

$80/hr

$80/hr

$80/hr

Language & Speech Delopement

Occupational Therapy

$80/hr

$90/hr

Parent Counseling & Training $80/hr

Psychological Services including
Assessment and IEP

$80/hr

Physical Therapy Services

Social Worker Services $80/hr

$80/hr

Academic Instruction - Intensive

Adapted PE

Audiological Services

Behavior Intervention Including
Development & Modification

Behavior Intervention Implemation

Counseling & Guidance

Heatlh and Nursing Services

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
451 of 543



NONPUBLIC AGENCIES 2014-15 SCHEDULE OF FEES

San Diego County Office of Education

Total cost per assessment -up to 15hrs prof clinical time for full
Name Contact Person Address/Phone

Per Diem Rate

A. Related Services
Agency

Vista Hill - GPS Assessment Services 

X

Inactive

Certif Expires

db

103./HR
1,545.
103./HR
824.
123./HR
1,845.

Full Assessment (Complete Assessment)

Re-Assessment (re-assessed for student prev assessed by GPS) -
Total Cost per re-assessment:

Total cost per urgent assessment (up to 15hrs prof clinical time for full
NOTE: Customized assessments or assessments in excess of 15 clinical
may be requested by the LEA to meet specific needs of identified
will be billed by the CONTRACTOR to the LEA at $103/hr;

B. Education Related Mental Health Services

A. Related Services (continued) RateRate

NPA Fee Schedule 1415

1a. ABA Services Behavior Intervention
1b. ABA Services Supervision
2a. Education Counseling - Individual
2b. Education Counseling - Group
3a. Language/Speech Therapy - Individual
3b. Language/Speech Therapy - Group
4. Occupationaal Therapy
5. Music Therapy
6. Adapted Physical Education
7. Orientation/Mobility Training
8. Physical Therapy
9. Nursing Services
10. Consultation to include: Psychoeducational/Neuropsychological
11a. Transportation
11b. Transportation - Parent

12. Other
13. Other
14. Other
15. Other
16. Other
17. Other
18. Other
19. Other
20. Other

Assessment
Individual Counseling (510)
Counseling & Guidance (515)
Parent Counselng & Training (520)
Psychological Services (530)
Social Work Services (525)
ERMHS Provider All Inclusive  FTE Rate

8910 Clairemont Mesa Blvd.
San Diego, CA 92123

21. Other

858-571-1964

Full Assessment (Complete Assessment)
Total cost per assessment -up to 15hrs prof clinical time for full

Urgent Request (expedited to complete assessment in < than 30 days) -

Re-Assessment (re-assessed for student prev assessed by
Total Cost per re-assessment:
Urgent Request (expedited to complete assessment in < than 30
Total cost per urgent assessment (up to 15hrs prof clinical time
NOTE: Customized assessments or assessments in excess of
may be requested by the LEA to meet specific needs of
will be billed by the CONTRACTOR to the LEA at $103/hr;

$103/hr

$1,545.00

103/hr

$824.00

NOTE: Customized assessments or
assessments in excess of 15 clinical hours

$123/hr

$1,845.00

may be requested by the LEA to meet
specific needs of identified students and

will be billed by the CONTRACTOR to the
LEA at $103/hr;

Full Assessment (Complete Assessment)
 - LEVEL 1

Total cost per assessment -up to 15hrs
prof clinical time for full assessment case

Re-Assessment (re-assessed for student 
prev assessed by GPS) - LEVEL 2

Total Cost per re-assessment: 

Urgent Request (expedited to complete
assessment in < than 30 days) -LEVEL 3

Total cost per urgent assessment (up to
15hrs prof clinical time for full assessment)

4/2014

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
452 of 543



RESIDENTIAL RATES 2014-15
Table of Costs for Residential Placement

Agency Name Room and Board Rates NPS Rates/Day MH Rates/Day TOTAL

OUT OF STATE Rate/day or mo Cost/Month Rate/Day Cost/Month Rate/Day Cost/Month
Copper Hills $129.50 4,014.50$            135.00$           2,835.00$        129.50 day 4,014.50$        10,864.00$                    
Devereux Treatment Center-AZ 225.20$               6,981.20$            126.93$           2,665.53$        111.58$              3,458.98$        13,105.71$                    
Devereux Treatment Center-Victoria 172.47$               5,346.57$            137.13$           2,879.73$        63.42$                1,966.02$        10,192.32$                    
Devereux Treatment Center-Cleo Wallace 200.71$               6,222.01$            126.08$           2,647.68$        150.28$              4,658.68$        13,528.37$                    
Devereux Treatment League City (Unit 3&6) 210.80$               6,534.80$            127.02$           2,667.42$        169.18$              5,244.58$        14,446.80$                    
Devereux Treatment League City (Unit 4&5) 210.80$               6,534.80$            121.42$           2,549.82$        123.60$              3,831.60$        12,916.22$                    
Devereux Treatment League City (Unit 1) 210.80$               6,534.80$            109.10$           2,291.10$        163.30$              5,062.30$        13,888.20$                    
Heritage Schools 228.00$               7,068.00$            105.00$           2,205.00$        75.00$                2,325.00$        11,598.00$                    
Yellowstone Boys and Girls Ranch 220.00$               6,820.00$            139.00$           2,919.00$        92.00$                2,852.00$        12,591.00$                    
Provo Canyon School 165.00$               5,115.00$            170.00$           3,570.00$        90.00$                2,790.00$        11,475.00$                    
Excelsior Youth Center * 168.69$               5,229.39$            75.75$             1,590.75$        89.03$                2,759.93$        9,580.07$                      
Mingus Mountain 3,042.73$            3,042.73$            125.00$           2,625.00$        - 3,651.27$        9,319.00$                      
Oxbow (Discovery Academy) 5,850.00$            5,850.00$            - 2,340.00$        - 3,510.00$        11,700.00$                    

Mental Health Rates are for 7 days week School Average 21 days per month

IN STATE
Victor Treatment Centers; L14 * 9,669.00$            9,669.00$            $240.00 5,040.00$        202.43$              4,251.01$        18,960.03$                    
San Diego Center for Children; L14 9,879.00$            9,879.00$            $172.85 3,629.85$        142.00$              2,982.00$        16,490.85$                    
San Diego Center for Children; L12 8,714.00$            8,714.00$            $172.85 3,629.85$        142.00$              2,982.00$        15,325.85$                    
Fred Finch Youth Center; L14 9,878.83$            9,878.83$            210.00$           4,410.00$        Medi-Cal Medi-Cal 14,288.83$                    
New Alternatives, Inc.; L14 * 9,669.00$            9,669.00$            InterSELPA Cost 2,728.00$        137.24$              2,882.04$        15,279.04$                    
Family Life Center; L12 * 8,714.00$            8,714.00$            182.26$           3,827.46$        Medi-Cal Medi-Cal 12,541.46$                    
Oak Grove Institute; L12 8,714.00$            8,714.00$            $144.13 3,026.73$        -$                    -$                   11,740.73$                    
New Haven School; L12 * 8,529.00$            8,529.00$            $125.66 2,638.86$        - - 11,167.86$                    
New Alternatives, Inc.; L12 * 8,529.00$            8,529.00$            InterSELPA Cost 2,728.00$        137.24$              2,882.04$        14,139.04$                    

Mental Health Rates are for 5 days week/Loca School Average 21 days per month

**New Alternatives/Alta Vista Academy rate is                Inter-SELPA cost approximately $30,000 per year

14-15 Rates are not yet available for:  Excelsior, Victor Treatment, New Alternatives & New Haven  

Medi-Cal will be billed for mental health services for:  New Alternatives, Fred Finch & Family Life Center; however, if no Medi-Cal district will be billed at Medi-Cal rate.

Revised  6/30/14

ITEM 14A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
453 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 3, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Chuck Adams, Director of Special Education 

      Michael Grove,  Associate Superintendent, 
 Educational Services 

 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF PARENT SETTLEMENT 

      AND RELEASE AGREEMENT 
 

  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The attached Special Education Agreement report for Parent Settlements and Release 
Agreements summarizes three Settlement Agreements that provide services for Special 
Education Students. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve and/or ratify the contract as shown on 
the attached Special Education Agreement report. 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 
As noted on the attached report.  
 
 

 
       

ITEM 14C

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
454 of 543



 1 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
 

SPECIAL EDUCATION SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS                Board Meeting Date: 07/17/14  
 

Student SSID # Description of Services Date Executed Budget # Amount 

3168824837 

Parent Settlement Agreement 
Reimbursement of neuro-psychological evaluation 

and related educational attorney’s fees. 
Dates of Service: Up to 06/11/14 

06/11/14 General Fund 
Special Education 06-00 

Not to exceed 
$10,150.00 

9076847231 

Parent Settlement Agreement 
Reimbursement of Parentally Placed Private 

School Student (PPPSS) at High Bluff Academy 
for 30 semester course credits.  

Dates of Service: 06/09/14 – (est.) 06/30/19 

06/09/14 General Fund 
Special Education 06-00 

Not to exceed 
$6,600.00 

8097144658 

Parent Settlement Agreement 
Reimbursement to NPA, Alternative Teaching 

Strategy Center, for related educational expenses 
Dates of Service:07/01/14 – 07/30/15 

06/09/14 General Fund 
Special Education 06-00 

Approximately 
$92,940.00 

     

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

 

ITEM 14C

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
455 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  June 25, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Rick Ayala, Director  

      Pupil Services and Alternative Programs 
      Mike Grove, Associate Superintendent, 

 Educational Services 
 

SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL / RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS 

 
  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The attached Pupil Services Agreements report summarizes one agreement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve and/or ratify the contract as shown on 
the attached Pupil Services Agreements report. 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 
As noted on the attached report.  
 
 

 
       

ITEM 14D

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
456 of 543



 1 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
 

PUPIL SERVICES AGREEMENTS            DATE:   07-17-2014 
 

Contract 
Effective 

Dates 

 
Contractor/Vendor 

 
Description of Services 

School/ 
Department 

Budget 

 
Fee 

Not to Exceed 

 
07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

 
Vincent Fall & Associates 

Provide residency check services, Student 
Attendance Review Board (SARB) and 
Administrative Hearings (expulsions) support and 
consultation.  

 
General Fund 

03-00 

 
$200 per hour 

 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

 

ITEM 14D

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
457 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Christina M. Bennett, Director of Purchasing/Risk Mgt 

Eric R. Dill, Associate Superintendent/Business 
      
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT:    APPROVAL / RATIFICATION OF 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS/ 
BUSINESS 

  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The attached Professional Services Report/Business summarizes twelve contracts.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve and/or ratify the contracts, as shown 
in the attached Professional Services Report. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
As noted on attached report.         

ITEM 15A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
458 of 543



 1 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
BUSINESS - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REPORT                   Board Meeting Date: 07-17-14 
 
Contract 
Effective 

Dates 

Contractor/ 
Vendor 

 
Description of Services 

School/ 
Department 

Budget 

Fee 
Not to Exceed 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

 

Axiom Advisors & 
Consultants, Inc. 

Provide non-block grant mandate reimbursement services General Fund 
03-00 

$225.00 per 
school site for 

mandate 
compliance check 
and outside audit 
preparation, and a 
10% filing fee not 

to exceed 
$1,000.00 per 

claim for all new 
and on-going 
mandate filing 

services 
09/09/14 – 
12/18/14 

 

City of San Diego 
Parks & Recreation 
Department, Carmel 
Valley Recreation 
Center 

Lease of facilities for Carmel Valley Middle School off-
campus PE classes 

General Fund 
03-00 

$1,066.00 

07/18/14 – 
08/22/14 

Western Flooring, 
Inc. 

Scrub, screen, and apply finish to gym and dance floors 
district wide 

General Fund 
03-00 

$27,404.00 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

NvLS Professional 
Services, LLC 

Provide E-rate consultation services General Fund 
03-00 

$12,200.00 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Tomark Sports Provide preventative maintenance and inspection services 
to motorized bleachers and ten point basketball backboard 
service at Canyon Crest Academy, Carmel Valley Middle 
School, La Costa Canyon High School, San Dieguito High 
School Academy, Diegueño Middle School, and Torrey 
Pines High School 

General Fund 
03-00 

$9,830.00 

ITEM 15A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
459 of 543



 2 

07/18/14 
and 

continuing 
until 

terminated 
by thirty 

day written 
notice from 
either party 

Atlas Pumping 
Service 

Perform grease trap, septic tank, portable toilet, Storm 
Water Interceptors/Clarifier, and other pumping services as 
needed district wide 

General Fund 
03-00 

$15,000.00  
per year 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Door Service & 
Repair, Inc. (DSR) 

Provide preventative maintenance and repairs on 111 
various types and sizes of rolling steel doors at 9 different 
school sites 

General Fund 
03-00 

$4,500.00 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/19 

Simplex Grinnell, LLP Provide fire extinguisher test, inspection, and repair services 
for 143 extinguishers used by the Transportation 
Department utilizing the National Joint Powers Alliance 
(NJPA) cooperative purchasing bid 031913-SGL 

General Fund 
/Restricted  
06-00 

$587.00 annually 
for the test & 

inspection 
services with cost 

of repairs to be 
quoted separately 
based on time and 

materials 
08/11/14 – 
06/30/15 

 

Magdalena Ecke 
YMCA 

Lease of facilities for the La Costa Canyon High School 
Boys & Girls Water Polo and Boys & Girls Swim Team 
programs 

La Costa 
Canyon High 
School 
Foundation 

$24,255.00 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Consulting & 
Inspection Services 
LLC 

Provide small project miscellaneous DSA inspection 
services 

Fund to which 
the project is 
charged 

At the rate of 
$89.00 per hour 

06/30/14 – 
09/01/14 

Myriam Lucas Conduct dance workshops and create choreography for the 
La Costa Canyon High School Dance Club 

La Costa 
Canyon High 
School 
Associated 
Student Body 
(ASB) 

$1,200.00 

ITEM 15A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
460 of 543



 3 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

Mobil Construction 
Sweeping 

Provide mobile sweeping services to all district parking lots General Fund 
03-00 

$287.50 per two 
and one half hours 
of sweeping and 
$57.50 per each 
additional half 
hour thereafter 

 

ITEM 15A

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
461 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Christina M. Bennett, Director of Purchasing/Risk Mgt 

Eric R. Dill, Associate Superintendent/Business 
    

SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT:    APPROVAL / RATIFICATION OF 

AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENTS 
  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The attached Amendment to Agreements Report summarizes two amendments to 
agreements. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends that the Board approve and/or ratify the amendments to 
agreements, as shown in the attached Amendment Report. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
  
As noted on attached supplement        

ITEM 15B

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
462 of 543



 1 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
BUSINESS SERVICES - AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS REPORT                   Board Meeting Date: 07-17-14 
 
Contract 
Effective 

Dates 

Contractor/ 
Vendor 

 
Description of Services 

School/ 
Department 

Budget 

Fee 
Not to Exceed 

07/19/14 – 
07/18/15 

 

A&R Wholesale 
Distributors, Inc. 

Grocery & Snack Supplies B2014-03, extending the contract 
period with increases in the unit pricing as allowed in the 
contract 

Cafeteria Fund  
13-00 

NA 

07/01/14 – 
06/30/15 

San Diego Scenic 
Tours, Inc., NCST, 
Inc., McClintock 
Hartley Enterprises, 
Inc. dba: Goldfield 
Stage & Co., 
Sundance Stage 
Lines, Inc., Certified 
Transportation 
Services, Inc., WESS 
Transportation 
Services, Inc., Sun 
Diego Charter Co., 
and Grand Pacific 
Charter 

Extending the Extra Curricular Transportation services 
contract B2014-01 with a 1.31% increase in rates as 
stipulated in the contract 
 

Program fund 
requesting the 
transportation 

NA 

 
 

ITEM 15B

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
463 of 543



 

 
San Dieguito Union High School District 

 
INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 8, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014  
 
PREPARED BY:   Eric R. Dill 
     Associate Superintendent, Business 
         
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF BUSINESS REPORTS 
   

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Please find the following business reports submitted for your approval: 
 

1. Purchase Orders 
2. Membership Listing (None Submitted) 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve the following business reports:  1) Purchase 
Orders, and 2) Membership Listings (None Submitted). 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
Not applicable 

ITEM 15F

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
464 of 543



ITEM 15F

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
465 of 543



ITEM 15F

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
466 of 543



ITEM 15F

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
467 of 543



ITEM 15F

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
468 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 8, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014  
 
PREPARED BY:   John Addleman, Director of Planning Services 

      Eric Dill, Assoc. Superintendent, Business 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt, Superintendent  
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL / RATIFICATION OF AGREEMENTS / 

PROPOSITION AA    

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The attached Proposition AA – Agreements report summarizes three agreements. 
 
One agreement pertains to Lionakis, who will perform engineering and architectural services to 
provide Interim Housing during the reconstruction of Earl Warren Middle School. 
 
Two agreements pertain to Trace3. Under the agreements Trace3 will provide San Dieguito 
High School Academy VOIP Phones and Network equipment for the Wireless LAN Upgrade.  
Both agreements are procured under the Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA). 
 
The final two agreements pertain to Rancho Sante Fe Security, Inc. One agreement is to 
replace the DMP panels at Diegueno Middle School.  The other agreement is to replace the 
same at Sunset High School.  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve and/or ratify the professional services contracts and 
authorize Christina M. Bennett, Eric R. Dill, or Rick Schmitt to execute the agreements, as 
noted in the attached supplement.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
Building Fund-Prop 39 Fund 21-39 

ITEM 15G

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
469 of 543



SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
PROPOSITION AA – AGREEMENTS         Board Meeting Date: 07-17-14 
FACILITIES PLANNING & CONSTRUCTION  
 

Contract 
Effective 

Dates 

Consultant/ 
Vendor 

 
Description of Services 

School/ 
Department 

Budget 

Fee 
Not to Exceed 

 
July 18, 2014 
through 
completion 
  

 
Lionakis 

 
Earl Warren Middle School Interim Housing Architectural 
and Engineering Services  

Building Fund-
Prop 39 Fund 
21-39 

$146,300.00 

 
July 18, 2014 
through 
completion 
 
 

 
Trace3 

 
San Dieguito High School Academy (VOIP) Cisco Phones 
with Smartnet  

 
Building Fund-
Prop 39 Fund 
21-39 

 
$8,097.73 

 
July 18, 2014 
through 
completion 
 
 

 
Trace3 

 
San Dieguito High School Academy Network equipment for 
Wireless LAN Upgrade   

 
Building Fund-
Prop 39 Fund 
21-39 

 
$49,849.56 

 
July 18, 2014 
through 
completion  
 

 
Rancho Santa Fe 

Security, Inc. 
 

 
Upgrade 4G Wireless DMP Panels at Diegueno Middle 
School  

 
Building Fund-
Prop 39 Fund 
21-39 

 
$2,990.00 

 
July 18, 2014 
through 
completion 
 

 
Rancho Santa Fe 

Security, Inc. 

 
Upgrade 4G Wireless DMP Panels at Sunset High School  

 
Building Fund-
Prop 39 Fund 
21-39 

 
$1,750.00 

ITEM 15G

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
470 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 8, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014  
 
PREPARED BY:   John Addleman, Director of Planning Services 

      Eric Dill, Assoc. Superintendent, Business 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt, Superintendent  
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL / RATIFICATION OF AMENDMENT TO 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT / 
PROPOSITION AA 

   
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The attached Professional Services Report/Proposition AA summarizes one amendment to an 
existing contract. 
 
At the June 5, 2014 Board meeting the Board adopted the resolution approving and 
authorizing execution of site Lease, Sublease Agreement, and Construction Services 
Agreement for the Lease/Leaseback Agreement with McCarthy Building Companies, Inc. 
(McCarthy), at Earl Warren Middle School for the school site’s data center.  On June 30, 2014, 
bids were conducted by McCarthy.  A total of 37 divisions of work were issued to bid to a total 
of 125 contractors.  A total of 97 contractors responded.  The Preliminary Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) was established at the June 5th meeting at $2,389,950.00.  After 
review of the bids, the preliminary GMP is amended as a result increasing the amount by 
$11,923.00 for a Final GMP in an amount of $2,401,873.00 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve and/or ratify the amendment to the professional 
services contract, and authorize Christina M. Bennett, Eric R. Dill, or Rick Schmitt to execute 
the agreement, as noted in the attached supplement.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
Building Fund-Prop 39 Fund 21-39 

ITEM 15H

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
471 of 543



SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
PROPOSITION AA – AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENTS      Board Meeting Date: 07-17-14 
FACILITIES PLANNING & CONSTRUCTION   
 

Contract 
Effective 

Dates 

Consultant/ 
Vendor 

 
Description of Services 

School/ 
Department 

Budget 

Fee 
Not to Exceed 

July 18, 2014 
through 
completion  

McCarthy Building 
Companies  

Increase Preliminary Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) to 
Lease Lease/Back Agreement, construction of the Data 
Center at Earl Warren Middle School. 

Building Fund-
Prop 39 Fund 
21-39 
 

 
$11,923.00 

 

ITEM 15H

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
472 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED &     
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION / BOARD MEMBER 

ABSENCE 

  
 

******************************************************************************************** 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Board Bylaw #9250 states that if a Board member does not attend all meetings during the 
month, he/she is eligible to receive only a percentage of the monthly compensation equal to 
the percentage of meetings attended unless otherwise authorized by the Board in 
accordance with law.  The Board may, by resolution, find that the Board member was 
performing designated services for the district at the time of the meeting or that they were 
absent because of illness, jury duty, or a hardship deemed acceptable by the Board. 
 
Barbara Groth was absent from the June 19, 2014, Board meeting due to illness. The 
attached resolution, if adopted by the Board, determines that Barbara Groth be paid for said 
meeting of June 19, 2014. 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the board adopt the resolution determining that Barbara Groth shall be 
compensated for the Board meeting of June 19, 2014, from which she was absent due to 
illness, as shown in the attached supplement. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 

ITEM 16

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
473 of 543



 

 

 

 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION  
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Board Bylaw #9250 states that if a Board member does not attend all 

meetings during the month, he/she is eligible to receive only a percentage of the 
monthly compensation equal to the percentage of meetings attended unless 
otherwise authorized by the Board in accordance with law; and 

 
WHEREAS, Board Bylaw #9250 further states that “Members may be paid for meetings 

they missed when the Board, by resolution, finds that they were performing 
designated services for the district at the time of the meeting or that they were 
absent because of illness, jury duty, or a hardship deemed acceptable by the 
Board,” and 

 
WHEREAS, Barbara Groth was absent from the June 19, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 

due to illness, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito 

Union High School District determines that Barbara Groth shall be paid for said 
meeting of 2014;  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 

School District, Encinitas, California, at a public meeting thereof duly called and 
held this 17th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
____________________________________ 
 
 
___________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
 
 

 

ITEM 16

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
474 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 7, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED AND     Michael Grove, Ed.D. 
SUBMITTED BY: Assoc. Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF MATH INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS  
  
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  

SDUHSD Math teachers and District staff have reviewed a variety of instructional 
materials to support the Common Core Integrated Math courses we will begin to 
implement in the 2014-15 school year.  The Math Department chairs, District 
staff, the Parent Curriculum Advisory Committee, and the Coordinating Council 
all concur in recommending the adoption of the Mathematics Vision Project 
(MVP) curriculum for high school courses and the Utah Middle School Math 
Project curriculum for middle school courses.  Please see the attached document 
for an outline of our instructional materials review process and timeframe.  These 
instructional materials, as with any adopted instructional materials, will be 
adapted and supplemented to meet the unique needs of our students.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the Mathematics Vision Project (MVP) 
curriculum for high school courses and the Utah Middle School Math Project 
curriculum for middle school courses. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
General Fund 03-00/Unrestricted & General Fund 06-00/Restricted 
 
 
MG/JS      

ITEM 17

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
475 of 543



SDUHSD Math Instructional Materials Adoption Process & Timeline 
2013-14 

 
September/October 2013 Publishers solicited for sample CCSS-aligned instructional  

materials 
 
November 2013  Samples of all available Integrated Math instructional materials  

distributed to schools sites for teacher review and pilot 
 

November 2013  Course-specific materials review teams established - made up of  
teachers from all school sites 

 
January 28, 2014  All District Math teachers attend presentations by publishers 
 
February 1, 2014  Math teachers surveyed to assist with narrowing instructional  

materials review. 
 
Teachers continue to pilot and review remaining instructional 
materials choices 

 
March 28, 2014  School site Math departments and course-specific review teams  

submit their recommendations regarding instructional materials 
 
April 2, 2014   Math Chairs review input from site departments and curriculum  

review teams and recommend instructional materials for adoption 
 
April 2014   District Educational Services staff review recommended materials 
 
May 7, 2014   Recommended instructional materials reviewed and approved by  

Parent Curriculum Advisory Committee 
 
May 21, 2014   Recommended instructional materials reviewed and approved by  

Coordinating Council 
 

May 27 & June 10, 2014 Public review of recommended instructional materials 
 
June 5, 2014   Recommended instructional materials submitted to School Board  

as information item 
 
July 17, 2014   Recommended instructional materials submitted to School Board  

for adoption 

ITEM 17

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
476 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 8, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014  
 
PREPARED BY:   John Addleman, Director, Planning Services 

      Eric Dill, Assoc. Superintendent, Business 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt, Superintendent  
 
SUBJECT:    ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS 

      ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES FOR 
      2014-2015 FISCAL YEAR 

 
   

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Board of Trustees has adopted ordinances authorizing the levy of a special tax 
within CFD 94-2, CFD 94-3, CFD 95-2, CFD 99-1, CFD 99-2, CFD 99-3, and CFD 03-1.  
These ordinances were adopted pursuant to the Rate and Method of Apportionment of 
Special Taxes approved in the elections.  The Rate and Method of Apportionment of 
Special Taxes also require the Board to determine the amount for the alternate 
prepayment to be collected each year.  The Lee Saylor Material/Cost of Construction 
Index can increase this rate for all CFD’s except for CFD 99-2 and CFD 99-3 for which 
the Engineering News-Record Building Cost Index is used. 
 
The 2014-2015 prepayment amounts have been established as follows: 
 

 CFD 94-2 - $4,955.00 for a single family home and $1,350.00 for a multi-
family home. 

 CFD 94-3 - $9,389.35 for a single family home and $2,558.15 for a multi-
family home. 

 CFD 95-2 - $9,070.18 for a single family home and $2,471.19 for a multi-
family home. 

 CFD 99-1 - $9,340.06 for a single family home and $2,522.79 for a multi-
family home. 

 CFD 99-2 – One-Time Special Tax of $1.14 per square foot of assessable 
space for residential homes and $0.26 per square foot of assessable space 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
477 of 543



for commercial buildings located in the Encinitas School District and $.15 per 
square foot of assessable space for commercial buildings located in the 
Rancho Santa Fe School District. 

 CFD 99-3 – One-Time Special Tax of $1.14 per square foot of assessable 
space for residential homes and $0.26 per square foot of assessable space 
for commercial buildings. 

 CFD 03-1 - $11,077.35 for a Tax Class A single family home, $2,992.95 for a 
Tax Class A multi-family home $9,340.06 for a Tax Class B single family 
home, and $2,522.79 for a Tax Class B multi-family home. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the attached resolutions establishing Special 
Taxes within Community Facilities District No.’s 94-2, 94-3, 95-2, 99-1, 99-2, 99-3, and 
03-1, which increases the Alternate Prepayment Tax for single family, multi-family units, 
and commercial buildings per Lee Saylor Cost of Construction Index or Engineering 
News-Record Building Cost Index. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
478 of 543



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 94-2 

FOR PREPAYMENTS FOR THE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 

 WHEREAS, on September 22, 1994 the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito 
Union High School District (the “Board of Trustees”) adopted a resolution entitled 
“Resolution of Formation of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District Establishing Community Facilities District No. 94-2 of the San Dieguito 
Union High School District, Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax, the Incurrence of 
Bonded Indebtedness not to Exceed $50,000,000 within Proposed Community Facilities 
District 94-2 and Calling an Election” (the “Resolution”), which established Community 
Facilities District No. 94-2 of the San Dieguito Union High School District (the “District”) 
pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, to finance the 
construction and acquisition of certain school facilities within the District; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Resolution authorized the levy of a special tax on property lying 
within the District, authorized the issuance of bonds in an aggregate principal amount not 
to exceed $50,000,000 and called an election; 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 3, 1994, an election (the “Election”) was held within 
the District in which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds of the votes 
cast the propositions of levying a special tax on property within the District, incurring 
indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and establishing an appropriations 
limit; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 5, 1994, the Board of Trustees adopted an ordinance 
entitled, “Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School 
District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax Within Community Facilities District No. 
94-2” (the “Ordinance”) authorizing the levy of a special tax within the District pursuant 
to the rate and method of apportionment of special taxes approved in the Election (the 
“Rate and Method”) which is set forth in Exhibit A attached to the Ordinance (terms used 
but not defined herein have the meaning provided in the Rate and Method);  
 
 WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the Board of Trustees to provide, by 
resolution, for the levy of the special tax in accordance with the Rate and Method; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate and Method, within five (5) business days from 
the time of issuance of the initial building permit with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel, the 
owner of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property may elect to prepay fifty percent 
of the aggregate Maximum Special Tax obligation attributable to the Assessor’s Parcel; 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
479 of 543



 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  In accordance with the Rate and Method, the Board of Trustees hereby 
establishes $4,955.00 as the Alternate Prepayment Tax for Single-Family units and 
$1,350.00 for Multi-Family units with respect to Developed Property for the 2014-15 
fiscal year. 
 
 Section 2.  The Alternate Prepayment Tax with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel 
shall be collected by the District within five (5) business days from the time of issuance of 
the initial building permit of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property in accordance 
with Section VII of the Rate and Method and Section 5 of the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.  The Board of Trustees hereby ratifies any action taken prior to 
adoption of this resolution to collect the Alternate Prepayment Taxes with respect to 
Developed Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately on the date of final 
passage. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, this 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
 
     BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN 
     DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
     By: ___________________________ 
 
     Title:    President, Board of Trustees   
                
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 
Title:   Clerk, Board of Trustees           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
480 of 543



 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
481 of 543



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNIONHIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 94-3 

FOR PREPAYMENTS FOR THE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 

  WHEREAS, on March 21, 1996 the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito 
Union High School District (the “Board of Trustees”) adopted a resolution entitled 
“Resolution of Formation of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District Establishing Community Facilities District No. 94-3 of the San Dieguito 
Union High School District, Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax, the Incurrence of 
Bonded Indebtedness not to Exceed $50,000,000 within Proposed Community Facilities 
District No. 94-3 and Calling an Election” (the “Resolution”), which established 
Community Facilities District No. 94-3 of the San Dieguito Union High School District 
(the “District”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as 
amended, to finance the construction and acquisition of certain school facilities within the 
District; 
 
  WHEREAS, on July 18, 1996 the Board amended the Resolution by 
adopting a resolution entitled “Amendment to Resolutions of Formation of the Board of 
Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School District Regarding Establishment of 
Community Facilities District Nos. 94-3 and 95-2 of the San Dieguito Union High School 
District” (the “Amending Resolution”) changing the date of the election; 
 
  WHEREAS, the Resolution authorized the levy of a special tax on 
property lying within the District, authorized the issuance of bonds in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and called an election; 
 
  WHEREAS, on September 10, 1996 an election (the “Election”) was held 
within the District in which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds of the 
votes cast the propositions of levying a special tax on property within the District, 
incurring indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and establishing an 
appropriations limit; 
 
  WHEREAS, on September 19, 1996 the Board of Trustees adopted an 
ordinance entitled, “Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax Within Community Facilities 
District No. 94-3” (the “Ordinance”) authorizing the levy of a special tax within the 
District pursuant to the rate and method of apportionment of special taxes approved in the 
Election (the “Rate and Method”) which is set forth in Exhibit A attached to the 
Ordinance (terms used but not defined herein have the meanings provided in the Rate and 
Method); 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
482 of 543



  WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the Board of Trustees to provide, 
by resolution, for the levy of the special tax in accordance with the Rate and Method; 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate and Method, within five (5) business 
days from the time of issuance of the initial building permit with respect to any Assessor’s 
Parcel, the owner of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property may elect to prepay 
fifty percent of the aggregate Maximum Special Tax obligation attributable to the 
Assessor’s Parcel; 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  Section 1. In accordance with the Rate and Method, the Board of 
Trustees hereby establishes $9,389.35 as the Alternate Prepayment Tax for Single-Family 
units and $2,558.15 for Multi-Family units with respect to Developed Property for the 
2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
  Section 2. The Alternate Prepayment Tax with respect to any 
Assessor’s Parcel shall be collected by the District within five (5) business days from the 
time of issuance of the initial building permit of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed 
Property in accordance with Section VII of the Rate and Method and Section 5 of the 
Ordinance. 
 
  Section 3. The Board of Trustees hereby ratifies any action taken prior 
to adoption of this resolution to collect the Alternate Prepayment Taxes with respect to 
Developed Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
  Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately on the date of 
final passage. 
 
  ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, this 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
     BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN 
     DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
     By: ________________________ 
 
     Title: President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _________________________ 
 
Title:  Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
483 of 543



 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
484 of 543



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNIONHIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 95-2 

FOR PREPAYMENTS FOR THE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 

  WHEREAS, on March 21, 1996 the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito 
Union High School District (the “Board of Trustees”) adopted a resolution entitled 
“Resolution of Formation of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District Establishing Community Facilities District No. 95-2 of the San Dieguito 
Union High School District, Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax, the Incurrence of 
Bonded Indebtedness not to Exceed $50,000,000 within Proposed Community Facilities 
District No. 95-2 and Calling an Election” (the “Resolution”), which established 
Community Facilities District No. 95-2 of the San Dieguito Union High School District 
(the “District”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos community Facilities Act of 1982, as 
amended, to finance the construction and acquisition of certain school facilities within the 
District; 
 
  WHEREAS, on July 18, 1996 the Board amended the Resolution by 
adopting a resolution entitled “Amendment to Resolutions of Formation of the Board of 
Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School District Regarding Establishment of 
Community Facilities District Nos. 94-3 and 95-2 of the San Dieguito Union High School 
District” (the “Amending Resolution”) changing the date of the election; 
 
  WHEREAS, the Resolution authorized the levy of a special tax on 
property lying within the District, authorized the issuance of bonds in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and called an election; 
 
  WHEREAS, on September 10, 1996 an election (the “Election”) was held 
within the District in which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds of the 
votes cast the propositions of levying a special tax on property within the District, 
incurring indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and establishing an 
appropriations limit; 
 
  WHEREAS, on September 19, 1996 the Board of Trustees adopted an 
ordinance entitled, “Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax Within Community Facilities 
District No. 95-2” (the “Ordinance”) authorizing the levy of a special tax within the 
District pursuant to the rate and method of apportionment of special taxes approved in the 
Election (the “Rate and Method”) which is set forth in Exhibit A attached to the 
Ordinance (terms used but not defined herein have the meanings provided in the Rate and 
Method); 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
485 of 543



  WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the Board of Trustees to provide, 
by resolution, for the levy of the special tax in accordance with the Rate and Method; 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate and Method, within five (5) business 
days from the time of issuance of the initial building permit with respect to any Assessor’s 
Parcel, the owner of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property may elect to prepay 
fifty percent of the aggregate Maximum Special Tax obligation attributable to the 
Assessor’s Parcel; 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  Section 1. In accordance with the Rate and Method, the Board of 
Trustees hereby establishes $9,070.18 as the Alternate Prepayment Tax for Single-Family 
units and $2,471.19 for Multi-Family units with respect to Developed Property for the 
2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
  Section 2. The Alternate Prepayment Tax with respect to any 
Assessor’s Parcel shall be collected by the District within five (5) business days from the 
time of issuance of the initial building permit of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed 
Property in accordance with Section VII of the Rate and Method and Section 5 of the 
Ordinance. 
 
  Section 3. The Board of Trustees hereby ratifies any action taken prior 
to adoption of this resolution to collect the Alternate Prepayment Taxes with respect to 
Developed Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
  Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately on the date of 
final passage. 
 
  ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, this 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
     BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN 
     DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
     By: ________________________ 
 
     Title: President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _________________________ 
 
Title:  Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
486 of 543



 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
487 of 543



 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 99-1 

FOR PREPAYMENTS FOR THE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 

 WHEREAS, on May 6, 1999 the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union 
High School District (the “Board of Trustees”) adopted a resolution entitled “Resolution 
of Formation of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School District 
Establishing Community Facilities District No. 99-1 of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax, the Incurrence of Bonded 
Indebtedness not to Exceed $50,000,000 with Proposed Community Facilities District 
No. 99-1 and Calling an Election” (the “Resolution), which established Community 
Facilities District No. 99-1 of the San Dieguito Union High School District (the 
“District”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, to 
finance the construction and acquisition of certain school facilities within the District; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, on August 19, 1999 the Board amended the Resolution by adopting a 
resolution entitled “Amendment to Resolution of Formation of the Board of Trustees of 
the San Dieguito Union High School District Regarding Establishment of Community 
Facilities District No. 99-1 of the San Dieguito Union High School District” (the 
“Amending Resolution”) changing the date of the election; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Resolution authorized the levy of a special tax on property lying 
within the District, authorized the issuance of bonds in an aggregate principal amount not 
to exceed $50,000,000 and called an election; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 16, 1999 and election (the “Election”) was held within 
the District in which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds of the votes 
cast the propositions of levying a special tax on property within the District, incurring 
indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and establishing an appropriations 
limit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 16, 1999 the Board of Trustees adopted an ordinance 
entitled, “Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School 
District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax Within Community Facilities District No. 
99-1” (the “Ordinance”) authorizing the levy of a special tax within the District pursuant 
to the rate and method of apportionment of special taxes approved in the Election (the 
“Rate and Method”) which is set forth in Exhibit A attached to the Ordinance (terms used 
but not defined herein have the meanings provided the Rate and Method); and 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
488 of 543



 WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the Board of Trustees to provide, by 
resolution, the levy of the special tax in accordance with the Rate and Method; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate and Method, within five (5) business days from 
the time of issuance of the initial building permit with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel, 
the owner of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property may elect to prepay fifty 
percent of the aggregate Maximum Special Tax obligation attributable to the Assessor’s 
Parcel; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  In accordance with the Rate and Method, the Board of Trustees hereby 
establishes $9,340.06 as the Alternate Prepayment Tax for Single-Family units and 
$2,522.79 for multi-Family units with respect to Developed Property for the 2014-15 
fiscal year. 
 
 Section 2.  The Alternate Prepayment Tax with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel 
shall be collected by the District within five (5) business days from the time of issuance 
of the initial building permit of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property in 
accordance with Section VII of the Rate and Method and Section 5 of the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.  The Board of Trustees hereby ratifies any action taken prior to 
adoption of this resolution to collect the Alternate Prepayment Taxes with respect to 
Developed Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately on the date of final 
passage. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, this 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
    BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN 
    DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
    By: ___________________________________ 
   
    Title:  President, Board of Trustees                      
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 
Title:  Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
489 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
490 of 543



 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 99-2 

FOR PREPAYMENTS FOR THE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 

 WHEREAS, on May 6, 1999 the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union 
High School District (the “Board of Trustees”) adopted a resolution entitled “Resolution 
of Formation of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School District 
Establishing Community Facilities District No. 99-2 (The Bridges at Rancho Santa Fe) of 
the San Dieguito Union High School District, Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax, the 
Incurrence of Bonded Indebtedness Not to Exceed $50,000,000 Within Proposed 
Community Facilities District No. 99-2 (The Bridges at Rancho Santa Fe) and Calling an 
Election” (The “Resolution”), which established Community Facilities District No. 99-2 
of the San Dieguito Union High School District (the “District”) pursuant to the Mello-
Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, to finance the construction and 
acquisition of certain school facilities within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Resolution authorized the levy of a special tax on property lying 
within the District, authorized the issuance of bonds in an aggregate principal amount not 
to exceed $50,000,000 and called an election; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 11, 1999 an election (the “Election”) was held within the 
District in which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds of the votes cast 
the propositions of levying a special tax on property within the District, incurring 
indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and establishing an appropriations 
limit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 20, 1999 the Board of Trustees adopted an ordinance 
entitled, “Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School 
District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax Within Community Facilities District No. 
99-2 (The Bridges at Rancho Santa Fe)” (the “Ordinance”) authorizing the levy of a 
special tax within the District pursuant to the rate and method of apportionment of special 
taxes approved in the Election (the “Rate and Method”) which is set forth in Exhibit “A” 
attached to the Ordinance (terms used but not defined herein have the meanings provided 
in the Rate and Method); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the Board of Trustees to provide, by 
resolution, for the levy of the special tax in accordance with the Rate and Method; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate and Method, at or prior to the issuance of a 
building permit for an Assessor’s Parcel of Residential Property, the owner of such 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
491 of 543



property may elect to exempt his property from the Annual Special Tax by paying the 
One-Time Special Tax then applicable to such Assessor’s Parcel and upon payment of 
such One-Time Special Tax, such Assessor’s Parcel shall thereafter be treated as Exempt 
Property.  If an owner of an Assessor’s Parcel of Residential Property does not elect to 
pay the One-Time Special Tax, then that Assessor’s Parcel of Residential Property shall 
be subject to the Annual Special Taxes and shall not be subject to the One-Time Special 
Tax. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  In accordance with the Rate and Method, the Board of Trustees hereby 
establishes 1.14 per square foot of assessable space for parcels of residential property and 
$0.15 per square foot of chargeable covered and enclosed space for assessor’s parcels of 
commercial property located within the boundaries of Rancho Santa Fe USD, or $0.26 
per square foot of chargeable covered and enclosed space for assessor’s parcels of 
commercial property located within the boundaries of Encinitas USD as the One-Time 
Special Tax for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 2.  The One-Time Special Tax with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel shall 
be collected by the District at or prior to the issuance of a building permit of such 
Assessor’s Parcel in accordance with Section C of the Rate and Method and Section C of 
the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.  The Board of Trustees hereby ratifies any action taken prior to 
adoption of this resolution to collect the One-Time Special Tax with respect to 
Developed Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately on the date of final 
passage. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, this 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
    BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN  
    DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
    By:  ____________________________________ 
 
    Title:  President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ______________________  __ 
 
Title:  Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
492 of 543



 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
493 of 543



 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 99-3 

FOR PREPAYMENTS FOR THE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 

 WHEREAS, on October 7, 1999 the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union 
High School District (the “Board of Trustees”) adopted a resolution entitled “Resolution 
of Formation of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School District 
Establishing Community Facilities District No. 99-3 of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax, the Incurrence of Bonded 
Indebtedness Not to Exceed $50,000,000 Within Proposed Community Facilities District 
No. 99-3 and Calling an Election” (the “Resolution”), which establishes Community 
Facilities District No. 99-3 of the San Dieguito Union High School District (the 
“District”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, to 
finance the construction and acquisition of certain school facilities within the District; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Resolution authorized the levy of a special tax on property lying 
within the District, authorized the issuance of bonds in an aggregate principal amount not 
to exceed $50,000,000 and called an election; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 12, 1999 an election (the “Election”) was held within the 
District in which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds of the votes cast 
the propositions of levying a special tax on property within the District, incurring 
indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and establishing an appropriations 
limit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 4, 1999 the Board of Trustees adopted an ordinance 
entitled, “Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School 
District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax Within Community Facilities District No. 
99-3” (the “Ordinance”) authorizing the levy of a special tax within the District pursuant 
to the rate and method of apportionment of special taxes approved in the Election (the 
“Rate and Method”) which is set forth in Exhibit “A” attached to the Ordinance (terms 
used but not defined herein have the meanings provided in the Rate and Method); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the Board of Trustees to provide, by 
resolution, for the levy of the special tax in accordance with the Rate and Method; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate and Method, at or prior to the issuance of a 
building permit for an Assessor’s Parcel of Residential Property, the owner of such 
property may elect to exempt his property from the Annual Special Tax by paying the 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
494 of 543



One-Time Special Tax then applicable to such Assessor’s Parcel and upon payment of 
such One-Time Special Tax, such Assessor’s Parcel of Residential Property shall 
thereafter be treated as Exempt Property.  If an owner of an Assessor’s Parcel of 
Residential Property does not elect to pay the One-Time Special Tax, then that Assessor’s 
Parcel of Residential Property shall be subject to Annual Special Taxes and shall not be 
subject to the One-Time Special Tax. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  In accordance with the Rate and Method, the Board of Trustees hereby 
establishes $1.14 per square foot of Assessable Space for Assessor’s Parcels of 
Residential Property, or $0.26 per square foot of Chargeable Covered and Enclosed 
Space for Assessor’s Parcels of Commercial Property as the One-Time Special Tax for 
the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 2.  The One-Time Special Tax with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel shall 
be collected by the District at or prior to the issuance of a building permit of such 
Assessor’s Parcel in accordance with Section C of the Rate and Method and Section C of 
the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.  The Board of Trustees hereby ratifies any action taken prior to 
adoption of this resolution to collect the One-Time Special Tax with respect to 
Developed Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately on the date of final 
passage. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, this 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
    BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN 
    DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
    By: ____________________________________ 
 
    Title:  President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:  ___________________________ 
 
Title:  Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
495 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
496 of 543



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 03-1 

FOR PREPAYMENTS FOR THE 2014-15 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 

 WHEREAS, on May 1, 2003 the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union 
High School District (the “Board of Trustees”) adopted a resolution entitled “Resolution 
of Formation of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School District 
Establishing Community Facilities District No. 03-1 of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax, the Incurrence of Bonded 
Indebtedness not to Exceed $75,000,000 within Proposed Community Facilities District 
03-1 and Calling an Election” (the “Resolution”), which established Community Facilities 
District No. 03-1 of the San Dieguito Union High School District (the “District”) pursuant 
to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, to finance the 
construction and acquisition of certain school facilities within the District; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Resolution authorized the levy of a special tax on property lying 
within the District, authorized the issuance of bonds in an aggregate principal amount not 
to exceed $75,000,000 and called an election; 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 13, 2003, an election (the “Election”) was held within the 
District in which the eligible electors approved by more than two-thirds of the votes cast 
the propositions of levying a special tax on property within the District, incurring 
indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $75,000,000 and establishing an appropriations 
limit; 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 15, 2003, the Board of Trustees adopted an ordinance 
entitled, “Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High School 
District Authorizing the Levy of a Special Tax Within Community Facilities District No. 
03-1” (the “Ordinance”) authorizing the levy of a special tax within the District pursuant 
to the rate and method of apportionment of special taxes approved in the Election (the 
“Rate and Method”) which is set forth in Exhibit A attached to the Ordinance (terms used 
but not defined herein have the meaning provided in the Rate and Method);  
 
 WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the Board of Trustees to provide, by 
resolution, for the levy of the special tax in accordance with the Rate and Method; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Rate and Method, within five (5) business days from 
the time of issuance of the initial building permit with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel, the 
owner of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property may elect to prepay fifty percent 
of the aggregate Maximum Special Tax obligation attributable to the Assessor’s Parcel; 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
497 of 543



 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  In accordance with the Rate and Method, the Board of Trustees hereby 
establishes $11,077.35 as the Alternate Prepayment Tax for Tax Class A Single-Family 
units, 2,992.95 for Tax Class A Multi-Family units, $9,340.06 for Tax Class B Single-
Family units, and $2,522.79 for Tax Class B Multi-Family units with respect to Developed 
Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 2.  The Alternate Prepayment Tax with respect to any Assessor’s Parcel 
shall be collected by the District within five (5) business days from the time of issuance of 
the initial building permit of such Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property in accordance 
with Section VI of the Rate and Method and Section 5 of the Ordinance. 
 
 Section 3.  The Board of Trustees hereby ratifies any action taken prior to 
adoption of this resolution to collect the Alternate Prepayment Taxes with respect to 
Developed Property for the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
 
 Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately on the date of final 
passage. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, this 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
 
     BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN 
     DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
     By: ___________________________ 
 
     Title:    President, Board of Trustees   
                
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 
Title:   Clerk, Board of Trustees           
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
498 of 543



 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 18

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
499 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 8, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY:   John Addleman, Director of Planning Services 

      Eric Dill, Assoc. Supt. of Business Services 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT:    ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS LEVYING 

      SPECIAL TAXES FOR 2014-2015 FISCAL 
      YEAR 

   
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The Board of Trustees has adopted ordinances authorizing the levy of a special tax within 
Community Facilities District (CFD) 94-1, CFD 94-2, CFD 94-3, CFD 95-1, CFD 95-2, CFD 
99-1, CFD 99-2, CFD 99-3, and CFD 03-1.  These ordinances authorized the Board of 
Trustees to provide, by resolution, for the levy of the special tax in accordance with the 
Rate and Method established.  The tax will appear on each property owner’s tax bill and is 
to be collected by the County Assessor’s Office, per arrangement. 
 
The rate of development slowed within the CFDs to 2.65% compared to the prior year’s 
growth rate of 4.8% largely due to caps in Pacific Highlands Ranch.   An additional 226 
parcels consisting of 180 single family dwelling units (SFD) and 100 multi-family dwelling 
units (MFD) were permitted within the CFDs in 2013-2014. The additional activity will 
increase the annual levy of special taxes by $182,812.50 from $6,887,970.50 to 
$7,070,783.00 for 2014-2015.  The three most active community facilities districts are: 
 

CFD 03-1 Pacific Highlands Ranch - 87 SFD units, $73,957.50, 
CFD 95-1 The Preserve, Crosby Estate, and Ocean Air – 5 SFD/100 MFD units, 
$27,375.00, and 
CFD 95-2 Fiore, Seaside Ridge, Primrose, and Cardiff Collection - 48 SFD units, 
$47,200.00. 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
500 of 543



The detail parcel information, Attachment A, to the attached resolutions is available for 
inspection in the Facilities Planning and Construction Department and will be filed as part of 
the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the attached resolutions levying Special Taxes 
within Community Facilities District No.’s 94-1, 94-2, 94-3, 95-1, 95-2, 99-1, 99-2, 99-3, and 
03-1, and authorize the Auditor of San Diego County to levy taxes on all non-exempt 
property within each Community Facilities District. 
 
  
          
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
Community Facilities Districts 94-1, 94-2, 94-3, 95-1, 95-2, 99-1, 99-2, 99-3, and 03-1 
 
Enclosure:    2014-15 Special Tax Fund Ending 6-30-14, 2014/2015 Executive Summary 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
501 of 543



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 94-1 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 94-1 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 94-1, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 94-1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 94-1, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 94-1, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 94-1 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 94-1, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 94-1 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July   ,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 94-1 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
502 of 543



 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
503 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
            
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
504 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 94-2 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 94-2 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 94-2, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 94-2; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 94-2, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 94-2, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 94-2 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 94-2, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 94-2 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July   ,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 94-2 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
505 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
506 of 543



 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
507 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 94-3 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 94-3 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 94-3, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 94-3; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 94-3, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 94-3, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 94-3 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 94-3, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 94-3 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th   DAY OF    July   , 2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 94-3 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
508 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
509 of 543



 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
            
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
510 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 95-1 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 95-1 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 95-1, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 95-1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 95-1, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 95-1, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 95-1 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 95-1, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 95-1 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July   ,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 95-1 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
511 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
512 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
            
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
513 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 95-2 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 95-2 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 95-2, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 95-2; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 95-2, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 95-2, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 95-2 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 95-2, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 95-2 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 95-2 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
514 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
515 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th  day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
       
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
516 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 99-1 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 99-1 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 99-1, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 99-1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 99-1, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 99-1, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 99-1 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 99-1, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 99-1 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July   ,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 99-1 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
517 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
518 of 543



 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
                                   
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
519 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 99-2 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 99-2 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 99-2, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 99-2; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 99-2, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 99-2, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 99-2 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 99-2, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 99-2 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July   ,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 99-2 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
520 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
521 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
                                   
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
522 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 99-3 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 99-3 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 99-3, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 99-3; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 99-3, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 99-3, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 99-3 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 99-3, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 99-3 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 99-3 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
523 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
524 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
                                   
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
525 of 543



 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LEVYING SPECIAL TAX FOR 2014-15 FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 03-1 OF 

THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District (the “District”) has previously completed proceedings pursuant to the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, commencing with Section 
53311 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”) to form Community 
Facilities District 03-1 of the San Dieguito Union High School District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board, acting on behalf of CFD 03-1, has reviewed the financial 
affairs of CFD 03-1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires at this time to levy the special taxes at the rates 
specified herein for the fiscal year for CFD 03-1, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, acting as the legislative body of Community Facilities District 03-1, does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District is hereby 
authorized to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the Auditor of the County of San 
Diego and such other public agencies as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, the Board hereby levies the 
special taxes on all non-exempt property within CFD 03-1 pursuant to the Rate and 
Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax for CFD 03-1, and in the amounts and on 
property within CFD 03-1 for Fiscal Year 2014-15 as set forth on Attachment A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED THIS    17th  DAY OF    July   ,  2014. 
 
     San Dieguito Union High School District 
     Acting as the Legislative Body of 
     Community Facilities District 03-1 
 
     By: ______________________________ 
            President of the Board of Trustees 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
526 of 543



 
 
Resolution Levying Special Tax for 2014-15 
Page 2 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
       Clerk, Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
527 of 543



 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
            ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO) 
 
 
I, Beth Hergesheimer, Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the San Dieguito Union High 
School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 
Board of Trustees at a regular meeting of said Board held on the   17th   day of   July  , 
2014, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
        ABSENT: 
 
            
     _________________________ 
     Clerk, Board of Trustees 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
528 of 543



 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS 

2014/2015 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 

DISTRICT 
PARCELS 

LEVIED 

PROJECTED 
LEVY APPLIED 

AT COUNTY 

LEVY AMOUNT 
HANDBILLED 

TOTAL 
PROJECTED 

LEVY AMOUNT 

CFD No. 94-1 8 $6,400.00 $0.00 $6,400.00 
CFD No. 94-2 2,777 2,056,000.00  0.00 2,056,000.00 
CFD No. 94-3 877 536,246.00 0.00 536,246.00 
CFD No. 95-1 2,341 2,397,714.00  0.00 2,397,714.00 
CFD No. 95-2 502 397,882.00  0.00 397,882.00 
CFD No. 99-1 570 349,174.50  0.00 349,174.50 
CFD No. 99-2 45 25,650.00 0.00 25,650.00 
CFD No. 99-3 136 77,520.00 0.00 77,520.00 
CFD No. 03-1 1,212 1,224,196.50  0.00 1,224,196.50 

Total 8,468 $7,070,783.00 $0.00 $7,070,783.00 

 
 
 

 

ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
529 of 543



ITEM 19

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
530 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED &    
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: HIGH SCHOOL SELECTION UPDATE 

  
********************************************************************************************** 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Staff will give a brief update on high school selection/enrollment at the Board meeting. 
 
  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This item is being provided as information only. 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
N/A  
 
 

 
       

ITEM 20

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
531 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 9, 2014  
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED &    
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt 
     Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: DRAFT SDUHSD EDUCATION PLAN:  STRATEGIC 

THEMES, 2014-15 

  
********************************************************************************************** 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The Superintendent will introduce and make a brief presentation of the draft San Dieguito 
Union High School District Education Plan: Strategic Themes, 2014-15, as shown in the 
attached supplement.  
 
  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This item is being submitted as first read for Board input, discussion and direction, and will be 
resubmitted for action at the August 21, 2014 board meeting. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
N/A  
 
 

 
       

ITEM 21

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
532 of 543



Vision: 
To provide a world-class education for all students through quality programs that engage students, inspire 

achievement and service to others; prepare them to be lifelong learners and responsible members of society 

Education Plan: Strategic Themes, 2014-15 

Teaching & 
Learning 

Assessment & 
Learning 

Diverse Learning 
Opportunities &  

Supportive Teaching & 
Learning Environments 

Accomplished 
Staff 

Community 
Engagement & Partnership 

Planning &  
Resource Management 

Our focus on teaching 

and learning is 

characterized by: 

 The belief that each 
student can & should 
learn at a high level 

 Offering a cohesive 
curriculum aligned to 
the Common Core 
State Standards and  
focused on 21st 
Century skills 

 Viewing teaching & 
learning as 
collaborative activities 

 Providing high quality, 
innovative instruction 
informed by balanced 
assessment 

 Effective utilization of 
high quality, 
standards-aligned 
instructional materials 

 A commitment to 
continuous 
improvement via 
collaboration and 
ongoing professional 
development 

We use assessments to 

accurately measure 

student mastery of 

essential learning 

outcomes by: 

 Utilizing a balanced 
system of formal/ 
informal and 
formative/ 
summative 
assessment 

 Using assessment as 
a tool to guide 
teaching and 
learning 

 Using assessment as 
a tool to identify 
students in need of 
intervention 

 Using assessment as 
a tool to evaluate 
our programs 

 Using assessment as 
a means to measure 
& report on student 
learning 

We ensure effective learning 

opportunities and supportive 

environments by: 

 Developing relevant & diverse, 
curricular options for students 
that extend beyond the 
classroom and include web-
based choices 

 Providing students with bell 
schedules which allow for rich, 
diverse, and flexible academic, 
elective, and intervention 
options during the regular 
school day 

 Providing teachers with 
frequent and regular 
collaboration time during the 
work day 

 Effective integration and 
utilization of technology in 
support of teaching and learning 

 Developing K-16 partnerships to 
ensure seamless transitions and 
appropriate options for all 
students 

 Implementing re-teach & 
intervention strategies for 
students who do not learn at 
the level expected of all 
students 

 Ensuring that all students are 
educated in the least restrictive 
environment that provides 
appropriate services at an 
appropriate cost 

We orient all district staffing 

efforts toward the success of 

students by: 

 Recruiting and selecting 
highly qualified employees  

 Staffing our schools with 
accomplished educators  

 Providing ongoing training, 
professional development, 
and support to highly 
qualified employees 

 Effectively supporting 
highly qualified employees 
through evaluation 

 Utilizing efficient position 
control for budget 
accuracy 

 Implementing office 
procedures which 
maximize technology 
advancement 

 Maintaining and 
strengthening 
employer/employee 
relations 

A community is known by the 

schools it supports.  We activate 

community support and 

engagement by: 

 Building relationships with parent 
& community leaders in order to 
continue collaborative 
partnerships 

 Providing up-to-date 
communication of all pertinent 
information through social & 
traditional media 

 Host multiple community & 
school site meetings to gather 
input & share info on district 
priorities, to include the opening 
of Middle School #5 

 Communicating the positive story 
of the District through local 
traditional media, SDUHSD 
website, Facebook & Twitter 

Clearly, effectively & regularly 
communicating the District’s 
key Priorities and Vision for 
Success:  

 Continuous improvement of 
each student through 
Common Core 

 Budget Recovery 

 Prop AA 21st Century 
Facilities  

 Continual focus on student & 
staff safety 

We provide high-performing 

learning environments by: 

Deliberately prioritizing budget 

stabilization and recovery: 

 Funding multi-year implementation of 
Common Core State Standards 

 Enhancing technology to support 
teaching & learning 

 Reinstating strong reserves to preserve 
local control & protect programs from 
cuts during economic downturns 

 Targeted restoration of programs to 
enhance school choice, reduce class 
size, & address long-term liabilities 

Long Range Facilities Master 
Planning and Proposition AA 
Oversight: 

 Aligning projects with instructional 
priorities, school safety, balanced 
enrollment capacity & multi-year bond 
financing plan 

 Preparing for second bond issuance: 
two-year phasing of planning & 
construction within established 
budgets 

 Communicating project, budget and 
financial status to Board, ICOC, and 
public 

Enhancing school safety: 

 Reviewing emergency protocols with 
staff 

 Increasing vigilance through staff & 
visitor identification practices 

 Leveraging Prop AA & other capital 
funds to improve physical security 

San Dieguito Union High School District Mission To Provide a World-Class Education 

For All Students: Engaged, Inspired, Prepared 

1 

DRAFT DRAFT ITEM 21

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
533 of 543



San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 7, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY:   Michael Grove, Ed.D. 
     Associate Superintendent / Ed. Services 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: UNIFORM COMPLAINT QUARTERLY REPORT, 

4TH QUARTER, APRIL – JUNE 2014 
   

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
State law requires school districts to submit reports to the San Diego County Office of 
Education (SDCOE) and to the district governing board on the number of complaints each 
district has received related to the Williams Settlement, i.e., instructional materials 
sufficiency, emergency facilities issues, and teacher vacancies and misassignments.  
Secondary districts that receive CAHSEE Intensive Instruction and Services funding must 
also submit data on uniform complaints related to the Valenzuela Settlement, ( i.e., the 
provision of intensive instruction and services). 
 
Attached is the report for the fourth quarter, 2013-14, from April through June, 2014. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board review and accept the attached Uniform Complaint Report 
for the fourth quarter, April through June, 2014, as shown in the attached supplement. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
Not applicable.  
 

ITEM 22

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
534 of 543



ITEM 22

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
535 of 543



 

San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
TO:     BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
    
DATE OF REPORT:  July 3, 2014 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 17, 2014  
 
PREPARED & 
SUBMITTED BY:   Rick Schmitt, Superintendent    
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSED REVISIONS TO BOARD 

POLICIES (2): #9270, “CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST” and #2420.1/4320.1, 
“DESIGNATION OF MANAGEMENT 
POSITIONS” 

 
****************************************************************************** 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Government Code section 87306.5 requires every local government agency to review 
its Conflict of Interest Code biennially to determine if it is accurate or if the code must be 
amended.  It is then forwarded to the code reviewing body, The County Board of 
Supervisors, for legal review and approval.  Staff has reviewed the current policy and is 
making the following recommendation. 
 
Since the last time the Board approved revisions to the policy on February 20, 2014, 
several job title name changes have been made.  The proposed revisions include those 
changes.   
 
In addition, Board Policy 2420.1/4320.1, “Designation of Management Positions” needs 
to be updated to correspond with revisions to positions that have occurred since the last 
time the policy was revised on September 5, 2013.  This proposed board policy includes 
those revisions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the proposed revisions to Board Policies (2): 
#9270, “Conflict of Interest” and #2420.1/4320.1, “Designation of Management 
Positions”, as shown in the attached supplements. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
Not applicable. 

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
536 of 543



BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9270 

San Dieguito Union High School District Page 1 of 6 
Bylaw Adopted: March 5, 1987 
Bylaw Revised: May 3, 2012 
Bylaw Revised: February 20, 2014 
Bylaw Draft: July 17, 2014 (1st read) 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
The Governing Board desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that decisions 
are made in the best interest of the district and the public. In accordance with law, Board members and 
designated employees shall disclose any conflict of interest and, as necessary, shall abstain from 
participating in the decision.  The Board shall adopt a bylaw that specifies the terms of the conflict of 
interest code, designated positions, and the disclosure categories required for each position.  
 
Upon direction by the code reviewing body, the Board shall review the District's conflict of interest code 
submit any changes to the code reviewing body.  When a change in the District's conflict of interest code 
is necessitated due to changed circumstances such as the creation of new designated positions, changes 
to the duties assigned to existing positions, amendments, or revisions, the amended code shall be 
submitted to the code reviewing body within 90 days.  (Government Code 87306)  
 
When reviewing and preparing the District’s conflict of interest code, the Superintendent or designee 
shall provide officers, employees, consultants and members of the community adequate notice and a 
fair opportunity to present their views.  (Government Code 87311)  
 
Board members and designated employees shall annually file a Statement of Economic Interest/Form 
700 in accordance with the disclosure categories specified in the district's conflict of interest code. A  
Board member who leaves office or a designated employee who leaves district employment shall, within 
30 days, file a revised statement covering the period of time between the closing date of the last 
statement and the date of leaving office or district employment.  (Government Code 87302, 87500)  
 
Statements of economic interests submitted to the District by designated employees in accordance with 
the conflict of interest code shall be available for public inspection and reproduction.  (Government Code 
81008) 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST UNDER GOVERNMENT CODE 1090 

Board members, employees, or district consultants shall not be financially interested in any contract 
made by the Board on behalf of the district, including in the development, preliminary discussions, 
negotiations, compromises, planning, reasoning, and specifications and solicitations for bids.  If a Board 
member has such a financial interest, the district is barred from entering into the contract. (Government 
Code 1090; Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal. App. 4th 469)  
 
A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if his/her interest is a 
"noninterest" as defined in Government Code 1091.5.  One such noninterest is when a Board member's 
spouse/registered domestic partner has been a district employee for at least one year prior to the Board 
member's election or appointment. (Government Code 1091.5)  
A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if he/she has only a 
“remote interest” in the contract as specified in Government Code 1091 and if the remote interest is 
disclosed during a Board meeting and noted in the official Board minutes.  The affected Board member 
shall not vote or debate on the matter or attempt to influence any other Board member to enter into 
the contract.  (Government Code 1091)   
 

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
537 of 543

http://sgc.ca.gov/docs/cof/CaliforniaGovernmentCode87300-87313.pdf
http://sgc.ca.gov/docs/cof/CaliforniaGovernmentCode87300-87313.pdf
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145250


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9270 

San Dieguito Union High School District Page 2 of 6 
Bylaw Adopted: March 5, 1987 
Bylaw Revised: May 3, 2012 
Bylaw Revised: February 20, 2014 
Bylaw Draft: July 17, 2014 (1st read) 

Even if there is not a prohibited conflict of interest, a Board member shall abstain from voting on 
personnel matters that uniquely affect his/her relatives. However, a Board member may vote on 
collective bargaining agreements and personnel matters that affect a class of employees to which 
his/her relative belongs.  Relative means an adult who is related to the Board member by blood or 
affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law, or an individual in an adoptive 
relationship within the third degree.  (Education Code 35107)  
 
A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's parents, grandparents, great-
grandparents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, nieces, 
nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse/registered domestic partner unless the 
individual is widowed or divorced.  

COMMON LAW DOCTRINE AGAINST CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

A Board member shall abstain from any official action in which his/her private or personal interest may 
conflict with his/her official duties. 
 

RULE OF NECESSITY OR LEGALLY REQUIRED PARTICIPATION  

On a case-by-case basis and upon advice of legal counsel, a Board member with a financial interest in a 
contract may participate in the making of the contract if the rule of necessity or legally required 
participation applies pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18708. 
 

INCOMPATIBLE OFFICES AND ACTIVITIES 

Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which is inconsistent 
with, incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the Board member's duties as an officer of the 
district.  (Government Code 1099, 1126) 
 

GIFTS  

Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and limitations 
specified in Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730.  
 
The limitation on gifts does not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals on 
birthdays, holidays and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not substantially 
disproportionate in value.  (Government Code 89503)  
 
Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gift limitation except as 
described in Government Code 89506.  
 
A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the district for Board members and designated 
employees.  (Government Code 89506)  
 

 

HONORARIA  

Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as any 

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
538 of 543

http://law.onecle.com/california/education/35107.html
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145482
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/225343
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=89001-90000&file=89503
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145483
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=89001-90000&file=89506


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9270 

San Dieguito Union High School District Page 3 of 6 
Bylaw Adopted: March 5, 1987 
Bylaw Revised: May 3, 2012 
Bylaw Revised: February 20, 2014 
Bylaw Draft: July 17, 2014 (1st read) 

payment made in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any public or 
private gathering, in accordance with law.  (Government Codes 89501 – 89502)  
 
The term honorarium does not include:  
(Government Code 89501) 

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona 
fide business, trade or profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the 
business, trade or profession is making speeches. 

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to 
the donor or delivered to the district for donation into the general fund without being 
claimed as a deduction from income for tax purposes. 

  

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
539 of 543

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=89001-90000&file=89501-89502
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=89001-90000&file=89501-89502


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9270 

San Dieguito Union High School District Page 4 of 6 
Bylaw Adopted: March 5, 1987 
Bylaw Revised: May 3, 2012 
Bylaw Revised: February 20, 2014 
Bylaw Draft: July 17, 2014 (1st read) 

 

APPENDIX 
DESIGNATED POSITIONS / DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 
 
It has been determined that persons occupying the following positions manage public investments and 
shall file a full statement of economic interests pursuant to Government Code 87200: 
 

Governing Board Members 
Superintendent of Schools 
Associate Superintendents 
 

1. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees in Category 1: 
Purchasing Director 
Finance Director Chief Financial Officer 
Chief Facilities Officer  
Director of Planning Services  
Director of Technology Project Management 
Director of Maintenance, Operations & Transportation 
Construction Projects Manager-I & II 
Facilities Construction Planner 
Purchasing Buyer 
Contracts Analyst 
Construction Contracts Analyst 

 
Designated persons in this category must report:  

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within District boundaries, or 
within two miles of District boundaries or of any land owned or used by the 
District.  Such interests include any leasehold, beneficial or ownership interest or 
option to acquire such interest in real property.  

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which: 

(1) Are engaged in the acquisition or disposal of real property within the 
District, 

(2) Are contractors or subcontractors which are or have been within the past 
two years engaged in work or services of the type used by the District, or 

(3) Manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type 
used by the District.  

 
2. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees in Category 2: 

Director  
Principal  
Assistant Principal  
Executive Director 
Program Coordinator  
Project Specialist  

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
540 of 543

file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145435


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9270 

San Dieguito Union High School District Page 5 of 6 
Bylaw Adopted: March 5, 1987 
Bylaw Revised: May 3, 2012 
Bylaw Revised: February 20, 2014 
Bylaw Draft: July 17, 2014 (1st read) 

Supervisor 
Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee (ICOC) Member 

  
Designated persons in this category must report investments or business positions in or income 
from sources which:  

a. Are contractors or subcontractors engaged in work or services of the type used by 
the department which the designated person manages or directs, or  

b. Manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type used by 
the department which the designated person manages or directs.  For the 
purposes of this category, a principal's department is his/her entire school. 
Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as 
determined on a case-by-case basis by the Superintendent or designee. The 
Superintendent or designee's written determination shall include a description of 
the consultant's duties and a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements 
based upon that description. All such determinations are public records and shall 
be retained for public inspection along with this conflict of interest code.  

 
3. A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the District, makes a 

governmental decision whether to: 
(2 CCR 18701)  

a. Approve a rate, rule or regulation.  

b. Adopt or enforce a law.  

c. Issue, deny, suspend or revoke a permit, license, application, certificate, approval, 
order or similar authorization or entitlement.  

d. Authorize the District to enter into, modify or renew a contract that requires 
District approval.  

e. Grant District approval to a contract or contract specifications which require 
District approval and in which the District is a party.  

f. Grant District approval to a plan, design, report, study or similar item.  

g. Adopt or grant District approval of District policies, standards or guidelines.  
 
A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the District, serves in 
a staff capacity with the District and in that capacity participates in making a 
governmental decision as defined in 2 CCR 18702.2, or performs the same or 
substantially all the same duties for the District that would otherwise be performed by 
an individual holding a position specified in the District's Conflict of Interest Code.  (2 
CCR 18701)  

 
LEGAL REFERENCE 
 
EDUCATION CODE 
 

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
541 of 543

file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/225308
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/225311
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/225308


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9270 

San Dieguito Union High School District Page 6 of 6 
Bylaw Adopted: March 5, 1987 
Bylaw Revised: May 3, 2012 
Bylaw Revised: February 20, 2014 
Bylaw Draft: July 17, 2014 (1st read) 

1006 Qualifications for Holding Office  
35107 School District employees  
35230 - 35240 Corrupt Practices  
35233 Prohibitions Applicable to Members of Governing boards  

 
GOVERNMENT CODE  

 
1090 - 1098 Prohibitions Applicable to Specified Officers  
1125 - 1129 Incompatible Activities  

 
81000 – 91015 Political Reform Act of 1974, especially:  
82011 Code Reviewing Body  
82019 Definition of Designated Employee  
82028 Definition of Gifts  
82030 Definition of Income  
87100 - 87103.6 General Prohibitions  
87200 - 87210 Disclosure  
87300 - 87313 Conflict of Interest Code  
87500 Statements of Economic Interests  
89501 - 89503 Honoraria and Gifts  
91000 - 91014 Enforcement  

 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2  

 
18110 - 18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission  

 
COURT DECISIONS 

 
Thorpe v. Long Beach Community College District, (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th. 655 
Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency, (1997) 55 Cal.App.4th 511  

 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS  
 
82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999)  
81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998)  
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997)  
69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986)  
68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985)  
65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982)  
 
MANAGEMENT RESOURCES 
 
WEBSITES 
 
Fair Political Practices Commission: www.fppc.ca.gov  

 

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
542 of 543

file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/128906
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/131380
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/131432
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/131437
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/225983
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/144361
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/144373
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/144374
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/243991
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/146578
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145258
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145263
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145266
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145268
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145426
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145433
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145435
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145444
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145445
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145460
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145470
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/146606
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145482
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/146608
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/145515
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/225196
file://DO2/4daction/web_loaddisplaypolicy/243552
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/


ADMINISTRATION 2420.1; 4320.1 

San Dieguito Union High School District Page 1 of 1 
Policy Adopted: May 7, 1987 
Policy Revised: September 5, 2013 
Policy Draft: July 17, 2014 (1st read) 

 

DESIGNATION OF MANAGEMENT POSITIONS 
 

The Board of Trustees has investigated the duties and responsibilities of all its employees to determine 
whether they have significant responsibilities for formulating District policies or administering District 
programs.  The following positions have been determined to have those responsibilities and, therefore, 
are designated as management: 

 
Superintendent 
Associate Superintendent-Educational Services  
Associate Superintendent-Business  
Associate Superintendent-Human Resources  
Director of PPS and Alternative Programs 
Director of  Financial Services Chief Financial Officer 
Chief Facilities Officer 
Executive Director of Educational Services 
Director of Human Resources  
Director of Classified Personnel  
Director of Special Education  
Coordinator of Special Education 
Coordinator of Student Services 
Director of Information Technology 
Director of Technology Project Management 
Director of Maintenance, Operations & Transportation 
Director of Student Information Services 
Director of Purchasing and Risk Management 
Director of Nutrition Services 
Director of Planning Services 
Director of CTE, EL, and Community Programs 
Construction Project Manager-II 
Construction Project Manager-I 
Principal, Senior High / Middle School  
Assistant Principal, Senior High /Middle School  
 

 

No person serving in a position designated as management shall be represented by an exclusive 
representative. In employment relations with the Board of Trustees, any person serving in a 
management position shall have the right to represent himself/herself individually or by any other group 
whose membership is composed entirely of employees serving in a position designated as management. 

 
LEGAL REFERENCES 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

3540.1(g) Designation of Management Positions 
3543.4 Meeting and Negotiating in Public Educational Employment 

ITEM 23

Board Agenda Packet, 07-17-14
543 of 543


	AGENDA / MTG PROTOCOL / JULY 17, 2014
	PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS (ITEMS 1-6)
	6, 06-16-14 Sp Mtg Minutes, HS Selection Community Mtg 
	Attachment to 06-16-14 Sp Mtg Minutes, SDUHSD HS Selection Community Presentation

	6, 06-16-14 Reg Mtg Minutes
	Attachment to Minutes of 6-19-14, Addendum to Mitigated Negative Declaration / SDHSA Improvements


	NON-ACTION (ITEMS 7-10)
	CONSENT AGENDA (ITEMS 11-15)
	11, Superintendent
	11A, Gifts & Donations
	11B, Field Trips

	12, Human Resources
	12A, Personnel Reports

	13, Educational Services
	13A, Agreements
	13B, Amendments to Agreements

	14, Pupil Services / Special Education
	14A, SPED Agreements
	Criger / Fee Schedule
	Davis / Optometry Fee Schedule
	Gretsch / OT Fee Schedule
	NPS / Fee Schedule
	NPS / Daily All Inclusive Rates only
	NPA / Fee Schedule
	Residential Placement / Fee Schedule

	14C, Parent Settlement Agreement
	14D, Pupil Services / Agreements

	15, Business / Prop AA 
	15A, Agreements / Business 
	15B, Amendments to Agreements / Business
	15F, Business Reports
	15G, Agreements / Prop AA
	15H, Amendments to Agreements / Prop AA 


	DISCUSSION / ACTION (ITEMS 16-19)
	16, Resolution / Board Member Absence
	17, Adoption of Math Instructional Materials
	18, Adoption of Resolution / Establishing Taxes
	CFD 94-2
	CFD 94-3
	CFD 95-2
	CFD 99-1
	CFD 99-2
	CFD 99-3
	CFD 03-1

	19, Adoption of Resolution Levying Taxes 
	CFD 94-1
	CFD 94-2
	CFD 94-3
	CFD 95-1
	CFD 95-2
	CFD 99-1
	CFD 99-2
	CFD 99-3
	CFD 03-1


	INFORMATION (ITEMS 20-31)
	20, High School Selection Update
	21, Draft Education Plan: Strategic Themes, 2014-15
	22, Uniform Complaint Report, 4th Quarter, April-June 2014
	23, Proposed Revisions to BPs:
	9270, Conflict of Interest
	2420.1/4320.1, Designation of Management Positions


	NEXT MTG, August 21, 2014



